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SECTION I: GENERAL
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Letter of Offer uses the definitions and abbreviations set forth below, which you should consider when
reading the information contained herein. The following list of certain capitalised terms used in this Letter of
Offer is intended for the convenience of the reader/prospective investor only and is not exhaustive.

References to any legislation, act, regulation, rules, guidelines or policies shall be to such legislation, act,
regulation, rules, guidelines or policies as amended, supplemented, or re-enacted from time to time and any
reference to a statutory provision shall include any subordinate legislation made from time to time under that
provision.

In this Letter of Offer, unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, all references to ‘the/our
Company’, ‘we’, ‘our’, ‘us’ or similar terms are to Advik Capital Limited as the context requires, and references
to ‘you’ are to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and/ or prospective Investors in this Right Issue of Equity
Shares.

The words and expressions used in this Letter of Offer but not defined herein, shall have, to the extent
applicable, the meaning ascribed to such terms under the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI ICDR Regulations,
the SCRA, the Depositories Act, Takeover Regulations, or the rules and regulations made thereunder.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms used in "Statement of Special Tax Benefits" and "Financial Statements"
beginning on pages 57 and 94, respectively of this Letter of Offer, shall have the meaning given to such terms

in such sections.

Company and Industry Related Terms

Term

Description

"Our Company" or "the
Company" or "the
Issuer"

Advik Capital Limited incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956.

"Articles of Association"
or "Articles"

The articles of association of our Company, as amended from time to time.

“Audit Committee”

The committee of the Board of Directors constituted as our Company’s audit
committee in accordance with Regulation 18 of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013.

"Board" or "Board of
Directors"

The Board of Directors of our Company or a duly constituted committee thereof or
its duly authorised individuals.

“Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer”

Ms. Deepika Mishra, the Company Secretary and the Compliance Officer of our
Company.

Directors

Directors on the Board, as may be appointed from time to time

Equity Shareholders

Holders of Equity Share(s), from time to time

Equity Shares

Equity shares of face value of %1 each of our Company

Independent Director

Independent directors on the Board, who are eligible to be appointed as independent|
directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing
Regulations. For details of the Independent Directors, see "Our Management"
beginning on page 80 of this Letter of Offer

Key Managerial
Personnel

The Key Managerial Personnel of our Company as per the definition provided in
Regulation 2(1) (bb) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Materiality Policy

A policy adopted by our Company for identification of material litigation(s) for the
purpose of disclosure of the same in this Letter of Offer

Memorandum of
Association or
Memorandum

The memorandum of association of our Company, as amended from time to time

Promoter

The promoter of our Company is Mr. Vikas Garg & Mrs. Seema Garg.

Promoter Group

The companies, individuals and entities (other than companies) as defined




Term

Description

under Regulation 2(1) (pp) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, and
which are disclosed by the Company to the Stock Exchange from time to time.
As on the date of this LOO Ms. Sukriti Garg covered under the promoter group,
of the Company.

Registered and Corporate

Office or Registered
Office

The Registered Office of our company which is located at G-3, Vikas House,
34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, Sec-111, West Delhi, New Delhi, India — 110026.

Restated Financial
Statements

Our restated Ind AS summary statement of assets and liabilities as at March 31,
2024, March 31, 2023, and as at March 31, 2022, and restated Ind AS summary
statement of profit and loss, restated Ind AS summary statement of changes in equity|
and restated Ind AS summary statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31,
2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, together with the annexures, notes and
other explanatory information thereon, derived from the annual audited financial
statements as at and for year ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31,
2022, prepared in accordance with Ind AS and restated in accordance with Section
26 of Part 1 of Chapter 111 of the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI ICDR Regulations
and the Guidance Note on “Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019)”
issued by the ICAL.

Subsidiary

The Subsidiaries of the Company are:
1. Advik Optoelectronics Limited
2. Advikca Finvest Limited

Statutory Auditors

M/s. KSMC & Associates, Chartered Accountants

Issue Related Terms

Term

Description

2009 ASBA Circular

The SEBI circular SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12 dated December 30, 2009

2011 ASBA Circular

The SEBI circular CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011 dated April 29, 2011

2020 ASBA Circular

The SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020

2022 ASBA Circular

The SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/66 dated May 19, 2022

"Abridged Letter of
Offer" or "ALOF"

Abridged Letter of Offer to be sent to the Eligible Equity Shareholders with respect
to the Issue in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and
the Companies Act, 2013

Additional Rights
Equity Shares /
Additional Equity
Shares

The Rights Equity Shares applied or allotted under this Issue in addition to the
Rights Entitlement

"Allotment", "Allot" or
"Allotted"

Allotment of Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue

Allotment Account(s)

The account(s) opened with the Banker(s) to this Issue, into which the Application
Money lying credit to the Escrow Account(s) and amounts blocked by Application
Supported by Blocked Amount in the ASBA Account, with respect to successful
Applicants will be transferred on the Transfer Date in accordance with Section
40(3) of the Companies Act, 2013

Allotment Account
Bank(s)

Bank(s) which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as bankers to an
issue and with whom the Allotment Accounts will be opened, in this case being,
HDFC Bank Limited.

Allotment Advice

The note or advice or intimation of Allotment, sent to each successful Investor
who has been or is to be Allotted the Equity Shares after approval of the Basis of
Allotment by the Designated Stock Exchange

Allotment Date

Date on which the Allotment is made pursuant to this Issue

Allottee(s)

Person(s) who is Allotted Equity Shares pursuant to Allotment

Applicant(s) or Investors

Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) and/or Renounce(s) who are entitled to apply or
make an application for the Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue in terms of this
Letter of Offer.




Term

Description

Application

Application made through (i) submission of the Application Form or plain paper
Application to the Designated Branch of the SCSBs or online/ electronic
application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs)
under the ASBA process, to subscribe to the Equity Shares at the Issue Price

Application Form

Unless the context otherwise requires, an application form or through the website
of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs) under the ASBA process used by
an Investor to make an application for the Allotment of Equity Shares in the Issue

Application Money

Aggregate amount payable at the time of application i.e. X 2.50/- in respect of the
Equity Shares applied for in the Issue at the Issue Price

"Application Supported
by Blocked Amount" or
"ASBA"

Application (whether physical or electronic) used by an ASBA Investor to make
an application authorizing the SCSB to block the Application Money in the ASBA
Account maintained with the SCSB

ASBA Account

Account maintained with the SCSB and specified in the Application Form or the
plain paper Application by the Applicant for blocking the amount mentioned in the
Application Form or the plain paper Application

ASBA Circulars

Collectively, SEBI circular bearing reference number
SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12 dated December 30, 2009, SEBI circular
bearing reference number CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011 dated April 29, 2011, SEBI
circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated
January 22, 2020 and SEBI Circular bearing reference number
SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/66 dated May 19, 2022

ASBA Bid

A Bid made by an ASBA Bidder including all revisions and modifications thereto
as permitted under the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Banker(s) to the Issue

the Allotment Account Bank(s) to the Issue

Banker to the Issue
Agreement

Agreement dated September 7, 2024 amongst our Company, the Registrar to the
Issue and the Banker(s) to the Issue for collection of the Application Money from
Applicants/Investors making an application for the Equity Shares

Basis of Allotment

The basis on which the Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful Applicants in
consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange under this Issue, as described in
"Terms of the Issue™ beginning on page 194 of this Letter of Offer

Consolidated Certificate

The certificate that would be issued for Rights Equity Shares Allotted to each folio
in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form.

"Controlling Branches" or
"Controlling Branches of
the SCSBs"

Such branches of the SCSBs which co-ordinate with the Registrar to the Issue and
the  Stock Exchanges, a list of which is available on
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes

Designated Branches

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the Application Form or the plain
paper application, as the case may be, used by the ASBA Investors and a list of
which is available on
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes

Designated Stock
Exchange

BSE Limited

Depository(ies)

NSDL and CDSL or any other depository registered with SEBI under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 as
amended from time to time read with the Depositories Act, 1996.

Draft Letter of

Draft Letter of offer dated May 17, 2024 was filed with the Stock Exchanges.

Offer/DLoF/DLOF

Eligible Equity Holder(s) of the Equity Shares of our Company as on the Record Date

Shareholder (s)

IEPF Investor Education and Protection Fund

Investor(s) Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) of our Company on the Record Date i.e. Thursday,
September 12, 2024 and the Renouncee(s)

ISIN International securities identification number of the Company being

INE178T01024
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Term

Description

Issue / Rights Issue

Issue of upto 19,98,05,013 Equity Shares of face value of X1 each of our
Company for cash at a price of X 2.50/- per Rights Equity Share not exceeding
%4995.13 lakhs on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our
Company in the ratio of 14 Rights Equity Shares for every 30 Equity Shares held
by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company on the Record Date i.e.
Thursday, September 12, 2024.

Issue Closing Date

Friday, October 04, 2024

Issue Opening Date

Tuesday, September 24, 2024

Issue Period The period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date, inclusive
of both days, during which Applicants can submit their applications, in accordance
with the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Issue Price ¥ 2.50 per Equity Share (including premium of % 1.50 per shares)

Issue Proceeds or Gross
Proceeds

Gross proceeds of the Issue

Issue Size

Amount aggregating up to 34,995.13 Lakhs*
#Assuming full subscription

Letter of Offer or LOF

This Letter of offer dated September 07, 2024 filed with the Stock Exchanges.

Listing Agreement

The listing agreements entered into between our Company and the Stock
Exchanges in terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Fraudulent Borrower

Company or person, as the case may be, categorized as a fraudulent borrower by
any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or
consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on fraudulent borrower
issued by RBI

Multiple Application
Forms

Multiple application forms submitted by an Eligible Equity Shareholder/Renounce
in respect of the Rights Entitlement available in their demat account. However
supplementary applications in relation to further Equity Shares with/without using
additional Rights Entitlement will not be treated as multiple application

Net Proceeds

Issue Proceeds less the Issue related expenses. For further details, see "Objects of
the Issue™ beginning on page 53 of this Letter of Offer

Off Market Renunciation

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by transferring
them through off-market transfer through a depository participant in accordance
with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and the circulars issued by the Depositories,
from time to time, and other applicable laws

On Market Renunciation

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by trading
them over the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchanges through a
registered stock broker in accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and the
circulars issued by the Stock Exchanges, from time to time, and other applicable
laws, on or before Tuesday, October 01, 2024.

"Qualified Institutional
Buyers" or "QIBs"

Qualified institutional buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1) (ss) of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations

Record Date

Designated date for the purpose of determining the Eligible Equity Shareholders
eligible to apply for Equity Shares, being Thursday, September 12, 2024.

Refund Bank (s)

The Banker(s) to the Issue with whom the Refund Account(s) will be opened, in
this case being HDFC Bank.

Registrar to the Issue /
Registrar

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited

Registrar Agreement

Agreement dated September 07, 2024 between our Company and the Registrar to
the Issue in relation to the responsibilities and obligations of the Registrar to the
Issue pertaining to this Issue

Renouncee (s)

Person(s) who has/have acquired Rights Entitlements from the Eligible Equity
Shareholders

Renunciation Period

The period during which the Investors can renounce or transfer their Rights
Entitlements which shall commence from the Issue Opening Date. Such period
shall close on October 01, 2024 in case of On Market Renunciation. Eligible Equity
Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer




Term

Description

is completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the
demat account of the Renouncee on or prior to the Issue Closing Date

RE ISIN

ISIN for Rights Entitlement i,e. [INE178T20032]

Rights Entitlement(s)

The number of Rights Equity Shares that an Eligible Equity Shareholder is entitled
to in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the Eligible Equity
Shareholder on the Record Date, being Thursday, September 12, 2024, 14
(Fourteen) Rights Equity Shares for 30[Thirty] Equity Shares held on Thursday,
September 12, 2024.

The Rights Entitlements with a separate ISIN: [INE178T20032] will be credited
to your demat

account before the date of opening of the Issue, against the equity shares held by
the Equity Shareholders as on the record date.

Pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI Rights
Issue Circular, the Rights Entitlements shall be credited in dematerialized form in
respective demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders before the Issue
Opening Date

Rights Entitlement Letter

Letter including details of Rights Entitlements of the Eligible Equity Shareholders.

Self-Certified
Syndicate Banks or
SCSB(s)

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the ASBA Forms submitted by
ASBA Bidders, a list of which is available on the website of SEBI
at
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&in
tmld=35, updated from time to time, or at such other website as may be prescribed
by SEBI from time to time.

Stock Exchanges

Stock exchanges where the Equity Shares are presently listed, being BSE.

Transfer Date

The date on which the Application Money blocked in the ASBA Account will be
transferred to the Allotment Account(s) in respect of successful Applications, upon
finalization of the Basis of Allotment, in consultation with the Designated Stock
Exchange

Wilful Defaulter/
Fraudulent Borrower

A Company or person, as the case may be, categorized as a willful defaulter or a
fraudulent borrower by any bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in
accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulters issued by the RBI, including
any company whose director or promoter is categorized as such.

Working Day(s)

In terms of Regulation 2(1)(mmm) of SEBI ICDR Regulations, working day
means all days on which commercial banks in Delhi are open for business. Further,
in respect of Issue Period, working day means all days, excluding Saturdays,
Sundays and public holidays, on which commercial banks in Delhi are open for
business. Furthermore, the time period between the Issue Closing Date and the
listing of Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges, working day means all trading
days of the Stock Exchanges, excluding Sundays and bank holidays, as per
circulars issued by SEBI.
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Conventional and General Terms/Abbreviations

Term

Description

||%|I' "RS. ll, nRupeeSn or
‘IINR"

Indian Rupees

Adjusted loans and

Adjustment in the nature of addition to the loans and advances made in relation to

advances certain loans which are treated as investments under Ind AS, but considered as
loans by our Company

AIF(s) Alternative investment funds, as defined and registered with SEBI under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds)
Regulations, 2012

AUM Assets under management

AY Assessment year

BSE BSE Limited

CAGR Compound annual growth rate

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited

CIN Corporate identity number

Companies Act, 1956

Erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 along with the rules made thereunder

Companies Act, 2013

Companies Act, 2013 along with the rules made thereunder

COoVID-19 A public health emergency of international concern as declared by the World
Health Organization on January 30, 2020 and a pandemic on March 11, 2020

CRAR Capital adequacy ratio/Capital to risk assets ratio

CrPC Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973

Depositories Act Depositories Act, 1996

Depository A depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of

India (Depositories and Participant) Regulations, 1996

Depository Participant / DP

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act

DP ID

Depository participant’s identification

DIN Director Identification Number

EBITDA Profit/(loss) after tax for the year adjusted for income tax expense, finance costs,
depreciation and amortization expense, as presented in the statement of profit and
loss

EGM Extraordinary General Meeting

EPS Earnings per Equity Share

FCNR Account Foreign currency non-resident account

FDI Circular 2020

Consolidated FDI Policy dated October 15, 2020 issued by the Department for|
Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade, Ministry of Commerce and Industry,
Government of India

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, together with rules and regulations
thereunder
FEMA Rules Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019

"Financial Year", "Fiscal
Year" or "Fiscal”

Period of 12 months ended March 31 of that particular year, unless otherwise stated

FIR First information report

FPIs Foreign portfolio investors as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations

Fugitive Economic An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of

Offender the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018

FVCI Foreign venture capital investors as defined under and registered with SEBI
pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital
Investors) Regulations, 2000 registered with SEBI

GAAP Generally accepted accounting principles

GDP Gross domestic product

"Gol" or "Government" Government of India

GST Goods and Service Tax

HFC Housing finance companies

HUF Hindu Undivided Family

IBC Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016




Term Description

ICAI Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

Income Tax Act Income-Tax Act, 1961

Ind AS Indian accounting standards as specified under section 133 of the Companies Act
2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

Insider Trading Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015

ITAT Income Tax Appellate Tribunal

LTV Loan to value ratio

MCA Ministry of Corporate Affairs

Mutual Fund Mutual fund registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board off

(Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996

"Net Asset Value per
Equity Share" or "NAV per

Net Worth/ Number of Equity shares subscribed and fully paid outstanding as at
March 31

Equity Share"

Net Worth Aggregate of Equity Share capital and other equity

NBFC Non-banking financial company(ies)

NCD(s) Non-convertible debentures

NHB National housing bank

NPA(s) Non-performing assets

NRE Account Non-resident external account

NRI A person resident outside India, who is a citizen of India and shall have the same
meaning as ascribed to such term in the Foreigh Exchange Management (Deposit)
Regulations, 2016

NRO Account Non-resident ordinary account

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited

"OCB" or "Overseas
Corporate Body"

A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or
indirectly to the extent of at least 60% by NRIs including overseas trusts, in which
not less than 60% of beneficial interest is irrevocably held by NRIs directly or|
indirectly and which was in existence on October 3, 2003 and immediately before
such date had taken benefits under the general permission granted to OCBs under
FEMA

PAN Permanent account number

PAT Profit after tax

QP Qualified purchaser as defined in the U.S. Investment Company Act
RBI Reserve Bank of India

RBI Act Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

Regulation S Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act

RoC Registrar of Companies, NCT Delhi & Haryana
RTGS Real time gross settlement

Rule 144A Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act

SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957
SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India

SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992

SEBI AIF Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds)
Regulations, 2012

SEBI FPI Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations,
2019

SEBI Listing Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

SEBI Relaxation Circulars

SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/78
dated May 6, 2020, read with SEBI circulars bearing reference numbers

SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/136  dated  July 24, 2020 and
SEBI/HO/CFD/DILL/CIR/P/2021/13 dated January 19, 2021,
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/552  dated  April 22, 2021 and

SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/633 dated October 01, 2021.




Term

Description

SEBI Rights Issue Circulars

Collectively, SEBI circular, bearing reference number
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, bearing reference
number SEBI/HO/CFD/CIR/CFD/DIL/67/2020 dated April 21, 2020 and the SEBI
circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/66 dated
May 19, 2022 and any other circular(s) issued by SEBI in this regard

SEBI ICDR Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018

Stock Exchange

BSE

STT Securities transaction tax
Supreme Court Supreme Court of India
TAT Turnaround time

Takeover Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

Total Borrowings

Aggregate of debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and
subordinated liabilities

UPI

Unified Payments Interface

"U.S.$", "USD" or "U.S.
dollar"

United States Dollar, the legal currency of the United States of America

U.S. Investment Company
Act

Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended

U.S. Person U.S. persons as defined in Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act or acting for|
the account or benefit of U.S. persons (not relying on Rule 902(k)(1)(viii)(B) on
Rule 902(k)(2)(i) of Regulation S)

U.S. QIB Qualified institutional buyer as defined in Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act]

"USA", "U.S. " or "United
States"

United States of America

U.S. SEC U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission

U.S. Securities Act U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended

VCF Venture capital fund as defined and registered with SEBI under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Fund) Regulations, 1996 or the SEBI
AIF Regulations, as the case may be

WHO World Health Organization




NOTICE TO INVESTORS

The distribution of this Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and
Rights Entitlement Letter and the issue of Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares to persons in certain
jurisdictions outside India may be restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. Persons into
whose possession this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or Application Form may come are required
to inform themselves about and observe such restrictions.

Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will dispatch through
email and courier this Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and Rights
Entitlement Letter only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have a registered address in India or who have
provided an Indian address to our Company. Further, this Letter of Offer will be provided, through email and
courier, by the Registrar on behalf of our Company to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their
Indian addresses to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity
Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and in each case who make a request in this regard. Investors
can also access this Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form from
the websites of the Registrar, our Company, the Stock Exchanges. Those overseas shareholders who do not
update our records with their Indian address or the address of their duly authorized representative in India, prior
to the date on which we propose to dispatch the Issue Materials, shall not be sent any Issue Materials.

No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required for
that purpose. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly
or indirectly, and this Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or any offering materials or
advertisements in connection with the Issue may not be distributed, in whole or in part, in any jurisdiction, except
in accordance with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of this Letter of Offer or the Letter
of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer will not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in which it would be
illegal to make such an offer and, in those circumstances, this Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer and the Abridged
Letter of Offer must be treated as sent for information purposes only and should not be acted upon for subscription
to the Rights Equity Shares and should not be copied or redistributed. Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of
this Letter of Offer or the Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer or Application Form should not, in
connection with the issue of the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, distribute or send this Letter of
Offer or the Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer to any person outside India where to do so, would or
might contravene local securities laws or regulations. If this Letter of Offer or the Letter of Offer or the Abridged
Letter of Offer or Application Form is received by any person in any such jurisdiction, or by their agent or
nominee, they must not seek to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements referred to in
this Letter of Offer or the Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer or the Application Form.

Any person who makes an application to acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares offered in
the Issue will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that such person is authorised to
acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations prevailing in his jurisdiction. Our Company, the Registrar or any other person acting on behalf of our
Company reserves the right to treat any Application Form as invalid where they believe that Application Form
is incomplete or acceptance of such Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements
and we shall not be bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such
Application Form.

Neither the delivery of this Letter of Offer or the Letter of Offer the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form
and Rights Entitlement Letter nor any sale hereunder, shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that
there has been no change in our Company’s affairs from the date hereof or the date of such information or that
the information contained herein is correct as at any time subsequent to the date of this Letter of Offer , Letter of
Offer and the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter or the date of
such information.

THE CONTENTS OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS LEGAL, TAX
OR INVESTMENT ADVICE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY BE SUBJECT TO ADVERSE
FOREIGN, STATE OR LOCAL TAX OR LEGAL CONSEQUENCES AS A RESULT OF THE ISSUE
OF RIGHTS OF EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS. ACCORDINGLY, EACH
INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN COUNSEL, BUSINESS ADVISOR AND TAX
ADVISOR AS TO THE LEGAL, BUSINESS, TAX AND RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING THE
ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES. IN ADDITION, OUR COMPANY IS NOT MAKING ANY



REPRESENTATION TO ANY OFFEREE OR PURCHASER OF THE EQUITY SHARES
REGARDING THE LEGALITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THE EQUITY SHARES BY SUCH
OFFEREE OR PURCHASER UNDER ANY APPLICABLE LAWS OR REGULATIONS.

NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES

The Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the
Securities Act or the securities laws of any state of the United States and may not be offered or sold in the United
States of America or the territories or possessions thereof ("United States"), except in a transaction not subject
to, or exempt from, the registration requirements of the Securities Act and applicable state securities laws. The
offering to which this Letter of Offer relates is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, an offering
of any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement for sale in the United States or as a solicitation therein of an
offer to buy any of the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement. There is no intention to register any portion
of the Issue or any of the securities described herein in the United States or to conduct a public offering of
securities in the United States. Accordingly, this Letter of Offer/Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer and the
enclosed Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letters should not be forwarded to or transmitted in or into
the United States at any time. In addition, until the expiry of 40 days after the commencement of the Issue, an
offer or sale of Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares within the United States by a dealer (whether or not
it is participating in the Issue) may violate the registration requirements of the Securities Act.

Neither our Company nor any person acting on our behalf will accept a subscription or renunciation from any
person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company or any person acting on our behalf
has reason to believe is in the United States when the buy order is made. Envelopes containing an Application
Form and Rights Entitlement Letter should not be postmarked in the United States or otherwise dispatched from
the United States or any other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer, and all persons subscribing
for the Rights Equity Shares Issue and wishing to hold such Equity Shares in registered form must provide an
address for registration of these Equity Shares in India. Our Company is making the Issue on a rights basis to
Eligible Equity Shareholders and this Letter of Offer / Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer and Application
Form and Rights Entitlement Letter will be dispatched only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have an Indian
address. Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares will be deemed to have
declared, represented, warranted and agreed that, (i) it is not and that at the time of subscribing for such Rights
Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, it will not be, in the United States, and (ii) it is authorized to acquire
the Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

Our Company reserves the right to treat any Application Form as invalid which: (i) does not include the
certification set out in the Application Form to the effect that the subscriber is authorised to acquire the Rights
Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations; (ii) appears to us or
our agents to have been executed in or dispatched from the United States; (iii) where a registered Indian address
is not provided; or (iv) where our Company believes that Application Form is incomplete or acceptance of such
Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; and our Company shall not be bound
to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form.

Rights Entitlements may not be transferred or sold to any person in the United States.

The Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares have not been approved or disapproved by the US Securities and
Exchange Commission (the "US SEC"), any state securities commission in the United States or any other US
regulatory authority, nor have any of the foregoing authorities passed upon or endorsed the merits of the offering
of the Rights Entitlements, the Equity Shares or the accuracy or adequacy of this Letter of Offer.

Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United States.

The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants / Investors. Our Company and the Advisor to the
Issue are not liable for any amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may
occur after the date of this Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their independent investigations and
ensure that the number of Rights Equity Shares applied for do not exceed the applicable limits under the applicable
laws or regulations.

THIS DOCUMENT IS SOLELY FOR THE USE OF THE PERSON WHO RECEIVED IT FROM OUR

COMPANY OR FROM THE ADVISOR TO THE ISSUE OR FROM THE REGISTRAR. THIS
DOCUMENT IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED OR DISTRIBUTED TO ANY OTHER PERSON.

10



ENFORCEMENT OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

The Company is a Public Limited (Listed) Company under the laws of India and all the Directors and all Executive
Officers are residents of India. It may not be possible or may be difficult for investors to affect service of process
upon the Company or these other persons outside India or to enforce against them in courts in India, judgments
obtained in courts outside India. India is not a party to any international treaty in relation to the automatic
recognition or enforcement of foreign judgments.

However, recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments is provided for under Sections 13, 14 and 44A of the
Code of Civil Procedure, 1908, as amended (the “Civil Procedure Code”). Section 44A of the Civil Procedure
Code provides that where a certified copy of a decree of any superior court (within the meaning of that section)
in any country or territory outside India which the Government of India has by notification declared to be a
reciprocating territory, is filed before a district court in India, such decree may be executed in India as if the decree
has been rendered by a district court in India. Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code is applicable only to
monetary decrees or judgments not being in the nature of amounts payable in respect of taxes or other charges of
a similar nature or in respect of fines or other penalties. Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code does not apply
to arbitration awards even if such awards are enforceable as a decree or judgment. Among others, the United
Kingdom, Singapore, Hong Kong and the United Arab Emirates have been declared by the Government of India
to be reciprocating territories within the meaning of Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code.

The United States has not been declared by the Government of India to be a reciprocating territory for the purposes
of Section 44A of the Civil Procedure Code. Under Section 14 of the Civil Procedure Code, an Indian court shall,
on production of any document purporting to be a certified copy of a foreign judgment, presume that the judgment
was pronounced by a court of competent jurisdiction unless the contrary appears on the record; but such
presumption may be displaced by proving want of jurisdiction.

A judgment of a court in any non-reciprocating territory, such as the United States, may be enforced in India only
by a suit upon the judgment subject to Section 13 of the Civil Procedure Code, and not by proceedings in
execution. Section 13 of the Civil Procedure Code, which is the statutory basis for the recognition of foreign
judgments (other than arbitration awards), states that a foreign judgment shall be conclusive as to any matter
directly adjudicated upon between the same parties or between parties under whom they or any of them claim
litigating under the same title except where:

e  The judgment has not been pronounced by a court of competent jurisdiction;

e The judgment has not been given on the merits of the case;

e The judgment appears on the face of the proceedings to be founded on an incorrect view of international
law or a refusal to recognize the law of India in cases where such law is applicable;

e The proceedings in which the judgment was obtained are opposed to natural justice;

e The judgment has been obtained by fraud; and/or

e The judgment sustains a claim founded on a breach of any law in force in India.

A suit to enforce a foreign judgment must be brought in India within three years from the date of the judgment in
the same manner as any other suit filed to enforce a civil liability in India. It is unlikely that a court in India would
award damages on the same basis as a foreign court if an action is brought in India. In addition, it is unlikely that
an Indian court would enforce foreign judgments if it considered the amount of damages awarded as excessive or
inconsistent with public policy or if the judgments are in breach of or contrary to Indian law. A party seeking to
enforce a foreign judgment in India is required to obtain prior approval from the Reserve Bank of India to
repatriate any amount recovered pursuant to execution of such judgment. Any judgment in a foreign currency
would be converted into Rupees on the date of such judgment and not on the date of payment and any such amount
may be subject to income tax in accordance with applicable laws. The Company cannot predict whether a suit
brought in an Indian court will be disposed of in a timely manner or be subject to considerable delays.
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
Certain Conventions

All references to "India" contained in this Letter of Offer are to the Republic of India and its territories and
possessions and all references herein to the "Government”, "Indian Government", "Gol", Central Government"
or the "State Government" are to the Government of India, central or state, as applicable.

Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, all references in this Letter of Offer to the ‘US’ or
‘U.S.” or the ‘United States’ are to the United States of America and its territories and possessions.

Unless otherwise specified, any time mentioned in this Letter of Offer is in Indian Standard Time ("IST"). Unless
indicated otherwise, all references to a year in this Letter of Offer are to a calendar year.

A reference to the singular also refers to the plural and one gender also refers to any other gender, wherever
applicable.

Unless stated otherwise, all references to page numbers in this Letter of Offer are to the page numbers of this
Letter of Offer.

Financial Data

Unless stated otherwise or the context otherwise requires, the financial information and financial ratios in this
Letter of Offer has been derived from our Restated Financial Statements. For details, please see "Restated
Financial Information" beginning on page 95 of this Letter of Offer. Our Company’s financial year commences
on April 1 and ends on March 31 of the next year. Accordingly, all references to a particular financial year, unless
stated otherwise, are to the twelve (12) month period ended on March 31 of that year.

The Gol has adopted the Ind AS, which are converged with the IFRS and notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Ind AS Rules. The Restated Financial Statements of our Company for the
Financial Years ended March 2022 and March 2023 and Year ended March 31, 2024 have been prepared in
accordance with Ind AS read with the Ind AS Rules and other the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and restated in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note on Reports in Company
Prospectuses (revised), 2019, issued by the ICAI.

The Restated Financial Statements of our Company for the Financial Years ended March 2024, 2023 and 2022
prepared in accordance with Ind AS as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act read with the Ind AS
Rules and other the relevant provisions of the Companies Act and restated in accordance with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations and the Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (revised), 2019, issued by the ICAI.
Our Company publishes its financial statements in Rupees.

In this Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are
due to rounding off and unless otherwise specified all financial numbers in parenthesis represent negative figures.
Our Company has presented all numerical information in the Restated Financial Statements in whole numbers
and in this Letter of Offer in “lakh” units or in whole numbers where the numbers have been too small to represent
in lakh. One lakh represents 1,00,000 and one million represents 1,000,000.

There are significant differences between Ind AS, US GAAP and IFRS. We have not provided a reconciliation
of the financial information to IFRS or US GAAP. Our Company has not attempted to also explain those
differences or quantify their impact on the financial data included in this Letter of Offer, and you are urged to
consult your own advisors regarding such differences and their impact on our financial data. Accordingly, the
degree to which the financial information included in this Letter of Offer will provide meaningful information is
entirely dependent on the reader’s level of familiarity with Indian accounting policies and practices, Ind AS, the
Companies Act and the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Any reliance by persons not familiar with these accounting
principles and regulations on our financial disclosures presented in this Letter of Offer should accordingly be
limited. For further information, see “Financial Information” beginning on page 94 of this Letter of Offer.
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Certain figures contained in this Letter of Offer, including financial information, have been subject to rounded
off adjustments. All figures in decimals (including percentages) have been rounded off to one or two decimals.
However, where any figures that may have been sourced from third-party industry sources are rounded off to
other than two decimal points in their respective sources, such figures appear in this Letter of Offer rounded-off
to such number of decimal points as provided in such respective sources. In this Letter of Offer, (i) the sum or
percentage change of certain numbers may not conform exactly to the total figure given; and (ii) the sum of the
numbers in a column or row in certain tables may not conform exactly to the total figure given for that column
or row. Any such discrepancies are due to rounding off.

Currency and Units of Presentation

All references to:

. “Rupees” or “X” or “INR” or “Rs.” are to Indian Rupee, the official currency of the Republic of India;
and
. “USD” or “US$” or “$” are to United States Dollar, the official currency of the United States of America.

Our Company has presented certain numerical information in this Letter of Offer in “lakh” or “Lac” units or in
whole numbers. One lakh represents 1,00,000 and one million represents 1,000,000. All the numbers in the
document have been presented in lakh or in whole numbers where the numbers have been too small to present in
lakh. Any percentage amounts, as set forth in “Risk Factors”, “Our Business”, “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operation” beginning on pages 22, 75, and 175 and elsewhere
in this Letter of Offer, unless otherwise indicated, have been calculated based on our Financial Information.

Exchange Rates

This Letter of Offer contains conversions of certain other currency amounts into Indian Rupees that have been
presented solely to comply with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. These conversions should not be construed as a
representation that these currency amounts could have been, or can be converted into Indian Rupees, at any
particular rate or at all.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, information with respect to the exchange rate between
the Indian Rupee and other foreign currencies:

(in %)
Sr. No. Name of the Exchange rate as on
Currency March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1 United States Dollar 83.37 82.21 75.80

(Source: www.rbi.org.in and www.fbil.org.in)
Note: In case March 31 of any of the respective years is a public holiday, the previous Working Day not being a public holiday has been
considered.

Industry and Market Data

Unless stated otherwise, industry and market data used in this Letter of Offer has been obtained or derived from
publicly available information as well as industry publications and sources.

Industry publications generally state that the information contained in such publications has been obtained from
publicly available documents from various sources believed to be reliable but their accuracy and completeness
are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured.

Although we believe the industry and market data used in this Letter of Offer is reliable, it has not been
independently verified by us. The data used in these sources may have been reclassified by us for the purposes
of presentation. Data from these sources may also not be comparable. Such data involves risks, uncertainties and
numerous assumptions and is subject to change based on various factors, including those discussed in “Risk
Factors” beginning on page 22 of this Letter of Offer. Accordingly, investment decisions should not be based
solely on such information.

The extent to which the market and industry data used in this Letter of Offer is meaningful depends on
the reader’s familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data. There
are no standard data gathering methodologies in the industry in which the business of our Company is
conducted, and methodologies and assumptions may vary widely among different industry sources.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Letter of Offer contains certain “forward-looking statements”. Forward looking statements appear throughout
this Letter of Offer, including, without limitation, under the chapters titled “Risk Factors”, “Our Business” and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Industry
Overview”. Forward-looking statements include statements concerning our Company’s plans, objectives, goals,
strategies, future events, future revenues or financial performance, capital expenditures, financing needs, plans or
intentions relating to acquisitions, our Company’s competitive strengths and weaknesses, our Company’s business
strategy and the trends our Company anticipates in the industries and the political and legal environment, and
geographical locations, in which our Company operates, and other information that is not historical information.

<

These forward-looking statements generally can be identified by words or phrases such as “aim”, “anticipate”,
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“believe”, “continue”, “can”, “could”, “expect”, “estimate”, “intend”, “likely”, “may”, “objective”, “plan”,
“potential”, “project”, “pursue”, “shall”, “seek to”, “will”, “will continue”, “will pursue”, “forecast”, “target”, or
other words or phrases of similar import. Similarly, statements that describe the strategies, objectives, plans or

goals of our Company are also forward-looking statements.

However, these are not the exclusive means of identifying forward-looking statements. All statements regarding
our Company’s expected financial conditions, results of operations, business plans and prospects are forward-
looking statements. These forward-looking statements include statements as to our Company’s business strategy,
planned projects, revenue and profitability (including, without limitation, any financial or operating projections
or forecasts), new business and other matters discussed in this Letter of Offer that are not historical facts. These
forward-looking statements contained in this Letter of Offer (whether made by our Company or any third party),
are predictions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other factors that may cause
the actual results, performance or achievements of our Company to be materially different from any future results,
performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements or other projections.

Actual results may differ materially from those suggested by the forward-looking statements due to risks
or uncertainties associated with our expectations with respect to, but not limited to, regulatory changes pertaining
to the industry in which our Company operates and our ability to respond to them, our ability to
successfully implement our strategy, our growth and expansion, the competition in our industry and markets,
technological changes, our exposure to market risks, general economic and political conditions in India and
globally which have an impact on our business activities or investments, the monetary and fiscal policies of India,
inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices or other
rates or prices, the performance of the financial markets in India and globally, changes in laws, regulations and
taxes, incidence of natural calamities and/or acts of violence. Important factors that could cause actual results
to differ materially from our Company’s expectations include, but are not limited to, the following:

. Uncertainty of the continuing impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business and operations;

. As an NBFC, we are subject to periodic inspections by the RBI. Non-compliance with observations made
by RBI during these inspections could expose us to penalties and restrictions;

. We operate in a highly competitive industry and our inability to compete effectively may adversely affect
our business;

. Our business will require substantial funds, and any disruption in funding sources would have a material
adverse effect on our liquidity and financial condition;

) We are affected by volatility in interest rates for both our lending and fund raisings operations, which

could cause our net interest income to decline and adversely affect our results of operations and
profitability; and

. We depend on the accuracy and completeness of information about customers and counterparties for
certain key elements of our credit assessment and risk management process. Any misrepresentation,
errors in or incompleteness of such information could adversely affect our business and financial

performance.

. Any increase in the levels of NPAs in our loan portfolio, for any reason whatsoever, would adversely
affect our business and results of operations;

. Any volatility in interest rates which could cause our gross spreads to decline and consequently affect
our profitability;

. Changes in the value of Rupee and other currency changes;

. The outcome of any legal or regulatory proceedings we are or may become a party to;

. Changes in Indian and/or foreign laws and regulations, including tax, accounting, banking, securities,

insurance and other regulations;
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o Changes in the pricing environment in India; and regional or general changes in asset valuations;

. Any changes in connection with policies, statutory provisions, regulations and/or RBI directions in
connection with NBFCs, including laws that impact our lending rates and our ability to enforce our
collateral;

o Emergence of new competitors;

. Potential mergers, acquisitions or restructurings;

. Occurrence of natural calamities or natural disasters affecting the areas in which our Company has
operations;

. Availability of adequate debt and equity financing at commercially acceptable terms;

. General, political, economic, social and business conditions in Indian and other global markets;

. Significant competition in our businesses may limit our growth and prospects;

. Dependence on a number of key management personnel and senior management personnel and our

ability to attract and retain qualified personnel;

. Our risk management and internal controls, as well as the risk management tools available to us, may
not be adequate or effective in identifying or mitigating risks to which we are exposed; and
. Claims by clients or actions by regulators or both for alleged mis-selling.

For further discussion of factors that could cause the actual results to differ from our estimates and expectations,
see "Risk Factors", "Our Business" and "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position and
Results of Operations" beginning on pages 22, 75 and 175 respectively, of this Letter of Offer. By their nature,
certain market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs in
the future. As a result, actual gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been estimated.

We cannot assure investors that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements will prove to be
correct. Given these uncertainties, investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking
statements and not to regard such statements as a guarantee of future performance.

Forward-looking statements reflect the current views of our Company as of the date of this Letter of Offer and are
not a guarantee of future performance. These statements are based on the management’s beliefs and assumptions,
which in turn are based on currently available information. Although we believe the assumptions upon which
these forward-looking statements are based are reasonable, any of these assumptions could prove to be inaccurate,
and the forward-looking statements based on these assumptions could be incorrect. Neither our Company, our
Directors, our Promoter, the Syndicate Member(s) nor any of their respective affiliates or advisors have any
obligation to update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to
reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition.

In accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, our Company will ensure that investors are informed of material

developments from the date of this Letter of Offer until the time of receipt of the listing and trading permissions
from the Stock Exchange.
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SECTION II- SUMMARY OF LETTER OF OFFER

The following is a general summary of the terms of this Issue, and should be read in conjunction with and is
qualified by the more detailed information appearing in this Letter of Offer, including the sections titled “Risk
Factors”, “The Issue”, “Capital Structure”, “Objects of the Issue”, “Industry Overview”, “Our Business”,
“Qutstanding Litigation and Defaults” and “Terms of the Issue” beginning on pages 22, 42, 50, 53, 67, 75, 181
and 194 respectively of this Letter of Offer.

1.

Summary of Industry

Non-Banking Financial Institutions form an integral part of the Indian financial ecosystem. They provide
underbanked/unbanked individuals and MSMESs an opportunity to be a part of the financial mainstream.
They have been successful in bridging the credit gap for the entire spectrum of customers ranging from
high ticket structured loans to corporates/HNIs to microfinance customers, due to their higher risk
underwriting capacity, superior credit assessment skills and deep understanding of customers. They have
emerged as a vehicle for financing business activities that Banks neglected due to regulatory restrictions
such as credit exposure constraints and sector concentration norms.

NBFC is a Financial Institution that is into Lending or Investment or collecting monies under any scheme
or arrangement but does not include any institutions which carry on its principal business as agriculture
activity, industrial activity, trading and purchase or sale of immovable properties. A company that carries
on the business of accepting deposits as its principal business is also an NBFC.

India has a diversified financial sector undergoing rapid expansion, both in terms of the strong growth of
existing financial services firms and new entities entering the market. The sector comprises commercial
banks, insurance companies, non-banking financial companies, co-operatives, pension funds, mutual
funds, and other smaller financial entities. The banking regulator has allowed new entities such as
payments banks to be created recently thereby adding to the types of entities operating in the sector.
Sources: https://www.legalserviceindia.com/legal/article-5832-an-overview-of-non-banking-financial-
service-institutions.html

For details, please refer to chapter titled “Industry Overview” on page 67 of this Letter of Offer.
Summary of Business

We are a Non-Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered with RBI to carry
on the NBFC activities under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 bearing Registration
no. B- 14.00724 dated January 07, 2003 and August 24, 2017. Our Company is engaged primarily in the
business of providing financial loans and in providing ancillary services related to the said business
activities.

For details, please refer to chapter titled “Our Business” on page 75 of this Letter of Offer.

Our Promoter

The Promoter of our Company is Mr. Vikas Garg & Mrs. Seema Garg*
* Company was acquired by abovementioned promoters through Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) dated May 18, 2022, and Letter
of Offer dated February 6, 2023 in terms of Regulation 3(1) and Regulation 4 of SEBI (SAST) Regulations, 2011.

For further details please see chapter titled “Our Promoters” beginning on page 89 of this Letter of Offer.
Objects of the Issue

The Net Proceeds are proposed to be used in the manner set out in the following table:

<in lakhs)
S. No. Particulars Total estimated amount
to be utilized (X in lakhs)
1. To augment our capital base for our Company 3,725.00
2. General Corporate Purposes 1,185.13
Total 4,910.13

For further details, please see chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” beginning on page no 53 of this Letter
of Offer.

17


https://www.legalserviceindia.com/legal/article-5832-an-overview-of-non-banking-financial-service-institutions.html
https://www.legalserviceindia.com/legal/article-5832-an-overview-of-non-banking-financial-service-institutions.html

Intention and extent of participation by our Promoter and Promoter Group in the Issue

Our Promoter has, vide their letter dated April 30, 2024 (the “Subscription Intent Letter”) communicated
that they could only be able to subscribe in the event of under-subscription of the proposed Right Issue.

Hence, solely in the event of under-subscription of this Issue our Promoter shall subscribe to the extent of
their Right Entitlement first, then for additional Rights Equity Shares, if required, subject to compliance
with the Companies Act, the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the SEBI Takeover Regulations and other
applicable laws.

The additional subscription, if any, by our Promoter shall be made subject to such additional subscription
not resulting in the minimum public shareholding of our Company falling below the level prescribed in
SEBI Listing Regulations and SCRR. Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations and will continue to comply with the minimum public shareholding requirements
pursuant to the Issue.

Summary of Financial Information

Following are the details as per the Restated Consolidated Financial Information as at and for Financial
Years ended on March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, and for year ended March 31, 2022:

(Zin lakhs
Particulars March 31, 2024 |March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Authorised Share Capital* 7500.00 2500.00 2500.00
Paid-up Capital 4281.54 2201.93 458.74
Net Worth attributable to Equity 12344.82 6756.45 957.8
Shareholders (excluding OCI reserves)
Total Revenue 84805.86 60436.89 4657.72
Profit after tax 635.62 934.88 44.37
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) (77.74) (896.82) -
for the year
Total Comprehensive income/(Loss) for the 557.88 38.06 44.37
year
Earnings per Share (basic & diluted) (in ) 0.20 0.42 0.09
Net Asset Value per Equity Share (in X) 2.88 3.06 2.09
Total Borrowings 7867.76 7512.69 469.02

*Authorized share Capital has been increased from 50 Cr. to 75 Cr. through the Postal Ballot Notice Dated 11/04/2023.
** Net worth attributable to Equity Shareholders are excluded the Non-Controlling interest.

Following are the details as per the Restated Standalone Financial Information as at and for Financial
Years ended on March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, and for year ended March 31, 2022:

Particulars March 31, 2024 |March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Authorised Share Capital* 7500.00 2500.00 2500.00
Paid-up Capital 4,281.54 2,201.93 458.74
Net Worth attributable to 12019.66 6762.27 944.22
Equity Shareholders

Total Revenue 2750.67 34934.26 3,949.52
Profit after tax 403.99 954.61 38.74
Total other comprehensive income (77.74) (896.82) -
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for 326.26 57.79 38.74
the period

Earnings per Share (basic & diluted) (in ) 0.10 0.03 0.08
Net Asset Value per Equity Share (in ) 2.80 3.07 2.06
Total Borrowings 7796.22 7,259.20 288.70

*Authorized share Capital has been increased from 50 Cr. to 75 Cr. through the Postal Ballot Notice Dated 11/04/2023.
** Net worth attributable to Equity Shareholders are excluded the non-Controlling interest
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Summary of Outstanding Litigations:

A summary of outstanding litigation proceedings involving our Company, our Directors, our Promoter
and Subsidiaries as on the date of this Letter of Offer is provided below:

(¥in lakhs)

Nature of Cases Number of Amount Involved*

outstanding cases
Litigation involving our Company
Criminal proceedings against our Company Nil Nil
Criminal proceedings by our Company Nil Nil
Material civil litigation against Company Nil Nil
Material civil litigation by our Company Nil Nil
Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities Nil Nil
Direct and indirect tax proceedings Nil Nil
Litigation involving our Directors
Criminal proceedings against our Directors Nil Nil
Criminal proceedings by our Directors Nil Nil
Material civil litigation against our Directors Nil Nil
Material civil litigation by our Directors Nil Nil
Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities Nil Nil
Direct and indirect tax proceedings Nil Nil
Litigation involving our Promoter
Criminal proceedings against our Promoter Nil Nil
Criminal proceedings by our Promoter Nil Nil
Material civil litigation against our Promoter Nil Nil
Material civil litigation by our Promoter Nil Nil
Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities Nil Nil
Direct and indirect tax proceedings Nil Nil
Litigation involving our Subsidiaries
Criminal proceedings against Promoter Nil Nil
Criminal proceedings by Promoter Nil Nil
Material civil litigation against Promoter Nil Nil
Material civil litigation by Promoter Nil Nil
Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities Nil Nil
Direct and indirect tax proceedings Nil Nil

* To the extent quantifiable.

For details, please refer to chapter titled “Outstanding Litigations and Defaults” on page 181 of this
Letter of Offer.

Risk Factors:
For details of potential risks associated with our ongoing business activities and industry, investment in

Equity Shares of the Company, material litigations which impact the business of the Company and other
economic factors please see “Risk Factors” on page 22 of this Letter of Offer.
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9. Summary of Contingent Liabilities

Following are the details as per the Restated Consolidated Financial Information for the Year ended
March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, and March 31, 2022.

(Zin lakhs)

Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Claims against the Company not Nil Nil Nil
acknowledged as debt
Collateral Security against 142.84 142.84 142.84
subsidiaries
Other money for which the Nil Nil Nil
Company is contingently liable
Commitments Nil Nil Nil

Following are the details as per the Restated Standalone Financial Information for the Year ended March

31, 2024, March 31, 2023, and March 31, 2022.

(¥Fin lakhs)

Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, March 31, March 31,

2024 2023 2022
Claims against the Company not acknowledged Nil Nil Nil
as debt
Collateral Security against subsidiaries 142.84 142.84 142.84
Other money for which the Company is Nil Nil Nil
contingently liable
Commitments Nil Nil Nil

10. Summary of Related Party Transactions

Please refer “Financial Information” beginning on page 94 of the Financial Information in this Letter

of Offer.

11. Issue of equity shares made in last one year for consideration other than cash

Our Company has not made any issuances of Equity Shares in the last one year for consideration other

than cash.

12. Split or consolidation of Equity Shares in the last one year

Our Company has not carried any split or consolidation of Equity Shares in last one year.
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SECTION Ill- RISK FACTORS

An investment in the Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider all the information
in this Letter of Offer, including the risks and uncertainties described below, before making an investment in the
Equity Shares. In making an investment decision, prospective investors must rely on their own examination of us
and the terms of the Issue including the merits and risks involved. The risks described below are not the only ones
relevant to us, our Equity Shares, the industry or the segment in which we operate.

Additional risks and uncertainties, not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may arise or
may become material in the future and may also impair our business, results of operations and financial condition.
If any of the following risks, or other risks that are not currently known or are now deemed immaterial, actually
occur, our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition could be adversely affected, the
trading price of our Equity Shares could decline, and as prospective investors, you may lose all or part of your
investment. You should consult your tax, financial and legal advisors about particular consequences to you of an
investment in this Issue. The financial and other related implications of the risk factors, wherever quantifiable,
have been disclosed in the risk factor mentioned below. However, there are certain risk factors where the
financial impact is not quantifiable and, therefore, cannot be disclosed in such risk factors.

To obtain a complete understanding, you should read this section in conjunction with the sections “Industry
Overview”, “Our Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position and Results of
Operations” on pages 67, 75, and 175 of this Letter of Offer, respectively. The industry-related information
disclosed in this section has been derived from publicly available documents from various sources believed to be
reliable, but their accuracy and completeness are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured. Neither
our Company, nor any other person connected with the Issue, has independently verified the information in the
industry report or other publicly available information cited in this section. This Letter of Offer also contain
forward-looking statements that involve risks, assumptions, estimates and uncertainties. Our actual results could
differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors,
including the considerations described below and, in the section titled “Forward-Looking Statements” on page
14 of this Letter of Offer

Unless specified or quantified in the relevant risk factors below, we are not in a position to quantify the financial
or other implications of any of the risks described in this section. Unless the context requires otherwise, the
financial information of our Company has been derived from the Financial Information and the Limited Review
Financial Information, prepared in accordance with Ind AS, the Companies Act and SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Materiality:

The Risk Factors have been determined on the basis of their materiality. The following factors have been
considered for determining the materiality of Risk Factors:

*Some events may not be material individually but may be found material collectively,
*Some events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively, and
*Some events may not be material at present but may have a material impact in future.

The financial and other related implications of risks concerned, wherever quantifiable have been disclosed in the
risk factors mentioned below. However, there are risk factors where the impact may not be quantifiable and hence,
the same has not been disclosed in such risk factors. The numbering of the risk factors has been done to facilitate
ease of reading and reference and does not in any manner indicate the importance of one risk over another.

In this Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between total and sums of the amount listed are due
to rounding off.
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EEITS

In this section, unless the context requires otherwise, any reference to “we”, “us” or “our” refers to Advik Capital
Limited.

The risk factors are classified as under for the sake of better clarity and increased understanding.

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

BUSINESS RELATED RISKS

1.

2.

As an NBFC, we are subject to periodic inspections by the RBI. Non-compliance with observations made
by RBI during these inspections could expose us to penalties and restrictions

Under section 45N of the Reserve Bank of India, 1934 (“RBI Act”) we are subject to periodic inspections
by the RBI to verify correctness or completeness of any statement, information or particulars furnished to
the RBI for the purpose of obtaining any information or particulars which our Company has failed to furnish
on being called upon to do so. While we may respond to RBI and address such observations; there can be no
assurance that the RBI will not make similar or other observations in the future. If we are unable to resolve
such deficiencies to RBI’s satisfaction, our ability to conduct out business may be adversely affected.
Imposition of any penalty or adverse findings by the RBI during the ongoing or any future inspections may
have an adverse impact on our business prospects, financial condition and results of operations. NBFCs in
India are subject to strict regulation and supervision by the RBI. We require certain approvals, licenses,
registrations and permissions for operating our business. Such approvals, licenses, registrations and
permissions must be maintained / renewed over time and we may have to comply with certain conditions in
relation to these approvals. Moreover, the applicable requirements may change from time. We are required
to obtain and maintain a license for carrying on business as an NBFC. If we fail to obtain or retain any of
these approvals or licenses, or renewals thereof, in a timely manner, or at all, our business may be adversely
affected. RBI has the authority to change these norms/ criteria as and when required. Inability to meet the
prescribed norms/ criteria, can adversely affect the operations and profitability of our Company.

Our business will require substantial funds, and any disruption in funding sources would have a material
adverse effect on our liquidity and financial condition.

Our liquidity and profitability are, in large part, dependent upon our timely access to, and costs associated
with raising capital including both debt and equity. Our business depends and will continue to depend on our
ability to access diversified low-cost funding sources. As a financial services company, we face certain
additional regulatory restrictions on our ability to obtain financing from banks. Further, under Indian Law,
foreign investors are subject to investment restrictions that may limit our ability to attract foreign investors
or capital from overseas investors.

Pursuing our growth strategy and introducing new product offerings to our customers will have an impact
on our long-term capital requirements. With the growth of our business, we may be increasingly reliant on
funding from debt capital markets. The market for such funds is competitive and our ability to obtain funds
at competitive rates will depend on various factors. If we are unable to access funds at an effective cost that
is comparable to or lower than our competitors, we may not be able to offer competitive interest rates for our
loans. Our ability to raise funds on acceptable terms and at competitive rates continues to depend on various
factors, including the regulatory environment and policy initiatives in India, lack of liquidity in the market,
developments in the international markets affecting the Indian economy, investors’ and/or lenders’
perception of demand for debt and equity securities of NBFCs, and our current and future results of
operations and financial condition. If we are unable to obtain adequate financing or financing on terms
satisfactory to us and in a timely manner, our ability to grow or support our business and to respond to
business challenges could be limited and our business prospects, financial condition and results of operations
would be materially and adversely affected.

We operate in a highly competitive industry and our inability to compete effectively may adversely affect
our business.

We operate in a highly competitive industry. Given the diversity of our businesses, and the products and
services offered by us, we face competition from the full spectrum of public sector banks, private sector
banks (including foreign banks), financial institutions, captive finance affiliates of players in various
industries, small finance banks and other NBFCs who are active in SME, retail and individual lending. Many
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of our competitors may have greater resources than we do, may be larger in terms of business volume and
may have significantly lower cost of funds compared to us. They may also have greater geographical reach,
long-standing partnerships and may offer their customers other forms of financing that we may not be able
to provide. Competition in our industry depends on, amongst others, the ongoing evolution of government
and regulatory policies, the entry of new participants and the extent to which there is consolidation among
banks and financial institutions in India. We cannot assure you that we will be able to react effectively to
these or other market developments or compete effectively with new and existing players in our increasingly
competitive industry and our inability to compete effectively may adversely affect our business.

We are affected by volatility in interest rates for both our lending and fund raisings operations, which
could cause our net interest income to decline and adversely affect our results of operations and
profitability.

A significant component of our revenue is the interest on loans and other financing activity we receive from
the loans we disburse. Our net interest margins are affected by any volatility in interest rates in our lending
operations. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond our control, including competition from
other banks and NBFCs, the monetary policies of the RBI, deregulation of the financial sector in India,
domestic and international economic and political conditions and other factors, which have historically
generated a relatively high degree of volatility in interest rates in India. Persistently high inflation in India
may discourage the Government from implementing policies that would cause interest rates to decrease.
Moreover, if there is an increase in the interest rates, we pay on our borrowings that we are unable to pass to
our customers, we may find it difficult to compete with our competitors, who may have access to funds at a
lower cost or lower cost deposits. To the extent our borrowings are linked to market interest rates, we may
have to pay interest at a higher rate than lenders that borrow only at fixed interest rates. Further, our ability
to pass on any increase in interest rates to borrowers may also be constrained by regulations implemented
by the Government or the RBI. In a declining interest rate environment, if our cost of funds does not decline
simultaneously or to the same extent as the yield on our interest-earning assets, it could lead to a reduction
in our net interest income and net interest margin.

We depend on the accuracy and completeness of information about customers and counterparties for
certain key elements of our credit assessment and risk management process. Any misrepresentation,
errors in or incompleteness of such information could adversely affect our business and financial
performance.

In deciding whether to extend credit or enter into other transactions with customers, for certain key elements
of the credit assessment process, we rely on information furnished to us by or on behalf of customers
(including in relation to their financial transactions and past credit history). We may also rely on certain
representations from our customers as to the accuracy and completeness of that information. For ascertaining
the creditworthiness and encumbrances on collateral we may depend on the respective registrars and sub -
registrars of assurances, credit information companies or credit bureaus, and on independent valuers in
relation to the value of the collateral, and our reliance on any misleading information given, may affect our
judgement of credit worthiness of potential borrowers, and the value of and title to the collateral, which may
affect our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition. We may receive inaccurate or
incomplete information as a result of negligence or fraudulent misrepresentation. Our risk management
measures may not be adequate to prevent or deter such activities in all cases, which may adversely affect our
business prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

High levels of customer defaults or delays in repayment of loans could adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Our business involves lending money and accordingly we are subject to customer default risks including
default or delay in repayment of principal and/or interest on our loans. Customers may default on their
obligations to us as a result of various factors including bankruptcy, lack of liquidity, lack of business and
operational failure. If borrowers fail to repay loans in a timely manner or at all, our financial condition and
results of operations will be adversely impacted. Although we believe that our risk management controls are
sufficient, we cannot be certain that they will continue to be sufficient or that additional risk management
policies for individual borrowers will not be required. Failure to continuously monitor the loan contracts,
could adversely affect our credit portfolio which could have a material and adverse effect on our results of
operations and financial condition.
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7. We may not be able to recover, on a timely basis or at all, the full value of collateral or amounts which are
sufficient to cover the outstanding amounts due under defaulted loans.

The value of the security provided to us, may be subject to reduction in value on account of other extraneous
reasons. Consequently, the realizable value of the security for the loans provided by us, when liquidated, may
be lower than principal amount outstanding along with interest and other costs recoverable from such
customers.

Although we believe that we generally maintain a sufficient margin in the collateral value, if we have to
enforce such pledges and if at the time of such enforcement, due to adverse market conditions, the market
value of the pledged securities have fallen to a level where we are unable to recover the monies lent by us,
along with interest accrued thereon and associated costs, the results of our operations would be adversely
affected. In case of any shortfall in margins in connection with the securities pledged as collaterals, we
typically call upon the relevant customer to provide further collateral to make up for the deficit in such
margins. Furthermore, enforcing our legal rights by litigating against defaulting customers is generally a slow
and potentially expensive process in India. Accordingly, it may be difficult for us to recover amounts owed
by defaulting customers in a timely manner or at all.

8.  Our Company’s inability to obtain, renew or maintain the statutory and regulatory permits and approvals
which are required to operate its existing or future businesses may have a material adverse effect on its
business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations.

NBFCs in India are subject to regulations and supervision by the RBI. In addition to the numerous conditions
required for the registration as an NBFC with the RBI, we are also required to comply with certain other
regulatory requirements for its business imposed by the RBI. In the future, there could be circumstances
where our Company may be required to renew applicable permits and approvals and obtain new permits and
approvals for its current and any proposed operations or in the event of a change in applicable law and
regulations. There can be no assurance that RBI or other relevant authorities will issue any such permits or
approvals in the time-frame anticipated by our Company, or at all. In addition, we require several
registrations to operate our branches in the ordinary course of business. These registrations include those
required to be obtained or maintained under applicable legislations governing shops and establishments,
professional tax, GST registrations etc. Some of these approvals may have expired in the ordinary course,
and our Company has either applied, or is in the process of applying for renewals of them. Failure by our
Company to renew, maintain or obtain the required permits or approvals may result in an interruption of its
operations and may have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition, cash flows and results
of operation.

9. Our borrowers may transfer loan balances to other banks or financial institutions, resulting in a loss of
expected interest income expected from such loans.

If interest rates rise, borrowers with variable interest rates on their loans are exposed to increased equated
monthly instalments (“EMIs”) when the loans’ interest rate adjusts upward. Such borrowers may seek to
refinance their loans through balance transfer to other banks and financial institutions to avoid increased EMIs
that result from an upwards adjustment of the loans’ interest rate. Even if interest rates do not increase, our
borrowers may seek to transfer loans to banks or other financial institutions that offer lower interest rates.

Loan balance transfers result in a loss of interest income expected from such loans over the course of their
tenure. All NBFCs and HFCs are prohibited from charging pre-payment penalties on any floating rate term
loan sanctioned for purposes other than business to individual borrowers. Even where we are allowed to
charge a prepayment penalty, the amount of such penalty will not make up for all of the loss of interest income
expected from such loans. Some of our borrowers may be able to find balance transfer options at comparably
lower interest rates or other financing alternatives, which could have an adverse effect on our business, results
of operations and financial condition.

10. We may experience difficulties in expanding our products.
Expanding our products portfolio with new or existing products can be costly and require significant

management time and attention. Additionally, as our operations grow in size, scope and complexity and our
product offerings increase, we will need to enhance and upgrade our systems and infrastructure to offer an
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increasing number of enhanced solutions, features and functionality. The expansion of our systems and
infrastructure will require us to commit substantial financial, operational and technical resources in advance
of an increase in the volume of business, with no assurance that the volume of business will increase. We
will need to recruit new employees, who will have to be trained and integrated into our operations. We will
also have to train existing employees to adhere properly to internal controls and risk management procedures.
Failure to train our employees properly may result in an increase in employee attrition rates, require
additional hiring, erode the quality of customer service, divert management resources, increase our exposure
to high -risk credit and impose significant costs on us.

11. We may experience difficulties in expanding our business into new regions and markets in India

12.

13.

14.

Historically, our distribution networks are concentrated in New Delhi and NCR. As part of our growth
strategy, we strive to evaluate attractive growth opportunities to expand our business into new regions and
markets in India. Factors such as competition, culture, regulatory regimes, business practices & customs and
customer requirements in these new markets may differ from those in our current markets and our experience
in our current markets may not be applicable to these new markets. In addition, as we enter new markets and
geographical regions, we are likely to compete with other banks and financial institutions that already have
a presence in those geographies and markets and are therefore more familiar with local regulations, business
practices and customs and have stronger relationships with customers. Our business may be exposed to
various additional challenges including obtaining necessary governmental approvals, successfully gauging
market conditions in local markets with which we have no previous familiarity; attracting potential
customers in a market in which we do not have significant experience or visibility; being susceptible to local
taxation in additional geographical areas of India and adapting our marketing strategy and operations to
different regions of India in which different languages are spoken. Our inability to expand our current
operations may adversely affect our business prospects, financial conditions and results of operations.

We may face asset-liability mismatches, which could affect our liquidity and consequently may adversely
affect our operations and profitability.

Assets and liability mismatch (“ALM”) represents a situation when financial terms of an institution’s assets
and liabilities do not match. ALM is a key financial parameter indicative of an NBFC’s performance. We
cannot assure you that we will be able to maintain a positive ALM always. We may rely on funding options
with short term maturity periods for extending long term loans, which may lead to a negative ALM. Further,
mismatches between our assets and liabilities are compounded in case of prepayment of financing facilities
we grant to customers. Any mismatch in our ALM, may lead to a liquidity risk and have an adverse effect
on our business prospects, financial condition, results of operations and profitability.

We are exposed to operational and credit risks which may result in NPAs, and we may be unable to control
or reduce the level of NPAs in our portfolio.

Our Company’s inability to control the number and value of its NPAs may lead to deterioration of the quality
of its loan portfolio and may adversely impact its business. Further, if our customers default in their
repayment obligations, our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows may be
adversely affected.

Our indebtedness and the conditions and restrictions imposed by our financing agreements could restrict
our ability to conduct our business and operations in the manner we desire.

We may incur additional indebtedness in the future. Many of our financing agreements include various
restrictive conditions and covenants restricting certain corporate actions, and our Company may be required
to take the prior approval of the lender before carrying out such activities. Our indebtedness could have
several important consequences, including our cash flows being used towards repayment of our existing
debt, which will reduce the availability of our cash flow to fund our working capital, capital expenditures
and other general corporate requirements. Moreover, our ability to obtain additional financing or renewal of
existing facilities, in the future at reasonable terms may be restricted or our cost of borrowings may increase
due to sudden adverse market conditions, including decreased availability of credit or fluctuations in interest
rates. There could be a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations
if we are unable to service our indebtedness or otherwise comply with financial and other covenants specified
in the financing agreements and we may be more vulnerable to economic downturns, which may limit our
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15.

16.

17.

18.

ability to withstand competitive pressures and may reduce our flexibility in responding to changing business,
regulatory and economic conditions.

Our business is based on the trust and confidence of our customers; any damage to that trust and
confidence may materially and adversely affect our business, future financial performance and results of
operations.

We are dedicated to earning and maintaining the trust and confidence of our customers and we believe that
the good reputation is essential to our business. The reputation of our Company could be adversely affected
by any threatened and/or legal proceedings and/or any negative publicity or news articles in connection with
our Company. As such, any damage to our reputation could substantially impair our ability to maintain or
grow our business. If we fail to maintain brand recognition with our target customers due to any issues with
our product offerings, a deterioration in service quality, or otherwise, declines our market perception and
customer acceptance of our brands may also decline.

System failures or inadequacy and security breaches in computer systems may adversely affect our
business.

Our financial, accounting or other data processing systems may fail to operate adequately or become disabled
as a result of events that are wholly or partially beyond our control including a disruption of electrical or
communications services. Our ability to operate and remain competitive will depend in part on our ability to
maintain and upgrade our information technology systems on a timely and cost-effective basis. Our
operations also rely on the secure processing, storage and transmission of confidential and other information
in our computer systems and networks. Our computer systems, software and networks may be vulnerable to
unauthorized access, computer viruses or other malicious code and other events that could compromise data
integrity and security. Any failure to effectively maintain or improve or upgrade our management
information systems in a timely manner could materially and adversely affect our competitiveness, financial
position and results of operations. Moreover, if any of these systems do not operate properly or are disabled
or if there are other shortcomings or failures in our internal processes or systems, it could affect our
operations or result in financial loss, disruption of our businesses, regulatory intervention or damage to our
reputation. In addition, our ability to conduct business may be adversely impacted by a disruption in the
infrastructure that supports our businesses and the localities in which we are located.

If we are unable to comply with the capital adequacy requirements stipulated by the RBI in connection
with our lending business, our business, results of operations and cash flows may be materially and
adversely affected.

Our lending business, is subject to various regulations relating to the capital adequacy of NBFCs, which
determine the minimum amount of capital we are required to maintain. There can be no assurance that we
will be able to maintain CRAR within the regulatory requirements. Further, as we grow our lending business
loan portfolio, we will be required to raise additional Tier | and Tier Il capital in order to continue to meet
applicable capital adequacy ratios with respect to such business. There can be no assurance that we will be
able to raise adequate additional capital in the future on favourable terms, or at all. This could result in
noncompliance with applicable capital adequacy ratios, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and cash flows. Also, there is no assurance that RBI will not take any action
for breaches in capital adequacy norms by our Company in the future. This could materially adversely affect
our business, prospects, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows and could impair our ability
to continue current operations and in extreme case, may lead to suspension/ cancellation/ withdrawal of our
license to operate as an NBFC.

Our measures to prevent money laundering may not be completely effective and we may be subject to
scrutiny and penalties by the RBI for failure to implement effective measures.

Our Company is required to comply with applicable anti-money-laundering and anti-terrorism laws and other
regulations in India. Our measures to prevent money laundering as required by the RBI and other KYC
compliance applicable in India, including the Reserve Bank of India (Know Your Customer) Master
Directions, 2016 dated February 25, 2016, as amended ("KYC Directions") and the adoption of anti-money
laundering policies and compliance procedures may not be completely effective. In the event, if any
regulatory authorities believes that we are not complying with required money laundering compliances
and/or KYC Compliances, there may be civil and criminal penalties for non-compliance and our business
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and results of operations could be adversely affected.

Our Company has not yet applied for the registration of the logo or any of the intellectual property

that it uses with the registrar of Trademarks.
ADVIK

Our Company has not yet applied for the registration of the logo i.e. el or any of the intellectual
property that it uses. Any failure to get the same registered in our name may cause any third-party claim and
may lead to litigation and our business operations could be affected. Even if our trademarks are registered,
we may not be able to detect any unauthorized use or infringement or take appropriate and timely steps to
enforce or protect our intellectual property, nor can we provide any assurance that any unauthorized use or
infringement will not cause damage to our business prospects.

Company does not have previous RBI registration certificate in records.

Company was registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company vide certificate of registration dated January
07, 2003 bearing No. B-14.00724 under section 45 I1(A) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 in the name
of Quick Credit Limited. The certificate has not been in the records of the Company.

However, in the year 2017, RBI has issued the new certificate of registration dated August 24, 2017 bearing
no. B-14.00724 under section 45 I1(A) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 in the name of Advik Capital
Limited.

Our success depends in large part upon key personnel and our ability to attract, train and retain such
persons.

Our ability to sustain our rate of growth depends significantly upon our ability to manage key issues such as
selecting and retaining key operations personnel, developing managerial experience to address emerging
challenges and ensuring a high standard of client service. In order to be successful, we must attract, train,
motivate and retain highly skilled employees. Failure to train and motivate our employees properly may
result in an increase in employee attrition rates, divert management resources and subject us to incurring
additional human resource related expenditure.

Our Promoters and Directors may have interests in our Company other than reimbursement of expenses
incurred or remuneration or benefits.

Our Promoters and Directors may be deemed to be interested in our Company, in addition to the regular
remuneration or benefits, reimbursements of expenses, Equity Shares held by them or their relatives, their
dividend or bonus entitlement, benefits arising from their directorship in our Company. Our Promoters and
Directors may also be interested to the extent of any transaction entered into by our Company with any other
company or firm in which they are directors or partners.

There can be no assurance that our Promoters, and Directors will exercise their rights as shareholders to the
benefit and best interest of our Company. Our Promoters and members of our Promoter Group will continue
to exercise significant control over our Company, including being able to control the composition of our
Board of Directors and determine decisions requiring simple or special majority voting of shareholders, and
our other shareholders may be unable to affect the outcome of such voting.

Our Promoters and members of the Promoter Group have significant control over the Company and have
the ability to direct our business and affairs; their interests may conflict with your interests as a
shareholder.

Our Promoters and members of the Promoter Group have significant control over the Company and have the
ability to direct our business and affairs. So long as the Promoters have a majority holding, they will be able
to elect the entire Board and control most matters affecting us, including the appointment and removal of the
officers of our Company, our business strategy and policies and financing. Further, the extent of the
Promoters’ shareholding in our Company may result in the delay or prevention of a change of management
or control of our Company, even if such a transaction may be beneficial to the other shareholders of our
Company.

28



24.

25.

26.

217.

28.

An order passed by regulatory, statutory, enforcement authority or judicial body against the listed entity
or its directors, key managerial personnel, senior management, promoter or subsidiary, in relation to the
listed entity.

An investigation was conducted by SEBI to ascertain whether there was any violation of the provisions of
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015 (hereinafter referred as “PIT Regulations™) and SEBI
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011(hereinafter referred as “SAST
Regulations™) by certain entities for the period from March 01, 2021 to October 12, 2021. Under the said
investigation “Vikas Ecotech Limited”, was under surveillances. A Show Cause Notice has been received
by Company’s promoter Mr. Vikas Garg and his certain close relatives. Though, the non-compliances were
inadvertent, technical in nature and no unlawful gain was earned, penalties of INR 2,00,000 were imposed
on Vikas Garg Promoter of the Company under Section 15A (b) of the SEBI Act, 1992.

Any Notice received from any regulatory, statutory, enforcement authority or judicial body against the
listed entity or its directors, key managerial personnel, senior management, promoter or subsidiary, in
relation to the listed entity.

A Notice under Rule 4 (1) of the SEBI (Procedure for Holding Inquiry and Imposing penalties) Rules, 1995
in the matter of ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED vide Notice No. SEBI/EAD-3/BM/JR/15163/3/2024 dated
April 24, 2024 for non-compliances of Regulation 29 (1) and 29 (2) read with 29(3) of Securities Exchange
Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 in the matter of open
offer made by Acquirers (Mr. Vikas Garg and Mrs. Seema Garg) and PAC (Ms. Sukriti Garg). The disclosure
was filed with a delay of 107 days. An adjudicating officer has appointed to enquire into and adjure under
section 15 A(b) of the SEBI Act for the aforesaid non-compliance.

We do not own registered office which is used by us currently.

Our registered office is owned by Mr. Nand Kishore Garg father of Mr. Vikas Garg, (Director and Promoter
of the Company) He had, vide letter dated April 15, 2023 granted their no objection to Company for use the
said office premises, as our Registered Office.

In the event, the permission to use under which we occupy the aforementioned premises or certain terms and
conditions that are unfavourable to us are imposed on us in relation to the afore referred to premises, or if
we are otherwise unable to occupy such premises, we may suffer a disruption in our operations, which could
have an adverse effect on our business and financial results.

We have in the past entered into related party transactions and may continue to do so in the future, which
may potentially involve conflicts of interest with the equity shareholders.

We have entered into various transactions with related parties. While we believe that all such transactions
have been conducted on an arm’s length basis and contain commercially reasonable terms, we cannot assure
you that we could not have achieved more favourable terms had such transactions been entered into with
unrelated parties.

The new bankruptcy code in India may affect our rights to recover loans from borrowers.

The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ("Bankruptcy Code™) was notified on August 5, 2016. The
Bankruptcy Code offers a uniform and comprehensive insolvency legislation encompassing all companies,
partnerships and individuals (other than financial firms). It allows creditors to assess the viability of a debtor
as a business decision, and agree upon a plan for its revival or a speedy liquidation. The Bankruptcy Code
creates a new institutional framework, consisting of a regulator, insolvency professionals, information
utilities and adjudicatory mechanisms, which will facilitate a formal and time-bound insolvency resolution
and liquidation process.

In case insolvency proceedings are initiated against a debtor to our Company, we may not have complete
control over the recovery of amounts due to us. Under the Bankruptcy Code, upon invocation of an
insolvency resolution process, a committee of creditors is constituted by the interim resolution professional,
wherein each financial creditor is given a voting share proportionate to the debts owed to it. Bankruptcy
Code provides a 180-day timeline which may be extended by 90 days when dealing with insolvency
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resolution applications. Subsequently, the insolvency resolution plan prepared by the insolvency
professionals has to be approved by 66% of voting share of financial creditors, which requires sanction by
the adjudicating authority and, if rejected, the adjudicating authority will pass an order for liquidation. Any
resolution plan approved by committee of creditors is binding upon all creditors, even if they vote against it.
In case a liquidation process is opted for, the Bankruptcy Code provides for a fixed order of priority in which
proceeds from the sale of the debtor’s assets are to be distributed. Before sale proceeds are distributed to a
secured creditor, they are to be distributed for the costs of the insolvency resolution and liquidation processes,
debts owed to workmen and other employees. Further, under this process, dues owed to the Central and State
Governments rank at par with those owed to secured creditors. Moreover, other secured creditors may decide
to opt out of the process, in which case they are permitted to realise their security interests in priority.

Accordingly, if the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code are invoked against any of the borrowers of our
Company, it may affect our Company’s ability to recover our loans from the borrowers and enforcement of
our Company’s rights will be subject to the Bankruptcy Code.

Further, the Gol vide notification dated March 24, 2020 ("Notification™) has amended section 4 of the
Bankruptcy Code due the lingering impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. Pursuant to the said Notification,
Gol has increased the minimum amount of default under the insolvency matters from %1,00,000 to
%1,00,00,000. Therefore, the ability of our Company to initiate insolvency proceedings against the defaulters
where the amount of default in an insolvency matter is less the ¥1,00,00,000 may impact the recovery of
outstanding loans and profitability of our Company.

The deployment of funds is entirely at our discretion and as per the details mentioned in the chapter titled
"Objects of the Issue".

As the Issue size is not more than 210,000 lakhs, under Regulation 82 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations it is
not required that a monitoring agency be appointed by our Company, for overseeing the deployment and
utilisation of funds raised through this Issue. Therefore, the deployment of the funds towards the Objects of
this Issue is entirely at the discretion of our Board of Directors and is not subject to monitoring by external
independent agency. Our Board of Directors along with the Audit Committee will monitor the utilisation of
Issue proceeds and shall have the flexibility in applying the proceeds of this Issue. However, the management
of our Company shall not have the power to alter the objects of this Issue except with the approval of the
Shareholders of the Company given by way of a special resolution in a general meeting, in the manner
specified in Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013. Additionally, the dissenting shareholders being those
shareholders who have not agreed to the proposal to vary the objects of this Issue, our Promoters shall
provide them with an opportunity to exit at such price, and in such manner and conditions as may be specified
by the SEBI, in respect to the same.

The fund requirement and deployment mentioned in the Objects of the Issue have not been appraised by
any bank or financial institution.

The fund requirement and deployment is based on internal management estimates and has not been appraised
by any bank or financial institution. The management will have significant flexibility in applying the
proceeds received by us from the Issue.

In the past, there have been instances of delayed or erroneous filing of certain forms which were required
to be filed as per the reporting requirements under the Companies Act, 1956 and Companies Act, 2013 to
RoC by our Company and our Subsidiaries.

In the past, there have been certain instances of delay in filing of statutory forms as per the reporting
requirements under the Companies Act, 1956 and Companies Act, 2013 with the RoC, which have been
subsequently filed by payment of an additional fee as specified by RoC by our Company and our
Subsidiaries.

No show cause notice in respect to the above has been received by our Company or our Subsidiaries till date
and except as stated in this Letter of Offer, no penalty or fine has been imposed by any regulatory authority
in respect to the same. The occurrence of instances of delayed or erroneous filings in future may impact our
results of operations and financial position.
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Our ability to pay dividends in the future may be affected by any material adverse effect on our future
earnings, financial condition or cash flows.

Our ability to pay dividends in future will depend on our earnings, financial condition and capital
requirements. We may be unable to pay dividends in the near or medium term, and our future dividend policy
will depend on our capital requirements and financing arrangements in respect of our operations, financial
condition and results of operations.

We have not commissioned an industry report for the disclosures made in the chapter titled "Industry
Overview" and made disclosures on the basis of the data available on the internet and such third-party
data has not been independently verified by us.

We have neither commissioned an industry report, nor sought consent from the quoted website source for
the disclosures which need to be made in the chapter titled "Industry Overview" of this Letter of Offer. We
have made disclosures in the said chapter on the basis of the relevant industry related data available online
for which relevant consents have not been obtained. We have not independently verified such third-party
data. We cannot assure you that any assumptions made are correct or will not change and, accordingly, our
position in the market may differ from that presented in this Letter of Offer. Further, the industry data
mentioned in this Letter of Offer or sources from which the data has been collected are not recommendations
to invest in our Company. Accordingly, investors should read the industry related disclosure in this Letter
of Offer in this context.

Issue Specific Risks

34.

35.

We will not distribute this Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application
Form and Rights Entitlement Letter to overseas Shareholders who have not provided an address in
India for service of documents.

In accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and SEBI Rights Issue Circulars our Company will
send, only through email, this Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights
Entitlement Letter, Application Form and other issue material to the email addresses of all the Eligible
Equity Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our Company or who are located in
jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares permitted under laws of such
jurisdictions and in each case who make a request in this regard. The Issue Materials will not be
distributed to addresses outside India on account of restrictions that apply to circulation of such materials
in overseas jurisdictions. However, the Companies Act, 2013 requires companies to serve documents at
any address which may be provided by the members as well as through e-mail. Presently, there is lack
of clarity under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder with respect to distribution of
Issue Materials in overseas jurisdictions where such distribution may be prohibited under the applicable
laws of such jurisdictions. While we have requested all the shareholders to provide an address in India
for the purposes of distribution of Issue Materials, we cannot assure you that the regulator or authorities
would not adopt a different view with respect to compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and may
subject us to fines or penalties.

SEBI has recently, by way of circulars dated January 22, 2020, May 6, 2020, January 19, 2021, April
22,2021 and May 19, 2022 streamlined the process of rights issues. You should follow the instructions
carefully, as stated in such SEBI circulars and in this Letter of Offer.

The concept of crediting Rights Entitlements into the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders
has recently been introduced by the SEBI in 2020. Accordingly, the process for such Rights Entitlements
has been recently devised by capital market intermediaries. Eligible Equity Shareholders are encouraged
to exercise caution, carefully follow the requirements as stated in the SEBI circulars dated January 22,
2020, May 6, 2020 and January 19, 2021, April 22, 2021 and May 19, 2022, as applicable (“SEBI
Rights Issue Circular”) and ensure completion of all necessary steps in relation to providing/updating
their demat account details in a timely manner. For details, see "Terms of the Issue" on page 194.

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue
Circular, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in
dematerialized form only. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights
Entitlements to (i) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in
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dematerialized form; and (ii) a demat suspense escrow account opened by our Company, for the Eligible
Equity Shareholders which would comprise of Rights Entitlements relating to (a) Equity Shares held in
a demat suspense account pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI Listing Regulations; or (b) Equity
Shares held in the account of IEPF authority; or (c) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity
Shareholder which are frozen or details of which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar
on the Record Date; or (d) credit of the Rights Entitlements returned/reversed/failed; or (e) the
ownership of the Equity Shares currently under dispute, including any court proceedings.

The Rights Entitlement of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form
(""Physical Shareholder'*) may lapse in case they fail to furnish the details of their demat account to
the Registrar.

In accordance with the SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, the
credit of Rights Entitlement and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialised form only.
Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements of the Physical Shareholders shall be credited in a suspense escrow
demat account opened by our Company during the Issue Period. The Physical Shareholders are
requested to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar not later than two Working Days
prior to the Issue Closing Date to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their demat accounts
at least one day before the Issue Closing Date. The Rights Entitlements of the Physical Shareholders
who do not furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar not later than two Working Days
prior to the Issue Closing Date, shall lapse. Further, pursuant to a press release dated December 3,
2018 issued by the SEBI, with effect from April 1, 2019, a transfer of listed Equity Shares
cannot be processed unless the Equity Shares are held in dematerialized form (exceptin case of
transmission or transposition of Equity Shares).

Failure to exercise or sell the Rights Entitlements will cause the Rights Entitlements to lapse without
compensation and result in a dilution of shareholding.

The Rights Entitlements that are not exercised prior to the end of the Issue Closing Date will expire and
become null and void, and Eligible Equity Shareholders will not receive any consideration for them. The
proportionate ownership and voting interest in our Company of Eligible Equity Shareholders who fail
(or are not able) to exercise their Rights Entitlements will be diluted. Even if you elect to sell your
unexercised Rights Entitlements, the consideration you receive for them may not be sufficient to fully
compensate you for the dilution of your percentage ownership of the equity share capital of our Company
that may be caused as a result of the Issue. Renouncees may not be able to apply in case of failure in
completion of renunciation through off-market transfer in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are
credited to the demat account of the Renouncees prior to the Issue Closing Date. Further, in case, the
Rights Entitlements do not get credited in time, in case of On Market Renunciation, such Renouncee will
not be able to apply in this Issue with respect to such Rights Entitlements. For details, see “Terms of the
Issue” on page 194.

Any future issuance of Equity Shares, or convertible securities or other equity-linked securities by our
Company may dilute your shareholding and any sale of Equity Shares by our Promoter or members
of our Promoter Group may adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, convertible securities or securities linked to the Equity Shares
by our Company may dilute your shareholding in our Company; adversely affect the trading price of the
Equity Shares and our ability to raise capital through an issue of our securities. In addition, any
perception by investors that such issuances or sales might occur could also affect the trading price of the
Equity Shares. We cannot assure you that we will not issue additional Equity Shares. The disposal of
Equity Shares by any of our Promoter and Promoter Group, or the perception that such sales may occur
may significantly affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. We cannot assure you that our Promoter
and Promoter Group will not dispose of, pledge or encumber their Equity Shares in the future.

Investors may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Equity Shares.
Under current Indian tax laws, unless specifically exempted, capital gains arising from the sale of equity
shares of an Indian company are generally taxable in India. Accordingly, you may be subject to payment

of long-term capital gains tax in India, in addition to payment of STT, on the sale of any Equity Shares
held for more than 12 months. STT will be levied on and collected by a domestic stock exchange on
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which the Equity Shares are sold. Further, any gain realized on the sale of listed equity shares held for
a period of 12 months or less will be subject to short-term capital gains tax in India. Capital gains arising
from the sale of the Equity Shares may be partially or completely exempt from taxation in India in cases
where such exemption is provided under a treaty between India and the country of which the seller is a
resident. Generally, Indian tax treaties do not limit India’s ability to impose tax on capital gains. As a
result, residents of other countries may be liable for tax in India as well as in their own jurisdiction on
gains made upon the sale of the Equity Shares.

Applicants to this Issue are not allowed to withdraw their Applications after the Issue Closing Date.

In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Applicants in this Issue are not allowed to withdraw their
Applications after the Issue Closing Date. The Allotment in this Issue and the credit of such Equity
Shares to the Applicant’s demat account with its depository participant shall be completed within such
period as prescribed under the applicable laws. There is no assurance, however, that material adverse
changes in the international or national monetary, financial, political or economic conditions or other
events in the nature of force majeure, material adverse changes in our business, results of operation, cash
flows or financial condition, or other events affecting the Applicant’s decision to invest in the Equity
Shares, would not arise between the Issue Closing Date and the date of Allotment in this Issue.
Occurrence of any such events after the Issue Closing Date could also impact the market price of our
Equity Shares. The Applicants shall not have the right to withdraw their applications in the event of any
such occurrence. We cannot assure you that the market price of the Equity Shares will not decline below
the Issue Price. To the extent the market price for the Equity Shares declines below the Issue Price after
the Issue Closing Date, the shareholder will be required to purchase Equity Shares at a price that will be
higher than the actual market price for the Equity Shares at that time. Should that occur, the shareholder
will suffer an immediate unrealized loss as a result. We may complete the Allotment even if such events
may limit the Applicants’ ability to sell our Equity Shares after this Issue or cause the trading price of
our Equity Shares to decline

You may not receive the Equity Shares that you subscribe in the Issue until fifteen days after the date
on which this Issue closes, which will subject you to market risk.

The Equity Shares that you subscribe in the Issue may not be credited to your demat account with the
depository participants until approximately 15 days from the Issue Closing Date. You can start trading
such Equity Shares only after receipt of the listing and trading approval in respect thereof. There can be
no assurance that the Equity Shares allocated to you will be credited to your demat account, or that
trading in the Equity Shares will commence within the specified time period, subjecting you to market
risk for such period.

There is no guarantee that our Equity Shares will be listed in a timely manner or at all which may
adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares.

In accordance with Indian law and practice, final approval for listing and trading of the Equity Shares
will not be granted by the Stock Exchanges until after those Equity Shares have been issued and allotted.
Approval will require all relevant documents authorizing the issuing of Equity Shares to be submitted.
There could be a failure or delay in listing the Equity Shares on Stock Exchanges. Any failure or delay
in obtaining the approval would restrict your ability to dispose of your Equity Shares. Further, historical
trading prices, therefore, may not be indicative of the prices at which the Equity Shares will trade in the
future which may adversely impact the ability of our shareholders to sell the Equity Shares or the price
at which shareholders may be able to sell their Equity Shares at that point of time.

Holders of Equity Shares could be restricted in their ability to exercise pre-emptive rights under Indian
law and could thereby suffer future dilution of their ownership position.

Under the Companies Act, any company incorporated in India must offer its holders of equity shares
pre-emptive rights to subscribe and pay for a proportionate number of shares to maintain their existing
ownership percentages prior to the issuance of any new equity shares, unless the pre-emptive rights have
been waived by the adoption of a special resolution by holders of three-fourths of the shares voted on
such resolution, unless our Company has obtained government approval to issue without such rights.
However, if the law of the jurisdiction that you are in does not permit the exercise of such pre-emptive
rights without us filing an offering document or registration statement with the applicable authority in
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such jurisdiction, you will be unable to exercise such pre-emptive rights unless we make such a filing.
We may elect not to file a registration statement in relation to pre-emptive rights otherwise available by
Indian law to you. To the extent that you are unable to exercise pre-emptive rights granted in respect of
the Equity Shares, your proportional interests in us would be reduced.

Fluctuation in the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies may adversely
affect the value of our Equity Shares, independent of our operating results.

On listing, our Equity Shares will be quoted in Indian Rupees on the Stock Exchanges. Any dividends
in respect of our Equity Shares will also be paid in Indian Rupees and subsequently converted into the
relevant foreign currency for repatriation, if required. Any adverse movement in currency exchange
rates during the time that it takes to undertake such conversion may reduce the net dividend to foreign
investors. In addition, any adverse movement in currency exchange rates during a delay in repatriating
outside India the proceeds from a sale of Equity Shares, for example, because of a delay in regulatory
approvals that may be required for the sale of Equity Shares may reduce the proceeds received by equity
shareholders. For example, the exchange rate between the Rupee and the U.S. dollar has fluctuated
substantially in recent years and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the future, which may
adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares and returns on our Equity Shares, independent of
our operating results.

Sale of Equity Shares by our Promoter or other significant shareholder(s) may adversely affect the
trading price of the Equity Shares.

Any instance of disinvestments of equity shares by our Promoter or by other significant shareholder(s)
may F significantly affect the trading price of our Equity Shares. Further, our market price may also be
adversely affected even if there is a perception or belief that such sales of Equity Shares might occur.

Investors will not have the option of getting the allotment of Equity Shares in physical form.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Equity Shares shall be issued only in dematerialized
form. Investors will not have the option of getting the allotment of Equity Shares in physical form. The
Equity Shares Allotted to the Applicants who do not have demat accounts or who have not specified their
demat details, will be kept in abeyance till receipt of the details of the demat account of such Applicants.
For details, see “Terms of the Issue” on page 194. This may impact the ability of our shareholders to
receive the Equity Shares in the Issue.

Rights of shareholders under Indian laws may be more limited than under the laws of other
jurisdictions.

Indian legal principles related to corporate procedures, directors’ fiduciary duties and liabilities, and
shareholders’ rights may differ from those that would apply to a company in another jurisdiction.
Shareholders’ rights including in relation to class actions, under Indian law may not be as extensive as
shareholders’ rights under the laws of other countries or jurisdictions. Investors may have more
difficulty in asserting their rights as shareholder in an Indian company than as shareholder of a
corporation in another jurisdiction.

External Risk Factors

48.

Significant differences exist between Ind AS, Indian GAAP and other accounting principles, such as
US GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"), which investors may be more
familiar with and consider material to their assessment of our financial condition.

Summary statements of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2024 and summary statements of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity for the Fiscals 2024 have
been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Ind AS Rules and, the SEBI Circular and the Prospectus Guidance
Note.

We have not attempted to quantify the impact of US GAAP, IFRS or any other system of accounting
principles on the financial data included in this Letter of Offer, nor do we provide a reconciliation of our
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restated financial statements to those of US GAAP, IFRS or any other accounting principles. US GAAP
and IFRS differ in significant respects from Ind AS and Indian GAAP. Accordingly, the degree to which
the Financial Information included in this Letter of Offer will provide meaningful information is entirely
dependent on the reader’s level of familiarity with Ind AS, Indian GAAP and the SEBI ICDR
Regulations. Any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian accounting practices on the financial
disclosures presented in this Letter of Offer should accordingly be limited.

Political, economic or other factors that are beyond our control may have adversely affect our business
and results of operations.

The Indian economy is influenced by economic developments in other countries. These factors could
depress economic activity which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations. Any financial disruption could have an adverse effect on our business and future
financial performance.

We are dependent on domestic, regional and global economic and market conditions. Our performance,
growth and market price of our Equity Shares are and will be dependent to a large extent on the health
of the economy in which we operate. There have been periods of slowdown in the economic growth of
India. Demand for our services may be adversely affected by an economic downturn in domestic, regional
and global economies.

Economic growth is affected by various factors including domestic consumption and savings, balance of
trade movements, namely export demand and movements in key imports, global economic uncertainty
and liquidity crisis, volatility in exchange currency rates, and annual rainfall which affects agricultural
production.

Consequently, any future slowdown in the Indian economy could harm our business, results of operations
and financial condition. Also, a change in the government or a change in the economic and deregulation
policies could adversely affect economic conditions prevalent in the areas in which we operate in general
and our business in particular and high rates of inflation in India could increase our costs without
proportionately increasing our revenues, and as such decrease our operating margins.

A slowdown in economic growth in India could cause our business to suffer.

We are incorporated in India, and all of our assets and employees are located in India. As a result, we are
highly dependent on prevailing economic conditions in India and our results of operations are
significantly affected by factors influencing the Indian economy. A slowdown in the Indian economy
could adversely affect our business, including our ability to grow our assets, the quality of our assets,
and our ability to implement our strategy.

Factors that may adversely affect the Indian economy, and hence our results of operations, may include:

Any increase in Indian interest rates or inflation;

Any scarcity of credit or other financing in India;

Prevailing income conditions among Indian consumers and Indian corporations;

Changes in India’s tax, trade, fiscal or monetary policies;

political instability, terrorism or military conflict in India or in countries in the region or
globally, including in India’s various neighboring countries;

Prevailing regional or global economic conditions; and

. Other significant regulatory or economic developments in or affecting India

Any slowdown in the Indian economy or in the growth of the sectors we participate in or future volatility
in global commodity prices could adversely affect our borrowers and contractual counterparties. This in
turn could adversely affect our business and financial performance and the price of our Equity Shares.
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Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application of
corporate and tax laws, may adversely affect our business, prospects and results of operations.

The regulatory and policy environment in which we operate is evolving and subject to change. Such
changes, including the instances mentioned below, may adversely affect our business, results of
operations and prospects, to the extent that we are unable to suitably respond to and comply with any
such changes in applicable law and policy.

The Government of India has issued a notification dated September 29, 2016 notifying Income
Computation and Disclosure Standards (“ICDS”), thereby creating a new framework for the computation
of taxable income. The ICDS became applicable from the assessment year for Fiscal 2018 and subsequent
years. The adoption of ICDS is expected to significantly alter the way companies compute their taxable
income, as ICDS deviates from several concepts that are followed under general accounting standards,
including Indian GAAP and Ind AS. In addition, ICDS shall be applicable for the computation of income
for tax purposes but shall not be applicable for the computation of income for minimum alternate tax.

There can be no assurance that the adoption of ICDS will not adversely affect our business, results of

operations and financial condition.

. The General Anti Avoidance Rules (“GAAR”) have been made effective from April 1, 2017.
The tax consequences of the GAAR provisions being applied to an arrangement could result in
denial of tax benefit amongst other consequences. In the absence of any precedents on the
subject, the application of these provisions is uncertain. If the GAAR provisions are made
applicable to our Company, it may have an adverse tax impact on us.

o A comprehensive national GST regime that combines taxes and levies by the Central and State
Governments into a unified rate structure, which came into effect from July 1, 2017. We cannot
provide any assurance as to any aspect of the tax regime following implementation of the GST.
Any future increases or amendments may affect the overall tax efficiency of companies
operating in India and may result in significant additional taxes becoming payable.

In addition, unfavorable changes in or interpretations of existing, or the promulgation of new laws, rules
and regulations including foreign investment laws governing our business, operations and group structure
could result in us being deemed to be in contravention of such laws or may require us to apply for
additional approvals. We may incur increased costs and other burdens relating to compliance with such
new requirements, which may also require significant management time and other resources, and any
failure to comply may adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects. Uncertainty in
the applicability, interpretation or implementation of any amendment to, or change in, governing law,
regulation or policy, including by reason of an absence, or a limited body, of administrative or judicial
precedent may be time consuming as well as costly for us to resolve and may affect the viability of our
current business or restrict our ability to grow our business in the future.

Any increase in taxes and levies, or the imposition of new taxes and levies in the future, could increase
the cost of production and operating expenses. Taxes and other levies imposed by the central or state
governments in India that affect our industry include customs duties, excise duties, sales tax, income tax
and other taxes, duties or surcharges introduced on a permanent or temporary basis from time to time.
The central and state tax scheme in India is extensive and subject to change from time to time. Any
adverse changes in any of the taxes levied by the central or state governments may adversely affect our
competitive position and profitability.

Financial instability in both Indian and international financial markets could adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition.

The Indian financial market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions
in other countries, particularly in emerging market in Asian countries. Financial turmoil in Asia, Europe,
the United States and elsewhere in the world in recent years has affected the Indian economy. Although
economic conditions are different in each country, investors’ reactions to developments in one country
can have an adverse effect on the securities of companies in other countries. A loss in investor confidence
in the financial systems of other emerging markets may cause increased volatility in in the Indian
economy in general. Any global financial instability, including further deterioration of credit conditions
in the U.S. market, could also have a negative impact on the Indian economy. Financial disruptions may
occur again and could harm our results of operations and financial condition.
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The Indian economy is also influenced by economic and market conditions in other countries. This
includes, but is not limited to, the conditions in the United States, Europe and certain economies in Asia.
Financial turmoil in Asia and elsewhere in the world in recent years has affected the Indian economy.
Any worldwide financial instability may cause increased volatility in the Indian financial markets and,
directly or indirectly, adversely affect the Indian economy and financial sector and its business.

Although economic conditions vary across markets, loss of investor confidence in one emerging
economy may cause increased volatility across other economies, including India. Financial instability in
other parts of the world could have a global influence and thereby impact the Indian economy. Financial
disruptions in the future could adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition and results of
operations. The global credit and equity markets have experienced substantial dislocations, liquidity
disruptions and market corrections.

There are concerns that a tightening of monetary policy in emerging markets and some developed
markets will lead to a moderation in global growth. In response to such developments, legislators and
financial regulators in the United States and other jurisdictions, including India, have implemented a
number of policy measures designed to add stability to the financial markets. However, the overall long-
term impact of these and other legislative and regulatory efforts on the global financial markets is
uncertain, and they may not have had the intended stabilizing effects. Any significant financial disruption
in the future could have an adverse effect on our cost of funding, loan portfolio, business, future financial
performance and the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Inflation in India could have an adverse effect on our profitability and if significant, on our financial
condition.

Inflation rates in India have been volatile in recent years, and such volatility may continue in the future.
India has experienced high inflation in the recent past. Increased inflation can contribute to an increase
in interest rates and increased costs to our business, including increased costs of salaries, and other
expenses relevant to our business.

High fluctuations in inflation rates may make it more difficult for us to accurately estimate or control our
costs. Any increase in inflation in India can increase our expenses, which we may not be able to pass on
to our customers, whether entirely or in part, and the same may adversely affect our business and financial
condition. In particular, we might not be able to reduce our costs or increase our rates to pass the increase
in costs on to our customers. In such case, our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition may be adversely affected.

Further, the GOI has previously initiated economic measures to combat high inflation rates, and it is
unclear whether these measures will remain in effect. There can be no assurance that Indian inflation
levels will not worsen in the future.

Foreign investors are subject to foreign investment restrictions under Indian law that limits our ability
to attract foreign investors, which may adversely impact the market price of the Equity Shares.

As an Indian Company, we are subject to exchange controls that regulate borrowing in foreign currencies,
including those specified under FEMA. Such regulatory restrictions limit our financing sources and
hence could constrain our ability to obtain financing on competitive terms and refinance existing
indebtedness. In addition, we cannot assure you that the required approvals will be granted to us without
onerous conditions, or at all. Limitations on foreign debt may adversely affect our business growth,
results of operations and financial condition.

Further, under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfers of shares between
non- residents and residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the
pricing guidelines and reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are
sought to be transferred, is not in compliance with such pricing guidelines or reporting requirements or
fall under any of the exceptions referred to above, then the prior approval of the RBI will be required.
Additionally, shareholders who seek to convert the Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in India into
foreign currency and repatriate that foreign currency from India will require a no objection/ tax clearance
certificate from the income tax authority. There can be no assurance that any approval required from the
RBI or any other government agency can be obtained on any particular terms or at all.

37



55.

56.

Any downgrading of India’s debt rating by an independent agency may harm our ability to raise
financing.

Any adverse revisions to India’s credit ratings international debt by international rating agencies may
adversely affect our ability to raise additional overseas financing and the interest rates and other
commercial terms at which such additional financing is available. This could have an adverse effect on
our ability to fund our growth on favourable terms or at all, and consequently adversely affect our
business and financial performance and the price of our Equity Shares.

Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application of tax
laws, may adversely affect our business, prospects and results of operations

The regulatory environment in which we operate is evolving and is subject to change. The Gol may
implement new laws or other regulations that could affect the insurance industry, which could lead to
new compliance requirements, including requiring us to obtain approvals and licenses from the Gol and
other regulatory bodies, or impose onerous requirements. New compliance requirements could increase
our costs or otherwise adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Further, the manner in which new requirements will be enforced or interpreted can lead to uncertainty in
our operations and could adversely affect our operations. Accordingly, any adverse regulatory change in
this regard could lead to fluctuation of price points of various input costs and thereby increase our
operational cost.

The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019, also prescribes certain changes to the income tax rate
applicable to companies in India. According to this Act, companies can henceforth voluntarily opt in
favour of a concessional tax regime (subject to no other special benefits/exemptions being claimed),
which would ultimately reduce the effective tax rate (on gross basis) for Indian companies from 34.94%
to approximately 25.17%. Any such future amendments may affect our ability to claim exemptions that
we have historically benefited from, and such exemptions may no longer be available to us. Any adverse
order passed by the appellate authorities/ tribunals/ courts would have an effect on our profitability. Due
to COVID -19 pandemic, the Government of India had also passed the Taxation and Other Laws
(Relaxation of Certain Provisions) Act, 2020, implementing relaxations from certain requirements under,
among others, the Central Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017 and Customs Tariff Act, 1975. Furthermore,
the Government of India announced the Union Budget for Fiscal 2023 (“Budget 2023”), pursuant to
which the Finance Bill 2023 (defined below) has proposed various amendments which will only come
into effect upon receipt of Presidential assent to the bill and notification in requisite acts. We have not
fully determined the impact of these recent and proposed laws and regulations on our business.

There can be no assurance that we will not be required to comply with additional procedures or obtain
additional approvals and licenses from the government and other regulatory bodies or that they will not
impose onerous requirements and conditions on our operations in connection with GST. While we are
and will comply with the GST rules and regulations, any failure to comply with the same may result in
noncompliance with the GST and may adversely affect our business and results of operations. The Gol
announced the union budget for fiscal year 2023, following which the Finance Bill, 2022 was introduced
in the Lok Sabha on February 1, 2022. Subsequently, the Finance Bill 2022 received the assent from the
President of India on March 30, 2022, and became the Finance Act, 2022 (“Finance Act 2022”). We
cannot predict whether the amendments made and yet to be notified pursuant to the Finance Act 2022
would have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, future cash flows and results of
operations. Any changes in the Finance Act 2022 or interpretations of existing, or the promulgation of
new, laws, rules and regulations including foreign investment and stamp duty laws that are applicable to
our business and operations could result in us being deemed to be in contravention of such laws and may
require us to apply for additional approvals.

Changes in other laws may impose additional requirements, resulting in additional expenditure and time
cost. For instance, the Gol has announced four labour codes which are yet to come into force as on the
date of this Letter of Offer, namely, (i) the Code on Wages, 2019, (ii) the Industrial Relations Code,
2020; (iii) the Code on Social Security, 2020; and (iv) the Occupational Safety, Health and Working
Conditions Code, 2020. Such codes will replace the existing legal framework governing rights of workers
and labour relations. While the rules for implementation under these codes have not been announced, we
are unable to determine the impact of all or some such laws on our business and operations which may
restrict our ability to grow our business in the future. For example, the Social Security Code aims to
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provide uniformity in providing social security benefits to employees which were previously segregated
under different acts and had different applicability and coverage. The Social Security Code has
introduced the concept of workers outside traditional employer-employee work-arrangements, such as
“gig workers” and “platform workers” and provides for the mandatory registration of such workers in
order to enable these workers to avail themselves of various employment benefits, such as life and
disability cover, health and maternity benefits and old age protection, under schemes framed under the
Social Security Code from time to time. Any failure to comply may adversely affect our business, results
of operations and prospects. Uncertainty in the applicability, interpretation or implementation of any
amendment to, or change in, governing law, regulation or policy, including by reason of an absence, or
a limited body, of administrative or judicial precedent may be time consuming as well as costly for us to
resolve and may impact the viability of our current businesses or restrict our ability to grow our
businesses in the future

The occurrence of natural or man-made disasters could adversely affect our results of operations,
cash flows and financial condition. Hostilities, terrorist attacks, civil unrest and other acts of violence
could adversely affect the financial markets and our business.

The occurrence of natural disasters, including cyclones, storms, floods, earthquakes, tsunamis, tornadoes,
fires, explosions, pandemic disease and man-made disasters, including acts of terrorism and military
actions, could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows or financial condition. In addition,
any deterioration in international relations, especially between India and its neighbouring countries, may
result in investor concerns regarding regional stability which could adversely affect the price of the
Equity Shares. In addition, India has witnessed local civil disturbances in recent years and it is possible
that future civil unrest as well as other adverse social, economic or political events in India could have
an adverse effect on our business.

Such incidents could also create a greater perception that investment in Indian companies involves a
higher degree of risk and could have an adverse effect on our business and the market price of the Equity
Shares.

We are subject to regulatory, economic, social and political uncertainties and other factors beyond
our control.

We are incorporated in India and we conduct our corporate affairs and our business in India.
Consequently, our business, operations, financial performance will be affected by interest rates,
government policies, taxation, social and ethnic instability and other political and economic
developments affecting India.

Factors that may adversely affect the Indian economy, and hence our results of operations may include:

. Any exchange rate fluctuations, the imposition of currency controls and restrictions on the right
to convert or repatriate currency or export assets;

. Any scarcity of credit or other financing in India, resulting in an adverse effect on economic
conditions in India and scarcity of financing for our expansions;

) Prevailing income conditions among Indian customers and Indian corporations;

) epidemic or any other public health in India or in countries in the region or globally, including
in India’s various neighbouring countries;

. Hostile or war like situations with the neighbouring countries;

. Macroeconomic factors and central bank regulation, including in relation to interest rates
movements which may in turn adversely impact our access to capital and increase our borrowing
costs;

. Decline in India’s foreign exchange reserves which may affect liquidity in the Indian economy;

. Downgrading of India’s sovereign debt rating by rating agencies; and

. Difficulty in developing any necessary partnerships with local businesses on commercially
acceptable terms and/or a timely basis.

) Any slowdown or perceived slowdown in the Indian economy, or in specific sectors of the

Indian economy or certain regions in India, could adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition and the price of the Equity Shares.
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Financial instability in other countries may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets.

The Indian market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other
countries, particularly emerging market countries in Asia. Although economic conditions are different in
each country, investors’ reactions to developments in one country can have adverse effects on the
securities of companies in other countries, including India. A loss of investor confidence in the financial
systems of other emerging markets may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets and,
indirectly, in the Indian economy in general. Any worldwide financial instability could also have a
negative impact on the Indian economy. Financial disruptions may occur again and could harm our
business, our future financial performance and the prices of the Equity Shares.

The recent outbreak of Novel Coronavirus has significantly affected financial markets around the world.
Any other global economic developments or the perception that any of them could occur may continue
to have an adverse effect on global economic conditions and the stability of global financial markets, and
may significantly reduce global market liquidity and restrict the ability of key market participants to
operate in certain financial markets. Any of these factors could depress economic activity and restrict
our access to capital, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations and reduce the price of our Equity Shares. Any financial disruption could have an adverse
effect on our business, future financial performance, shareholders’ equity and the price of our Equity
Shares.
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SECTION IV - INTRODUCTION

THE ISSUE

This Issue has been authorized through a resolution passed by our Board at its meeting held on March 23, 2024
to raise funds by issuance and allotment of equity shares for aggregate amount of up to Rs. 50 Crore (Rupees Fifty
Crore), by way of Right Issue, on such terms to be decided by the Board or a duly constituted committee of the
Board at a later date, subject to the approval of shareholders, thereafter, the same was approved via Postal Ballot

Notice dated March 23, 2024.

The terms and conditions of the Issue including the rights entitlement ratio, Issue Price, Record Date, timing of
the Issue and other related matters, have been approved by a resolution passed by the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on September 7, 2024. The following is a summary of this Issue, and should be read in conjunction
with and is qualified entirely by, the information detailed in the chapter titled “Terms of the Issue” on page 194

of this Letter of Offer.

Particulars

Details of Equity Shares

Equity Shares proposed to be
issued

Up to 19,98,05,013 Equity Shares

Rights Entitlement

14 Equity Share for every 30 fully paid-up Equity Share(s) held on the
Record Date i.e. Thursday, September 12, 2024

Fractional Entitlement

For Equity Shares being offered on a rights basis under the Issue, if the
shareholding of any of the Eligible Equity Shareholders is less than 30
Equity Shares or is not in multiples of 30, the fractional entitlement of
such Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be ignored for computation of
the Rights Entitlement.

However, Eligible Equity Shareholders whose fractional entitlements
are being ignored earlier will be given preference in the Allotment of
one additional Equity Share each, if such Eligible Equity Shareholders
have applied for additional Equity Shares over and above their Rights
Entitlement, if any.

Record Date

Thursday, September 12, 2024

Face value per Equity Shares

%1

Issue Price per Rights Equity,
Shares

% 2.50 per Equity Share (including a premium of X 1.50 per Equity Share)

Issue Size

Issue not exceeding X [4995.13] * lakhs
#Assuming full subscription, to be adjusted as per the Rights Entitlement
ratio

Voting Rights and Dividend

The Equity Shares issued pursuant to this Issue shall rank pari passu in
all respects with the Equity Shares of our Company

Equity Shares issued, subscribed
and paid up prior to the Issue

42,81,53,600 Equity Shares. For details, see “Capital Structure”
beginning on page 50 of this Letter of Offer

Equity Shares subscribed and
paid-up after the Issue (assuming
full subscription for and allotment
of the Rights Entitlement)

Upto 62,79,58,613 Equity Shares

Equity Shares outstanding after
the  Issue  (assuming  full
subscription for and Allotment of
the Rights Entitlement)

62,79,58,613 Equity Shares

Money payable at the time of
Application

% 2.50/- per share

Scrip Details

ISIN: INE178T01024
Rights Entitlement ISIN: [INE178T20032]
BSE: 539773

Use of Issue Proceeds

For details, please refer to the chapter titled “Objects of the Issue” on
page 53 of this Letter of Offer.
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Particulars Details of Equity Shares
Terms of the Issue For details, please refer to the chapter titled “Terms of the Issue” on
page 194 of this Letter of Offer.

Please refer to the chapter titled “Terms of the Issue” on page 194 of this Letter of Offer.

Issue Schedule

The subscription will open upon the commencement of the banking hours and will close upon the close of banking
hours on the dates mentioned below:

Event Indicative Date
Issue Opening Date Tuesday, September 24, 2024
Last Date for On Market Renunciation of Rights** Tuesday, October 01, 2024
Issue Closing Date* Friday, October 04, 2024

*The Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue period as it may
determine from time to time, provided that the Issue will not remain open in excess of 30 (thirty) days from the Issue Opening
Date.

** Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a
manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was originally incorporated as ‘Quick Credit Limited’ in New Delhi on November 14, 1985 as a
public limited company under the Companies Act, 1956, and was granted the certificate of incorporation by the
Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New Delhi. Our Company was granted the Certificate for
Commencement of Business on November 20, 1985 by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New
Delhi. Our Company was registered as Non-Banking Financial Company vide certificate of registration dated
August 24, 2017 bearing No. B- 14.00724 under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

In the beginning of the year 2010, our Company underwent change of Control in terms of Regulation 12 of
Securities Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition and Takeover of Shares) Regulation, 1997. Pursuant
to the change of Control, Mr. Virendra Kumar Aggarwal and Mr. Rishab Kumar Aggarwal became Promoters of
the Company and then existing Promoter(s) ceased to be the Promoter(s) of the Company.

In year 2010, pursuant to scheme of amalgamation, under section 391 (2) and 394 of the Companies Act, 1956,
approved by Hon’ble High Court of Delhi, our Company was amalgamated with Du-Lite Safety Services Private
Limited which was engaged in the business of trading of electrical and safety devices.

Subsequently, the name of our Company was changed to ‘DU-Lite Industries Limited’ and a fresh Certificate of
Incorporation was granted by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New Delhi on September 20,
2010. The name of the Company was changed again to ‘Advik Industries Limited’ and our Company received a
fresh certificate of incorporation which was granted by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New
Delhi on February 24, 2011. Finally, the name of our Company was changed to ‘Advik Capital Limited’ and a
fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon change of name was granted by the Registrar of Companies,
Delhi at Delhi on July 7, 2017. Further, the Company procured a Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank
of India as a Non-Banking Financial Company on August 24, 2017 in the new name.

Thereafter, Company’s promoters Mr. Virender Agarwal and Mr. Shakul Kumar Agarwal entered into a Share
Purchase Agreement on May 18, 2022 with Mr. Vikas Garg, Mrs. Seema Garg (Acquirers) and Ms. Sukriti Garg
(PAC)), to sell their entire stake of Advik Capital Limited (“the Company”). Afterward, an Open Offer was made
by the Acquirers to acquire upto 26% of the total VVoting Shares of the Company from public shareholders vide
Letter of Offer dated February 06, 2023.

Pursuant to the completion of the said open offer, and the Share Purchase Agreement, the Company was acquired
by Mr. Vikas Garg, Mrs. Seema Garg (Acquirers) and Ms. Sukriti Garg (PAC) and they took over as Promoters
and Promoter Group of the Company.

Registered Office, CIN and registration number of our Company

Reg. Office: G-3, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, Sec-llI,
West Delhi, New Delhi, India — 110026

CIN: L65100DL1985PLC022505

Tel: +91 92891 19980;

E-mail: advikcapital@gmail.com

Website: www.advikcapital.com

Registration Number: 022505

Address of the RoC

Our Company is registered with the RoC, Delhi, which is situated at the following address:
Registrar of Companies, Delhi

4th Floor, IFCI Tower,

61, Nehru Place,
New Delhi - 110019
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Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company

Ms. Deepika Mishra

G-3, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, Sec — Ill,

West Delhi, New Delhi, India — 110026
Telephone: +91 92891 19980
E- mail: advikcapital@gmail.com

Chief Financial Officer of the Company

Mr. Pankaj

G-3, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, Sec — Ill,

New Delhi, India — 110026
Telephone: +91 92891 19980
E- mail: advikcapital@gmail.com

Board of Directors of our Company

Name Age | Designation Address DIN
Mr. Vikas Garg | 50 Executive House No. 7, Road No-41, West 00255413
Director Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-110026
Mr. Karan 51 Whole-Time House No B-10/7, Double Storey, 05357861
Bagga Director & CEO | Near Mother Dairy, Ramesh Nagar,
Rajouri Garden, West Delhi-110015
Mr. Pankaj 25 | Whole-Time House No 398/1, Near Sewa Samiti 10140086
Director & CFO | Ward NO 18 Teh Charkhi Dadri, Hira
Chowk, Bhiwani, Haryana 127306
Mr. Devender 68 Independent G-801 La Lagune, Golf Course 02316543
Kumar Garg Director Road, Sector 54, Chakarpur (74),
Gurgaon Haryana-122002
Ms. Sony 32 Independent E-30B, Flat No. 8, 2nd Floor, 09270483
Kumari Director Chhatarpur Extension Near Suman
Chowk, Chattarpur, South Delhi-
110074
Ms. Swati 29 Independent F-722A, Street No. 24, Laxmi Nagar, 09652245
Gupta Director East Delhi, Delhi 110092

For detailed profile of our Directors, please refer to the chapter titled “Our Management” beginning on page 80

of this Letter of Offer.

Details of Key Intermediaries pertaining to this Issue of our Company:

Lead Manager to the Issue

FAST TRACK FINSEC PRIVATE LIMTED

Office No. V-116, 1st Floor, New Delhi House,

Barakhamba Road, New Delhi- 110001
Tel:011-430298009;

Website: www.ftfinsec.com

Email: Vikasverma@ftfinsec.com

Contact person: Mr. Vikas Kumar Verma
SEBI Registration No.: INM000012500

CIN: U65191DL2010PTC200381
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Registrar to the Company and the Issue:

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited

D-153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,

Phase-1, New Delhi-110020

Telephone: 011-40450193/97

Email; ipo@skylinerta.com

Website: www.skylinerta.com

Investor grievance e-mail: grievances@skylinerta.com
Contact Person: Mr. Anuj Rana

SEBI Registration No.: INR000003241

Validity of Registration: Permanent

Banker to the Issue: [¢/

HDFC Bank Limited

FIG-OPS Department — Lodha | Think Techno Campus 0-3 Level

Next to Kanjumarg, Railway Station, Kanjumarg (E), Mumbai - 400042

Telephone Number: 022-30752927/28/2914

Contact person: Siddharth Jadhav, Eric Bacha, Neerav Desai

Website: www.hdfcbank.com

E-mail: siddharth.jadhav@hdfcbank.com , eric.bacha@hdfcbank.com , neerav.desai@hdfcbank.com
SEBI Registration Number: INBI00000063

Statutory and Peer Review Auditor of the Issuer:

M/s. KSMC & Associates

G-5, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh
New Delhi-110026

Contact Person: Mr. Sachin Singhal

Firm Registration Number: 003565N
Membership No.: 505732

Telephone Number: 011 — 4144 0483
E-mail: info@ksmc.in , admin@ksmc.in
Peer Review Certificate Number: 012973

Designated Intermediaries:
Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs or the SBA Process is provided at the website
of the SEBI https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes and updated from time to
time. For details on Designated Branches of SCSBs collecting the Application Forms, refer to the website of the
SEBI https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes. On allotment, the amount will
be unblocked and the account will be debited only to the extent required to pay for the Rights Equity Shares
Allotted.

Inter-se Allocation of Responsibilities

Since Fast Track Finsec Private Limited is the sole Lead Manager to this Issue, a statement of inter se allocation
of responsibilities amongst Lead Managers is not required.

Expert Opinion

Except as stated below, our Company has not obtained any expert opinions:

Our Company has received written consent dated May 2, 2024 from the Statutory Auditors to include their name
as required under Section 26(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with SEBI ICDR Regulations in this Letter of
Offer as an “Expert” as defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent and in its capacity

as an independent Statutory Auditor and in respect of its (i) examination report dated May 2, 2024 on our Restated
Financial Statements for the financial years ended March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024, and (ii)
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Statement of Special Tax Benefits dated May 2, 2024 in this Letter of Offer and such consent has not been
withdrawn as on the date of this Letter of Offer.

Investor Grievances

Investors may contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre-Issue/ post- Issue related
matters such as non-receipt of Letters of Allotment/ share certificates/ DEMAT credit/ Refund Orders/unblocking
of ASBA Account, etc.

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue or our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre-
Issue or post- Issue related matters. All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar
to the Issue, with a copy to the SCSB (in case of ASBA process), giving full details such as name, address of the
Applicant, contact number(s), e-mail address of the sole/ first holder, folio number or DEMAT account, number
of Equity Shares applied for, amount blocked (in case of ASBA process), ASBA Account number and the
Designated Branch of the SCSB where the application Forms, or the plain paper application, as the case may be,
was submitted by the Investors along with a photocopy of the acknowledgement slip (in case of ASBA process).
For details on the ASBA process, "Terms of the Issue™ beginning on page 194 of this Letter of Offer

Credit Rating

As this is an Issue of Equity Shares, credit rating is not required.

Debenture Trustees

As this is an Issue of Equity Shares, appointment of Debenture Trustee is not required.
Monitoring Agency

As the net proceeds of the Issue will be less than Rs. 10,000 Lakhs, under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, it is not
required that a monitoring agency be appointed by our Company.

Filing

SEBI vide the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth
Amendment) Regulations, 2020 has amended Regulation 3(b) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations as per which the
threshold for filing of Letter of Offer with SEBI for rights issues has been increased. The threshold of the rights
issue size under Regulation 3 (b) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations has been increased from Rupees ten crores to
Rupees fifty crores. Since the size of this Issue falls below this threshold, the Letter of Offer has been filed with
BSE Limited, not with SEBI. However, the Letter of Offer will be submitted with SEBI for information and
dissemination and will be filed with the Stock Exchanges.

Underwriting Agreement and Details
This Issue is not underwritten.

Changes in Auditors during the last three years

Name of Auditor | Address and E-mail Date of | Reason
Appointment/
Cessation
M/s. Garg Anil & | E-174, Lajpat Nagar-1V, 01/04/2018 Due to increase of level
Co, Chartered Amar Colony, New Delhi, 110024 to of operation of the
Accountants 06/08/2022 Company
E-mail: anilgarg02@gmail.com
M/s. KSMC & G-5, Vikas Apartments, 34/1, East 25/08/2022 Continues
Associates, Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-110026 to
Chartered 31/03/2027
Accountants E-mail: info@ksmc.in
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Issue Schedule

Last Date for credit of Rights Entitlements Wednesday. September 18, 2024
Issue Opening Date Tuesday, September 24, 2024
Last date for On Market Renunciation of Rights Entitlements * Tuesday, October 01, 2024
Issue Closing Date* Friday, October 04, 2024
Finalization of Basis of Allotment (on or about) Wednesday, October 9, 2024
Date of Allotment (on or about) Wednesday, October 9, 2024
Date of credit (on or about) Friday, October 11, 2024
Date of listing or Commencement of trading (on or about) Tuesday, October 15, 2024

#  Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that
the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

Our Board or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue Period as it may determine from time to time
but not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date). Further, no withdrawal of Application
shall be permitted by any Applicant after the Issue Closing Date.

*

The above schedule is indicative and does not constitute any obligation on our Company or the Advisor to the
Issue.

Please note that if Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date, have
not provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are required to provide
their demat account details to our Company or the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to the Issue
Closing Date, i.e., Tuesday, October 01, 2024 to enable the credit of the Rights Entitlements by way of transfer
from the demat suspense escrow account to their respective demat accounts, at least one day before the Issue
Closing Date, i.e., October 03, 2024

Investors are advised to ensure that the Application Forms are submitted on or before the Issue Closing Date. Our
Company, the Advisors or the Registrar will not be liable for any loss on account of non-submission of
Application Forms on or before the Issue Closing Date. Further, it is also encouraged that the applications are
submitted well in advance before Issue Closing Date, due to prevailing COVID-19 related conditions. For details
on submitting Application Forms, see "Terms of the Issue - Procedure for Application" beginning on page 194
of this Letter of Offer.

The details of the Rights Entitlements with respect to each Eligible Equity Shareholders can be accessed by such
respective Eligible Equity Shareholders on the website of the Registrar at https://www.skylinerta.com after
keying in their respective details along with other security control measures implemented thereat. For further
details, see "Terms of the Issue- Credit of Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity
Shareholders" beginning on page 194 of this Letter of Offer.

Please note that if no Application is made by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of Rights Entitlements on
or before Issue Closing Date, such Rights Entitlements shall get lapsed and shall be extinguished after the
Issue Closing Date. No Equity Shares for such lapsed Rights Entitlements will be credited, even if such
Rights Entitlements were purchased from market and purchaser will lose the premium paid to acquire the
Rights Entitlements. Persons who are credited the Rights Entitlements are required to make an application
to apply for Equity Shares offered under Rights Issue for subscribing to the Equity Shares offered under
Issue.

Minimum Subscription

If our Company does not receive the minimum subscription of at least 90% of the Issue, or the subscription level
falls below 90%, after the Issue Closing Date, our Company shall refund the entire subscription amount received
within 15 days from the Issue Closing Date. If, there is delay in making refunds beyond such period as prescribed
by applicable laws, our Company will pay interest for the delayed period at rates prescribed under applicable laws.
The above is subject to the terms mentioned under “Issue Information” on page 194.

Appraising Entity

None of the purposes for which the Net Proceeds are proposed to be utilized have been appraised by any banks or
financial institution or any other independent agency.
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Filing

SEBI vide the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth
Amendment) Regulations, 2020 has amended Regulation 3(b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as per which the
threshold for filing of Letter of Offer with SEBI for rights issues has been increased. The threshold of the rights
issue size under Regulation 3 (b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations has been increased from Rupees ten crores to
Rupees fifty crores. Since, the size of this Issue falls below this threshold, the Letter of Offer has been filed with
BSE Limited and not with SEBI. However, the Letter of Offer will be submitted with SEBI for information and
dissemination and will be filed with the Stock Exchanges.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Equity Share capital of our Company, as on the date of this Letter of Offer and after giving effect to the Issue
is set forth below:

Amount (Rs.)
# | Particulars Aggregate Aggregate
nominal value at Offer
value Price
A Authorised Share Capital*
‘| 75,00,00,000 Equity Shares of %.1/- each 75,00,00,000 -
B Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital before the
-| Issue
42,81,53,600 Equity Shares of X1/- each 42,81,53,600 -
c Present Issue in terms of this Letter of Offer
Issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share Capital after
the Issue
62,79,58,613 Equity Shares %1.00/- each
62,79,58,613
5 Subscribed and paid-up Equity Share Capital
'} 62,79,58,613 Fully paid-up Equity Shares 6279.58
Securities Premium Account
E.| Before the Issue 6,232.65
After the Issue 9,229.72

# Assuming full subscription for and Allotment of the Equity Shares

(1) The present Issue has been authorized by the Board of Directors vide a resolution passed at its meeting held March 23, 2024.
(2) The Equity Share Capital after the Issue includes the full value of the Rights Equity Shares allotted in the Issue.

(3) Authorised share Capital has been increased from 25 Cr. to 75 Cr. through the Postal Ballot Notice Dated April 11, 2023.

Notes to Capital Structure
1. Details of outstanding instruments as on the date of this Letter of Offer:

As on date of this Letter of Offer, our Company has not issued any Equity Shares under any employee
stock option scheme or employee stock purchase scheme. Further, it has not issued any convertible
securities which are outstanding as of date of this Letter of Offer.

2. Details of Equity Shares held by the promoters and promoter group including the details of lock-
in pledge of and encumbrance on such Equity Shares

The details of the Equity Shares held by our Promoters and members of our Promoter Group, including
details of Equity Shares which are locked-in, pledged or encumbered can be accessed
on the website of BSE

3. Details of Equity Shares acquired by the promoters and promoter group in the last one year prior to the
filing of this Letter of Offer, except as mentioned below, no Equity Shares have been acquired by the
other Promoters or members of Promoter Group in the last (1) one year immediately preceding the date
of filing of this Letter of Offer:

Name of the Promoter | Pre-holding Date and Mode of | No. of Equity Shares
& Promoter Group Acquisition (Present shareholding)
Mr. Vikas Garg Pre-holding: Online through Right Issue, | 3,35,63,523
1,72,61,241 allotment on 11.10.2023:
1,63,02,282 shares
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8.

Ms. Seema Garg Pre-holding: Online through Right Issue, | 3,22,70,098
1,65,96,051 allotment on 11.10.2023:
1,56,74,047 shares
Ms. Sukriti Garg Pre-holding: Online through Right Issue, | 2,74,84,424
1,41,34,847 allotment on 11.10.2023:
1,33,49,577 shares

Intention and extent of participation by our Promoter and Promoter Group in the Issue:

Our Promoters and Promoter group has, vide their letter dated April 30, 2024 (the “Subscription Intent
Letter”) communicated that they could only be able to subscribe in the event of under-subscription of the
proposed Right Issue.

Hence, solely in the event of under-subscription of this Issue our Promoter shall subscribe to the extent
of their Right Entitlement first, then for additional Rights Equity Shares, if required, subject to
compliance with the Companies Act, the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the SEBI Takeover Regulations and
other applicable laws.

The additional subscription, if any, by our Promoter shall be made subject to such additional subscription
not resulting in the minimum public shareholding of our Company falling below the level prescribed in
SEBI Listing Regulations and SCRR. Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations and will continue to comply with the minimum public shareholding requirements
pursuant to the Issue.

The ex-rights price of the Rights Equity Shares as per Regulation 10(4)(b) of the Takeover Regulations
is X 2.61 /- per equity share.

Shareholding Pattern of our Company as per the last filing with the Stock Exchanges in compliance
with the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations

0] The shareholding pattern of our Company, as on March 31, 2024, can be accessed on the website
of the BSE Advik Capital Ltd Shareholding Pattern, Advikca SHP, |BSE (bseindia.com)

Latest for Quarter ending June 30, 2024 is at: https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-
price/advik-capital-Itd/advikca/539773/shareholding-pattern/

(i) The statement showing holding of securities (including Equity Shares, warrants, convertible
securities) of persons belonging to the category "Public" including Equity Shareholders holding
more than 1% of the total number of Equity Shares as on March 31, 2024, as well as details of
shares which remain unclaimed for public can be accessed on the website of the BSE
Shareholding Pattern Public ShareHolder (bseindia.com)

Latest for Quarter ending June 30, 2024 is at: https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-
price/advik-capital-ltd/advikca/539773/shareholding-pattern/

At any given time, there shall be only one denomination of the Equity Shares of our Company.

All Equity Shares are fully paid-up and there are no partly paid-up Equity Shares as on the date of this
Letter of Offer. Further, the Rights Equity Shares allotted pursuant to the Issue, shall be fully paid up.
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OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

The Issue comprises of an issue of up to 19,98,05,013 Equity Shares, aggregating up to X 4,995.13 lakhs by our
Company. For details see "The Issue " beginning on page 42 of this Letter of Offer.

Our Company intends to utilize the proceeds of the Issue towards the following objects:

The objects of the issue are:

1. To augment our capital base and for increasing our operational scale with respect to our NBFC activities.
2. General Corporate Purposes.

(Collectively, referred to hereinafter as the "Objects")

We intend to utilize the gross proceeds raised through the Issue (the "Issue Proceeds") after deducting the Issue
related expense ("Net Proceeds") for the above-mentioned Objects.

The main Object Clause of Memorandum of Association of our Company enables us to undertake the existing
activities and the activities for which the funds are being raised by us through the present Issue. Further, we
confirm that the activities which we have been carrying out till date are in accordance with the Object Clause of
our Memorandum of Association.

The details of objects of the Issue

Particulars Amount (in lakhs)
Gross proceeds from the Issue 4,995,13*
Less: Issue related expenses 85.00
Net Proceeds of the Issue 4,910.13

*The issue size will not exceed X 4995.00 lakhs if there is any deduction on account of or at the time of finalisation of issue price and Rights
Entitlements Ratio the same will be adjusted against the amount for General Corporate Purpose.

Requirement of Funds:

S. No. Particulars Total estimated amount
to be utilized (X in lakhs)
1. To augment the capital base of our Company 3,725.00
2. General Corporate Purposes 1,185.13
3. Issue related expenses 85.00
Total 4,995.13

* The amount utilized towards general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds.

Means of Finance

Our Company proposes to meet the entire requirement of funds for the proposed objects of the Issue from the Net
Proceeds. Accordingly, our Company confirms that there is no requirement to make firm arrangements of finance
through verifiable means towards at least 75% of the stated means of finance, excluding the amount to be raised
from the Issue.

Utilization of Net Proceeds

Our Company proposes to deploy the Net Proceeds in the aforesaid objects as follows:

(R in lakhs)
S. No. Particulars Total estimated amount
to be utilized
1. To augment the capital base of our Company 3,725.00
2. General Corporate Purposes 1,185.13
Total 4,910.13
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Schedule of Implementation and Deployment of Gross Proceeds
(Rs. In Lakhs)

; Amount Proposed to For FY 2024-25
Objects of the Issue be Funded from Net
Proceeds

To augment our capital base and for increasing

our operational scale with respect to our 3,725.00 3,725.00
NBFC activities

General corporate purposes 1,185.13 1,185.13
Issue expenses 85.00 85.00
Total * 4,995.13 4,995.13

* Assuming full subscription in the Issue and subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment and to be adjusted per the Rights Entitlement
ratio.

In view of the competitive environment of the industry in which we operate, Our Company may have to revise its
business plan from time to time and consequently our fund requirements may also change. Our Company’s historical
expenditure may not be reflective of our future expenditure plans. Our Company may have to revise its estimated
costs, fund allocation and fund requirements owing to various factors such as economic and business conditions,
increased competition and other external factors which may not be within the control of our management. This may
entail rescheduling or revising the planned expenditure and funding requirements, including the expenditure for a
particular purpose at the discretion of the Company’s management.

The fund requirement and deployment are based on internal management estimates and our Company’s current
business plan and is subject to change in light of changes in external circumstances or costs, other financial
conditions or business strategy.

Any amount, deployed by our Company out of internal accruals towards the aforementioned objects till the
date of receipt of Issue Proceeds shall be recouped by our Company from the Issue Proceeds of the Issue. In case
of delays in raising funds from the Issue, our company may deploy certain amounts towards any of the above-
mentioned Objects through a combination of Internal Accruals or Loans (Bridge Financing) and in such case the
Funds raised shall be utilized towards repayment of such Loans or recouping of Internal Accruals. However, we
confirm that no bridge financing has been availed as on date, which is subject to being repaid from the Issue
Proceeds.

Details of the Objects of the Issue
The details in relation to objects of the Issue are set forth herein below.
1. Toaugment our capital base and for increasing our operational scale with respect to our NBFC activities.

Our Company is a RBI Registered NBFC primarily involved in the business of providing financial services
with a paramount focus on small business in both corporate as well as in non-corporate sector. We propose
to augment our capital base by Rs. 3,725.00 lakhs through this Issue and utilize the funds raised to further
increase the operational scale of its business of NBFC activities, including but not limited to expansion of
the financing business to provide for funding of fresh loans to our corporate customers. Our Company
proposes to expand its loan portfolio to target high net worth corporates with past credit track record to whom
our Company may advance funds both secured/ unsecured based on the risk profile and as envisaged in the
loan policy of our Company.

Further, to encash the available opportunity, our Company sometime make investment in the form of debt
and equity in various companies either directly or through its wholly owned subsidiary. We are not bound
by predefined restrictions in regard to our search for investment opportunities. We invest in companies in a
variety of markets and stages both listed and unlisted. Our management approach can take the form either of
driving change or partnership with existing owners.

No portion of the amount earmarked towards this object will be utilised for giving loans to our Promoters,
Subsidiaries, Associates, Group Companies and Promoter Group Companies.
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2. General Corporate Purpose

In terms of Regulation 62(2) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the extent of the Issue Proceeds proposed to be
used for General Corporate Purposes shall not in the aggregate exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds of the Issue.
Our Board will have flexibility in applying the balance amount after utilizing the amount for acquisition of
business targets towards General Corporate Purposes, including repayment of outstanding loans, meeting our
working capital requirements, capital expenditure, funding our growth opportunities, including strategic
initiatives, meeting expenses incurred in the ordinary course of business including salaries and wages,
administration expenses, insurance related expenses, meeting of exigencies which our Company may face in
course of business and any other purpose as may be approved by the Board or a duly appointed committee
from time to time, subject to compliance with the necessary provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Our management will have flexibility in utilizing any amounts for General Corporate Purposes under the
overall guidance and policies of our Board. The quantum of utilization of funds towards any of the purposes
will be determined by the Board, based on the amount available under this head and the business requirements
of our Company, from time to time.

. Expenses for the issue
The Issue related expenses consist of fees payable to Legal Counsel, processing fee to the SCSBs, Registrars

to the Issue, printing and stationery expenses, advertising expenses and all other incidental and miscellaneous
expenses for listing the Rights Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges. Our Company will need approximately

%85 lakhs towards these expenses, a break-up of the same is as follows:

(Z in lakhs)
Activity Estimated % of Total As a % of
EXxpense EXxpenses Issue size
Fees payable to the intermediaries 25 29.41 0.50
(including Legal Counsel fees, selling
commission, registrar fees and expenses)
Advertising, Printing, stationery and 15 17.65 0.30
distribution Expenses
Statutory and other Miscellaneous Expenses 45 52.94 0.90
Total 85.00 100% 1.70
Appraisal

None of the Objects of the Issue have been appraised by any bank or financial institution.
Bridge Financing Facilities

Our Company has not raised any bridge loans from any bank or financial institution as on the date of this
Letter of Offer, which are proposed to be repaid from the Issue Proceeds.

Monitoring of Utilization of Funds

Since the proceeds from the Issue are less than 10,000 lakhs, in terms of Regulation 41(1) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, our Company is not required to appoint a monitoring agency for this Issue. However, as per SEBI
Listing Regulation, the Rights Issue Committee appointed by the Board would be monitoring the utilization of
the proceeds of the Issue. The Company will disclose the utilization of the Issue Proceeds under a separate head
in our balance sheet along with the relevant details, for all such amounts that have not been utilized. The
Company will indicate investments, if any, of unutilized Issue Proceeds in the Balance Sheet of the Company
for the relevant Financial Years subsequent to receipt of listing and trading approvals from the Stock Exchanges.

Pursuant to Regulation 32 of the SEBI Listing Regulation, the Company shall, on a quarterly basis, disclose to
the Audit Committee the uses and applications of the Issue Proceeds. In accordance with Regulation 32 of the
SEBI Listing Regulation, the Company shall furnish to the Stock Exchanges, on a quarterly basis, a statement
on material deviations, if any, in the utilization of the proceeds of the Issue from the objects of the Issue as stated
above. This information will also be published in newspapers simultaneously with the interim or annual financial
results after placing the same before the Audit Committee.
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Interim Use of Proceeds

Our Company, in accordance with the policies formulated by our Board from time to time, will have flexibility
to deploy the Net Proceeds. Pending utilization of the Net Proceeds for the purposes described above, our
Company intends to deposit the Net Proceeds only with scheduled commercial banks included in the second
schedule of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 or make any such investment as may be allowed by SEBI from
time to time.

Interest of Promoters, Promoter Group and Directors, as applicable to the objects of the Issue
Our Promoters, Promoter Group and Directors do not have any interest in the objects of the Issue.
Clause for Promoter Subscription

Our Promoter has, vide their letter dated April 30, 2024 (the “Subscription Intent Letter”) communicated that they
could only be able to subscribe in the event of under-subscription of the proposed Right Issue.

Hence, solely in the event of under-subscription of this Issue our Promoter shall subscribe to the extent of their Right
Entitlement first, then for additional Rights Equity Shares, if required, subject to compliance with the Companies
Act, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Takeover Regulations and other applicable laws.

The additional subscription, if any, by our Promoter shall be made subject to such additional subscription not
resulting in the minimum public shareholding of our Company falling below the level prescribed in SEBI Listing
Regulations and SCRR. Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and
will continue to comply with the minimum public shareholding requirements pursuant to the Issue.

Strategic or financial partners

There are no strategic or financial partners attributed to the Objects of the Issue.

Variation in objects

In accordance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules, except in
circumstances of business exigencies, our Company shall not vary the Objects of the Issue without our Company
being authorized to do so by the Shareholders by way of a special resolution through postal ballot. In addition, the
notice issued to the Shareholders in relation to the passing of such special resolution (the ‘Postal Ballot Notice”)
shall specify the prescribed details as required under the Companies Act and other applicable rules. The Postal
Ballot Notice shall simultaneously be published in the newspapers, one in English and one in Hindi, the vernacular
language of the jurisdiction where the Registered Office is situated.

Key Industry Regulations for the objects of the issue

No additional provisions of any acts, regulations, rules and other laws are or will be applicable to the Company
for the proposed Objects of the Issue.
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STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS

KSMC & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS

STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY AND ITS
SHAREHOLDERS AS PER THE CERTIFICATE ISSUED BY STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE
COMPANY

To

The Board of Directors

Advik Capital Limited

S0 Vikas Howse, Vikas Path Mary,
st Punjnbi Bagh, Dethi 1100246

Dear Sirs,

Sub: Statement of possible special direct tax benefits available to Advik Capital Limited (“the Company*)
and its shireholders (“the Statement ),

We hereby confiem that the enclosed statement states the possible special divect tax benefits available 10 the
Company and the sharcholders of the Company under the Income Tax Act, 1961 ("Act”) as amended from time
1o e, peesently i force i Indin, Several of these benefits are dependent on the Company or its sharchiolders
fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the relevant provisions of the Act. Hence, the ability of the Comgany or
its shareholders to derive the tax benetits i dependent upon fulfilling such conditions, which based on the bussiness
imperatives, the Company nay o may not choose to fulfil.

This statemwen §s only intended to pravide genezal information to the investors and hence Is neither designed nor
iMetded to be a substitute for peofesssonal tax advice, In view of the individual nature of the tix consequences,
the changing tax laws, each investor is advised to consult his or her own tax consubtant with respect to the specific
e imalicutions arising out of their participation m the rights issue of equity shares of the Company particularly
1 view of 1he fact that centain recemly enacted lezislation may not have a direct legal precedent or may huve o
dilferent interpretation on the benefits, which an investor cun avail. Neither ire we suggesting nor are we ad vising
the investor to invest money hased on this statement.

I contents of the enclosed statcient are based on the information. explanations and representations obtained
from the Company amd on the basis of their understanding of 1he bosiness activities and operations of the
Company. We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance as to whether

The Company or its shareboldess will continue 1o obtain these benefits in future; or
2 The canditions prescribod for availing the benefits, where applicable hive beenwoald be met.

I statement is intended sobely for imformation and for inclusion in the Drufi Lotrer of Offer in relation to the
Issue of cquity shares of the Company and is not 1o be used, circulated or refieered w for any other purpose without
ir peinr written consent. Our views are based on the existing provisions of law referred to caslier 2nd ils
inlerpretaton, which are subject o change from time 1o time.

We shall not be fiable fo any claims, liabilities or expenses relating 1o this assignment except to the exsent of fees
relating (o this assignment, as finally judicially determined to have resulted peimarily from bad faith or intentional
miscomduct. We will not be lable to any other person in respect of this Statement.

For KSMC &
Chinesed Acg
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Stutement of Specinl Tux Beaefits available 1o the Company & its Shareholder under the Income Tax Act,
1965 andd other Direct Tay Laws presently in force in India

Specinl Tay Benelits

L Benefits avaitable to the Company
There ure no special tax benefits available to the Company,

1. Benefits availabie to the Shurcholders
Fhere are no special tax benefits available to the sharcholders for investing in the propased right issue of
shares of the Company,

VDN 2E505T32BKEGIUGT6

Date: 02 03 2024
Pluce: Dl
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SECTION V - ABOUT THE COMPANY
INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The information contained in ‘Industry Overview’ in this section is derived from publicly available sources.
Neither we, nor any other person connected with the Issue has independently verified this information. Industry
sources and publications generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources
generally believed to be reliable, but that their accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not
guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured. Industry publications are also prepared based on information
as of specific dates and may no longer be current or reflect current trends.

Shareholders should note that this is only a summary of the industry in which we operate and does not contain all
information that should be considered before investing in the Equity Shares. Before deciding to invest in the Equity
Shares, shareholders should read this Letter of Offer, including the information in the sections "Risk Factors"
and "Financial Information” beginning on pages 22 and 94, respectively of this Letter of Offer. An investment in
the Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. For a discussion of certain risks in connection with an investment
in the Equity Shares, please see the section ‘Risk Factors’ beginning on page 22 of this Letter of Offer.

MARKET SIZE

India’s nominal gross domestic product (GDP) at current prices is estimated to be at Rs. 301.75 trillion (US$ 3.62
trillion) in 2023-24. Additionally, the Nominal GDP at current prices in Q1 of 2023-24 was Rs. 70.67 trillion
(US$ 848.92 hillion), as against Rs. 65.42 trillion (US$ 785.85 billion) in 2022-23, estimating a growth of 8%.
With 115 unicorns valued at more than US$ 350 billion, as of February 2023, India presently has the third-largest
unicorn base in the world. The government is also focusing on renewable sources by achieving 40% of its energy
from non-fossil sources by 2030. India is committed to achieving the country's ambition of Net Zero Emissions
by 2070 through a five-pronged strategy, ‘Panchamrit’. Moreover, India ranked 3rd in the renewable energy
country attractive index.

According to the McKinsey Global Institute, India needs to boost its rate of employment growth and create 90
million non-farm jobs between 2023 to 2030 in order to increase productivity and economic growth. The net
employment rate needs to grow by 1.5% per annum from 2023 to 2030 to achieve 8-8.5% GDP growth between
same time period. India's current account deficit (CAD) decreases to US$ 9.2 billion in Q1 of 2023-24 from US$
17.9 billion in Q1 of 2022-2023.

Exports fared remarkably well during the pandemic and aided recovery when all other growth engines were losing
steam in terms of their contribution to GDP. Going forward, the contribution of merchandise exports may waver
as several of India’s trade partners witness an economic slowdown. According to Mr. Piyush Goyal, Minister of
Commerce and Industry, Consumer Affairs, Food and Public Distribution and Textiles, Indian exports are
expected to reach US$ 1 trillion by 2030.

GOLBAL ECONOMY

The global economy is yet again at a highly uncertain moment, with the cumulative effects of the past three years
of adverse shocks—most notably, the COVID-19 pandemic and Russia’s invasion of Ukraine—manifesting in
unforeseen ways. Spurred by pent-up demand, lingering supply disruptions, and commodity price spikes, inflation
reached multidecade highs last year in many economies, leading central banks to tighten aggressively to bring it
back toward their targets and keep inflation expectations anchored.

Although telegraphed by central banks, the rapid rise in interest rates and anticipated slowing of economic activity
to put inflation on a downward path have, together with supervisory and regulatory gaps and the materialization
of bank-specific risks, contributed to stresses in parts of the financial system, raising financial stability concerns.
Banks’ generally strong liquidity and capital positions suggested that they would be able to absorb the effects of
monetary policy tightening and adapt smoothly. However, some financial institutions with business models that
relied heavily on a continuation of the extremely low nominal interest rates of the past years have come under
acute stress, as they have proved either unprepared or unable to adjust to the fast pace of rate rises.
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The unexpected failures of two specialized regional banks in the United States in mid-March 2023 and the collapse
of confidence in Credit Suisse—a globally significant bank—have roiled financial markets, with bank depositors
and investors reevaluating the safety of their holdings and shifting away from institutions and investments
perceived as vulnerable. The loss of confidence in Credit Suisse resulted in a brokered takeover. Broad equity
indices across major markets have fallen below their levels prior to the turmoil, but bank equities have come under
extreme pressure. Despite strong policy actions to support the banking sector and reassure markets, some
depositors and investors have become highly sensitive to any news, as they struggle to discern the breadth of
vulnerabilities across banks and nonbank financial institutions and their implications for the likely near-term path
of the economy. Financial conditions have tightened, which is likely to entail lower lending and activity if they
persist.

Financial Service industry in India

Source: https://www.ibef.org/industry/financial-services-india

India has a diversified financial sector undergoing rapid expansion both in terms of strong growth of
existing financial services firms and new entities entering the market. The sector comprises commercial
banks, insurance companies, non-banking financial companies, co-operatives, pension funds, mutual
funds and other smaller financial entities. The banking regulator has allowed new entities such as
payment banks to be created recently, thereby adding to the type of entities operating in the sector.
However, the financial sector in India is predominantly a banking sector with commercial banks
accounting for more than 64% of the total assets held by the financial system. The Government of India
has introduced several reforms to liberalise, regulate and enhance this industry. The Government and
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) have taken various measures to facilitate easy access to finance for Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMESs). These measures include launching Credit Guarantee Fund
Scheme for MSMEs, issuing guidelines to banks regarding collateral requirements and setting up a
Micro Units Development and Refinance Agency (MUDRA). With a combined push by Government
and private sector, India is undoubtedly one of the world's most vibrant capital markets.

Source: www.bcg.com

H1FY24 Results: NBFC Industry Snapshot

E Balance Sheet Size Total Net Advances Total Borrowings! Shareholders Fund
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orrowings include Debt Securities
wth 15 calculated for H1FY24 over H1FY23. Analysis has been made based on 29 NBFCs (9 HFCs, 2 Gold, 3 MFI and 15 Diversified NBFCs) 2
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Summary Snapshot (1/11)

@

Macro Trends

India’s GDP grew at 7.6% in Q2FY24; forecasted to grow between 5.9 to 7.0% YoY in FY24

— Most agencies have retained or revised upward their GDP forecast for FY24 vs. last quarter
Moderate growth was seen across most high-frequency indicators vs last year across industry (lIP,
power consumption etc.), logistics (E-way bills, freights, etc.) as well as sentiments (PMI, etc.)

NBFCs credit growth outpaces that of Banks; at highest levels for both lenders since 2019

NIMs continued upward trend and increased by 44 bps & 20 bps YoY for NBFCs and Banks respectively

— Credit cost increased marginally for NBFCs over FY23 levels; GNPA for banks and NBEFCs continue the
ll I I downward movement

L Improved profitability witnessed across player group

Large NBFCs continues to command premium valuation vs. banks; most large PSU banks continue

Banks vs NBFCs trading at discount despite improved valuations

Strong credit growth (24% YoY) across NBFC categories despite moderate growth {10% YoY) in HFCs;
Disbursements continue to grow on back of stronger consumption demand

Absolute profit for the NBFC sector increased 38% YoY in H1 FY24 vs. H1 FY23 with all categories
witnessing decent growth

Improvement in profitability driven by rise in NIMs primarily led by NBFC MFls

Cost to income ratio improved by 84 bps in H1 FY24 vs. H1 FY23

P,
o

Key Performance
Indicators

3
i
i
4
i
i
:

Summary Snapshot (11/11)

« GNPA of NBFCs improved by 86 bps in H1 FY24 vs. H1 FY23 driven by higher credit demand and
SJ_@ improved collections efficiency

Majority of NBFCs reported improvement in GNPA owing to better credit offtake
NPA and Risk Capitalization levels comfortable for NBFCs despite fall on account of strong growth; seme of them
Management already under process of raising capital

Diversified NBFCs commanding premium; some HFCs still trading at discount
Larger NBFCs trading at a better valuation over banks on expectations of higher balance sheet growth

Valuation

Bank lending to NBFCs has increased sharply in the last 18 months supporting business growth
Mutual Fund (MF) debt exposure to NBFCs also at high levels compared to that in the past
However, with rise in risk weights for bank lending to NBFCs, cost of funds for NBFCs to creep up but
impact not yet quantifiable
Consumer credit exposures of NBFCs to be impacted; Monoline Companies and Consumer focused
Recent trends NBFCs to bear most of the brunt

« Digital adoption for NBFCs on a steadfast rise

Macro indicators

FY24 GDP forecasted to grow between 5.9 - 7.0% YoY

2 -
Trend in real GDP growth YoY FY24 GDP grcm.fth forecast rev15enl:l upwards or
retained by most agencies

FY22: o P FYl4 Increase/Dacrease

—_— »
9.1% 7.2% 7.0%! from last estimate

Homura 5.9% f 40 bps

21.6%

ICRA 6.0% 0 bps

1. GDP growth for F24 and Q2FY24 are based on estimates; 2: Forecast as of December 8, 2023
Hote: Upper-limit has been included where agencies reported forecast range. Latest forecasts considered in case of revision by agency within same month;
Source: Analyst reports, BCG analysis L3
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Key Performance Indicators
- Banks & NBFCs

NBFCs credit growth outpaces Banks credit growth in H1FY24

1. Taper Tantrum crisis of 2013 refers to foreign investors pulling out money from equities and bonds in emerging markets as a reaction to US Fed announcement of reducing/ceasing its
bond purchase program; this led to a tightening of liquidity available in the market, impacting both banks & HBFCs

Hote: Analysis has been made based on 31 NBFCs (10 HFCS, 2 Gold, 3 MFI and 16 Diversified MBFCS) and 35 Banks (12 PSU, 10 Private-Hew, 9 Private-old banks and 4 Small Finance Banks)
*For HIFY23 and H1FY24, HDFC Ltd and Shriram City Union have been excluded

Snurce: Capitaline, Quarterly Re<ults, Investor Presentation, Annual Report, RCG Analysic

growth advances
40 1 Global Financial Taper Demonetization IL&FS - Onset of Global economy
33% risis Tantrum’ Liquidity Crisis: \Covid-19. | downturn; Ukraino
War
0\ by O 27%
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Key Performance Indicators
- Banks & HBFCs

NIMs continue upward trend in H1 FY24 while CIR stabilized and improved
marginally for NBFCs

Net Interest Margin' (%) Cost to Income Ratio? (%)

(%)

50 49%

49%

45

3T E— e

H1FY23 FY23 HI1FY24 HI1FY23 FY23 H1FY24

= Banks = MBFCs

1. HIM is calculated as (Interest Income - Interest Expense)/Average Assets 2. Cost to Income is calculated as Operation expense/(net interest income + other income)

Operation Expense excludes “let loss on fair value changes”, “Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortized cost category”, “Net Transaction Exchange Loss™ and/or
“Loss/write-off on Repossessed Assets and Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt” ; NIM has been annualized

hote: Analysis has been made based on 29 NEFCs (9 HFCs, 2 Gold, 3 MFI and 15 Diversified NBFCs) and 35 Banks (12 PSU, 10 Private-Hew, 9 Private-old banks and 4 Small Finance Banks)
Soures: Capitaline, Quarterly Results, Investar Presentation, Annual Repart, BOG Analysic

Copyright © 2023 by Beston Conuting Group, AN rights reserved.
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Key Performance Indicators
- Banks & HBFCs

Improvement in asset quality across Banks and NBFCs; Credit cost up
marginally for NBFCs while improving for Banks

Credit Cost? (%)

§

2

5

k-

H

N

g

]

H

3.1% 0-6% 0.5% i

2 0 o

Fy21 Fy22 H1FY23 Fr23 H1FY24 Y21 Fy22 H1FY23 Fr23 H1FY24 g

3

= Banks = MBFCs g

)

1. GNPA for NBFC has been calculated based on weighted average on total advances 2. Credit Cost is calculated as provision and contingencies/average assets & have been annualized E
Hote: Analysis has been made based on 29 NBFCs (9 HFCs, 2 Gold, 3 MFI and 15 Diversified NBFCs) and 35 Banks (12 PSU, 10 Private-New, 9 Private-old banks and 4 Small Finance Banks) 5
Source: Quarterly Results, Investor Presentation, Annual Report, RBI, BCG Analysis 1? -
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Key Performance Indicators
- Banks & NBFCs

Improvement in profitability for both Banks & NBFCs on account of higher
yields

Return on Assets! Return on Equity?

(%)

Fy21 Fy22 H1 FY23 Fy23 H1 Fy24 FYz1 Fv22 H1 Fy23 FY¥23 H1 FY24

= Banks === NBFCs
1. Return on Assets is calculated as net profit/average assets 2. Return on Equity is calculated as net profit/average shareholders’ fund
Note: Analysis has been made based on 29 NBFCs (9 HFCs, 2 Gold, 3 MFI and 15 Diversified NBFCs) and 35 Banks (12 PSU, 10 Private-New, 9 Private-old banks and 4 Small Finance Banks); Both
ROA and ROE have been annualized
Source: Capitaline, Quarterly Results, Investor Presentation, Annual Report, BCG Analysis 13

Capyright & H21 by Bastan Canmulting Group, Al dghts reserved.

Key performance
indicators

Strong business momentum observed across NBFCs in the last 12 months; only
HFCs grew moderately at 10% YoY in H1 FY24

Category-wise y-o-y growth in loan book (%)
(%)
50
40
32
10 29
24
21 21 20 21
20 16
1
o . 10 10 10 9 8 9
.mllE 0N : ]
o [
Fv21 Fvy22z H1 FY23 Hi FY21 FY22 H1 FY23 H1 FY21 FY22 H1 FY23 H1 FYZ1 FY2Z H1 FY23 H1 FrYz1 FY22 H1 Fr23 Hi
Fr23 Fr24 Fr23 Fr24 FY23 Fr24 Fr23 Frz4 Fr23 FYz4
-— HFCs ——= o—— Divorsified ——e —— Gold —_— WiIF1 — o—— |ndustry —=

Loan book as on
H1FY24 (INR lakh Cr)

Note: Analysis has been made based on 29 NBFCs (9 HFCs, 2 Gold, 3 MFI and 15 Diversified NBFCs); Growth of HIFY24 calculated over H1FY23
Mismatch from chart in slide 11 on account of no. of NBFCs considered for analysis
Source: Capitaline, Quarterly Results, Investor Presentation, Annual Report, BCG Analysis 20

Camyrght © 2023 by Baston Cammuting Group, AN Fghts reserved.

Key performance
indicators

Healthy income growth witnessed across industry; all NBFC categories in green

Values for HIFY24 and in INR Bn

Housing Finance Companies - 56% growth in PAT Diversified NBFCs - 32% YoY growth in PAT

365 472 90 sez 219 343

Int. Int. NIl Oth  Total Opex PPOP Credit Tax PAT
inc inc Cost

Int. Ml Oth Total Opex PPOP Credit Tax PAT
exp. inc. inc Cost

EEE®EEEEE®

inc.

exp. . .

MFI1 NBFCs - 134% YoY growth in PAT

Int. Int. NIl Oth  Total Opex PPOP Credit Tax PAT Int. Int. Hil Oth Total Opex PPOP Credit Tax PAT
inc. exp. inc. inc. Cost inc. exp. inc. inc. Cost

1. Yo¥ growth H1FY24 vs. HIFY23
Analysis has been made based on 29 NBFCs (9 HFCs, 2 Gold, 3 MFI and 15 Diversified NBFCs)
Source: Capitaline; Press releases; BCG analysis 23

Copyright © 2023 by Bestan Consulting Group, ANl rights reserved
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MPA and Risk Management m

Asset quality improved over 12-month period on account of improved
collection efficiency and better credit flow; stress observed in gold NBFCs

Gross Non-Performing assets (%)

%
6
4.9%
5 4.6%
M i
vy 4.1%
4 / 4.6% 4.0%

1. GHPA for NBFC categories has been calculated based on weighted average
Hote: Analysis has been made based on 29 NBFCs (9 HFCs, 2 Gold, 3 MFI and 15 Diversified NBFCs)
Source: Financial Results; BCG analysis
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Key Performance Indicators

NBFCs remain comfortably capitalized despite a fall in overall levels due to

strong business growth

Capital to Risk-weighted assets ratio of NBFC players (%)

Select NBFCs
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Source: Capitaline, Investor presentation, Press release, RBI, CARE Ratings, BCG Analysis 30 )

Bank lending to NBFCs has increased sharply in
the last 18 months supporting business growth

Deployment of Bank Credit to NBFCs (INR lakh cr.)

14.2

Fyi4

H1 FY24

Share of lending to
NBFCs in overall bank
exposure

5.2% 9.4%

Source: RBI; BCG Analysis

* Mutual Fund (MF) debt
exposure to NBFCs, including
Commercial Papers (CPs) and
Corporate Debt has also
increased to INR 1.77 lakh
crore

Larger NBFCs actively tapping
the capital market but mid-
sized and smaller NBFCs have
significant reliance on banking
system for funding

Additional liquidity provided by
Banks to the NBFCs via the
securitization route (DA and
PTC) as well as Treasury
investments of Banks in NBFC
Issuances

Capyright © 3023 by Boston Consulting Group. AN rights ressrved.
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Feeble and Uneven Growth
Baseline Scenario

The baseline forecast is for global output growth, estimated at 3.4 percent in 2022, to fall to 2.8 percent in 2023,
0.1 percentage point lower than predicted in the January 2023 WEO Update (Table 1.1), before rising to 3.0
percent in 2024. This forecast for the coming years is well below what was expected before the onset of the
adverse shocks since early 2022. Compared with the January 2022 WEO Update forecast, global growth in 2023
is 1.0 percentage point lower, and this growth gap is expected to close only gradually in the coming two years.

The baseline prognosis is also weak by historical standards. During the two pre-pandemic decades (2000-09 and
2010-19), world growth averaged 3.9 and 3.7 percent a year, respectively.

For advanced economies, growth is projected to decline by half in 2023 to 1.3 percent, before rising to 1.4 percent
in 2024. Although the forecast for 2023 is modestly higher (by 0.1 percentage point) than in the January 2023
WEOQO Update, it is well below the 2.6 percent forecast of January 2022. About 90 percent of advanced economies
are projected to see a decline in growth in 2023. With the sharp slowdown, advanced economies are expected to
see higher unemployment: a rise of 0.5 percentage point on average from 2022 to 2024.

For emerging market and developing economies, economic prospects are on average stronger than for advanced

economies, but these prospects vary more widely across regions. On average, growth is expected to be 3.9 percent
in 2023 and to rise to 4.2 percent in 2024. The forecast for 2023 is modestly lower (by 0.1 percentage point) than
in the January 2023 WEO Update and significantly below the 4.7 percent forecast of January 2022. In low-income
developing countries, GDP is expected to grow by 5.1 percent, on average, over 2023-24, but projected per capita
income growth averages only 2.8 percent during 2023-24, below the average for middle-income economies (3.2
percent) and so below the path needed for standards of living to converge with those in middle-income economies.

20002008 2011-2019 2021 2022 2023 2024 2024-2029 2030-2035
United States 24 22 59 21 07 0.4 17 16
Europe 23 16 55 35 06 10 09 08
Euro Area 21 12 51 33 08 10 08 07
Germany 15 17 26 18 0.1 09 10 10
Haly 12 01 7.0 38 1.1 07 00 02
France 19 14 6.8 26 08 12 11 10
United Kingdom 23 20 76 41 02 038 10 09
Japan 11 09 22 10 10 08 06 05
Gther Mature Economies 40 28 56 28 13 20 26 22
Mature Economies 24 1.9 5.4 27 08 0.9 14 1.3
China 104 73 8.1 30 5.1 47 44 41
Indiia 71 68 9.0 6.8 50 43 47 43
fechacs o 52 50 38 5.6 38 38 36 34
Latin America 34 12 5.9 a7 1.0 13 17 16
Brazil 38 08 53 30 09 13 15 13
Mexico 22 24 49 3 24 1.0 19 15
Middle East & North Africa 49 31 48 56 27 39 24 25
Gulf region 52 37 33 82 20 47 24 26
Sub-Saharan Africa 59 36 47 36 3.0 3.0 35 35
B, Contral Aok and 5 65 28 6.8 -0.6 0.6 24 18 17
Russia 7.0 18 16 16 02 08 04 03
Turkey 50 56 116 54 15 23 31 29
g:'fgf}';‘ﬁg';‘gﬁfﬁ?i:‘: 6.3 a8 6.9 3.8 3.6 3.3 36 3.4
World 4.0 3.3 6.2 3.3 23 25 26 26
Addenda
China (Alternative) 89 57 80 NA NA NA 30 28
Indiia (Fiscal Year) 6.1 6.4 9.1 7.0 49 16 NA NA

66



The road ahead for non-banks to take lead on sustainability

NBFCs are uniquely placed in the Indian financing setup unlike the banks which focus on funding largescale
infrastructure projects. Given this flexibility on the ticket size as well as risk profiles, there is no shortage of
avenues. For instance, financing climate and transition funding across MSMEs and startups, or segments such as
EVs or niche products for clean tech equipment manufacturing. This offers NBFCs a compelling advantage to
invest in green product development to cater to nuanced loan structures and financing for the sustainable shift.
For instance, a sustainability-linked loan (SLL) with an interest rate linked to performance indicators such as a
reduction in emissions and an increase in direct employment. Similarly, a moderately and competitively priced
loan for greater offtake in mass-consuming segments such as EVs.

Opportunities and levers for business growth for NBFCs

NBFCs have various ways to grow their business, including obtaining affordable loans from multilateral
development banks and using blended finance instruments to access concessional capital. Additionally, NBFCs
can transform their operations by utilising digital tools and resources, which not only reduces their environmental
impact but also improves governance and resource management. Overall, opportunities and sustainability are
important drivers for growth in the NBFC sector and being innovative and ahead of the curve will lead to success
in the market

OVERVIEW OF NBFCS’ CREDIT
1. Introduction

The Indian banking industry is classified into scheduled and non-scheduled banks. Banks that are included in the
Second Schedule to the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are called scheduled banks. These banks are then further
classified into scheduled commercial banks (“SCBs”) and scheduled co-operative banks. SCBs are banks that are
permitted to conduct the normal business of banking, which entails collecting deposits, sanctioning loans and
offering other banking services. SCBs are further divided into Public Sector Banks (“PSBs”), Private Banks
(“PVBs”), Foreign Banks and Regional Rural Banks (“RRBs”).

Apart from SCBs, there are non-banking financial companies (“NBFCs”) that also play an important role in the
Indian financial system by complementing and competing with banks, and by promoting efficiency and diversity
into financial intermediation. NBFCs have evolved considerably in terms of operations, heterogeneity, asset
quality and profitability, and regulatory architecture.

NBFCs can be classified on the basis of

a) asset/liability structures;

b) systemic importance; and

c) the activities they undertake, according to the RBI.

In terms of liability structures, NBFCs are subdivided into deposit-taking NBFCs (“NBFCs-D”) - which accept
and hold public deposits - and non-deposit taking NBFCs (“NBFCs-ND”) - which source their funding from
markets and banks. Among NBFCs-ND, those with asset size of Rs. 5 billion or more are classified as non-deposit
taking systemically important NBFCs (“NBFCs- ND-S1”). As on July 31, 2022, there were 49 NBFCs- D and 415
NBFCs-ND-SlI, according to RBI.

Since NBFCs cater to niche areas, they are also categorised on the basis of activities they undertake. Up until
February 21, 2019, NBFCs were divided into 12 categories. Thereafter, these categories were harmonized by the
RBI in order to provide NBFCs with greater operational flexibility. As a result, asset finance companies (“AFCs”),
loan companies (“LCs”) and investment companies (“ICs”) were merged into a new category called Investment
and Credit Companies (“NBFC-ICC”). Additionally, account aggregators has been added as category of NBFCs.
At present, there are 12 categories of NBFCs in the activity- based classification.
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Types of NBFCs

(IFC)

Type of NBFC Nature of activity / Principal business
Investment and Credit Company | Lending and investments.

(Icc)

Infrastructure Finance Company | Providing loans for infrastructure development.

Infrastructure Debt Fund (IDF)

Facilitate flow of long-term debt to infrastructure projects.

Core Investment Company (CIC).

Investment in equity shares, preference shares, debt, or loans of group companies.

NBFC- Micro Finance Institution
(NBFC-MFI)

Collateral free loans and advances to small borrowers.

NBFC — Factor

Factoring business i.e., financing of receivables.

Non-Operative Financial Holding

For setting up new banks in private sector through its promoter/promoter groups.

Company (NOFHC)

Mortgage Guarantee Company | Providing mortgage guarantees for loans.

(MGC)

Asset  Reconstruction Company | Acquiring and dealing in financial assets sold by banks and financial institutions.
(ARC)

Peer-to-Peer Lending platform | Providing an online platform to bring lenders and borrowers together to help
(P2P) mobilise funds

Account Aggregator (AA)

Collecting and providing information about a customer’s financial assets in a
organised and retrievable manner to the customer or others as specified by the
customer.

Housing Finance Company (HFC)

Financing for housing.

Source: RBI, CareEdge Research

In October 2021, RBI decided to classify NBFCs based on size and risk perception using Scale Based Approach
— The Filtering Process by segregating NBFCs into four categories namely NBFC Base Layer (BL), NBFC

Middle Layer (ML), NBFC Upper Layer (UL), and NBFC Top Layer (TL).

Classification of NBFCs

NBFC | NBFCs with asset size of not more than Rs. 10 billion, Type 1 NBFC, Peer to Peer (P2P), Account

BL Aggregator (AA), and Non-Operative Financial Holding Company (NOFHC)

NBFC | NBFC-ND that are systematically important (SI) having an asset size of less than Rs. 10 billion and also
ML NBFC-HFCs, IFCs, IDFs, CICs, and Standalone Primary Dealers irrespective of their asset size

NBFC | Top NBFCs to be filtered based on their size & leverage, inter-connectedness, complexity, and superior
UL inputs (including group structure, liability mix, and segment penetration).

NBFC | Top Layer will remain empty unless RBI takes a view on specific NBFCs in the Upper Layer

TL

Additionally, Investment and Credit Companies (NBFC-ICC), Micro Finance Institution (NBFC-MFI), NBFC-
Factors and Mortgage Guarantee Companies (NBFC-MGC) that can be classified under any layer of the
regulatory structure depending on the parameters of the scale based regulatory framework. Government owned
NBFCs can only be classified under base layer or middle layer.

Further, as per RBIs notification as on October 11, 2022 titled “Multiple NBFCs in a Group: Classification in
Middle Layer”. NBFCs that are part of a common Group or are floated by a common set of promoters are
required to be viewed on a consolidated basis. For the consolidation of assets of the NBFCs in a Group, the total
assets of all the NBFCs in a Group shall be consolidated to determine the threshold for their classification in the

Middle Layer.

Recognition of NBFCs in Upper Layer:

NBFC categorization is based on an annual review. The paper recognizes two parameters; quantitative and

qualitative:

 The quantitative parameters will have 70% weightage.
 The qualitative parameters will have 30% weightage.
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The table below represents quantitative and qualitative parameters as proposed:

Parameter | Sub-parameter [ Sub weight [ Weights
Quantitative Parameters (70%)
Size & Leverage Size: Total exposure (on-and off-balance sheet) 20+15 35
Leverage: total debt to total equity
Interconnectedness i) Intra-financial system assets: 10 25
— Lending to Fls 10
— Securities of other Fls 5
— Mark to market REPO
— OTC derivatives

ii) Intra-financial system liabilities

—Borrowings from Fls

— Marketable securities issued by the finance company to FI
— Mark to market OTC derivative with Fls

iii) Securities outstanding (issued by NBFC)

Complexity i) Notional amount of OTC derivatives 5 10
— CCP centrally 5
— Bilateral OTC
ii) Trading and available for sale securities

Qualitative Parameters/Supervisory inputs (30%)

Nature and type of — Degree of reliance on short term funding 10 30

liabilities — Liquid asset ratios

— Callable debts

— Asset-backed funding Vs. other funding

— Asset liability duration and gap analysis

— Borrowing split (secured debt, CCPS, CPs, unsecured debt)

Group Structure — Total number of entities 10

— Total number of layers

— Total intra-group exposure

Segment Penetration | Importance of NBFC as a source of credit in a specific segment or area |10
Source: RBI, CareEdge Research

Further, as per RBI’s notification as on June 06, 2022 titled “Provisioning for Standard assets by Non-Banking
Financial Company — Upper Layer”. NBFCs classified as NBFC-UL shall maintain provisions in respect of
‘standard’ assets at the following rates for the funded amount outstanding:

Category of Assets Rate of
Provision
Individual housing loans and loans to Small and Micro
Enterprises (SMEs) 0.25%
2%, which will decrease to 0.4% after 1 year from the
Housing loans extended at teaser rates date on which the rates are reset at higher rates (if the

accounts remain‘standard”)

Advances to Commercial Real Estate — Residential

Housing (CRE - RH) Sector 0.75%
Advances to Commercial Real Estate (CRE) Sector
(other than CRE-RH) 1%
As stipulated in the applicable prudential norms for|
Restructured advances restructuringof advances
All other loans and advances not included above,
including loans to Medium Enterprises 0.4%

1.2, Credit growth of SCBs and NBFCs

Credit disbursed by SCBs and NBFCs is broadly classified into two parts — food and non-food credit. Food credit
accounts for a fraction of total credit disbursed. Non-food credit makes up close to 99% of total credit extended by
SCBs and NBFCs and the movement in overall credit growth therefore hinges on the movement in non-food credit
growth.
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SCBs' and NBFCs' Credit Deployed
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Bank credit growth, including food and non-food credit growth, witnessed a slowdown in Fiscal 2020
on accountof a gradual slowdown in the economy and the resultant fall in demand. Credit growth
declined to 6.1% as of March 2020. The outbreak of COVID-19 led to a further easing of credit growth
to 5.6% as of March 2021. Following the end of COVID-19-related lockdowns, the credit growth
registered a pick up and ended Fiscal 2022at Rs. 118.9 trillion, 8.6% higher than at end of Fiscal 2021.

A default in debt repayments by a large NBFC in India in 2018 led to heightened investor focus around
the health of the broader NBFC sector as well as their sources of liquidity. This led to some tightening
in liquidity available to certain NBFCs and, as a result, it become more difficult for certain NBFCs to
access debt and raise equity capital. NBFCs recorded a similar trajectory in their credit growth over
the past three years. NBFCs’ credit grewby 9.6% in Fiscal 2021, it moderated to 5.6% as of March
2022 over March 2021. CareEdge Research believes that the moderation was partly due to caution on
the part of NBFCs in deploying credit while maintaining asset quality, and largely due to the second
wave of the pandemic, which impacted rural and semi-urban India — and this demographic group
forms the large chunk of NBFCs’ customer base.

Gross credit deployed by NBFCs
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To maintain the asset quality post the moratorium in the first half of FY22, NBFCs were more cautious
while deploying any fresh credit, which led to a slight decline in NBFCs’ total credit deployed. As of
March 2022, NBFCs’ credit deployed reached Rs. 28.5 trillion, this increase was on account of ramp-
up in economic activity, improved liquidity and strong balance sheets coupled with high provisions,
which supported the asset quality andcredit growth for NBFCs.



Retail Credit portfolio of SCBs & NBFCs
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As of March 2022, retail credit was approximately 26% of NBFCs’ gross credit deployed and nearly 29% of
SCBs’ gross credit deployed. Banks and NBFCs are shifting their focus towards retail lending due to an increase
in demand for retail credit. There has been a shift in consumer behaviour towards borrowing, consumers want to
create a better standardof living and are ready to borrow personal loans to fulfil those needs.

1.3. Growth Drivers
Last mile financing & unbanked population

NBFCs have a strong presence in unorganized and under-served areas where banks may not have a strong
foothold. This is on account of the absence of necessary infrastructure of banks in these areas as well as an aversion
on the part of banks to disburse loans to smaller companies. The ease of internet access and affordable data packs
have not only contributed to increased spending and demand for retail credit from these areas, but have also
increased the potential consumer base of NBFCs.

Focus on informal customer base

Traditional banks may not be very keen on lending to retail borrowers from semi-urban and rural areas or small
companies with weaker credit scores and lack of documentation, when compared to larger borrowers. However,
in terms of volume, the number of potential customers in this category is higher and NBFC have created niche
segment by having customized credit assessment method based on cash flow assessment and field verification.
This gives NBFCs an opportunity to extend credit to the financially weaker set of customers, a growing customer
base in the informal customer segment opens up avenues for NBFCs’ growth.

Technological adoption and Co-lending arrangements:
NBFCs deploy technological solutions to develop innovative products and lower operational costs. Since NBFCs
are fairly new in the financial landscape as compared to most banks, they are more agile and better positioned to

leverage technology to enhance their reach while increasing efficiency.

NBFCs also partner with various alternative financiers and commercial banks, which enables them to diversify
their income avenues and reach their targeted customer base through different channels.

Shift in buying behaviour
Over the years, there has been significant change is perception of consumers towards borrowing. With the need

to improve lifestyle, more and more people especially the younger population are moving towards borrowing to
attain a certain standard of living.
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Rising demand from retail customers

Retail borrowers accounted for around 26% of total credit disbursed by NBFCs as on 31 March 2022, as per data
published by the RBI. Along with being a significant chunk of the customer base of NBFCs, the retail segment
has shown a consistent growth in credit demand throughout the pandemic. Going forward, CareEdge Research
believes that the demand for consumer durables, consumption of services, home loans and gold loans are likely
to support the growth in retail demand and, consequently, aid in the new business of NBFCs.

Increased demand from MSME and agriculture

Favourable Government policies aimed at boosting agriculture, small-scale industries and consumption are likely
to act as long-term growth catalysts in improving demand for MSME and agricultural credit. The “Make in India”,
“Start-up

India” initiatives, for example, are likely to support industrial activity and contribute to the demand for credit from
NBFCs. As on 28 November 2022, more than 12,244,823 micro, small and medium enterprises (MSMES) have
registered on the Udyam portal, of which 11.778,071 are micro enterprises; 427,267 are small enterprises; and
39,485 are medium enterprises. Micro and small enterprises represent 99.7% of the total registered MSMEs as of
28 November 2022. The coverage of the formal banking system in MSME:s still remains low, which provides a
major opportunity to NBFCs to expand their reach.

1.4. Distribution between segments

The industry sector has remained the largest recipient of credit extended by NBFCs followed by retail loans,
services, other non-food credit, and agriculture & allied activities. Following the IL & FS crisis, NBFCs’ exposure
to the manufacturing declined, as per data published by RBI, as NBFCs were facing liquidity crunch and were
hesitant to deploy long term credit to industry. However, after recovering from the IL & FS crisis and the impact
of the COVID- 19 pandemic, NBFCs have improved liquidity and stronger balance sheets. NBFCs have increased
the amount of credit deployed to industry on account of an improved demand for credit amid the reopening of the
economy and resumption of manufacturing activities.

While NBFCs’ credit to industry is growing, their credit to services is declining majorly on account of the decline
in credit to the commercial real estate sector and retail trade. The commercial real estate sector and the retail trade
sector were highly impacted during the COVID-19 pandemic as the nationwide lockdown halted construction
activities and the movement of people and goods.

1.5. Outlook

Assets under management of NBFCs is expected to be increase in Fiscal 2024 driven by an increased focus on
extending credit to customers belonging to segments where the penetration of bank credit is low, ease of access
to internet and investments made in technology infrastructure due to the COVID-19 pandemic. In terms of
segmental growth, the retail segment to continue its growth momentum, while credit to industry will likely remain
a laggard.

NBFCs are shifting their focus towards retail financing, which is anticipated to show a healthy growth with a pick-
up in economic activity and increased penetration of financial institutions providing convenient financing options
to borrowers.

The retail segment comprises vehicle loans, consumer durable loans, advances against golds, real estate loans and
other such individual loans. The retail segment is likely to significantly contribute to NBFCs’ growth, especially
in case of housing loans and vehicle loans. These segments are likely to continue their growth momentum on the
back of steady demand. Growth in vehicle segment is anticipated to see growth on the back of automotive
industry’s growth.

Gold loans are a highly secured and liquid asset class that generates high returns with minimal credit losses and
encourages financial institutions to extend their credit towards gold loans. The rise in the price of gold amidst
geopolitical unrest, a large geographic reach and the fast turnaround time on loan application, the demand for gold
loans to fund the working capital of micro enterprises and an individual’s personal requirements will grow.
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The real estate financing will grow with the sustained demand for affordable housing. However, the hike in interest
rates and high property prices will continue to be a key monitorable for the real estate finance segment as a whole.

MSME
2.1. Introduction to MSMEs

The micro, small and medium enterprises (“MSME”) sector is a vibrant and dynamic sector with crucial linkages
to employment. The MSME sector is considered the growth engine of the Indian economy, with significant
contribution to the GDP, exports and employment generation. The sector contributes significantly in the economic
and social development of the country by fostering entrepreneurship and generating large employment
opportunities at comparatively lower capital cost, next only to agriculture.

MSMEs are complementary to large industries as ancillary units and the sector therefore contributes significantly
in the inclusive industrial development of the country. MSMEs are widening their domain across sectors of the
economy, producing a diverse range of products and services to meet demands of domestic as well as global
markets.

In accordance with the provision of Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development (“MSMED”) Act, 2006
MSME:s are classified as follows:

%gfggg;;e Investment in Plant & Machinery or Equipment Annual Turnover
Micro . Does not exceed 10 million Does not exceed Rs. 50 million
Enterprises
Small More than Rs. 10 million but does not exceed Rs. 100 | More than Rs. 50 million but does not exceed
Enterprises million Rs.500 million
Medium More than Rs. 100 million but does not exceed Rs. 500 | More than Rs. 500 million but does not exceed
Enterprises million Rs.2,500 million

Number of MSMEs in India

As on 04.12.2023, as per Udyam Registration Portal, the total number of MSMEs registered since
01.07.2020 to 04.12.2023 in the country are 3,16,05,581 (including informal micro enterprises
registered on Udyam Assist Platform)

Source: Udyam portal, Data as of 31% December 2023.
2.2. Credit to MSMEs

NBFCs’ credit deployed to MSMEs engaged in the manufacturing sector as per RBI was on a downtrend due to
a combination of weakened demand from MSMEs and nagging liquidity issues of NBFCs. NBFCs mainly deploy
credit to MSMEs belonging to the services and agricultural sectors. In comparison, bank credit to MSMEs
witnessed a consistent growth.

The credit extended towards MSME has increased significantly as the Government encouraged banks to extend
credit to MSMEs and aid them to buffer the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic. As micro and small enterprises
were more vulnerable, the credit towards them during the pandemic increased significantly, as per data published
by the RBI. On the other hand, medium enterprises were able to buffer the effects of pandemic to a certain extent.
Although the credit towards medium enterprises increased over the previous Fiscal year, the growth was moderate
compared to growth in credit extended to micro and small enterprises.

2.3 Share of Banks & Non-Banks in MSME lending

Share of banks & NBFCs in MSME lending

Note: The credit exposure for MSMEs is NBFCs and SCBs credit exposure to "Micro & Small” and *"Medium’
enterprises under ‘Industrial Sector’ only.
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The MSME sector is underpenetrated by NBFCs and there is a huge unmet credit demand in the sector, primarily
due to lack of documentation and credit history required to access to financing from formal banking channels.
There is also a significant gap between the original credit requirement and the actual credit exposure of formal
channels to MSMEs, which provides a huge opportunity in MSME lending.

2.4, Asset Quality Trends for Banks

MSMEs have poor financial muscle and were severely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. Since most MSMEs
operate in the manufacturing sector, the nationwide lockdown, which impacted production as well as demand,
caused increased stress to MSMEs. Additionally, MSMEs likely witnessed delayed payments on orders serviced
and the inability to adopt digitization or accommodate higher costs on social distancing and limited workforce
impaired

MSMESs’ operations. Many went out of business and some struggled to tide over the crisis with cash flow issues,
which translated into a strain on their ability to repay banks.

2.5. Outlook

The MSME sector is the driving force of the Indian economy and has major potential to spread industrialization
across the economy. However, this sector is small in terms of scale of operations, business size. MSMEs employ
a large number of people making the sector a key contributor to the economic development of the country. The
sheer number of work force engaged also results in this sector receiving Government support and benefits.

Apart from Government initiatives, the improved use of digital solutions adopted during the pandemic (such as
easy payments and marketing through digital platforms) increased demand for finished products have strengthen
the MSMEs and resulted in recovery of their business.

The MSME sector is expected to help India achieve its goal of becoming a USD 5 trillion economy by 2025 and
in order to achieve this goal, MSMEs have to generate employment opportunities, improve performance,
transform their business operations and carry out technology-based production and invest in research and
development activities. In addition to this, MSMEs are expected to contribute more than 40% of India’s nominal
GDP by Fiscal 2025 for which it will require immense support from the Government, institutions and banks.

74



OUR BUSINESS

Some of the information in this section, including information with respect to our plans and strategies, contain
forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Before deciding to invest in the Equity Shares,
Shareholders should read this entire Letter of Offer. An investment in the Equity Shares involves a high degree of
risk. For the purpose of discussion of certain risks in connection with investment in the Equity Shares, you should
read "Risk Factors" beginning on page 22 of this Letter of Offer, and for the purpose of discussion of the risks
and uncertainties related to those statements, as well as for the discussion of certain factors that may affect our
business, financial condition or results of operations, you should read restated "Financial Statements" and
"Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" beginning on
pages 94 and 175, respectively of this Letter of Offer. Our actual results may differ materially from those
expressed in or implied by these forward-looking statements. Unless otherwise stated, the financial information
used in this section is derived from our Restated Financial Statements.

Overview and History

Our Company was originally incorporated as ‘Quick Credit Limited’ in New Delhi on November 14, 1985 as a
public limited company under the Companies Act, 1956, and was granted the certificate of incorporation by the
Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New Delhi. Our Company was granted the Certificate for
Commencement of Business on November 20, 1985 by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New
Delhi. Our Company was registered as Non-Banking Financial Company vide certificate of registration dated
January 07, 2003. However, RBI has issued new certificate of registration dated August 24, 2017 bearing No. B-
14.00724 under section 45 I1(A) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 in the name of the Advik Capital Limited.

In the beginning of year 2010, our Company underwent change of Control in terms of Regulation 12 of Securities
Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition and Takeover of Shares) Regulation, 1997. Pursuant to the
change of Control, Mr. Virendra Kumar Aggarwal and Mr. Rishab Kumar Aggarwal became Promoter of the
Company.

In year same year 2010, pursuant to scheme of amalgamation, under section 391 (2) and 394 of the Companies
Act, 1956, approved by Hon’ble High Court of Delhi, our Company was amalgamated with Du-Lite Safety
Services Private Limited which was engaged in the business of trading of electrical and safety devices.

Subsequently, the name of our Company was changed to ‘DU-Lite Industries Limited’ and a fresh Certificate of
Incorporation was granted by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New Delhi on September 20,
2010. The name of the Company was changed again to ‘Advik Industries Limited’ and our Company received a
fresh certificate of incorporation which was granted by the Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New
Delhi on February 24, 2011. Finally, the name of our Company was changed to ‘Advik Capital Limited’ and a
fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon change of name was granted by the Registrar of Companies,
Delhi at Delhi on July 7, 2017. Further, the Company procured a Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank
of India as a Non-Banking Financial Company on August 24, 2017 in the new name.

Thereafter, promoters Mr. Virender Agarwal and Mr. Shakul Kumar Agarwal entered into a Share Purchase
Agreement on May 18, 2022 with Mr. Vikas Garg, Mrs. Seema Garg (Acquirers) and Ms. Sukriti Garg (PAC), to
sell their entire stake in Advik Capital Limited (“the Company”). Afterward, an Open Offer was made by the
Acquirers to acquire upto 26% of the total VVoting Shares of the Company from public shareholders vide Letter of
Offer dated February 06, 2023.

Pursuant to the completion of the said open offer, and the Share Purchase Agreement, the Company was acquired
by Mr. Vikas Garg, Mrs. Seema Garg (Acquirers) and Ms. Sukriti Garg (PAC)) and they took over as Promoters
and Promoter Group of the Company.

Our Company is a non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company registered with the RBI. Our Company

is engaged primarily in the business of providing financial loans and in providing ancillary services related to the
said business activities.
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The Company works under the guidance of our Promoter and Director, Mr. Vikas Garg, who has an experience
of more than 25 Years in the Business Industry. He has been instrumental in evolving our business operations,
growth and future prospects.

The Company has submitted Expression of Interest for Acquisition of ARC (Asset Reconstruction Company) to
carry on the Business of Securitisation or Assets Reconstruction under SARFAESI Act.

The Company as an RBI registered NBFC has firmed up its plan to apply for licence for Alternative Investment
Fund Category — Il (AIF) with SEBI Alternative Investment Fund Regulations.

The Company, as a part of its long-term business strategy and to expand its business interest in diverse verticals,
towards a Systematically Important NBFC, with elongated financial strength, having net-worth of approx. Rs.
1100 million and total assets of approx. Rs. 2000 million.

Our consolidated revenues from operations for Fiscals 2024, 2023 and 2022 were %83,958.99, 360,428.92 and
%4645.90 lacs, respectively.

Our consolidated EBITDA for the Fiscals 2024, 2023 and 2022 were 384,805.86, ¥60,436.90 lacs and %¥4,657.72
lacs, respectively.

Our consolidated profit after tax for Fiscals 2024, 2023 and 2022 were 3635.62, 3934.88 lacs and ¥44.37 lacs,
respectively.

Corporate Structure

In year 2013, our Company formed a subsidiary in the name of Advik Optoelectronics Limited (CIN:
U31900DL2013PLC256393) to further diversify activities of trading and manufacturing of electronic products.
Presently, our Company holds 57.99% of the total issued and paid-up share capital of the Advik Optoelectronics
Limited.

Advik Optoelectronics Limited is engaged in the business of manufacturing of various kinds of emergency life
safety signage, evacuation system made of phosphorescent effect, photo luminescent, glow sign board, led board,
led electronic board, life safety apparels, road safety signage, lights, emergency lights and equipment.

Further, in year 2022, Our Company formed a wholly owned subsidiary in the name of Advikca Finvest Limited
(CIN: U65900DL2022PLC406590) to deal in the securities market and investment consultants. Presently, our
Company holds 100% of the total issued and paid-up share capital of the Advikca Finvest Limited (6 Equity
Shares held by the Nominees Shareholders)

Advikca Finvest Limited is engaged in the business to deal in shares, securities, right interests, obligation in
movable and immovable assets of all kind, with infinite technology, advanced techniques and to acquirer, buy,
sell, hold, trade, dispose of or otherwise deal in shares.

Details of our Subsidiary

SI. No. Name of Subsidiary Detail of Business

1 Advik Optoelectronics Limited manufacturing of various kinds of emergency life safety
(CIN: 31900DL2013PLC256393) signage, evacuation system made of phosphorescent effect,
photo luminescent, glow sign board, led board, led
electronic board, life safety apparels, road safety signage,
lights, emergency lights and equipment.
2 Advikca Finvest Limited | deal in shares, securities, right interests, obligation in
(CIN: U65900DL2022PLC406590) | movable and immovable assets of all kind, with infinite
technology, advanced techniques and to acquirer, buy, sell,
hold, trade, dispose of or otherwise deal in shares
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Lending Policy
The standard process adopted by the company from sourcing to collection is summarised as under:

1. Credit Appraisal Process — The credit appraisals are based on;

. Need for credit: the borrower’s need for credit will be assessed, as per the context of the product
segment. The intent is to ensure that the credit is targeted for use in a constructive way, to
improvements to the borrower’s earning or to improve the quality of life.

. Affordability: an assessment of the borrower’s ability to service the loan will be conducted in
all cases. While the assessment methodology may vary across product, the intent is always to
set product features such as the disbursal amount and tenure such that the loan is affordable
(within the context of the product).

. Credit rating: the borrower’s credit history, and track record in managing debt, will be
considered in all applications.

2. Credit Pricing - Credit will be priced after considering our cost of funds, expected credit cost and the
operational cost. Pricing may be varied through the term of the loan or credit facility, based on product
needs. In addition to fixed rate loans, interest rates may be floating and reset to reflect market conditions
during the term of the loan.

3. Credit Approval or Denials — Credit as approved under terms of clearly documented to leave an auditable
trail of credit considerations.

4. Security, insurance and charge — We may require creation of enforceable charge over the borrower’s/
third party assets in favour of our Company, before the disbursement of a loan.

5. Credit Documentation — We thereafter enter into credit documentation to clearly establish the debt
obligation of the borrower to our Company.

6. Credit Administration and Monitoring - We have a credit administration and monitoring framework
which enables us to effectively identify and mitigate risks associated with clients’ portfolios and mark
such account as early stressed account and if required limit the exposure and/or accelerate the repayment
schedule of the loan of such client.

7. Collections and Recoveries — We except our clients to regularly serve the interest portion and /or the
principal amount; failing which we are required to move legally against such defaulting client.

Our Business Strategy
Maintain and Expand Long-term Relationships with Clients

Our Company believes that business is a by-product of relationship. The business model is based on client
relationships that are established over period of time rather than a project-based execution approach. Our
Company believes that long-term client relationship fetches better dividends. Long-term relations are built on
trust and continuous satisfaction of the customers. It helps understanding the basic approach of our Company, its
products and its market. It also forms basis of further expansion for our Company, as we are able to monitor a
potential product/ market closely.

Leveraging of our Marketing Skills and Relationships

We continue to enhance our business operations by ensuring that our network of customers increases through our
marketing efforts. Our core competency lies in our deep understanding of our customers’ buying preferences and
behavior, which has helped us in achieving customer loyalty. We endeavor to continuously improve the product
mix offered to the customers as well as strive to understand and anticipate any change in the expectation of our
clients towards our products.

We seek to diversify our credit risk and ensure that no individual credit product contributes a large portion to our

overall credit book. We believe that this mitigates the risk of concentration to any particular product or sector and
helps us to manage our risk exposure in a more effective manner.
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Diversify our assets and liabilities

We intend to remain diversified in our loan book by strategically focusing on adjacent high growth and profitable
lending businesses and further expand our lending and other businesses. We intend to continue to focus on
developing a diversified funding model to achieve optimal cost of funds while balancing liquidity and
concentration risks. As our cost of borrowings is determined by our financial discipline and business performance,
we intend to source funding at competitive rates. In particular, with respect to our credit business, a decrease in
cost of borrowings will enable us to price our products in a more competitive manner. We intend to further
diversify and strengthen our profile, strategically adding additional funding resources.

Growth of the business through increasing geographical presence across India

We intend to continue to grow our loan portfolio by expanding our network through the addition of new branches.
A good reach to customers is very important in our business. Increased revenue, profitability and visibility are the
factors that drive the branch network. Our strategy for branch expansion includes further strengthening our
presence in various parts of India by providing higher accessibility to customers.

Our Strength
Experienced Leadership Team

Our company is managed by people who have a proven track record of delivering results & they possess the right
acumen necessary in the build out phase of any organisation. Our senior management have diverse experience in
various financial services and functions related to our business. We believe that the knowledge and experience of
our senior and mid-level management team members provides us with a significant competitive advantage as we
seek to grow our business and expand to new geographies.

Strong Corporate Governance Standards

Creating an institution that is built to last requires strong corporate governance standards. The governance
standards are further strengthened by strong policies and processes enshrined in the Articles of Association and
strong human resource. We have successfully placed process of credit evaluation, risk management, technology
upliftment and business development. Further, we believe in fair trade practices and follow high standards of
governance in managing the business of the Company.

Marketing

We have dedicated marketing teams who cater to the demands of the customers and ensure that tailor made
solutions are offered to attract and retain the customers.

Competition

We face competition from organized as well as unorganized players in the domestic market. The financial services
industry is highly competitive and we expect competition to intensify in the future. We face competition in the
lending business from domestic and international banks as well as other NBFCs, fintech lending platforms and
private unorganized lenders. Banks are increasingly expanding into retail loans in the rural and semi-urban areas
of India. We are exposed to the risk that these banks continue to expand their operations into the markets in which
we operate, which would result in greater competition and lower spreads on our loans. In particular, many of our
competitors may have operational advantages in terms of access to cost-effective sources of funding and in
implementing new technologies and rationalising related operational costs.

Employees
We believe our human capital is one of our most important strengths and a key driver of growth, efficiency and

productivity. We invest in developing our talent and leadership through various initiatives aimed at strengthening
the ability of our managers to bring together people, strategies, and execution to drive business results.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company’s CSR mission is to contribute to the social and economic development of the community through
a series of efforts. Company’s strategy is to integrate its activities in community development, social responsibility
and environmental responsibility and encourage each business unit or function to include these considerations
into its operations. The Company, for Corporate Social Responsibility activities, endeavours to promote education
and ensure environmental sustainability/ ecological balance etc.

Properties

Our registered office is on leased premises. Further, our Company owns a freehold immovable property at Sector
2, IMT Manesar, Gurgaon Haryana, which is being used as support office/branch office of the Company.

Insurance: NA
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OUR MANAGEMENT

As per the Articles of Association of our Company, we are required to have not less than 3 (Three) Directors and
not more than 15 (Fifteen) Directors on its Board, subject to provisions of Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013.
As on date of this Letter of Offer, our Board consist of 7 (Seven) Directors, out of which 3 (Three) are Executive
Directors, 4 (Four) are Non-Executive Independent Directors.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, at least two-third of the total number of Directors,
excluding the Independent Directors, are liable to retire by rotation, with one-third of such number retiring at each
Annual General Meeting. A retiring director is eligible for re-appointment. Further, an Independent Director may
be appointed for a maximum of two consecutive terms of up to five years each.

Set forth below are details regarding our Board as on the date of this Letter of Offer:

Sr. | Name DIN Category Designation
No.
1. | Mr. Vikas Garg 00255413 ) Director
2.°| Mr. Karan Bagga 05357861 | EXecutive Whole Time Director and CEQ
3. | Mr. Pankaj 10140086 Whole Time Director
Chief Financial Officer
4. | Mr. Devender Kumar Garg | 02316543
5. | Ms. Sony Kumari 09270483
6. | Ms. Swati Gupta 09652245 | Non-Executive Independent Director

The following table sets forth certain details regarding the members of our Company’s Board as on the
date of this Letter of Offer:

DIN: 00255413

Date of Birth: 15-06-1973

Qualification: Ph.D, Bachelor of Commerce
Designation: Executive Director

Address: House No. 7, Road no 41,
East Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-110026

Occupation: Business
Nationality: Indian
Tenure: Liable to Retire by Rotation

Date of First Appointment as Additional
Director: 22/02/2023

Date of Appointment as Executive Director:

18/05/2023

S.No. | Name, DIN, Date of Birth, Qualification, Age Other Directorship
Designation, Occupation, Address, Nationality
and Term
1. Mr. Vikas Garg 51 1. IGL GENESIS TECHNOLOGIES

LIMITED

2. GENESIS GAS SOLUTIONS
PRIVATE LIMITED

3. VIKAS ECOTECH LIMITED

4. ERAAYA LIFESPACES
LIMITED

80



Mr. Karan Bagga

DIN: 05357861

Date of Birth: 26-10-1972

Qualification: Mr. Karan Bagga has done Post
Graduation Diploma in Business Management
from Institute for Integrated Learning in
Management

Designation: Whole Time Director and CEO
Address: House No B-10/7, Double Storey, Near
Mother Dairy, Ramesh Nagar, Rajouri Garden,
West Delhi-110015

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Term as CEO/WTD: From 15/04/2023 to
14/04/2026

Date of First Appointment as Additional
Director: 22/03/2023

Date of Appointment as CEO: 15/04/2023

Date of Appointment as WTD: 18/05/2023

51

VNVN FINANCE PRIVATE
LIMITED

Mr. Pankaj
DIN: 10140086
Date of Birth: 24-08-1998

Qualification: CA, Member of ICAI, BCOM
from Maharshi Dayanand University ,Rohtak

Designation: Whole Time Director
Chief Financial Officer

Address: House No 398/1, Near Sewa Samijt,
Hira Chowk Ward no 18 The Charkhi Dadri,
Dadri(147), Bhiwani127306

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Term: From 21/06/2023 to 20/06/2028

Date of First Appointment: 21/06/2023

Date of Appointment at current Designation:
02/09/2023

25

ADVIKCA FINVEST LIMITED
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Mr. Devender Kumar Garg
DIN: 02316543
Date of Birth: 21-10-1955

Qualification: B.com, Post-Graduation Diploma
in Personnel Management, CAIIB

Designation: Independent Director

Address: G-801 La Lagune, Golf Course Road,
Sector 54, Gurgaon, Chakarpur (74), Gurgaon
Haryana-122002

Occupation: Business

Nationality: Indian

Term: From 22/03/2023 to 21/03/2028

Date of First Appointment as Additional
Director: 22/03/2023

Date of Appointment as Independent Director:
18/05/2023
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1. ZOMATO FINANCIAL
SERVICES LIMITED

2. ERAAYA LIFESACES
LIMITED

Ms. Sony Kumari

DIN: 09270483

Date of Birth: 07-11-1991
Qualification: Company Secretary
Designation: Independent Director

Address: E-30B,Flat No. 8, 2nd Floor,
Chhatarpur Extension, Delhi-110074

Occupation: Business
Nationality: Indian
Term: From 28/12/2021 to 27/12/2026

Date of First Appointment Additional
Director: 28/12/2021

Date of Appointment as Independent Director:
29/01/2022

32

1. TEAMO PRODUCTIONS HQ

LIMITED

2. CARNATION INDUSTRIES

LIMITED

3. ADVIKCA FINVEST LIMITED

4. INTEGRA ESSENTIAL

LIMITED

Ms. Swati Gupta
DIN: 09652245
Date of Birth: 10-01-1995

Qualification: Chartered Accountant, Member of
ICAI

29

1-JUSTRIDE-ENTERPRISES
LEHVHTED

1.GG ENGINEERING LIMITED

2.ERAAYA LIFESPACES
LIMITED
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3.M K PROTEINS LIMITED
Designation: Independent Director 4.CELLECOR GADGETS
LIMITED

Address F-722A, Street No. 24, Laxmi Nagar,
East Delhi, Delhi 110092

Occupation: Business
Nationality: Indian
Term: 07/07/2022 to 06/07/2027

Date of First Appointment as Additional
Director: 07/07/2022

Date of Appointment as Independent Director:
27/09/2022

Past Directorship in Suspended Companies

None of our Directors are, or were a director of any listed company, whose shares have been, or were suspended
from being traded on any of the stock exchanges during the term of their directorships in such companies during the
last 5 (Five) years preceding the date of this Letter of Offer.

Past Directorship in Delisted Companies

Further, none of our directors are or were a director of any listed company, which has been, or was delisted from
any stock exchange during the term of their directorship in such Company during the last 10(Ten) years preceding
the date of this Letter of Offer.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Set forth below are the details of our senior management and key managerial personnel: -

Name Designation Associated with
Company since

Mr. Karan Bagga Whole Time Director and CEO 22/03/2023

Mr. Pankaj Whole Time Director and CFO 21/06/2023

Ms. Deepika Mishra Company Secretary 12/01/2023

Confirmations

1.

Neither Company nor our Directors are declared as fugitive economic offenders as defined in Regulation
2(1)(p) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and have not been declared as a ‘fugitive economic offender’ under
Section 12 of the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018.

None of the Directors of our Company have held or currently hold directorship in any listed company whose
shares have been or were suspended from being traded on any of the stock exchanges in the five years
preceding the date of filing of this Letter of Offer, during the term of his/ her directorship in such company.

None of our Directors of our Company are or were associated in the capacity of a director with any listed
company which has been delisted from any stock exchange(s) at any time in the past.

None of our Directors have been debarred from accessing capital markets by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India. Additionally, none of our Directors are or were, associated with any other company which
is debarred from accessing the capital market by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

None of our Directors have been identified as a wilful defaulter or fraudulent borrower, as defined in the
SEBI Regulations and there are no violations of securities laws committed by them in the past and no
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prosecution or other proceedings for any such alleged violation are pending against them
Management Organization Structure
The Management Organization Structure of the company is depicted from the following chart;

Management Organisation Structure

MANAGEMENT
STRUCTURE
h my
| 11 |
. . Mr. Devender A
Mr. Vikas Garg Mr. Karan Bagga Mr. Pankaj Kumar Garg Ms. Sony Kumari
(Promoter & (Whole Time (Whole Time (Independent
(Independent .
Director)

Director) Director & CEO) Director & CFO) Director)

DeepikaMishra Ms. Swati Gupta

(Independent
Director)

(Company Secretary
& Compliance
Officer)

Corporate Governance

The provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations and the Companies Act with respect to corporate governance are
applicable to us.

We are in compliance with the requirements of the applicable regulations, including the SEBI Listing Regulations,
Companies Act and the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, in respect of corporate governance including constitution of
our Board and Committees thereof. Our corporate governance framework is based on an effective independent
Board, separation of the Board’s supervisory role from the executive management team and constitution of the
Board Committees, as required under law.

Our Board undertakes to take all necessary steps to continue to comply with all the requirements of the SEBI
Listing Regulations and the Companies Act. Our Board functions either directly, or through various committees
constituted to oversee specific operational areas.

Committees of our Board

Our Board has constituted following committees in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act and
SEBI Listing Regulations:

1) Audit Committee
2) Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
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TERMS OF REFERENCE OF VARIOUS COMMITTEE:

1)

Audit Committee

The following members forming a part of the said Committee:

Name Designation
1. Mr. Devender Kumar Garg Chairperson
2. Ms. Sony Kumari Member
3. Ms. Swati Gupta Member

The Company Secretary acts as the secretary of the Audit Committee.

The scope, functions and the terms of reference of our Audit Committee, is in accordance with Section
177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations which are as follows:

vi)

vii)

viii)
iX)

Xi)
Xii)

xiii)

Xiv)
XV)

XVi)

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the Restated Financial Statement is correct, sufficient and credible;
Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the
Company;

Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the Statutory

Auditors;

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

a) Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement; to be
included in the Board’s Report in terms of clause (c) of subsection (3) of Section 134
of the Companies Act, 2013; changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and
reasons for the same;

b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

f) Disclosure of any related party transaction;

Q) Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly Financial Statements before submission to the
Board for approval;

Reviewing with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue etc.), the statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the Report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights
issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;
Reviewing and monitoring the Auditor’s independence & performance, and effectiveness of
audit process;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of
the internal control systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting
structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;
Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where
there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature
and reporting the matter to the Board;

Discussion with Statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of
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2)

audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

xvii)  To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

xviii)  To review the functioning of the Whistle—-Blower mechanism;

Xix) Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

XX) Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company
in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 Crores or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary,
whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the date of
coming into force of this provision;

XXi) Carrying out any other function as may be assigned to it by the board of director from time to
time.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The following members forming a part of the said Committee:

Name Designation
1. Ms. Swati Gupta Chairman

2. Mr. Devender Kumar Garg Member

3. Ms. Sony Kumari Member

The Company Secretary acts as the secretary of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The scope, functions and the terms of reference of our Nomination and Remuneration Committee, is in
accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations which are as follows:

(M Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of
the directors, key managerial personnel ("KMP") and other employees;

A For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on
the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an
independent director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent
director shall have the capabilities identified in such description. For the purpose of identifying
suitable candidates, the Committee may:

a) Use the services of an external agencies, if required,;

b) Consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity;
and

c) Consider the time commitments of the candidates.

(i) Specification of manner and criteria for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its
committees and individual directors, to be carried out either by the board or by an independent
external agency and review its implementation and compliance.

(iii) Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

(iv) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors
their appointment and removal.

(v) Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis
of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors.
(vi) Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.
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3) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

The following members forming a part of the said Committee:

Name Designation
1. Ms. Sony Kumari Chairperson
2. Ms. Swati Gupta Member
3. Mr. Pankaj Member

The Company Secretary acts as the secretary of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

The scope, functions and the terms of reference of our Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, is in
accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations which are
as follows:

(i) To consider and resolve the grievance of all the security holders related to transfer/ transmission
of shares, non-receipts of annual reports and non-receipts of declared dividends, issue of new
duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.;

(i) To review the measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders

(iii) To review the adherence to service standards adopted by the company in respect of various
services being rendered by the Share Transfer Agent.

(iv) To review various measures and initiatives undertaken by the company for reducing the
quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual
reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company.

(v) To review and act upon such other grievances as the Board of Directors delegate to the
Committee from time to time.

Our Key Managerial Personnel:

In addition to our Executive Director and Whole Time Director, whose details have been provided under paragraph
above titled ‘Brief Profile of our Directors’, set forth below are the details of our Key Managerial personnel as on
the date of filing of this Letter of Offer:

Mr. Pankaj, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Pankaj, is a Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is associated member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India as well as he is Graduate from the Maharshi Dayanand University. He is a young, dynamic
and Qualified Chartered Accountant having good experience in the field of Accounts, Finance, Audits, and
Taxation Matters.

He also possesses knowledge of Corporate Law, Strategic/Financial Planning, Working Capital Management,
Statutory Compliances, Filings, and MIS among other aspects of corporate functioning

Mr. Karan Bagga, Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Karam Bagga, is a Chief Executive Office of the Company. He has completed his Post Graduate Diploma in
Business Management. He has having more than 27 years of rich and extensive experience in Corporate or
Institutional Banking, Loan Syndication, Advisory for Debt restructuring under IBC, Capital Market, Foreign
Exchange Fund Raising, Financial Advisory, Financial Budgeting, Investor Relationship Management. He has
worked with Banks, DFI, NBFC and Corporates.

Ms. Deepika Mishra, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Ms. Deepika Mishra is the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company. She has done Post
Graduation in Commerce. She is an Associate member of The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI)

and has prior experience in Corporate Secretarial practices, legal, Statutory Compliance, Corporate Governance
and allied matters.
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Relationship of Key Managerial Personnel with our Directors, Promoter and / or other Key Managerial
Personnel

None of the Key Managerial Personnel are related in any capacity with the other Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company.
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OUR PROMOTER

Our Company confirms that the permanent account number, bank account number and passport number of our
Promoter shall be submitted to the Stock Exchanges at the time of filing this Letter of Offer.

BRIEF PROFILE OF OUR PROMOTERS IS AS UNDER:

1. Mr. Vikas Garg

Mr. Vikas Garg is a business tycoon having experience 25 years of experience in the field of Business
Marketing, Strategic Planning and Financial Strategy etc.

Age 50 years (15-06-1973)
PAN AAAPG8241P
Qualification Bachelor of Commerce (B. Com) Hons.

Personal Address

H. No. 7 Road No. - 41, West Punjabi Bagh, Delhi — 110026

Directorship & Other
Ventures

1. IGL Genesis Technologies Limited
2. Genesis Gas Solutions Private Limited

3. Vikas Ecotech Limited

2. Mrs. Seema Garg

Mrs. Seema Garg, aged 49 Years, is the Promoter of our Company. She holds the degree in Bachelor of
Commerce (B. Com) by Qualification. She is having more than 20 years of experience in the Business
Administration.

Age 49 years (06-07-1974)
PAN AAJPG3268R
Qualification Bachelor’s degree in commerce

Personal Address

H. No. 7 Road No. - 41, Punjabi Bagh,West Delhi — 110026

Directorship & Other

NIL

Ventures

BRIEF PROFILE OF OUR PROMOTER GROUP IS AS UNDER:

Mes. Sukriti Garg

Ms. Sukriti Garg is a young Entrepreneur, done graduation from Guru Gobind Singh Indraprastha University
and holds experience of around 3 years in this business industry and has handled various areas of business
including strategic planning and implementation, procurement, storage, marketing and has led institutions across
business development, strategy as well as operations over the period of years.

Age 26 years (26-03-1998)
PAN ALWPG6413A
Qualification Bachelor of Commerce (H) and Master’s in Architecture

Personal Address

H. No. 7 Road No. - 41, Punjabi Bagh, West Delhi — 110026

Directorship & Other
Ventures

Eraaya Lifespaces Limited (formerly Justride Enterprises Ltd)
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Confirmations

1. None of our Promoter has been declared as wilful defaulters by the RBI or any other governmental authority
and there are no violations of securities laws committed by them in the past or are currently pending against
them.

2. Our Promoter has not been declared as a Fugitive Economic Offender under Section 12 of the Fugitive
Economic Offenders Act, 2018.

3. None of our Promoter or Promoter Group entities have been debarred or prohibited from accessing or operating
in capital markets under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or governmental
authority. Our Promoter and members of the Promoter Group are not and have never been promoters, directors
or person in control of any other company, which is debarred or prohibited from accessing or operating in
capital markets under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or governmental authority.

4. there are no litigation or legal action pending or taken by any ministry, department of the Government or
statutory authority during the last 5 (five) years preceding the date of the Issue against our Promoter.

INTEREST OF OUR PROMOTER
Interest of Promoters

Our Promoter does not have any interest in our Company except to the extent of compensation payable / paid,
rents on properties owned by him or his relatives but used by our company and reimbursement of expenses (if
applicable) and to the extent of any equity shares held by him or his relatives and associates or held by the
companies, firms and trusts in which he is interested as director, member, partner, and / or trustee, and to the
extent of benefits arising out of such shareholding. For further details please see the chapters titled “Capital
Structure”, “Financial Statements as Restated” and “Our Management” beginning on page 50, 95 and 80 of
this Letter of offer.

Except as stated otherwise in this Letter of Offer, we have not entered into any contract, agreements or
arrangements in which our Promoters is directly or indirectly interested and no payments have been made to them
in respect of the contracts, agreements or arrangements which are proposed to be made with them including the
properties purchased by our Company and development rights entered into by our Company other than in the
normal course of business. For further details, please refer the section titled “Related Party Transactions” in
chapter “Financial Statements as Restated” on page no. 92 of this Letter of offer.

Interest in promotion of our Company

Our Company is currently promoted by the Promoters in order to carry on its present business. Our Promoters is
interested in our Company to the extent of their shareholding and directorship in our Company and the dividend
declared, if any, by our Company.

Interest in the property, land, construction of building, supply of machinery, etc.

Except as mentioned in the chapter titled ‘Our Business’ beginning on page 75 of this Letter of offer ,, our
Promoters do not have any other interest in any property acquired or proposed to be acquired by our Company in
a period of 3 (three) years before filing of this Letter of offer or in any transaction by our Company for acquisition
of land, construction of building or supply of machinery or any other contract, agreement or arrangement entered
into by our Company and no payments have been made or are proposed to be made in respect of these contracts,
agreements or arrangements.

Payment or Benefit to the Promoters or Promoter Group in the last 2 (two) years
Except as stated above in “Our Management” and “Financial Statements as Restated” beginning on pages 80 and
110 respectively of this Letter of offer, there has been no amount or benefit paid or given during the preceding 2

(two) years of filing Letter of offer or intended to be paid or given to any Promoters or member of our Promoter
Group and no consideration for payment of giving of the benefit.

90



MATERIAL GUARANTEES GIVEN TO THIRD PARTIES

Except as stated in the “Financial Information” beginning on page 94 of this Letter of offer, our Promoter has not
given material guarantees to the third party(ies) with respect to the specified securities of our Company.

RELATIONSHIP OF OUR PROMOTERS WITH OUR DIRECTORS

As on the date of the Letter of offer, none of our Promoter(s) are related to any of our Company’s Directors within
the meaning of Section 2 (77) of the Companies Act, 2013.

COMPANIES WITH WHICH OUR PROMOTERS HAVE DISASSOCIATED IN THE PRECEDING
THREE YEARS

Except as stated below, as on the date of the Letter of offer, none of our Promoter(s) have disassociated with any
Companies in the preceding three years.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For details of the related party transactions, during the last three Fiscals, as per the requirements under Ind AS 24
read with SEBI ICDR Regulations and as reported in the Restated Financial Statements, see section titled
"Financial Information" at page 94 of this Letter of Offer.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration and payment of dividends will be recommended by the Board of Directors and approved by the
Shareholders, at their discretion, subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association and applicable law,
including the Companies Act. The dividend, if any, will depend on a number of factors, including but not limited,
consolidated net operating profit after tax, working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements, cash
flow required to meet contingencies, outstanding borrowings, and applicable taxes payable by our Company. In
addition, our ability to pay dividends may be impacted by a number of factors, including restrictive covenants
under loan or financing arrangements our Company is currently availing of or may enter into to finance our fund
requirements for our business activities.

We have not declared any dividend in the previous three (3) financial years immediately preceding this issue.
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SECTION VI - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

RESTATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S. No. | Particulars Page No.
1. Restated Consolidated Financial Statements as at Financial Years ended March | 95-136
31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.
3. Restated Standalone Financial Statements as at Financial Years ended March 31, | 137-173

2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.
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RESTATED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALS

| m( KSMC & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Auditors' Report on the restated Consolidated Financial information of assets and libilities as al March
X.I‘ 224, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, Restated consolidated statement of profits and losses
(‘mclm'ling other comprehensive income), Restated Consolidated statement of cash flows and changes
inequity for the period ended March 31, 2024 and each of the years ended March 31, 2023 and March
31,2022 of Advik Capital Limited (collectively, the "Restated Summary Statements”)

Tu
The Board of Directors
Advik Capital Limited,

Dear Sirs:

I Wehave examined the attached Restated Consolidited fnancial information ol Advik Capital Limited (the"
Company™) and ity subsidiaries ( the company and its subsidiaries together refeered 1o us the “Group™)
annexed 10 this repont and prepared by the Company for the purpose ol inclusion in the Letter of Offer in
conneetion with its Right Issue. The Restated Summary Statements, which have been approved by the Board
ol Directors of the Company, have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of:

a) Sub-section (1) of Section 26 of Part | of Chapter 111 of the Companies Act 2013 (the "Act");

b Relevant provisions of The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended ("ICDR Regulations"); and

¢) The Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (as amended) issued by the Instiwte of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAIT). (the “Guidance Note™)

Maagement's Responsibility for the Restated Summary Statements

2. Ihe preparation of the Restated Consolidited financial information, which arc to be included in the Offer
documents is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. The Management's responsibility
includes designing, implementing and muintaining adequate internal control relevant 1o the preparation and
presentation of the Restated Consolidated linancial information, The Management is also responsible for
ientifving and ensuring that the Company complies with the ICDR Regulations.

Auditers' Responsibilities
3. We huve examined such Restated Consolidated financial information taking into consideration:

4. The terms of refeeence and terms ol our engagement agreed with you vide our engagement letter dated
April 29, 2024, requesting us to carry out the assignment, in connection with the proposed Right Issue
ol the Company:

b, The Guidance Note; The Guidance Note also requires that we comply with the ethical requirement of'
the Code ol thics issued by the ICAL

¢, Concepts of test checks and materialily (o abtain reasonable assurance based illij:,vcriﬁcminn off
R

evidence supparting the Restated Unconsolidated Summary Statements; an

G.5, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi B!igh Now-Belh- | 10026 (Indin)
Ph - 01 1- 41440483, 42440483, 45140483 | E-mad : info@ksmc.in, admin@ksme.in |-Wbsite ; wawwksme.in



d. 'The requirements of Section 26 of the Act and the ICDR Regulations;

Our work was performed solely o assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation to your Compliance
with the Act, the ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note in connection with the proposed Right Issue.

Restated Consolidated Financial nformation as per audited Financial Statements

4, 'lr'hcsc Restated Consolidated Financial Information have been compiled by the management of the Company
rom:

a. Audited Consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024,
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, which were prepared in accordance with Ind AS as prescribed
under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules thereunder and other accounting principles
senerally accepted in India, which have been approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting held
on April 18, 2024, April 29, 2023 and May 28, 2022 respectively: and

5. Tor the putpose of our examination, we have relied on:

Auditors' reports issued by us dated 18 April 2024 and 29" Apeil 2023 on the financial statements of the
Group lor the year ended March 31. 2024 and 2023 as referred in Paragraph 4{a) above and

. Auditor’s Report dated 28" May 2022 issucd by the previous auditor. on the financial slatements of the

Group as at and for the years ended March 31, 2022 as referred in Paragraph 4(a) above:
n and explanations given 10 us, we report that the Restated

6 Based on the above and according to the informatio
as attached to this report read with basis of preparation

Consolidated financial information of the Group,
and respective signilicant accounting policies have been prepared in accordance with the Act, ICDR
Regulations, Guidance Note, and these Restated Consolidated financial information:

hiave been made after incorporating adjustments and regroupings for the material amounts in the
respective financial year to which they relate;

dues not have any qualifications in the auditors' reports on the audited financial statements of the
group as at March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2021 which require any adjustments to

the Restated Consolidated Financial Information.

In accordance with the requirement of Section 26 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules 2014, the SEBI Regulations, the Guidance Note, as amended
from time to time and in terms of our engagement agreed with you, we further report that:

s

0} The Restated Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at March 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022
examined by us, as set out under Annexure to this report, read with the ‘Basis of Preparation and
Significant Accounting Policies of the Restated Consolidated Financial Statements” are after making
such adjustments and regrouping/re-classification as in our opinion werc approprizte and are more
fully described in the statement of Material Adjustments to the Financial Statements. As a result of
these adjustments, the amounts reporting in the above-mentioned statements are not necessarily the
same as those appe,g_tirégg_rp\llw audited Consolidated financial statements of the Company for the

=2,




i

:hcq‘;?m:d Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss of the Company for the year ended March
3,2 _4: 2023 an'd 2022 examined by us, as set out under Annexure (0 this report, read with the
‘.Basus of Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies of the Restated Congolidated Financial
Statements are after making such adjustments and regrouping/re-classification as in our opinion we
re-appropriate and are more fully described in the statement of Material Adjustments 1o the Financial
Statements. As a result of these adjustments, the amounts reporting in the above-mentioned
tatements are not necessarily the same as those appearing in the audited Consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the relevant financial years.

i The Restated Consolidated Statement of Cash lows of the Company for the year ended March 31,

8

=

o

2024, 2023 and 2022 examined by us, as set out under Annexure (o {his report, read with the *Basis
af Preparation and Significant Accounting Policies of the Restated Consolidated Financial Stalements
ate afier making such adjustments and rcgmuping/m—c!assiﬁcnlion 1§ in our opinion were appropriate
and are more [ully described in the statement of Material Adjustments to the Financial Statements.
As a result of these adjustments, the amounts reporting in the above-mentioned statements arc not
necessarily the same as those appearing in the audited Consolidated financial statements of the

Company for the relevant financial years,

As indicated in our audit reports above, we did not audit the financial statements of a subsidiary "M/s Advik
Optoelectronics Limited™ for the year ended 31 Mareh 2024 and for the comparative year ended 31 March
23 and 31% March 22 whose share of total asscls, Revenue from Operations, total net profit after tax and
total comprehensive income, included in the Restated Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, is
rabulated below, which have been audited by other auditors (Garg Anil & Co.), and whose report has been
furnished to us by the Company's management and our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Squtements. in 5o far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary, is

based solely on the report of the other audilors.
Amount in Lakhs

[ Particulars As at ended Asat ended As atended
31 March, 2024 319 Mureh, 2023 | 31" March, 2022 |
| Total Assets 334,92 (9042 567.17
Revenue from Operations 118.88 629.07 696,38
[ Total nel profit after tax (26.51) 0.66 6.25
[ Other comprehensive income NIL. NIL NIL

The Restated Consolidated Financial Statement do ot reflect the effcets of events that occurred subsequent
10 the audited financial statements mentioned in paragraph 4 above,

Ihis report should not in any way be construed 45 a reissuance or re<dating of any of the previous audit
reposts issued by the Previous Auditors, nor should this report be construed as a new opinion on any ol the

financial statements referred to herein.

. We have no responsibility to update our report for events and circumstances oceurring alter the date of the

report,

In our opinion. the above Restated Consolidated Financial Information contained in Annexure to this report
read along with the_llasi_s of Prepatation and Significant Accounting policies afer making adjustments and
rcgmupmg/rc-class:l‘mug)-'as: i red approprinte and have been prepared in accordance with the
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provisions ol Section 26 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companics (Prospectus a{ld Allqlm;n.u
of Securities) Rules 2014, ta the extent applicable, the SEBI Regulations, the Guidance Note issucd in this
resard by the 1CAL as amended from time to time. and in terms of our engagement agreed with you.

. Our report is intended solely for use of the Board of Directors for inclusion in the Ofer documents to be
filedd with recopnized Stock Exchange in conneelion with the proposed Right Issue, Our report should not
be used, referred to, o distribuled for any other purpose except with our prior consent in writing,
Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or (0 any

other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in
writing.

M, No: 505732

UNIN: 24808 F323KEAIVILI49

Place: New Delhi
Date: 02,05,2024
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

Regd. Oitfice: G-3, 341, Vikes House, Esst Punjabi Bagh, Mew Delhi-110026
CIN: LGS T00DL1SBSFLOCZZS0 | www.this copital com

Restated Consofidated Balance Sheet for the year_ snded as ot March 31, 2024 (Amount i Lakhs)
Particulars Hote Nao, A at As at As at

Warch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

L
Finarndial Ascols
() Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 0769 14286 2605
(b} Bank Balance ather than Cash and cash equivalents 4 132 123 115
Ic) Trade Receivables 5 544 240,00 maIr
) Laans B 16571.34 1122056 F29.05
(] Irnestmarits T 1,342 63 143303 -
(ft Othar Fnancal Assets 1] 34129 24828 140,14
18, 369.70 13,385, 35 95T
Mon-Finamncial Assets
|a] reeerviories a 142752 5037 35955
() Current Tax Assats [Met) ] - - -
(chDeferned Tax AssetsPlet] n 348.24 X328 1.0
(d} Praperty, Flam ard Equigmsni 12 264,60 1raEr 19830
[ Orther Mar-Finandal Assets 13 B.15 FAEEH 111,54
204861 A70,38 GT0.57
Total Assets 0831 1435633 1,668.74
I LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilithes
Firnsmcial Liabdlithes
[ah Tracks Payabiles -
() Totsl autstanding d wes of BSME 144 - -
(W) Tatal autstanding dues ather than MSAE 14 11350 Frara 5457
() Borowings 15 TA6T 16 TE12EE ABG 0
ich Cther Financiad Liabilites 16 #9563 8482 5100
75.93 T877.29 ST4.39
Mom-Financial Liabilities
1a] Cusrent Tax Liabilities (Met) 10 ATT92 2B8.36 681
(b Dreferred Tax Liahilities (Neq mn - -
(ch Other Mon-Financial Lishilities 17 184,20 11254 11,42
&72.12 401,30 18,73
Equity
[a} Equity Share Capital 18 475154 £,201.93 45874
1) Oriber Equity 12 [L-Likrry 165770 A99.06
- Enquity attributanble to Sharehoidars of Compary 11,263.31 585063 5T HD
Man conireling nterest 106,95 11810 117.82
11, 570.28 597778 1.075.62
Total Liabilities and Erquiity H0.478.51 14,256,338 1,668, T4
Summary of significant sccounting polickes 2
Mates to AcCounts 1-48

The accampanying notes ke & integral part of the financisl statements,
For and on Behalf of the Board of

\ Lo o278

U/’f‘!/\ﬂ-*‘:—;"i

Vikas Gaj Karan Baggs
Drirectar [Wihale Time Directar cum CEDY)
DM 0CE 51 3 DR Q5357851
e s
— { s
LIDM 245057 32REEG VD148 Deeplica Mishra njﬂ;l A
(Company Secretany Mehode Time Director cum CFO)

FAN: ECZPR42988

DHM: 10040084
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

Rgd. Office: G-1, WI.Vlh(Hnumw HNow Dahi-110026
O LS ICOLIIBSPLEA2250S | wwm agitel com
WWMMMNE ended as at March 31, 2024 {Amount In Lakhs)
Particulars Nate No, As at Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from Operations
L Revenue from Operations 0 83,95899 142892 4,645.90
m Qther Income il 84688 7.98 11482
WL Yotal Income (1+11) 04,805.86 6043689 4,651.72
. Expenses
(3) Finsnce costs 22 755.26 20705 2051
(B)Provision far impainment on fi | Instruments 6531 9005 033
(chass n Fair Value Moasurement 23 100 4083
(o) Cost of Materia! Consumed 0415 54045 6812
(e} Purchases of stock-in-trade k2] 83,696.60 5793347 1944.10
[f) Changes in inventories of finished goods, wark in progi2s (1,056 86) (44,76) B707)
{0} Employee benofes expenses 26 9606 65.36 (XT3
(h) Deprecistion and amanizstion exepenses 27 5244 24.08 2343
() Othwrs expenses 20 19960 18573 6679
Tots Expenses (IV) #3,907.62 59,154.20 4,596.82
V. Profit/{Loss) before excoptional items and tax (T1-IV) §98.25 128263 6080
VL Excoptions items -
VIL  Profit/ (Loss) before tax (V-VI) 298,25 128263 6090
VIl Tax Expense: .
Current tax e 35050 1506
Deferred tax liabilityNassets) 0. 10.75) 147
. Profit/ (Less) for the period from continuing operations (VIL-VI) fm% T(u.a 2837
X, Profit/ (Loss) fram discontinued operations = =
XL Profity (Loss) for the period (X4 X1) 635.62 934,88 4437
ML Other Comprehansive Income
(Al (1} [temns that will not be redassified to profit or foss (103.92) (1,198.45) -
{i) Income Tax elfect on herein abavwe 2618 0163 -
1) ) [rems that will be reclassified to prod or lass .
() Income Tax offact on herein above &
Total Other Comprehensive Income (A+8) (r1.74) 1696.52) -
XIll,  Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the period (X1+XI1) 557,88 3806 4437
XIV,  Profit attributable ta Equity holders of the parent 56902 s 4175
XV, Profit sttributable to Equity holders to Non controlling Ingeness (Mm,15) 028 262
19 Paid up Equity Share Capital (Face Value Rs.1 each)
20  Eaming per Equity Share:
Basic 29 020 Q42 008
Diluted 29 020 042 0
Par vaboe of each Equity Share’ Re.1/-
(EPS fox thvos months ended periods are nat anrwalsac)
Sumenary of significant accaunting poficies 2
Notes to Accounts 1-48
The accompaming notes foem an integral part of the finandial statements.
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of
For KSMC & Assodates Advik Copital Limited

Chartered Nk

e Nt

Karon Bagga
Dirscaoe (Whale Time Director cumn CEO)
DIN:00255413 DIN: 05357861
-~ T -~ ’
k. 7,
Dato: 02.05,2024 (V/ ¢ \é\) \
UDIN :24505732BKEGIVS149 Doapilca Mishes Pan| =

(Company Secretary)  (Whele Tima Direcior cum CFO)
PAN ECZPM4A2988  DIN: 10140086
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

wm:_exw\mmnu Punpbl Bagh, Mew Dethi 110008

Restaned Consell Sheet for the 25 ot March 31 (Amount i Lakbs|
Parsiculars Aot Year ended Yoor anded

Net Profie/ (Loss) before txe 85625 126 609
Agustoents for:
Liris i G wrlne Measerement 700 40583 -
Preison dor en financial b 531 o o1
1Gainl 055 on ks of mstmenes (H28.54)
Prior Pesiod Expenses LAl
Faserve for Bad & Douted)| Debts na s 206
Depredation und Amarisation Experries 524 2408 2343
Imerest iscome 003
Firwnice Cont £nm 20m myn
(Profilf Loss on Safe of Food Axsets (160 007 ms
Operating profit/ (loss) before working capital chasges ! 181740 106,59
Cnangees in wonting capwal
(noeasel decrome n Trade Receinsties > 13436
|ncresuy decresse in Loars 1541609 (10585 55/ 126,00
Frcraa' decrease in Trade and oter Payaties 95a3n (4800
rroael decrease i Oer Nancsl Assess W 36239) 2654
Orcreasely’ decrease in bwemcres 07708 atr 110%.06)
Orcrecsel/ decreass in Other Non-Finandal Assets (2] nrs na2ias)
Increxse/ |decreas) in Other Fnandial Liabsdties 1a1m PLA L] nw
(incrmisel’ docronsn i Other Bonk Bdarcem non
incrwwe [decrease) in Other Current Lsbities A%
Increases (decrease) in Other Current Assets s me1)
arease {decrexi) n Othar Nom-Financhd Latiites 4?_!7 020 1
Cash guacrined bom sy 382924} Q
Netinceere Lis peid |Net of redunds) moy [6.58)
Nex Cash from Oparatiag Activities 521158 (147,451
() CASM FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds hom dsposdl of PFroperty, Pl and Equipimont nan . (L]
Purchase of Progeny, Mt and Equipment (13724 256 204
Interest heernn one on
ncream decrrese in Investments 1944} 2Rt )
Gan on safes of Imwestments 02194
(ncreasel’ Decrease in Oher Bank Salancer _poy —L
Mot Cash Generated/IUsed) In bnvesting Activities w0 65736 [iET)
() CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Procneds from Issue of Equity Share Cagital 26m3.60 Aresa
Proceeds from Securives Prermiun) Net o Dxpanses) 275519
Ircreese) [Decrese) in Bomowings Aze e A
Wncreasey (Decresse) in Long tam Rorowings (6.95) . 12600
Incraana/ {Oecrease] In Short term Sonowingt e »
Viwsce cost [L2RL0) 9700 12051}
from Financlag Activiges AAPS50 "% 36838,
Net norease/ ecroniel n Conh and cath aquivalents (A+84+C) asm N b
Carih and caihy ol B 14286 2606 R
Cah & Cash 3t the end of the 10749 1.5 2606
Componsnts of Cash and Cash Esubvabosts
A ot March 31 31, 022
Cash in hand 5@ un 1963
Eafances with bencs and Srancal instiutions =
Bavnca with barks in currant scounts "2 1237 L]
of Jess than teee
o 2606

Tha sbovw wtaberramit of Cash Flows N Doan (repured urder e Incirect method a5 51 out in i AS 1 Statement of Cash Fows |

For and on behall of the Board of
, Advk Cagital Limited
Viks Garg g Kavas Baggs
Divector (Whole Time Divector cum CEGY
CINSRES Y DOV 95357361

s Gt 7

LN 24908 1IKIG IV 143

(Company Secresary) {Whale Time Dvecior cum CFO)
AN CCZNMIRN I 10140036
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED
g Of%r G- JA0%, Vikan Hauss, Fat Puniils Ry, Mo Dee 135004
I L5 V0L 1 995 95 | wwe.
Rastated Convclidated Ratarce Sheet for the yeer srded sa wt March 31, 2024

(Amocnt in Lakhy
Moofsherss Amcaes
As ¥t March 31, 2021 AS8T3IM0 4S5
Changed In Tqunty Share Captal due 10 povor pavied ervovs
Fustaned Belinge 31 the Segiaring of the curment reporing penod s AshTe

e cagind during the .
hnguim A5RTAE0 s
Charges in Equty Shaw Cagrtal dos to price peod oo

Ragiatnd balirce o the b ofthe #g pariod 45470600 Asane
n he 1743, 15,660 a3
As ot 1,
Baarce of the Beg reing ol the curmeet porting peiod ﬁlgﬁ 220102000
L _0TaEI0 20796032000
LT ! 428)$2600 ANSHE0
5, OBer Kquity -
Parscuders Amalgarmaton Security Swtabuad Earnings  Specisl Resarve me por RIS
Mesarve Promium N
As ot March 31, 2021 M{? s ﬁe 'gln
Proft for the Fear - ars .
Cthwr Comgrehmrrine ncome far the year
Dwidends . .
Trnsfer 4o Spedal Reere A
Tranafer % Coni rgancy Raserve
Transfer %0 Reserve for Bed B Douttiul Dot . .
T - - - an
o at n, auar 5720 o0 1601
Pl Sor the Yeu - wBas '
Netarred during h s EREEY]
Trarahy to Spacisl Reserve (1%092)
vier Period Epenses 082
- 109
Ty
SR — o o -
Recetved during he year 2782
Trarster 12 Specl Relere 080
Prior farod Tipenes [
W‘ LN
Ba ot March 11, 2624 B X Y1) 1I9RTE LA
Porticubers Hon Comrelfng Capital Reserve Other Hems of Other
Iterent Compratenthes Incomes.
(8 [7) [0}
As 2t Wk 31, 2021 12 5% '
Pacfie oe the Your 262 . -
Othar comprehereve scaeme fr the pasr
Chwdangs
Transder to Spacial Aeserve
Treraber to Cantingercy ressve
Trareher 1 Reserat for 8ad & Doubsthel Dot

T
E
§
&

Proft durng v year 0
Tt 1) ean
Oehvar Incorme boe $e year e
[ULAEY]
I 10635 (] ey
At As Asn
s it “wir
L2265 R TN
139054 243 008
wrn 2603 wem
10695 neo we
14 150 150
BI43) — 1) :
708872 177508 BOLETS
For ard oo bebal of the Boasd of
Advik Cagltal Urnited

ey ety

(Wioke Tisse Clrecnar cum CECH

DANDO255413 OO% 05357461
G‘y\\ e 8\,
AT < M‘] ,\
Doeplhn Mishrn
Homeden Secrenory) [Whake T Coecoor com CFO0
PAN LC2PGY CAN: 10140088
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ADVIK CAPITAL UMITED
Regd. Office: G-3, 34/1, Vikas House, Kast Punjabl Bagh, New Delhi- 110026
CIN; L65100DL198SPLOO2250% | www.advikgroup.com
1. (A) BACKGROUND '

Qur Campany, Advik Capital Limited (thereattar *Achic Capitaly Comp ", wiss ongnaly d #s ‘Quick Crecit Limhect in New Deshi an
Naovember 14, 1985 as 2 public imited company undes the € P mtmanammmmmuwmmuymmmm
of Companies, Dol and Hieyana at New Dethi, Our Company was grievied the Certificate for € of Business on Nowernibeer 20, 1935
bylheﬂeg'swdCommesOehmdMnnmmmm&enmdmcmmunmnndb'DU-lnoMmm:
Lmited" and a frush Cartificate of Incoeporation was gr by the Registrar of Companies, Dalhi and Haryana at New Dulhi on Sepaernber 20,
2010.hnmdlh@mmﬂm«mﬁnb'“«kmuwNmmwmaﬁﬁhmwmuomnm
MmmwNMMdcmmhanﬂlﬂmumMmnbvmvykd.b)tthu’y.ﬁwmmdwfmvw
dmngedh'mcwmwammdlnmmbnwnmmupmwwnmmgmmeMM
walls.wh'Mbdlu'onw'!.3017.0owwnymsmgmsdcst-lquNndl(arwnymMﬂmo!wnmnd
m-ytmnmmgnu-ummmvmuswunkmmmmmtsumcwsmamhmm
&.mmnm-am:uﬁi‘\gmmgHnml(ommwmmmmwmmmlsmdmm'iyhn
!:u*uofﬂnnuMnmwmdhnddmwmdinhwmminmvddm:mlwmsmmahmt

(B) STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The i fFnanci have been preparad in accordance with the Indian A ing Stanclards {ref 10 as “Ind AS") prescribod
um«Sctﬂon1l!dﬂ|¢Cmmn'ﬂA:\.2n13mdﬁlhwia[lndln&awnnﬂqswwﬂkum.sanmlﬁdhanﬁmloh’menrdolhp
rabevient prowsions of the Act.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The signficant accounting pobdes appiied in preparation of the Consolldied Financisl Stasemonts am 2 given below:

21 Basls of Praparation of Financial Statemsents
Theconsoltmdh'unddMhmhmprwmmmwkumummmmwmdmnmm Fabiities
that are requimd 10 be carried at falr values by [nd AS
FcifvdueismmmmahmumwMmmamumntm.lwmhmom

transacsion b market 4 at the date.

2.2 Basls of consalidation

The lidated fi | inc the fieandis s of the Compaey snd entities by the Compary ie_its
Mllmkww&owuhwdpmﬁnmmadmﬁnﬂmamuhﬁhmdbﬂanwmummm
are corsolidated using the equity or prop hod of 1] aas

ppicatle,

@nwoi;mmuwismwmmmmhuwu\mnmmmmsonmmcum
mlyummwmmwmmucm:mmmmmm
The results of sutridiaries, joint arangements and assodiates acouired or disposed off during the yesr ans
lmludedlnlhecnmoidmdsmmdpm&mdlmmmmd&amaudmumuwwmmmmddsmu
Wherever necessary, acjustments are made to the financial of subsiclaries, Joint arrangemants and

iates to bring their ing policies in fine with those used by other members of the Group.
Intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses ang eiminated on consclidation.
Non-controling interests in the net ssets of consolidated subsidisries s identified sop y from o
Group'seqd(y.memmotn»w&mmolwmnw;bomtﬁd),mnudhuuﬂrmaumnm;ua\ginmu‘
wowﬁonnMdﬂnﬁwdueoMmmﬁu‘:muﬂﬂanh&kdmnmbﬂkm&wnmm-by
miﬁﬂmbadxmmwwmmmmdmmﬁmmsmmmMMimmunwum
plus the non - contralling interests” share of subsequent changes in equity. Total b Income & attributed 15 non- ¢ Hing Inerests
even i i resuits in the non-cantralling interests having a defick balsrce.
The company have 2 subsidiaries is an March 2024
- Advk Optoelectronics Limited
- Advikea Firwest Limited

2.3 Basis of Measurement

The finendial statements have been prapiwed on & historical cost basts, ascapt for cartain firancial instruments that are measured at far voues &
the end of each reparting pericd, detfined benefit plan - plan assets moasred at faic vahas, sssets hekd for sale which & measnd i lower of cost
or for value less cost of sale, Histoncal cost is generally based on the fak vk of the consideration given for goods and senioes

Fair yalue meanarements ane categorised o Level 1, 2 or 3 as per Ind AS reuiremant, which ane described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted pricos (unadjusted) in octive mackets for kientical assats or Sablities that the

entity can sccess at the measuremant date:

Linvel Z inputs are inputs, other than quated prices induded within Lvel 1, that are clrsarvstie (o the asset or latelity, either dinectly or welirecty
Lewal 3 inputs are unobservabile Inputs foe the asset or listility

24 Property, Plant and Equipment and bwestment Property

Recognition and M

Froperty, plant and equipment held for wse of 1or adminsirative purpases, are stated in e halance sheet a1 cost bess accurmulated depenciation
imuwthWmllmumomlmMsmMﬂsmmWNWWWM»N&WW
and stalation of the respective assets. Assets hiving individual value of less than “5,000/- are charged %0 statement of Profit and Loss i the year
of purchase, "

Investment ?Wyﬁg&adbu“ng bet out to eam matals. The Compary follows cost model foe esasumment of imestment property,
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D
Dmlmn‘pmddusmgmwdmndmvdun«ndmiheweﬁd“usmmmmvmmhulolhcompu;kl.znn
Depreciation i calouated on pro-rata basis, including the manth of sddision and g the manth of sak/de | Loasebold imp

are amarised o the underlang lease 1omm o6 a straight fne basis Wﬂnnmpmdmninqcmdv-ﬂkhthmwais%dmo
cost and in cise of other assets NIl

Tho estimated usalul lhs, memamquMnuMdmb

reparting period, with the effect of any changes in df for 0N & prosp base.

De-recognition
An term of property, plant and equip or property ks de-recognized upon dispesal or when o Suture sconamic benefits ane
emedzdmmfmnmtmhndmofumkygdnwlusrungmnn&mﬂovmldumﬂwm plant and

Rraperty is
csmdﬁemabmnmwmodsmhwmmmm“mmnlsmogmdmwom

or loss.
Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress are camied at cost, comgeising direct <ost and relsted Inch P 10 acquire property, plant and equ ipment.
Assits that ane not resdy 1o ntended use are ako Showe Lnder Capital wark- in-progress.
25 Inmtangitde Assuts
Ithon and

gible assats ane recognized at cost of acquisbion which Includes ak diturn that can be dimctly attrinec or Whocoted on a reasonable
wmmumwmpm‘ew“mwusnmmmlmmm
Amertisation
Armortisstion is recognised on a stralght. e basis ower their estimatind usedud Ives The estimated useful life and tan awthod are

umemodammm!ngm.m:mmclw&mhmbangmummmawwmmm

De-rocognition

An intangiie asset i de-recognized an dispasal, or whin 0 kilure sconomic brnefits s expected from use or disposal. Galns or lasses arsing
from de- racognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carmying amount of the asset is
recognised in profit or koss when the asset is de-recognized

2.6 Revenue Recognition

Internst income on loans
ml:mvmmoonbmmtmmamwMnumwwwmusmtmmmwmonilfmndim
dat ized cost or fair vakue theough other comprahensive income (PVWOCI), EIR is caltulated by considering any faes and
mw<manMM¢bmmo‘ammmdIlnm«uammnmdummmhm
cash ipts the d life of the financial asset 10 the gross camying smount of a fmancial asset or to the amortized cast of
aﬁnmmliﬂlu
MWWMmmbymualmugmmmmdﬁnmdmummnmm&umln
cirse of credit-impat | assets regandh nmz'wwmmmtmmonhmwmo‘ﬁmmm
um.llhmimbmbwmdn wained C leulating interest income an a gross basis.
mnonmnmvmmmdmnnmgnwm,mnummmmmmmmmmumm
Sale of Product
R from sabe of products is recogr ‘-ﬁenoonwldmmmmwng-hmmmnm»mmw
Dulvery 000urs when the products have been shipped or delvered to the speciic location as the case may be, the risk of lass has bee transferred

and eithar the austomer hes accepted the products in dance with the sales contract, of the Group his objactive vidence that af critera for
aeaptance hiwve been satisfied. Sale of products include related andlary services, if any.

Commission iscome

Income from b spanden services = recognized as and when the senioes are rendered as per amed 1rms and condiioes. of the
Rental Inconse

Rental Income from PrOperty s recog s part of from operators in profit or loss on 3 straight Ene basis ovar thw tarm of

the lease avoept whar the rentak ane structured 1o increase in line with expected general inflation. Lease Inconthves granted 3o recognisad as an
Integral part of the satal rental incame, over the term of the lease. Rental income from sub-leasing b5 also recognised i a similar mannes e
Induded undar other incoems,

Sale of Securlties
Revenue from sale of securitios (inchades calhary and intes day Doth) is mcogrised to the extent that it can be relably measured and 1 probable
that the econamic benetits wil ko 1o tha company,

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognized at the time whan the AOM 1o receive i established by the reparting date.

Miscellaneous Income
All ather income & recognized on an accrual basts, when ther & o y I 1he AN diztion/ calaction

2.7 Borrowing cises
Mﬂmummmmmummmmmmmmmammmmcmm

Loss on the basts of effective Interest rate method.

A
“evd
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2.8 Income Taxes

Cwrrent tax

Current bax is measured ot the amount expected to be pad in respect of tasabke inzame foe th yer in accordance wih the Income Tas Act 1961
Cuunlu:wwmeslhompWommwmimmlmfwtmywrmwmmwmwpmbmmmmmsm
It s measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the rporting date,

Current tax ssets and fabilities are offser when there & o Seqaty enforceable fght 10 set off the rcognised smounts and there is an Intention 1o
setthe the asset and liability on a net basis,

Deforred tax

Deforred tae 5 recogrised an temparary diferences batwonn the camying amounts of assets and lisbilties in the financial staersnts and the
comespanding tax bases used in the computazon of txeabd incorme, Defirred tic is messured ot the tax ranes based e the linws 1hat Fave been
anmummm,mwmmngmw«mmmmmdmlnummmwmnmwmnm
assets Matilitis, Defurred tax assets and liabibties are offset when there is  legally enforceable right to sot off cument tax assets agarst Aabiities
and they ralase to income tases leded by the same tae autherity,

A deferred tau kabiity is ecognised for ol faeable temparary diferences. A defirmed tax asset is racognised for
ldwwmmdmuuwmmmhsmb#ﬂmlhmmbkmﬂuwluwmmnﬂuﬂknmmbh
temporary difference can be utitsed Deferred tax assets are roviewnd at aich separting date and are reduced to the exsent that 21 no langer
prodabie that the rbated fie bevefit wit be realised.

29 Employee benefits

$hort term employee beneflts

Short term employee benefits are eapensed as h mlabed service ts provided. A kability Is mcognised for tha amount expeciad 1o be paid i the
Comparty hes a present kegal or constructive abigation 1o pay this amount a5 a result of past sanvice proridid by the employee and the obilgaton
can be estimated refably.

Otiwr fong term employoe benefits
Banedits undér the Comparty's leave encashment constifute athar kong tarrn emplryes benefts The Company's net obligation in rspect of Jeave
encishiment is the smount of future benefit that emplopes hiwe presant value, ond the fair value of any related assets is doducted. The cakulation
i performed using the

propcted unit crecit method. Aoy gains or lasses are recogrind in profit or kass in the pesiod in which they

ot

2.10 Cash and Cash Equibvalent

Cash and comprises cash on hand and demand depasits. The Camparry considars Gash equivavents iss all shoet- trem balances faith an orgnal
maturity of thioe menths of kss fram the date of acquisitiond, highly Souid irstments that are readiy convertible o known amounts of cash
and which are 0dymct to an insgrificant risk of changes in value

2.11 Equity Investment in Subsiciiaries
Imvestments representing aquity interest in sutsicharies are accounted for & cost in accantance with [nd AS 27 Separate Finanaal Statemenss

2.12 Provislons contingent assets and contingent liabllitles

Prowsicns an recogn(zed anly whin thare is & presant obligation, 22 a result of past svients, and when a kiable estimase of the amount of
abligaticn can be made at the reperting dote. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting dite and adusted to rflect the current bast
estimates. Provisians are discounted bo their peesent values, where the time valun of maney is matesisl

Contingent labiity & disclosed for, Passtie obfigations which wil be canfirmed cnly by Asure ewents not

wholy within the coatrol af the Comparty of Presant obiigations snsing from past events whare it & not probabile thit 40 0utfow of resources wil
be required to settie the obligaticn o a reliable estimute of the ameunt of the abigation cannot be made

Contingent aszets are not recognized but dsdosed wheve an inflow of economic benefits is probable. aa

213 Leases
Leases are dassified as finance [nases whirmvar the terms of the kase trarsfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownarship to B lessee.
other leases are chassified as operiting lases,

The Company as lessor

Announls due from lessees under finance keases ane racogrisad i recevabies ot the smount of the Company's net imestment in the kases
Finmce lesse income is allocated to accounting periods $0 s 10 reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company’s net Investreant
outstanding in respect af the leases.

Rentad income from operating leases & generally recogrised o a straight-ing bisis over the term of the relevant lease. Wheee the reesals we
structured soldy % norease in line with expected general inflasion 1 compansite %r the Company's epected nfationary cost nceas s, sudh
Increases sre recognased in the yoar in which such benests accue

The Company as lessee

Rantal expensa from apersting luases is generally recognised on a straight-ling basis o the tarm of Me rélevant kease. Where the renta ar
structaed sabely 10 incregse in line with expected general Inflation to compensae for the kssor's expectad inflsticnary cast increases, such
Increasts am recogrised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Comtingent rntis arising urder aperati  |eases are recognised as an aeperse
in the peeiod in which they are incurred
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currency
mmslndudodnuwmmdhammmnmmmnmmydummmmm In witich the
entlty operates (th funtional oarency' ). The fisandial statements have been prepared and presented (n Inckan Rupees (INRY, which & the
Company's Anctianal and presentation currncy,

Transaction and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translsted Into the fundticnal currency, by applying the exchange rtes on the forelgn curancy amounts at e
date of the transaction. Fawign currency manetary items cutstanding at the balance sheet dete are co to functiona ¢ y using the
dosng rate. Noo- ¥ Hems de ‘mammumnqmmmmuﬁswbumtnwmmmma
the date of the tramacion,

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on set®ament, or restatement as at rporting date, af rates

differwt from those at which thay were intialy recoedod, an facognized i the Statement of Profit i Lass in the year in which thy afise,

2,15 Segenent reporting

The Comparty identfies segmant basks of the intemat ceganization and maragement struciure. The oparating segments are the segmendts for
-ﬁknnpmhmﬂchmmnmzndfwwmmsmmuenmmbywmwrdicfm
d«mmmwhmudngmmm.mamumhgpoldﬂdwmdhrugmmmpmhgmhl&nﬁmhmnﬁng policks of
the Company. Segment revanue, segmesnt expenses, segment assets and segmernn liabdities harse boan idontified o segrments on the basisof their
relsticeship with the operating activities of the segment.

2.16 Use of Judgements and Estimates
In prepariog these finscal ts, | has made Jadgements, estivates and assumptions that
aﬂauthnpplkuhdmmﬁngpolduammmmdmdmsmmtbﬁmummwmandxwmamnﬂu
muﬂmmuﬂmmmmenpondlnmnnm:mmmmmmW‘Mmmmnthhummmmmum«
the peapacation of the financial statements are prudent and ressanable. Actual residts may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underying sssumptions are reviewed o6 an angoing basis. Seviions to ACCOUNENG estimates ane recognised prospectively,

2.17 Earming Per Share

Basic earnings per equity share & calculated by dividing ®e net  proft or loss attdbutabl to oty sharskaldurs of the Comipary by the
weighted average numbee of squity shares autstanding duding the

firancal year.

tocakuln:dhmdnmlnmwmmwprﬁwmhvumﬁwamm»equiumm

and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the periad we adjusted for the effects of all cilutive patential eguly shaves

2.18 Dividends
Final dlividders are recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders and mnterm dividends are
recorded as 3 kablity on the date of dedlieiion by the Soard of Directors of the Company,

2,19 Impairment of Non-Finandial Assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If soy such indication exdsts, the
(m«ymmmmhamwmammMemkﬂghaohnmt‘smwlinupt‘eemdiuvdunlnusn If suck
vecmnu:mmmamummmouemmnfmecxhgtmhguilmmmeambdmcsisIesslhnnnsarmamoum.
the carrying ameunt is reduced to its recoversble amount. The reduction s treatad & an Fvpainnent loss and is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. If at the rporing date there is an indication that if a previausly assassed irpai loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount
s reassessed and the asset is reflected ot the recoverable amount. Impainment losses are recognisad in profit and koss. An Impakement Foss is

the extent that the asset's carmying amount does not exceed the carngng amount that would hawe been detimined, net of depreciation ar
amortisation, i no impakmant kiss had been mcognised.

2.20 Impairment of Fimancial Assets

The Compony recognises smpalmrent alowances for ECL on ol the financial assets that are not maasured at

RULE

Financial sssets that are debt instruments Leass recevabies

Financial guirsrtes contracts issued Loan commitment ssusd

No impiement loss is meognised on equity investments

ECL iwe probabifity weighted estimate of credit losses. Thay ane messured as folkows:

Finicial assets that are not credit impakred- as the present vislum of # cash shartfels that are possile within

12 mones after the separting date.

Financial assets with sigrficant increase in crecht risk but not cradit Ingained — as the presant value of all cash

shortfalls that result from aF possible default events over the axpectod 1ite of the fisandd asses

Financial assets that are credit mpaired ~ as the difforence betwesn the grass caerrying amount and the present

value of estimated cash firwsy

With respect to trade raceivabies and other finandaf assets, the Company he ks allo ® o

amount equal to [fetime axpacted oradit losses,

Loss allowances for Snancial assets messured & amorised cost are deducted fom the gross. camnng

amount of the assets. For financial assets a1 IVTOCL the lass llowance is recognesad in OCK

Loan aszats- The Compary folkees 3 ‘three-stage’ madel for impaiment based an changes in credit auality

since initisl recognition 3 summaned below:

Stage 1 indudes koan assets that have not hid 3 sigficant increase in credit risk since Initial recognaion oe that hine low oredi risk o1 the

reporting cate,

Stage 2 indudes ioan assats that have had A significant ncmase in credit sk since Intal mcogoition but that do nat hawe ckidive eacence of

Stage 3inchudes loan assets that have cbyective evicence of imparment ot the reporting dite”

The Bxpected Cradit Loss (ECL) & measured at 12-month ECL for Stege 1 loan assets anglat
1=

\ /b__Q,\_Q_D,\i ,in ~.

ec?h:shgozmsugv 31oan as sels

sy g |
OB
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Write-off
Financial assets are written off efther partially or In thoir entirety 1 the extent that there is no reslistic praspect of recovery. Any subsaquant
fias a0 craclited to mpal on finandal | o0 statement of profit and loss,

221 Financlal instrumets
A Financlal instrument i any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of ona enaity and a finandial liability or ecuity instrument of sncther entity.

Initlad recognition and measurement

Finenoal assets and financial Babilities are mcognlzed when the Comparry becomes a party 1o the contractual prosisions of the finandal instrument
and are measured inltiaty at falr value adjsted for ransaction coste. Subsaquent measurement of inancial assets and financial labilites is
desaribed below,

(A) Non-derivative fimanclal assets
Subsoquent Measurement

Financis assets carried at amortized cost - a financlal assel k measured & the amornized costit bath the following coneitions am met

The assat s held within 3 business model whose cbjective & to haold assets for calecting conteactual cash Tiows, and
Contractual terms of the isset give rise on specied dates to cash flows that are salely paymants of pndpa and interest (SPPI) onthe pandpal
Amount cutsteding,

Aftor initial such fieancinl mssets are sub ity measured at amortized cost using the effective

interest rate (EIR] meshod, Amornticed cost is calculated by tsking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs thit are an
Integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortizition is inchuded in interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financlal assets (debt instruments e.g. loans) are measured at IVOCT when both of the following conditions

are met:

The instrument & held within a business model, the objctive of which is adevd by bot colecting contractuid cash

flows and seling financal assets.

The contractusl terms of the financal asset meat the SPPE test

FVOCE debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due 10 changes in fair

wvihoe recognized in OCL Interest income are recognized In profit o loss in the same manner as for financial assets measured 3t amortized cost

Financial assets measwred at FVPL - FVPL is o residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which
does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCL is classified as at FYTPL with afl changes recognized i the P&L

Dearecogaitian of Firancisl Assets

Finiecial assots (or where applcable, o purt of finencs! asset or part of & group of simier finencal assets) see de- recogniced (2. removed from
the Companmy’s balance sheet) when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset hive expired, o when the financial
asnt and substantially ol the risks ancl rewards are trarsderred. Further, if the Company has not retsined control, & shall sko de-eacog nize the
financia! asset and recognioes separately as assats or abilities ary rights and obligations created of retained o the transfer

(B) Non Darivatives Financial Liabilities
Measurement
Subsagquent to initial ecognition, all non-darivative financial labilties are medued at amortized cast using the effective interest method.

of Financial Liabilities
A financial Hakility ks de-reccgrized when the ablgation under the Sability is discharged or canceled o expred. When an existing financal lality
% replaced by another from the same lendar on substantially diffarent terms, of the terms of an exsting labilty ace substantiaty modified, such an
exchangs or modification & treased as the de- recogniion of the original llability and the recognition of a new labiity. The difference In the
respective CAMYING amounts is recognized i the Statement of Profit and Loss,

2.22 Fair value messurement

The Company financial wnts at far vituo 30 each baance sheet date using valuatian techniques, Far value & the proe that would
e recabd 1o sel an asset of pakd 1o transter a labilty in an ondery transaction between market partiipants at the measurement dote The fair
wlug eneasurement is based an the prasumpten that he traesacticn to sell the asset o transfer the Kablity takes place either:

#  Intha pandpat market for the asset or labilty, o

o) Inthe absence of 2 principal market, in the most advantagoous market for the assat or fabiity.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropeiate n the drcumstances and for which sufficent dots are sesilable Yo measu re far e,
maiming the use of rekvant abservable inputs and mirimizing the use of unotrerable inputs. All assets ond lisbiles for which Faie vabue s
mirsuind are catogonzed with falr vakse hierarchy into Leved 1 Leved 11 and Level 18 based on level of input.

2.23 Offsetting of financial instruments
Fieandal assets and financial llabilities are offset and the net amount is reportid 1 the balarce shaet when the Compary nas & legally endorceabie
right 10 cffet the recognised amounts and there & an ivtention 1o settie on 8 net bass, or reslize the asset and settle the labity serudtaneousl

&7 3
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

o Office: G- Vikas House, East i New Dethy-110026
ks an&%vmwmm Ay

The provison towards standard 2ssets based on IRACK norms of RIL (Refer Node 42 for Detalls)

\]/M-Q/\-Q’)"'\g_

d Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
Note No.3: Cash and Cash Equivalents (Amesant in Lakhs)
Particslers As ot A at A m
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 31, 2022
Cash in hand 1642 un 1963
Balances with barks and finandial institution
Balarce with banks in curment accounts 27 12975 643
Total 107.68 14286 26.06
Note No4: Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents
Asat st Asat
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Mawch 31, 2022
Deposits hidd o mergin morey 12 123 115
Deposits with Oviginal maturity of more than theee manh Lot eis - %
Totel 152 123 115
Note No.5 : Trade Recelvables
As at As it As ot
gl March 31, 2024 Morch 31,2023 March 81, 2022
Secured
[+ dng for a pericd g 6 moeshs - -
Qutstanding for a peried not axcesding 6 monts .
Ursncured, conidered good
O 9 Yor & period ding & months . aw
Outstanding %or & pariod not excending & months 544 000 100.65
Total 544 340.00 101.77
s at Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Misrch 31, 2022
Trihe receribles, Unsecured deputed, considered good
Teacke acanables, Unsecured Undisputed considered good
Less tran & months 544 1000 10085
& months- 1 Years . 092
1-2 Years .
2-3Yeers
Maors Thee 3 Yewrs
Total = 5.44 340,00 101.77
Thive irm no ding mceivables due fnm di or ather afficers of the Caerguary,
Note No.6: Loans
Particulars As As ot Asat
March 31, 2024 Murch 31,2023 March 31, 2022
At Amortsed cost
Ursacured, corsidernd good
Laans rapayable on demand 675365 415056 310
Toem lcans 990500 7,17000 ’
Total 1673665 11,32056 75100
Less: Imparment boss alowance* 165.31 10000 19
At fe waluw theough other comprehensive ncome
Lowrs repayatie an demund .
Total 1657134 729.05
“Impainment Loss
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

Trgd Office: G-3, 34/1, Vikas Mouse, East Punjobi New Dette-130000
CIN: LGS 100001 FESPLODZ2SCS | www, com

1 d Notes on Cr Fi St for the year ended March 31, 2024

a) Othar Details

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Secured by property, plat and equipment induding and and buliding
Secured by book debts, imemories, mangin money and cttwe working ’ .
Urnecured 1657134 11,22056 12905

Toral 16,571.34 11,220,56 729.08

Loans in ndia

Fublic Sector

Others 1657134 1,22056 72906

Total 16.571.34 11,220.56 729.05

b) Loans with specified parties:

Particulars Asat As at As ot
March 31, 2024 March Maech 31,

Promoters ] o Ni

Directany L L Ni

Key Managemen Persornd’s Nl Nl Ni

Other Related Parties Nl M Ni

Total Nl Wil il

Nate No.? : Investments

Particulars As at As at Avw
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2022

Investment in Ecpaty Instruments. 3

Intveszment in Other Instruments

Totad -
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

Regd. Dificic G-, 3471, Vikes Mo, East Punjabl Ry Dedind- 1100205
e {IK L5 51mlﬂﬁﬂ.l:lzlm|m.ﬂu$

Restated Notes on Consolideted Fmancisl Ststements far the year ended March 31, 2024

sl o enbasilaries, assnclates, jodet vantures and sthaes
Particulars Arat Asat Baat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 202

() Quoted

11 Subsidiaries

[} Assoicates

(] Jeint Venlures.

{ii] Othars

Saneshwar Foods Limied-Quatad 12140

Add/LessFair Yakse gainloss) on remasuremngl through Fll-Quated (3133

-TEAMG Productions MG Limited® 13125

AddLass Fair Vabe geindficss) on rememuremnet through FlL-Juab 1159.25]
(k) Unauoted

1 Subsidaries

{i} Aszicates

i) Jeint Vientures

{ii) Cthaes

-Brij Gopal Construction Prvase Limised 253100 259800

[1,70,000 Eqqaity Shares of .10

sidd/LessFair Vakse gainloss) on remersremnat through OC1 (.3023n 1, 19R.45)
Tartal 1,342,853 1,433.03 -
it Imersstrmersts in bk THZET [FEETE] =
(7] Iwessitrrsants culside ndia
Tetal 134263 1433.03 -
*Company have subscribed 3500000 Tuly conertible shares warrants of TEAMO Frockctions HI Limied wa prefmntial slkiment on Sepaeember 70,

2023 and pakd 25% of the subscription amount s par the tams aof the ofier 2 on year end.
**Based on Fair Vahstion duly centified by independent valuer,

b Carrying walus and market value of quoted and ungquoted inveatrsiets ane ai balos:

Partizulars Az at Ay ot g at
Mlarch 31, 2024 Wprch §1, 2023 March 31, 2023

[a} Iemsament In sutEGiany Companes
Aggregabe camying value of guoted investments
Aggregabe meriet vakee of quoted investments = -
.ﬂmturrmvdu:ufunqwmd bRl o =

() I " ansaciabe comp .

i) I trmisant in Cihiss 1,342 63 143303 -

Toaal [T 1,433.08 -

Hobe Mo.8 1 Other Finandlal Assets

Particulars A3 ot s at Aot
March 31, 2024 March 31 L]

Ahmnce (pormidand good]

~Ta Supplen i . 236

-Ter eahirs . GrE8

Lingeoures, considered good 2095

Accrud Income EVTET] BB i

Less: reversal w.r.k ron performrg asset T

Seourity Depoits” 17481 0 [T

LessFair Vahse Mawsureman 114.58}

Total B41,20 43I 140,14

*Srurity deposis incudes amount s 99,5 bo BSE Limiied relted 1o 2 right issue completed during FY 22-23 & F¥ 25-24 and As. 24 Lakchs given 1o
Cruativa projects B contracts Pve Ld in relation b shame purchese sgreement deted 08 02 2004 magarding acquistion of substantial stake im L
Limitecl The ather amaunt comprises of security deposit wrt lease cantraces iar ditads ol i de. !J;n_and saturity deposits prmarily ins relaton o
pubiic uslity sensces arodior with depositnes, scchanges and other similer erdfties,

\Jmhsﬁoa—»i
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED
w.marimmmmwmm‘z?.mu

CINE 165100001 J8SPLOOZ2505 | wivw

Notes on Consolidated Fimanclal St
Note No.9 : Inveetoeins

for the year ended Masch 31, 2024

Particulnars As at Asat As at
i March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(As vakased and certified by the maragemant) -

Securities held for tracde 117430 11230 98

(As valsed and certified Ly the maragement) - .

Raw Materiaks 16962 14847 20122

Work in Progress - -

Finished Goocks 2340 BRSS 146

Stores and Othars - 105 224

Total 1A27.52 350.37 35935

Note: Fweriones is valued at cost or NRY whiihever is lower

Note No, 10 : Currentt Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) (Net)

Particulars As at As at Ax ot
March 31, 2024 March 1, 2023 March 31, 2022

Income Tax Lisbiities (Nety* AT7.92 28835 6a1

Total aT7.52 288.36 X3

* Incomne tax Papable of Rs, 34073 relotes to FY 2223

Note No.11: Deferrod Tax Assats (Nat)

Particulars Asat Asmt As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

() Deferred Tax Assets

On account of Fair Vaiue Measurasost 367 441

On Acconant of Daprecistion of Property Plant and Equipment 247 as9 ™

©On account of Fair Value Changes through OC 1276 RIOES]

On account of Business Losses 30 645

(&) Delfarad Tas Liabifay - . .

et Geferred trx assets/ (labiity) (5] _ 110
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Rastartod Notes en Consobdated Firancial Statemants for the yose ended March 31, 2024

Note Na13: Othar Nom Flsancil Assets (ot in Labkts)
Partiilan Asm Tam st
March 11, 2004 Maeth 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Urnecurvd, cosssoned goos
Babnce with goverremest acthorties
Geods and Senices Tae ar6 nn 25
Cthirs dutharition oo 1S "N

Advances with Trade Papasie 3 A

Prazekd Spenons ME5

Oers - 1

~Addvance to Stafl 336 -

Adhnce Lo Suspleny 0o . .
Total (X5 ) 1154
Mole No.14: Trade Paysbies

Aast Asat At
i March 11, 2004 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Urdecarni, cossdend good
0 Mk and Sma Emerprises 9 .
1) Toss cunstaecing dusm otber than MSVE 120 mm 5437
Total_ 14 7 Sas7
Trace Payaties aging schedule
artiodecs Asol Aaat Mt
o Mucch 31,2024 Warch 31,2023 March ¥, 2022
Wicro asd Sovell Entacpeive
Ongunnd due-NEME Ni N .
Tspuned due Others N L Lth
Unshipated thae- NEME LY N
Uniiputed due- Ottt 1120 e 4543
Outstancing fov following pericd from due date of papment
Lass han 1 ¥oars 1304 29m .
12 Years N N 5431
29 vean i w .
More Than 3 Years nl N
Toul 1544 e St
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ADVIC CAPITAL LINITED

G g e s

Note Ne.1%: Borrowings Ancuniin By
O Ao At

Shornd _ MahILIRE Mah LN Machia0E

L) term Barawings

Secared Loars

Teom Loans froen Satks

nhiche foans fraem Baris 626 1% 1088

Working Capinal Lowns bsarm zerk

Unescured Loans

1) Loon fomm Related Pany

Loas kaem Direclon new

W Lzan form Omvers

Loan from Bariks wm

Inwcorzante Losm 45150 413100 an

Othery - .

Tonl wa7e T [T

i Short e Bonowrgs . .

Less Cumene Matwrites of term Dsbn (] 0% 33M
Totdl(A) Gaa158 [T Tazis
Twrm Noorowiegs

Secwred Lows, Aepeyulie on Dermens

Viorking Cagsiea Lown foom Ranks HES 11825 1128

Uraacumed Loons, frparable on Denasd ‘

Imexnpoae Lowns 91450 24150 18000

Cthws .

~ From RanksiCument Maturties of Long tesm Oatt) a2 oy e

. From Othirs 40022 18370 .

3658 L7030 e

TotalA+ 76110 151248 4600

o] Tws Loass (AR 475024 30}
ggegug!gf 13788 20248 40674
708716 15126% AR

91 W bs ks TARTIE 151289 W

It Cunside s
Total 707,16 15120 [y

* Loans wihaut pedifyng ary e or pencd of mpeytren ane [ 00 derrand.

Al rincpl Amcurn of insakmart chs In rest oRowng e o0 keng Sem dubi arw wcerately disckossd under Short Temm Bomowngs a5 Cumert

b Vetical Loans ane 5000008 wilh Aipactia vetious.

KiThe Comparny’s by onge wrd A O s Limited are secured by (A) Pimery Securies : (D Mypothecation of the ertise mosable flaed aioees
of me company 5D Hypothecason of Be Cutrert Ausaty, (5) C Security of chape on Commertial laed and Buiiog smaned at Lnk No 088, Sl

mﬂ.ﬂ!ﬂﬂ_ﬂ-‘
Arne Aot Aot

e MAChSL R0 Mwech 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Crochions ot cther LabikteyTapenies 0 256
Interest Pypthe 0147 7393 .
Salay and Bonis Payabre w18 735 20
Engeres Papbhe i 138 -
Sacuriyy Racmvest s
hecue Issued Bt non sk 445
ot fom Pt

Totsl 51.00
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16550001 YIRSPLON22505 | waw,

Restited Netes on Consolidated Fimanchal Statements for the yasr ended March 31, 2024

Note No,17 ; Non-Flaancial Liabbities (Ameunt in Lakhs)
Particulors As Asat Asa

March )1, 204 arh 1200 bt 31, 02
Raserve dor lad B Doubtful Debts® 11957 815

St Dk i T 119 83
Tonl 19420 1294 (X2
* Reseeve for llack B Doubtful Debts As oer Incarse Tar Pressons

Riesarve for Bad & doubtful debts bees bieen craated a5 per provigons of Section 36{ 1))l of come Tax Act, 1961

Note Mo 18 : Equity Share Capital
Particular Rs at Asat At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2003 Murch 31, 2022
Mithorized Shore Capial
TAOA00.020 Fquiy Shares (Year 2023 25,00,00,000, Yeer 2002: 25,00,00.000 )
Par Vb of Each Equly Share & 8.1/ 750009 5000 250000
150020 250008 258080
tiswed Share Copital
A42,81.53,600 Equity Shares (Yeur A0 220191200 | Year 022 4,58 T1600)
o Vabse of Each Equity Share is R 1+ 42054 210193 4874
428154 220199 ASK.T4
Subscribed and Fully Pald up
A2,61,53 600 Expetty Sherms (Yeor 2023; 22.01,53.280 | Year 2022 4, 58,73 600
Pas Vakie of Each Equity Shirw is R 1/- 4281.54 220193 A5LTA
TOTAL 420154 2,200.93 458,74
of Shoreholders n :
Name of the Sharehaldery As at March 31, 2024 at 0, 202
& No. of Sbeld Mo of % No, of shares % el
Vias Gag {52] TA 17261201 % s :
Seema Garg 32,009 TSN 1E55605) 7540 -
Sulritl Gang 2748442 A% A1 3BT BA -
Shywn Sundhr Sasog 100,000 0.39% . .
Virander Kumar Agarwal . - - 1,32.00000 N0e%
Shakut Kumar Aganwal . - . . 35,8400 1%
1) Shareholding of premoters of the Compuny:
Narma of the Sharsholders At (Wef Aot As ot
March 31, 20234 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Mo, of shares %held_theyew No. of shares % held__No, of sharms Sheld
Wikm Garg 33563523 T84% - 1025100 (P
Seema Garg K208 154% 1,65.96,051 7.54% -
Skl Garg 2T4B4AM 6% - 141187 042% . .
Virender Kumee Agarwal . ' . - 1,48 000 00
Skl Kumi Agarwal - ISBAMO 107%
4 The reconciation of the sumber of shaess outstanding a1 at year and It 30t cut beiow :
Particedars Mt st s at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 mn:mz
No, of shares No. of shares  No. of
Tipuety Shares at the beginning of the year 2201932800 ARTE0 4SRN0
A : Faush Eqquity Shatis abotted churing the yess MIHID 1TA19580 .

Hdd : Borws Shares alotied during the year - .
Lewt | Saares forbated buy-back 1he -

layea e stdap B5100 BRHA__ AT
Dwing the I year ending 315t March'2004, Corn parny sseand wcpity shases with rinpect to Right haue {asue ctnd 13th Oct 2023) of &, 49,91,04 784y consdsting
of 20,79,60.320 shares of Rs. 240 {1 ¥ of s 1 st pearmium of B2 1400

During the fisancial yer ending 315t March2023, Company issued equity shaees with m»mm|mmammwuh 468,11, 00%- consting of
174319680 shares of RS 245 (FV of st at premmium of Ry 1,65

k)
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Restated Notes on Consolidated Fiancisl Staterments for the year ended March 31, 2024

a) The Compary has not Issued any Borws Share's during the last two Firanclal Years.

) The Company his not buy-tack any Share's during the last two Financid Years.

€) The Company has not forfeited Sharw's during the last two Financiat Years.

d) The company has not ssued anry securites, which convertible Into equity shares.

@) Terms attached to Equity Shares

The rights, powers and prederence rating 1o each class of share and the quallications imitatioes and rerictions thereal

are contained i the Memoeancum and Artides of Assodation of the Compary.

The Company has ury ore class of Equity Shares havieg i par vidue of A5.1 per share. Each holder of equity shares is eetied

10 One vate par shane Any shareholder whose nama & anered in the Register of Members of the company shall enjoy the

same rights s be subject to the same labiities as all athar shamholders of B same chass

hmmdanwllunnmmmmy.wbwm-ﬂwnuuwmwmmmumdm
y, ol d Foe the sad prpose, the ligudator may set such valoe & he deems

Mumnwomhhed%awmmmmmhdhmonwlbemdmnbemnm«lmm

Note No.19 : Other Equity
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As As at

TA) Reservis and Surplus
() Amugmation Resve
Cpening Balance “7 4y 17
Add - Receved/ utlised during the year -
Total (a) 4417 4417 44,17
(b) Securny Premum
Opening Bakance 347744 E ) 35720
Add ; Recetvd/ utilsed during the year 275521 112024 -
Total (b} 6,232.65 IATI AL 357.20
(c) Retained Earmings
Balance ot the beginning ol the ye 82438 80,08 4650
Add : PrafitiLoss) Sor the year 64676 U0 an
Less - Specal Resere 2080 19 823
Lass - Rnservn for flad & Doubthul Debes
Less : Contingency Reserve -
Less: Price Pencd Expenses 016 062
Totad () 1,390.18 82438 80.08
[d} Spedial Reserve*
Opening Bakance 0693 1601 .18
Add ; Received uined during the Yesr 080 19092 823
Total (d) w0 206,91 16.01
Copital Reserve
() Capital Reserve 1.0 160 1,60
Add ; Recatend/ utilsad during the Yesr _ i
Tetal (#) 160 %0 1,60
Yotal (a+becedin) 7,956.34 455452 499,06
(B)Equity tmstruments through Other Comprehensive Income
Opanieg Balance (895,82} .
Addd Changés dufing the ywar (Met of Tax Effect) (7774} LEZN]
TOTALE) @7436) #96.82)
(C) Other Items throwgh Other Comprehensive bncome
(D) Non Controlling bnteeest
Opering Balance 1aw nia 1520
Auteh Profit fue the yeie {1115) _028 82
TOTALLD) 106.95 113,10 11782
TOTALA+B+C+D) 7,088.72 3,775,800 61653
*Special Resern 25 par RBI Nomms

A par Section 454C (1) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, every non-banking financial company shail create a reserve fund and transfor th ansn » sum
ROU IS than twesy par cont, of ity net profit every year as disdosed in the prodt and lozs account and bedoee any dividend s deckired,

\J(\J/\-Qb""i
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Note No, 194 1 Utiisation of Right s Procesds

Sub Notes:

(1) During the financial yeor ending 315t March 2024, the hakding cpmesany has completed 1 right isue IRC) datad 111 Octobie 2005 and ksued
207960320 Shares § RS 240 per dhare. The shaves were alotted on 13th Ortober 2003 & wer Isted on Bomeay stock eschange & National Seack Exchange
of lndis

(2) Trw procen from right kssues during the year for tha putpose of meeting sugment the capltal base of our Company and general corporste pumeses

were majorty utftzed collectively scmands reperymmant of company's borrowings and adh of kaarn in sceordance with busness objects of the
compaty
Particulars
1 | Ksue rduted espenses (reder note 2) 10111
2 Wert refer noti-1) A850.00
3 ate note-1) 1,215.00
Totsl m,h
“Sub Ntes:

{13 Durieg the frvancial yoar anding 315t March'2023, the haldieg company has completed 1 right lssse IRO) dated 25th Apri'2022 and issued 1743,10,680
Shares & Rs, 225 per share. The shavis warw abottd on 19th Aprl2022 & were listad on Bombay stodk eechang & Nasonal Stock Exchange of indla.

(2 The proceeds frem right e during the year for the purpose of moeting werkieg cagitil cequiremants and genesal corporte PUIPOSES were uliiand
collectivedy towsedts business obfects of the compoasy i grant of loaes which inchides loans repayale on demand and Term foans beth, The Loans geamed
by the company indudkes Taems Lowns of fts, 4300 Lakhs advanced 10 Jind Gohana Highmay Privat Limibed and Loars mhich sre repayatie on Demand of iy
A0 et addvanced to varus entiities.

(3 The smoun of 10317 Lakhs inchudies Ais 4464 Lihs relsted to right Issue espenses ncurred in previous yoar 202122 | gioe 10 recnpts of proceeds
nd are disckeind under prapaid eepenses as on 31032022 The eepanses woro adjusted agins] saourtites pramium qmduﬂmﬁwmm-n
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Rastated Notes an Conselidated Financlal Statermants for the yaar sded March 31, 2024

mmmgm {Amowsts 1 Lakhy)
Perticulans Yeur anded Yoar anded Year ended
Murch 312834 Muech3120) Mg 3, 2022
Interest Income* LM LU 10
Dewdend heome o0t 013 -
Rertal Ixcome 600 Q0
Fees and Comemission ncome . 14
Sebe of Swcurities RN 5300 unwe
Sabs of Servicas LAl .
(XX TN

Total
“Intucest Icorme b et of el of ingsest income w 1 NPA

Note No.21: Other Incomes (Amaunt in Lakhey
Porticulars Year ended Yoor arded Yoor anded

Meech 31, 2024 Mach 31,2020 Marsh 31, 2002

Proft on Sae of Fuued Agsets 02
Reabsed Profit an Sale of bvestments LRt
(ain on Revalustion of hestments .
Intwest o0 Iscome Tax Retund - a2
Intarest rcome -
From Benks a0e 118
From Cehvers - - ons
Ferayn Exchange Fucaustion Gan (Net) . (31 02s
Other Nen Operanse lncome 18 140 1006
Totl 4458 198 12
Note N, 22 | Flsence Coats
Farticulars Your ended Year ended Your ondect
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Treerest o Loaes & working Capital Lime % 2482 1946
Dther Finandal Charges o 28 15
Intavest on Statstory Dues [
Tank Charges oW
Total 4526 9708 2081
Nete No. 23 : Mut guinflons) on falr value changes™
Parteulers Yoar ended Yoar ended Year ended
5 Msech 31, 2023
O Net gaint)ons) os Seancul istiumens st fer cabie 1rough profe or
(8] Others] 0 e specifed)
Seourity Degosits () 1750
—-Orange in Fa Value of Snsesiments (408 2333
Total Net gain/Gain) en Lair valsn changes 7 L)
Falr Value Changes:
Featied
Urveaised (701 4083
Total et galn/{Gaing on fair veue changes (1.80) @8
“Falr Value Changes in T hedihs e cther than s aiing on Accoust of scnirmd Imerest ncomasespanse
Note No. 24: Purchases of Stockin-Trade
Partioulaes Yoor anded Year andod Yeur ended
Puechases of Sacurmies ) S1LULIAY S44.90
Total 5,690.40 STARAT a0
Mate No. 25 : Crange n lsvertories of Finished Gaads, WIP sad Steek In Trade
Particulars Year ended Vear endud Your anded
Much 31,2004 Warch 31,2028 Wacch 13, 2027
Opening Stack
Firished Goods 6445 6902
Sequrifes hedd for rade 1230 913
mm TR W@
Cloting Stk
Finished Goods LT3 6448
Secusties hei for trade 117430 1250 9153
AT N T 15605
Total (8606 7 HaTe AT
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Rmtated Notes on Consolidated Financial Ssatements for the year ended March 31, 2024
Note No. 26 : Employes Benellt Expenses

Perticolans Your ended Year anded Yoor anced
March 31, 2024 Margh31,2021 Marck 11 2023
Saaries, Wages g oy %2 451 3429
Dhrector Aempnaestion “n 2045 70
Statl Wellare and Otter Expavas on 141 2
Keyrren [ruaece Exgenies in
Total a0 9.26 63567
Note No. 27 : Depredation and Amortisasion Expenses
Pecticolars Yeur erded Year ended Year ended
March 11, 2024 mn,y March 31, 2022
Degredation on Tangiole Asuets S ur B34
Depradation on htanglsle Assets o o1
Total 249 2408 2343
Note No. 28 : Other Bxparaes
Pacticutan Year anded Yeor ended Yeor ended
Maechdn 2028 March3L2W3 Mach 31,2922
Corgernption of Siores and Speres . in 101
Fower and Fuel 429 0 N
frpar B Mastsnance o Balding 612 052 050
Ripai B Maintenance to Machinery 236 L) 276
At 500 628 140
Rapar 8 Maiatenance to others 09 042 o
Iwance Exponses [aZ] 1 R
Rates and Taees mn 000 113
Othar Marutactirieg Bxpenies 067 nw 124
Audit Fee 330 EH] o
Business Promatioral Biperse 015 0% 110
For and Subscriptions: 0& 160 in
Foeght oubayd om 033 103
Sebate and Discount [IC] 161
Security Chages on 028 003
Donation & CSR Lapenckturs A
Viehikche Running & Murenance A 13 455
Frofessone, Comttancy s Legul Exzenies i nm 253
Telaphone and Intecrat Experses L o 026
Tomweding and Comepancs 2145 M 158
Directer Sintng Fees $60 63 '
Samprve foe Bad & Dosbrhl Denes 3642 pLt 206
Dwrrune Eqemiod (-] 0%
Adveetivemant EXparees 155 1
Websity Marterce Ohrges 067
Other Mitcdansous Esponses 145 20 45
Total 199,60 186.73 66,79
Note: Puyment 1 simttery audnors
Particulars Year ended Yaor wnded Your esded
March 31 F Warch 11, 2023 March 31, 2022
Statunery aude m i o
Other Matters am on
Total 7.98 R [
Nate No, 20: Larning per Shire
Particulars Yoar onded Yeor ended Yeaw anded
_Marchdl 2024 Meech3L20QF Mok 31,2027
Bask
Visghed asnage no. of Eguity Shares ousstandng s 220 %074
Nt profit aher e B676 S0 a5
Baske Earmiegs per Share (R3] 020 0A2 009
Diluted Earnings per Share
Wisightod aveage no. of Déeted [auky Sharm. 45404
Ajested proft Aver e attributable to agquty A7
Diluted Earnings per Share () (1]
Nominal Vaue per Share (s 1.00
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Resiased Notes on Consofidated Financlal Stasements for the year ended March 31, 2024
HNote No,10 : Contingent llabifities and commitments (10 the extent net provided for)

Particulan Your ended Yeur anded Yot ended
. March 31, 2024 Mo 323 Muech 31, 2022
Contingest llabiites
Claimn ageirat the Company net ackrawiedged 2 detit s L Ni
Guranee i fovour of apany by hading compary 14z M s
Coltyteral Sacurty agangt subisiares Ni Ml Ni
Othy mioney for whic the Compurty i contingently Sable i Nl N
Capltad Comminment Nl N NI

During e yeor the holding company erterd o share perchie sgeeemmt deted (8 Febraary 2024 aleog with cthers parta for gusthase of ety shares of
Industrid ivastyneet Trust Liveted. s pusiusnce of this sgresment the comperry Advik Cagital Limited is roquired % acguire 1407067 tharis at e cond daraticn
price of R 3.63,43.425 (a1 the rate of R 275 per sharel. The cortpaey hue depouited 2400 Lacs i refundale secsrity depesit 10 Creathoe Projects & Centracty
Ve Lid i acoordance with reguletion 17 of Securfies md mchngn bosed of indla (hbntarted Acquiciion of Shaws ind Trkeowes} Ragulaticn, 2011

s per contramsal terms of sanction hetter the company Mave 2 commitenent 5 further iiburse th boon anount of S10 Lk out of 126 loan of R 5510 Lk
sonctioned 10 fnd Geband Highway Private Limited As cn yor end 314 March 24, the compasy hne disturiod 1oan to the wihee of R, S000 Lab.

A e comiacised terrra af sancion lett the company v a commetmant 1o further dasuns the lows amosnt el 1) Laidhe mut of Yotd lous of R 5000 Lake
sanchised 10 Gosena Sonsgut Highme Peautn Limited. As on year snd 115t March 24 1 company e chibieraed lomn 5 the wfun of #4081 Lyers

B) Lonse Comminment Lease yet mt commenced:
The hekding company anteved in 10 LOCWHN MY Indian Reaiors Pevite Linited with resgect 1o leese of under o property of which 0n i
expected 10 be received by 315t March 2028 The hease rental of R 10.00 Lk per mosth shall ba comemenced tee months aber harding owe of posession. The
seauity dapadt of 50 Lakhs giaen by the company in nefation o said feise agreermsed s Bew shows 25 security depest at Scountnd wine as ather lnancial

went I Mo a0

Note No31 : Farelgn Cumency Tramactions Detaly

Partcuan
Expenitire s Foreign Curmancy:
Funw Notrisly

Travelirg Bpemes
Professionat and Comittancy
Other Marers
Enming I Foreign Currency!
Frofessiond aed Cossulancy
Cthet Mattory
LY

Lobitde
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Rl Chfces 53, 3441, Vilae Mo, Baril Punjal Bargh, by Dialbi- 100008
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TR L5001 BEPLOREECE |

Ristited Matis an Comalid Finamilal Stai Bor the your snded Murch 17, 2024
Morta Mo X Tax Expesass At in Likhi]
Particulari Viear ended Vit kel Yiear anded

larch 31, 2034 Miirch 3 Barch 31, 2032
Cumant Tae FR ] nn Taih
Income T for Earfler yiats .
Dl.'fm!dTﬂ:IErﬂiH,l,-'d‘lll‘gi 141] [LeirkT] 147
Toat Epenses repoaied s the Statamant of Profit snd Loss Aoosunt 161 83 1 15

The major companenis of s expense and its seconci intion 10 sspacted 12 Bpens: D] oo Thi anactisd lios rale appkcatsle 10 Bhe Company |5 2% 168% (Marck 31,
2L 25.168%) and the reparied ta mepansr in statement of prali asd ks e as fallows:

Particulars Yaur andud Yuar sndnd Vaur eeded

March J1, 2834 Mawh 11,2093 March 81, 932
Hezaunting (low]/ profit befare tax experdes [F]) 128263 6190
Ingdstie b ety 25168% 5 156% 150
Exgscted {ax mpenses 2aar ma 1532
Tan Impact due b tempocary déerences 208 EL .

Tax Impuict dhas b Parmanent differances 1838 [FL
Tax irnigsbct cx Berre sxmmp] ander income fax :

Ienpict of charg in b rates

Trexine tix for serier yeors . =
i L] ILTE 120

Tax Expanes 2,51 347,75 5

Mot e, 331

Dutalls of duss 46 Micen and Smidl Enterprises s defined under the Micrs,

Settill aried Misdliorn Enbarprives Developmant Act, 2006,

Particulirs ear ended Waar anded Year anded
Btareh 31, 2004 Much ¥1, 3028 Waech 34, 2022

Priscipal amount rempining unpaid to oy sppier a5 i B and of the 1 ] 1]

ocming e

Iraeredt ot thireon omaining wnpaid 4 amy sugelior s o the end of the Hi Bl Hi

ECUTENG i,

Ther smonnt o inbarest paid along with the ameoumts of The paymenl ek s i il Hi

the suppler beyond the appainted day .

The: amount of imienest due and pergable o tha yair, Hi il Hi

The amoust of istereit accrusd and remaining urgaid of e end of the Ml il ]

srnusting year,

The amount of further insenest dug and peyabibs avin i the wecasding year, Hi Hil Hil

mﬂllmdﬂmnﬁlmﬂﬂyimﬂiﬁﬁw

*itariit i on Micra aed small Enterpri il s atinn from MEWE craditon i recitend That no it wouli B daimed of changid or matstanding halanc

with the compary.

ot Mo 34 Copital Mansgament

Tha prirtury ol of the Company's capial maragemant policy & 10 engire Mt the Company compios with capital atequacy Maquinasenls i uied by the Resere
Dank o [ndd aned maintain strong credit rafings and healkhy cagiial o in sedi 0 supgen its busisins ind to misimies sharshoiden vus

The Company's capiial maragameri chijsrihes are :

b enwwee the Compary's shillty to continue a5 o goieg conoem

~to comphy with eviemally imposed cap®al requiroment and mainiain sireng codi rtings
= pronce an pcequabe retum to shareholders

ﬂmﬁ.«-m:-r-i
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Restated Notes on Cansolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Manags aswenses the Company's capital req I oedir 10 udinntien ae wfficient overl financing struchure while svaring ecessha kvirage. Ty
takes inda account w sb-ordination levels of the Company's varous dasses of debt. The Camgany g She Capial struchure and makies adjstments 1o it
In the light of changes in sconcemic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underying assats (Inchaing i o Subsidiry companies). In onder 10

maintain o acjust the capital stracture, the Comparry mary adjust the amount of dividends paid 1o sharehalders, return capital to shareheld iy, issue new shares,
ar sk wswets to reduce debt.

Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended

3, reh 31 022
Net Debt* 824203 1ALz 441581
Total Equity 1137026 ST 107562
Net debt to equity ratio a7z 125 041

* Nt debit inchades den securites + borrowings other than debt seourities + sub-ordinatod Fabilities » intanast accnaed - cash and cish acquvalents - bark
Dalarces cthar than cish and cash squiatents,

Note No. 35: Maturity Anabysis Of Assets And Liabllities

The tatde befow shows on analysts of assets and labiities analyzed according to whin ey sew axpected 1o be reccwred of sutted. Decvatsves have been
clssifund to matur and/or be repaid within 12 months, regardiess of the actual contractual maturities.

Particslars Ammsaaou nnmn:w As a8 March 31, 2022
Within 12 Months. 12 12 12 12 Months 12 Months

Ak

Financlal Assats
(2} Cash and Cash Equialests 10769 . 126 . 2608
(5) Bank alances other than Cash and ¢ash 32 - 123 - s
{€) Tracke Roceivablis 544 - 000 - 0.7
() towes 662055 434079 43338 45718 72905
(&} Imostments v 134263 143303 . -
1) Others Financial Assts 30526 3542 14894 kD) _R¥H 6
705086 1131884 499641 838954 93042 015
Non-Financial Assets
() Irevearios 142752 : 037 - 1505
(b) Cuerent Tax Assets (Net) ’ - 9 . .
(c)Deforred Tax AssetsNet) a2 31348 110
(d) Property, Plant and Equipmont , 26458 17687 . 19633
{6) Othar Mo Finaecal Assits 815 = 2956 = 1154
1A35.48 $1292 30004 0 ATLOD 19940
TOTAL ASSITS A5 [IKIED 537645 57959 A0151 26723
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(o) Tracke Piyebles
10 Total Cutstanding of MSME 134 . . .
(10 Total Outstanding cther than MSME na . 287 L 431
[b} Berrowings 138556 648150 210520 Aty a3 336
[¢) Other Financil Ligkiteins 4553 . [ - $100 .
1AM 48150 313280 CRZF) TSA0T4 3365
Non Fimancial Linbilities
{a) Current T Lisbites (Net) s ~ W36 641
{b) Dederred Tax Lisbibties (Net) . . - g p
1) Other Nan Fisancial Liabiities 13420 1234 1192
S1212 i .18 - —r .
Tatal Usbilitites 2,36655 648150 35/ 47434 55947 3365
Nt tquity 591999 545026 184134 233,50
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Reitated Matis on Consoldmid Finascal Seatsmists for th year ended Masch 31, 2024
Hobe NoJ6: Related Party Disclesures
3} Lint of related parties and relwtionship {as identifind by the sansgesment).

T} Subsidiaries

Adufe Diptoalectronics Lid

Adwiedi Fisnanl LI,

i Ky Masaspament Fersnnnel's (KMP) |

Atvlk Capitsl Limited

M Vireder Kumar Agansal Dieectior, Capsed wa f 2033025

Wi, Aslrad il Kuimai Ahike Time Dirsckor & CFO, wa FON07 0%, canmed woid 010752083

Wir. Seaul Kemar fgganaal (Enoauive Dieecton, Caanad woid 2202 1123

Wi Manju Agarval [Dieechor, Coased wa f 2L0EHIE

e, Rithakh Aggerasl (Chiaf Francial olfce, coased foom O7.04 2022}

Bz, Madber lansl {Diewcher cuss CFO, woil fom 07 DAY, ceased wel 11874120

WA Vikcas Gang Dieectorn, wa f 2200 223

M. Rasika Gupls fompany Secretary, wad from JB12 2000, caaied wal
370208

b Pariea) (e Time Direcior we 21062005 & CFO, wa FON07.2003)

e, Karas Bagga (DRt wal ZL03.2E %

. Denpika Mishra (Cmmpainy Secrlary mal 12012023

ot Poomaim Wishisy (Company Secrrary, coikid frem 28122020

Advil Dpladetirons Limibed

I, Shkul Kusar feggicwil Dt

Iz, Mdanju Al (Sposi ol Discton

Pefv, Wirender Eumar Agarsal (damaging Diracion

I, Rishalih Agganaal iectr

i} Emterprine over which KMP and thilr relith eirclie slgnillees sfleence
i Advil Capital Lissibed

Al Ghobal Limied
\ikas Eonech Limited
el GaE Solutiore Private Limites
kgl lsrami, Techrczkagies Lmibad
Wit Adlk Opbealectranies Limited
Aliniie Hectro Sgns Private Limited
Arreew Sk Privis Lirr sl
Wamar Yentures Privaie Limited
b _Transactions with relaind partles:
Mabrs of Transaction Telatud Party Mams Year ended Year anded Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 37, 1023 March 31, 1022
memuneratisns My, irendor Eumar dganwal . 1500 1208
ol Bribaniai KLimar 450 1346
Mr, Panka) 235
Mz, Ramhiks Gupts di1 130
M. Earan Bagga 1]
P, Dipapika Mishra d482
Prs, Manju Agareal - 450 300
P, Bhakul Eumar Aganval 100 150
s, Poeninm kiahia 1M
Mr, Bishabh Aggarsasl 0 00 1050
Inserest Eepamas
M, Vi Girg 083
Laan Ghan
Wir. Rishatih Agarwal

Receipt of Loan Given Felr, Bhabih Agarsal

‘JM@::—vg
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O 63, 31, Vs Howeo, East | Bgh Now Deti 150026
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Restoted Notes om Conselidated Financlal Stitemants fee the yenr sded March 31, 2004

Relmbursement of Expesses
Mr. Panksj w
Ms Doapikn Mighes 00
M. Rishabh Agarwal 036
Advik Global Limited 00
M Shakd Kumar Agarwil 120
Anolite Electre Signs Private Limiteo 006
Advik Global Limited M
Vamar Lifestyles Privata Limited 005
Purchases
Vamar Ventwres Private Umited 1z
Advance Against Remuneration
Ny Caan Bogp "
Ieterest on Unsecured Losn e, Virender Kumar Agarwal - s
M Mangs Agarwid 1w
Recelveing of Loam Mr, Viroder Kumar Agareal { Indduding 15 e 14020
fsmbnryement of Exparme)
Mrs. Menps Agarwel in ) 2000
Advik Globel Limbed - i
Atofite Blectro Signs Private Umited am S5m0
Vamar Verrures Private Limited | an .
induding Reimbursernent af
Expenses)
Mr. Shakul Kumar Agarwal PAL
Me Vikas Garg %000
Repayment of Loan Mr. Virender Kumar Agarwal { 15 "ne 0250
nchuding Rembursement of
Experses)
Wirs, Masju Agiwi| wn 0w am
Ak Global Limited am 4%
Atrotie Electro Signs Private Limited 1800 S00 20
M. Vikias Garg 5000
Mr. Snakul Xumar Agarwal 210
Vamar Ventures Private Limited ( 232
Induding Rembursement of
Expenses)
Rant Fapenses . Shaku! Kumar Agarwal . 400 1200
Security Deposit Repwid Mr. Stvkul Kumaw Agaresl 160 .
J— Advix Optoelectronics Lid 2%

UWMQL

o0
- o)

wl'g—;nl\ 7
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED
e 63, 301, Vb Mo, 110006
T
Restated Notes om Consolidated Financial Statemants for the year ended March 31, 2024
€) Balunce & ot the and of the yoar:
Nature of Dalasce Your unded Year ended Yeur andod
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 51, 2022

Ressumaration Payabley

M Rishabh Agarwal - 140 100
W, Astwing Kumar - AL

M. Virender Kumar Agarwal - 4%

My, Karen faggs 27

Y. Parka) on -

M. Deapiba Mishre 040 .

. Rashits Gupta 04)
Ny, Marju Agarwet 025

Mr. Fankaj 001

Ingervst oo Umacured Loan
Mr Virendey Kumar Agarwal . AN
Mrs. Manjs Agarwal . {RE}

Relmburyement Account
Vamar Ufestybes Private Linited 005
Vimar Visturies Private Lisited (%]

Security Degosits M. Saied Kumar Ageewal . 1600 1600
Uracured Losn

M Vieender Kumar Agarwal - 12en L2
Mes Manju Agarmal . 5500 a0
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Restated Notes on Comsolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 11, 2024

Note No.37: Finsncial Invtressents
(A) Fasancial assets and Robilities

mmww-mmgmmuum

Note No. Year anded Yeor ended Year ended
Maech 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

“Financhal assets measured at fair value

Iwastments 7 134263 Wae NIL
Security Dapesits e 3250

Financll assets muasured at amortized cost

Cash and Cash Equivalents ] W01 e 14200 206
Bank Balance other $han Cash and cash equvidents 4 1.3 123 115
Trade Necowation S e 000 o
Loans 6 57130 12056 2905
Other Fnanclal Assets L] 306 85 21578 WO
Total 1836970 13,365.95 596.17
Particulars Note No. Year anded Yoar anded Your andwd

March 31, 2024 Maech 11,2023 Mawrch 31, 2022

Finwnchal Liability measwred at it value
Financial fsbidities measured at amertized cost

Trade Payables 1 (EAL) mn 437

Bovromings 15 46705 rians 4600

Other Anancil Latiities 10 40563 _Mm 5100

Total 157591 157129 574.39
(B) Falr values hlerarchy

Financiad asvets and fiencial Kabirtios ave imasured at (i vakao in 2 Snancer statemens and are grouped Imo tree kreeks of & luit vakoe hieriechy, The

throe levels o defined based on the obmnabiity of dgniicant isputs 1o the a5 ollows

The categories used are as folows:

Level T Quoted prices fomadjintod) for il instiumants in e active market,

Level 2 Directly (18 a5 prices) or indieectly {Le. deriveed from prices] oservable market inguts, other than Leved 1 nputs:
Level 3 Inputs which am nat hased as otsarvable market data fnotrenabile npust

Valuation technigwe vsad to determine falr vabee

The far vatue of 3 Anancal instrument om isitlsl recognivon is nermaly the tramaction price fla wakse of the gwen or
mwmmmmc«-pmmummmmmdw“ummwmwnhmmmmmwmmmu
assets held) or quoted mbk prices (Tisascial labizios heks) and using vakuation techniques for othes instruments, Viduation ochaiques include discounted
cash tlow memod, market comparatie method, recast trarsactions hagpenad i the Company and other vahsstion models. The Campiry wim waluation
tachaigues that e appropdate I the chcumstances and for which sufficient data is aveilabbe 10 messure fie volue. mavimizng e use of rebeeant
obwsrvtle inputs and minimideg the use of uncbservabie inputs

Valwation process and tnchaique wind to determine fair velue
Speciic vahation sechrigues used to vakee Snancid nstiuments incuse

Eligitée loars vatued by discounting the aggregate Sature cash flows (both procial ssd interest cish Sows) with trocit is-adjastnd ducounting rane for
the nessining pordolio tanor, The Company has consdered the sverage vakition impact seewed using ek froe, cost of funds and yedd fee securiiization
approach

T use of net asset vaise for conBcane of deposis ond mutual funds on the B of the stidemen moaved from (mvestos garty

(€) Falr value of instrements measured 3t amortized cost
Tl vius of inteuments measued at amortized cast for which farr vaue is dischosed (s as Sollows, mmuummmmm; Inputs
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ADVIK CAPITAL LTD
CIN NO LES100011985PLC022505

SEGMENT REPORT OF THE RESTATED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Note No.30: Segment Reporting

The Comparty operates in thee reportable segment based on the regular review by the COOM of respective companies (e,
Financing, Tracling in securities and Marufacturing, for the purpose of Ind AS 108 "Operating segments” infromatians ralated to
such business segments have given below, The Comparry derives its magor revernes from finanang actiities and its customers are
widespread. Further, the Company operates only in India which = considered as & single geographical segment.

Operating sagments;
Securities/Share Divison
Loan Division
Manufacturing
Others
1. Revenue by Geogrophical Location (Amounts in Lal
Particulors 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 ll-ﬂlﬁg_
(Au | (Audited) |
Domestic 8395899 6042892 464550
Export:-
Total 83,958.99 60,428.92 4,645.90
2, Revenue by nature of products
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mae-23 31-Mar-22
(a) Secuntins/Share Divison 8239447 59,094.71 3871 92,
(b) Loan Dvsian 144544 63901 541
() Othars am 613 11983
Manufacturing Division 11888 62907 o]
Total 83,9 60,428.92 4,645.90
2. Segment Results before tax and Interest
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mor-23 31-Mar-22
(o) Securities/share Divison {19561) a3z 2132
{b) Loan Division 136748 49930 50.42
{Q Others - 613 -10.84
) Manufacturing Division 089 e
Sub T 1,131.93 1,282.64 60.90
(Add: Other Incorme B46.B8
Less: Unaflocated Expenses 1,080.55 -
Profit before tax 898.28 1.282.64 60.90
Less: Tax expenses 262.63 4775 1653
miosu for the Perod 635.62 934,38 443
‘_Sg-n Assets and Liabilties
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Assm ~Loan Division 16,948.30 1140550 814
Assats -Socurtties/Share Dadson 132896 23381 Mma3
|Assets-Manufacturing Divson 334N 69042
Unafioactad 1.806.11 1,926.20 77591
Total Assets A18.31 14,256.33 1,668.74
Liabilties-Securities/Share Divison 837470 7460.02 80485
Liabikties-Loan Didsion 109.04
Manutacturing Diisan 80.31 40930
Unalloacted 11.963.30 6,387.01 1478.85
Total I.hhlhb ao 41831 lg“&! 1,668.74

allocated on & reasonable bass.
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Restated Notes on Consoliduted Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note No.A1: Additional Regulatory Information

i Al the Tele deeds of lmmovable propersies are held in the name of compary.

Il The Company has nelther any capital work in progress af Property, Plane and Equipment nor ary intangible sessts under
deendopment

1l During the year, the member of the Group compary Advik Optociectranics Umited have 3 warking capital bmit fram indusi nd
bank. As per Master Cirtular DOR CREREC No,11/13.05.000/2022-23 dated Apel B 2022, warking capisl requrement of
bamowers, ather than micro and small enterprises, requiring fund based warking capieal Smits up to T3 <roee and micro andd
wnal aederprisas requicing fund based working capitie limits up to 25 crone fram the hanking systam may be made on the bass
of their projectod annual turmcwiy. Traralonm, the company is nat requined to submit menthly stock statements wieh Bank.

v During the year, the company has not revakied its Property, Plant and Equipment's and Intanglbles.

During the year, no proceedings hav Dien iniatad of pending aganst the company for haiding any benami progerty undér the
Renami Transactions (Profibitian) Act, 1988 (45 of 1943} and rules macke there wnder.

i The Company has nat provided any Loan to any perscn on bealf of ather person other than &s ordinary course of its NBFC
businasy, hance disciosure under section 186 is not appicable to the compary.

Vi During th yei, e company has 001 been deciame wilful defindter by any bank or finaecal institution o iny other lander

<

Vi Thare i charga an movalile property smount to By, 3.5 Lacs whose satisfaction is yet 1o be rgistard with ROC.

Ix Thiss ke been no miterisl changes and commaments affecting the Snancial pesition of the compary occurring after the end
of the financiaf yea,

¥ The Compory does not have any Scheme of Arangements. which has besn apgeaved by the Compatent Authoetty in serms of
wactions 230 %0 237 of the Companies Act, 2012,

1l The company has utikad funds rised from the issue of secunties or bormowngs from banks & finesoal institutions ko the
spectic purposes, for which thay wen issuad/taken,
The comperyy has not achanced or loaned or Invested Sunds %o any other person(s) or entityfes) induding formgn entities

o i Dieectly or indiencthy lend o invest in cther persons or entities ientfied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
compary {umate benefcaries) or
I Provdde any quarantens, securities or the Bke of on behall of the ultimate bereficdarie

xii The Geoup has nat recswed arry funds from any person(s) or entitylies), nduding fareign entityfies) (hunding party) with the:
i Directy or indirectly lend or imvest in other persons or entities identifiod in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the
A Provide any guarantees, securfties or the bke or on behall of the umata benefidaries.

Wy Quring the yaar, the company has not tradid, st or pesform any transacsion in crypso or othes vimual currency.

v I the aginion of the mansgement, the realizable vakse of current assets, loans & advances. in the ordrary course of business,

i Capitad to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR): wart holding compary

Particulars Mar-24 Mar-23 Mar-22
() copital 10 risk g assets riticc 5640 “im T550%
(1) Tone [ CRAR S6.80% 43% TSETH
(c)Ther B CRAR - - -
{d) Liquicky Cowerage Ragio¥ WAl 2400% AY
Note In ing the above nk certaln estimanes, assumptions and adjstanents have been made by

the Management for its regulstory submission which have been rebed upon by the auditors
¥ Estimaced cash inows mecoeds the estimated cash oulfloms for B ywir scded March 2024 B March 2022
aver the rest 30 days. Hence, ratio s not applicable.

Methodolegy:

(#) capitel to rak weighted assats ratio-{Tier | Captal+ Ther I capieal)/Total Risk Weightod Assess

() Ther 1 CRAR. Tiar [ Capital/Teeal Risk Waighted Assets

(€)Tiver 1) CRAR-Tanr 1 canpital/Total Risk Wesighted Assets

() Liguidity Coverage Ratio-High Quality Liquid Assets/Net Cash flow over 30 dirys piviod

There hawe bean no material changes and comesitmants affacting the fnancisl position of the company
ceourring after the end of the financiaf yar,
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Rustated Notas on Comaliduted Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
Note No, 42:

Disclosure of Expected Credit Loss and Provisions Required as per Income Recognition and Asset Classification Noems : For the Year 2024

Rsset Classification as per RBI  Asets  Gross Loss NetCarying  Provisions _ Difference

Norms dmsifiction Carrying Allowsnces  Amount required 25 botween ind
sperind  Amountas  (Provisions) s perIRACP  AS 109
AS109  perind AS  required under norms provisians

R[] Ind AS 109 wod IRACP
normy

Parforming Assets

Standard Stage-1 1630045 7631 16304.34 7631

Subtotal 10.50045 7631 1630434 7631 :

Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Subntandard Stage-3 35610 8900 2700 1900

Dol - up 40 1y Stage-3

103 yeors Stge-3

More then 3 years Stage-3

Subtotal for doubehd Stage-

loss Siage-3 ‘ i > .

Subtatal for NPA 356.00 9,00 267,00 9.00 .

Other ittews sweh 05 guarantees, kaan Stage-1 . .

commitments. etc. which are in hwl

scope of Indd AS 109 but mot coversd

under crrent come  Recognaion, Stage-)

Asit Chassification and Provisoning

(IRACP) marms

Subtotal . . - R m

Totnl 16,736,65 16531 1657134 165.31 .

Disclasure of Expectad Crodit Lows and Provisions Required as per income Recogaition and Asset Classification Norms : For the Year 2023

Asset Classification as per RBI Aweti  Gross Loss NetCorrying _ Provisions _ Difference

Performing Assets

Sandard Stage-1 113056 100,00 11,2056 100.00

Subtotal 11,320.56 10000 11,2205 100,00 .

Nom-Performing Assats (NPA)

Substandwd Stage-3 . . .

Doubthd < up 1o 1 yur Stge-3 - - . - »

110 3 yoars Stage-3 - - -

Mare than 3 years Suge-3 ;

Subtotal for doubtful Stage-3

Loss Stage-3

Subtotal for NPA v =

Outwe s such s guarantnes, foan Stage-1
commitments, atc. which ate in the 5.2
uopodrdksmmmmndmg._,
under curraet Incoms  Recognition,

Asset Clissilicason and Prandscoing

Subtotal

Total 11,320.56 10000 17,22056

\JM
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Dischasure of Expected Crodit Loss and Provisions Required as per Income Recognition and Asset Classification Norms : For the Year 2022

Asset Classification 3s per RBI  Assets  Gross Net Carrying _ Provisions
Parfarming Asety

Stiecard Sage-) 73100 195 2006 195
Subtotal 73100 185 72905 195 .
Non-Pecforming Assets (NPA)

Substandurd Stage-3 - - -
Doubthsd - up to 1 yoar Stage-3

1103 yoars Stage-)

Moare than 3 years Stage-3

Subtosal for deubtil Stage 3

Lo Stage3

Other sems such & quaranties, o Stage-1
commitments, otc. which a9 18 the Syang.2
smpudNAsmmnmlmm!
under curent Income  Recogeition.

Aczet Claczification aod Provisionion
Total 73100 95 72008 155

Note No. 43: Disclossres Related to Non performing Assets
(n) Sector wise Noo performing Asets

Particulars

(Parcentage of NPAs 1o tatal advance to that sector)

Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Asat
March 31, 2022

1 Agricuture and alled actvities
¢ MSME

1 Corpornte bormwers®

A Sarvices

5 Ursecured personal ioars

6 Auto loses

7 Other paesonal ans

5000

600

+Ursocured and Rapanable o Densand

(b) Movement of NPAs

Particulan

Asant
March 31, 2022

1 Net NPAs 10 et addvance (%)
i) Mowsmant of NPAS
1) Opening balance
b} Addton during the year
) Rnchuction/ wrise off duning the year
) Cloging balince
1) Mavemant of prowisions dor NPAS
4) Opening balance
) Addition during the year
) Rechaction/ write off dusing the ywar
d) Chesing batance

15600

2300

4900

(C) Detall of non-performing financisl asset purchased/sold

The Company has not purchased/sokd non-performing financial asset (n the curent and pravious year

\J/M/\a—y»lg‘
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ADVIX CAPITAL LIMITED
foncyd Officec G-5, 01, Vikas Last Surfabi Bach, New Dehi- 110026

CIN: LGS 10001 1985P! | wawadvicapital com
Rustuted fidated Finmnchal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
Nate No, 44:Details of significant i in subsdiaries and asseon
(Amount in Lakhs.
g [As st March 11, [As at March 31, |~umn.
rvestinest In Subsidiary of Incorparation [2024 2023 2022
AGWE Optodectraric Umited | SEaied m L
Cost) rdly 14044 146 4¢ 148 44
[RAVIECS Firrewat Urrvtnd { Stsed o Cosi] T 101480 1500
Note No. 45: Additional Disclosures for it
1) Oversaet assets (for thoan with Joirt Ventures and whaichains soraud] < Nl {Previout yeur. Ni|
(L Deaw chownr o reseewes- Nil (Prwicus ywar Nij
I Dischriune of Penaltiod iporiad by REL & other mgulators Nl (Previoes ywar. N
() Regisition claaned bam othar frencal wetor sequlaton:
Tha Compeny is registered with following cthar fnandsl sector raguion
1) Minisey of Carparate Affsirs (MCAY)
i) Minintry of Financn (Frandial IntaTigence Uni)
il Securifs and Exchange flased of India (S£6)
) Cartina| Rugiitry of Securiization Asset Reconstruction and Security Intevent of Incks (CERSAN
1) Datsils of francing of parant Company product
This disclonur is sot applcable s the Campary dows nat S wy holding et Compary
) Exposeres
) Bposuee to el state sctor-As per Table balow
Loans & Advances Year ended Yearended  Year ended
March 31,2004 March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Amount Amount Amount
Tt Projects Ld 5000 74956
Fun City Developers Pt it 500 0
Indian Reshors Pve (i 25000 0000
1 b Shastri Construction P Ld* w0 9000
New Horteon Bubwell vt Lic o0 5000
Unbewcel Developers A Ld s B0
Tarvinder Buldprop Pt Lad 15000
(10 Exporure 10 capral masker-NI (Previaus Year - NI
Note No.46 : Re- Grouping
Contain machnification have beon to ithwe pericd Finencial ssiterrents % enhance comparabi ity with the curent fnancial year

At & mauidt, cratain Ene itwers have bisen raclatefind in S Balinca dhent b at 318t Maech 203 the datasls of which are a5 under,

[thar Financial Lisbilities | Before Recssification

|tatutory Dues Payable | 3126 | B1. |
Other Noa Financal Usbillties Defore Reclasification on

Stabutory Dues Faable | 31,06 | 3126 |

W
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Cretain redassfization have bean % thi comparitive peried Firandal satements 10 enhance comparatiliny with the current fnandial year

fnandal & enhance compllance with guidance note on the Dision-1i- 1nd AS Shedule I 1o the companies At
As 2 result, cretaln live Items have been redassied In the Balince shaet as at 115t March 2022 the detalls of which am as undwe
Deforn Recssification e on
Rearve for Doubehd Debts 3 [
Koo 195 {1.95;

Gthes Non Financial Usbilities [ Tefors Reclassification mmq
I_‘—‘sbmfwmmum | | 62| 629
Financial Assets | Before Rechssification m‘mﬁﬁq
mum' | | T | 15

Wt off from Loans andlay S Assets

Other Fimanclal Assets | Bafore Reclasification m@
Secy gty | | €775 | £77%

[ Before Reclassification | Redassification_|Rechssification |
| 6715 | 1E775)] J

accounts of-
1. Provision of Income Tax foe prioe
g. Prewision foe impaitment an financisl ‘
" e a (062)
3, Reserve for Bad & Doubthil Dabts . - (033)
4. Transter 1o Specal Reserve . - (2.00)
5. Other Hinancial Charges - d
16 Other MisceBarseous Expenses ¥ .

: = eh)]
C. Restuted Profit After Tax (A+B) b5 — 3005 44357

Nate No, 48; Others

1) Pursuant %0 sachan 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, CSR i sppticabile 10 every comparty having net worth of fis 300 arere of mor,
or & tumevet af e Ry 1,000 crese o i net profit exceeding Rs 5 crore n any financial ywar, Sice the Company has exceedec] the
¥ speciled abawe, provisions of Section 15 of the Compariny Act, 2013 is appicatie % the Company. The comgeny hm spends
1245 Lakhs within the specifind charation undier CSR which exceads the hmits speciied under the presivicns of Section 135 of
companies Act, 2013

(b} The Comparry does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Adt, 2013 o saction

1) Thas corrpurry choes nert birve any transaction which [s not recorded In the boats of et hiss boen d or dlsciosed
a4 Income dring the year In the tax assessmant undar the Income Tax Act't1961

1) Other additional informasicn puruant 16 Schedue [l 10 the Companies Act 2013 are s il or nat applcable
f8) The Praious pear's figures have bowns reclissfied fre grouped and / of godd whaes carmd y
M Figunes have bean rounded off 1o the nearest likh and two decmel theeo!

)
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RESTATED STANDALONE FINANCIALS

Chartered Accountants

| @( KSMC & ASSOCIATES

;\;l’dllom Repart on the restated summary statements of assets and linbilitics as at March 31, 2024, March 31,
2023 and March 31, 2022, summary statement of profits and losses (including other comprehensive income),
swmnnry statement ol cash flows and changes in equity for the period ended March 31, 2024 and each of the
pears ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 of Advik Capital Limited (collectively, the "Restated

Summiry Statements )
Ta

The Boarvd of Direetprs
Advilk Capital Limited,

Dear Sirs:

JoWe have examined the uttached Restated Summary Statements of Advik Capital Limited (the* Company™)
annexed (o this report and prepared by the Company lor the purpose ol inclusion in the Letter of Offer in
connection with its Right Issue. The Restated Summary Statements, which have been approved by the Board of

Ditectors of the Company, have been prepared in accordanee with the requirements oft

a) Subesection (1) of Section 26 of Part | of Chapter 111 of the Companics Act 2013 (the "Act”);

Refevant provisions of The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issuc of Capital and Disclosure

h}
Requirements) Regulations. 2018, as amended ("ICDR Regulations"); and

€1 The Guidanee Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (as amended) issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accomtants of Indin (“ICAIT), (the “Guidance Note™)

Manugement's Responsibility for the Restated Summary Statements

2 The preparstion of the Restated Summary Statements, which are to be included in the Offer documents is.thc
responsibiline of the Management of the Company. The Management's responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining adequate internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Kestated Summary Statements. The Management is also responsible for identifying and ensuring that the

Company complics with the ICDR Regulations,

Auditors’ Responsibilities
3. We have examined such Restated Summary Statements taking into consideration:

['he terms of relerence and terms of our engagement agreed with you vide our engagement leter dated April
29, 2024, requesting us to carry out the assignment, in connection with the proposed Right Issue of the

Company:
b The Guidance Note; The Guidance Note also requires that we comply with the cthical requirement ol the
Cade ol Ethies issued by the ICAL
¢ Concepts oltest cheeks and materiality to obtain reasonable assurance based on the verification of evidence
supporting the Restated Unconsolidated Summary Statements; and

d. The requirements ol Section 26 of the Act and the ICDR Regulations;

G-5, Vikas House, 34/1, East Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-1 10026 (India)
Ph: 011- 41440483, 42440483, 45140483 | E-mail : info@ksmc.in, admin@ksme.in | Website : wwwiksmc.in
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b was performed sately o assist you in meeting
!

o responsibilities in relation to your Compliance with
i "'l' :‘l:u 1CDIR Repulitions and the Guidinee Note ! : the
il

i comeetion with the proposed Iight [ssue,

lcmuml Summnry Stemonts us per wudited Finamelnd Statements
1 These Restated Suminny Statements ave heen compiled by the management of the Compuny from:

a /\u:I;:;‘d E;l“‘ll;cf‘\& :}:l‘c!ltglils ol the Company us wt and for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024, March 31,2023
"'"f f“l' h 2 I‘ =022, which were prepared inaceordanee with Ind AS as preseribed under section 133 of the
Actrewd with velevant rules thereunder and oter aceounting principles generally aceepted in India, which

have been nppraved by the Boaed of Di s i i i i
) rectors at their mecting held on 18" April 20: y
May 28, 2022 respoctively: und 13 pril 2024, April 29,2023 und

5. For the purpose of our examination, we have relied on:

< Auditors” reports issned by «l 18" Apri ¢ . ;
company for the ye: Y us dated 18" April 2024 and 29 April 2023 on the financial statements of the

Sy arended Mareh 31, 2024 and ended March 31, 2023 respectively as referred in Pacagraph

Auditor’s Report dated May

28, 2022 issued by the previ i ) i
Company s 8t and for the Yy the previous auditor, on the financial statements of the

years ended March 31, 2022 s referred in Paragraph 4(a) above;
0. Based on the above and according to the information und i i
explanations g 1o us, h
Summary Statements of the Company, : e

Jeabliil s attached o this ri read with basis of preparation and respective
significant accounting policies have b ol DR R i

cen prepared in accordance with the Act, ICDR Regulations, Guidance
Note, and these Restated Summary Statements:

have b;cn made after incorporating adjustments and regroupings for the material amounts in the
respective financial year to which they relate;

does not have any qualifications in the auditors' reports on the audited financial statements of the
company as at March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 which require any adjustments o
the Restated Consolidated Financial Information.

7. In accordance with the requirement of Section 26 of the Companics Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Sccuritics) Rules 2014, the SEBI Regulations, the Guidance Note, as amended
from time to time and in terms of our engagement agreed with you, we further report that:

i) The Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilitics as at March 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 examined by us,
as set out under Annexure 1o this report, read with the ‘Basis of Preparation and Significant Accounting
Policies of the Restated Financial Statements” are after making such adjustments and regrouping/re-
classification as in our opinion were appropriate and are more fully described in the statement of Material
Adjustments to the Financial Statements. As a result of these adjustments, the amounts reporting in lhc
above-mentioned statements are not necessarily the same as these appearing in the audited financial
statements of the Company for the relevant financial years,

i) The Restated Statement of Profit and Loss of the Company for the year ?nded Marci_n 31,2024, ZQZ‘.! and
2022 examined by us, as set out under Annexure to this report, read with the ‘Basxls of Preparation and
Significant Accounting Policies of the Restated Financial Statements are after making such adjustments
and regrouping/re-classification as in our opinion We fe-appropriate and are more fully de_scribed in the
statement of Material Adjustments to the Financial Statements. \_A‘\s a result of these adjustments, the

e

A
 Dyoeun)
d £
"\ &
2 S
. .
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st the ahove-mentioned
LS reporting in writioned stuteenents are not necessarily the same o ing |
(e avndited financinl statements of the Company Tor the relevant Ilnalwi:l yeurs, ek ooty

e Restited Statement of Cash (ows of e Company for the year end

Q’.‘Jm,‘l,'lwl by . as sl oul under Annexure lul lhi: u1mﬂ.>wnd WIL:- hllll:cr ﬂ;}::uzgzr-sp,z 02-3 bl
Significant Accounting Policies of the Restated Financial Statements are glter making s ;nu?llnn -
aned l\.‘gll)ll[)l.llh"llt-c.lll“iﬁcillinll as i our opinion were appropriate and are more ﬁ:‘ﬁ Dd:xlq;::wm‘
-mlluun:nl of h!:olm;ml Adjustments 10 1he Financial Statements, As a result of lhcscy nd‘us'tlme b
-ll":"“"“;* Whi-nmg' I the above-mentioned statements are not necessarily the same as lhnsi Y 'n‘rl:n ll:u:
e anditedd Tmaneial stawments of the Company for the relevant financial years, -y

al)

% “x‘:;""" notaudited any fnancial statements of the Company for period ending March 31,2022, Accordingl
Sxprosy o opinion on the financial position, resulls of operations, cash flows and statement of changes |};|
equity of the Company for period cnding Marsh 31, 2022, -

9. The Restated Summa
. { R ry Statements do not reflect the effects of events that occurred subsequent to the audited
financial statements mentioned in paragraph 4 above, AP VRPN A ot i

1. ?s:;d ml‘:;”:l:‘;“'d et i;l\ any way be construed as a reissuance of re-dating of any of the previous audit reports
' the Previous Auditors, nor should this report be const v opini i
et o P ued as a new opinion on any of the financial

11, Wehave no responsibility to update our report for events and eircumstances oceurring aller the dale of the report.

12 In our 0_pini0n. the abgvc Restated Financial Information contained in Annexure 1o this report read along with
the !?usns .ol’ Preparation and Significant Accounting policies after making adjustments and regrouping/re-
classification as considered appropriate and have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of Section 26
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules 2014, to
the extent applicable, the SEBI Regulations, the Guidance Note issued in this regard by the 1CAL as amended
from time to time, and in terms of our cngagement agreed with you.

13. Our report is intended solely for use of the Board of Dircctors for inclusion in the Offer documents to be filed
with recognized Stock Exchange in connection with the proposed Right Issue, Our report should not be used,
referred 1o, or distributed for any other purpose except with our prior consent in writing. Accordingly, we do not
accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report
i shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For KSMC & Associates

Chartered ccsiams ,,-,g-;'kscoj.\

UDIN: 24805732 BREGIWET24

Place: New Delhi
Date: 02.05,2024

139



ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

Office: G-3, 34/1, Vikas House, East urjabi Bagh, New Do 1 %0026
s mméunsnomson-z- tal com

Restte Standaions Balance Shee or the yer sndd sy Mirch 31,2024 (Amount in lakhs)
Particulars Note An Asat Asat
No. Murch 31,2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
L ASSEIS
Fmancial Assats
(a) Cash and Cash Equvalants 3 8025 13421 679
(1) Lowrs. 4 16,571.34 1.220.% 72905
[c) rwestmennts s 139387 145799 14846
(% Other Firancial Assety 6 3o 220.76 10073
19,364.57 1 985.07
Non-Fnanclal Assets
{2) Irwerviarios 7 120 mw 9163
(b} Dederred T Assets (Net) 4 3304 e -
(<} Propeety, Plant and Equipment L} 21686 10408 1091
(d} Oeher Noo-Fmandal Assets 9 5.82 1476 66.21
554,20 53433
Total Assets 19.918.86 13,607.8% ﬁ
B, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(a) Trade Payabiles
10 Total outstanding dues of MSME 194 -
1) Totsl outstanding dues other than MSME i 217 020 .
(b) Borrawings 1" 179622 725920 28370
(€) Other Firancial Linbiities 12 _4%4.48 8158 298
829481 734188 291.63
Nen-Finandal Liabilities
(8] Current Tax Lisbiites (Net) 13 19044 28832 n
{b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 14 - - 203
{¢) Other Non-Finencial Liabilities 1% 18450 11241 1039
57894 A00.73 16.13
() Euity Share Capital 16 428154 220183 458,74
(b} Other Equity 17 5,763.57 366351 48548
1104510 _S3sM___ own
Total Liabiities and Equéty 19,918.86 13,607,385 125204
Summary of significant sccounting polices z
Notes 1o Accounts 1-45

The accomparnying notes form an integral part of the financal statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of
Advik Capltal Limited
»-i M 1
Vikas Garg Karan
Director (Whele Time Director curn CEQ)
DINDO255413 =13 05!5]!6'
: st VA
‘ i
UDIN: 245057 32BKEGIWGS24 Dodpikn Mishra ﬁn\d ’
(Company Secretiry) (Whele Time Dwector curn CFO)
PAN: ECZPMA2988 N 10140086
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

G2 W1, i
e L o o
MMM‘EM"“I‘_" ended as 3t March 31, 2024 (Amawt in lekhy)
Particuars Note Your eoded Yoor ended Year ended
1,2024 March 31 arch 31
L Rewverue from Cperations \L] 8% jamr 190982
B Other leeome 20 4.75 715 -
I Yotal ncome (1410) 750,67 3,949.52
V. Expenses
(4] Fnance costs n 4164 FATRE] om
(EiProvision for impainmest cn firancll Inssrumens & w05 03
(€ Loss in fab valve Mestiurement 2 292 1% -
(] Purchases of stock-in-trade 2 a8 1306635 39400
{€) Changes in rwentories of S20ck-n-trade K] "m0 (067 M43
1N Employwe benefits experses b1 0 4385 N5
{0 Depreciation and amortzation asepeniis bl »ar .59 229
(1) Others experses 2 1430 13487 no7
Tots Expanses (V) 216397 33,62528 8
V. Profit/(Lass) before exceptional items and tax (I1V) 58570 130699 5159
VL Exceptions items . -
VIL Profit/ {Loas) before tax {V-VI) 58570 130699 S5
VITL. Tax Exposse:
Curmen eax LAk 357968 1145
Dieforrnd tax Sabi (104 a. 133
DC Profit/ (Loss) for the peried fram continuing operations (V- 403.99 95481 30.74
X Proft/ {Loss) trom discontisued operations -
XL Profit/ (Loss) for the period (D(+XE) 403,99 95451 074
XL Other Comprahanshve Income
(A) 0} s shat wi| not be reclissiied to profit or koss {1o0xw) 11,1545} 2
(i) Incame Tax effect on hereln abone 2618 30163
18] 40 Mérms that wil be reclassified 10 profit or ioss . -
[} Jocoeme Tax effect on herein abowe -
Total Other Comprehensive Income (A+B) (77.74) i
XHL Yotal Iecome/ for the +XII) 3126.26 S8 3874
Nomine Value per Equity Sham 1 1 1
Ewring per Lquity Shave - Basc 25 0 am 0os
Enrnin Uty Shave - Diluted 28 010 a0 nns
Sumeary of sgnhcan accounting poscies 2
NCtas 10 Accounts 1-45
The accompenying notes foom an inteqral pant of the financll statemenes.
A per cur repoct of sven date attached for and on behalt of the Board of
Advik Cagitad Lisitnd
V/vmﬁ
Vika Garg Kavan Bagge
Director Whcle Time Deector cum CEGY
\4 . DEND0255A413 o DSS&l&I
o Duin 57 .
UDIN: 245057 128KEGAS024 Dewpilks Mishrs m)a <
Company Socetry| (Whale Time Director cum CFOn
PAN EC2PMA 08H DN 10140085
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

- Cffice: G-3, 3471, Vieas Mouse, Eaxt Punjabi Ragh, New Dvii- 110026
b on tmmmmcuzzsns | wew, pralcom

mmmacg_mmumu ended as at March 31, 2024 ]Mhhkm
Particutars Year ended Year ended Your ended

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
(A) CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profity (Loss) bedare tae 586.70 130099 5159
Provision for impairment an finandial Instnaments (%)) 805 LKE)
Priar Period Expanses 016
Loss In fir value Moasurement 292) 1750
Reserve for Bad & Doubtfid Debts 3842 71586 208
Finance Cost 68018 2173 0oz
Depeedciation and Amortisation Expenses 3947 759 259

Operating profit/ (loss) before working capital changes 1407.00 178472 56.89

Changes o warking capital
(increasal decresse In Loans (5,410.09) (10,589 .56) (126.00)
{increase)f decresse in Other Finanoal Assets (9543 113747) 151.99)
(rereasel/ decreass in Inventories 1108 (2067 9153)
(Oncrease)/ decrease in Other Non-Financial Assets (72.70) (1816) {66.23)
Increasey (decrease) in Other Financial Liabiities 412,80 7456 09
Increase/ [decrease) in Trade Payable/ Other Non-Financial Liabilities 4038 1206 1.60

Cash gererated from operations (3.612.34) (8,874.50) 278.33)

Nat incame tax paid (Net of refunds) BN (517)

Net Cash from Operating Activities {3,612.34) (8,878.21) {283.50)

(B) CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

Purchise of Praparty, Plart and Eguipment {15225) 2.56) .
(Increasel, decrease In Investmeants (999.79) (2,548.00) -
(Increasalf Decrease in Other Bark Balances ’ -
Net Cash Genernted/(Used) In Investing Activities {1,152.04) (2.550.55) -
{C) CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from [ssue of Fquity Share Capital 207950 455344
Frocands from Securites Premium 2113
Increase/ (Decrease) In Borrawings S3rm 657048 288,70
Finance Cast _(6a008) {277.13) 002
Net Cash from Financing Activities AT10.42 11556.19 288.68
Netincresse/ (decrease) in Cash and cash squivalents (A+B+C) 53.97 12742 s
Cash ard cash oquivalents at the beginniag of the year 134.21 679 1.61
Cash & mnﬁt“dhm 80,25 13421 6.79
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Particulars Yoar ended Year anded Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cash in hand 10.56 1035 407
Balances with banks and financial institutloes
Bafance with banks in current scoounts 65969 123,86 272
___Deposit with Ovigina! Maturity af less than throa months
Total 5025 134,21 6.79

m.mmmtdmnmmmmm under the indieact method as set out in Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash
Florws’,

As per our report of even date attached For and on bahalt of the Board of
Advik Capital Limited
s .| \IN-Q/%"@ M
/ Koran Bagga
\ (Whole Time Director cum CEO)
omtmssm DIN: 05357661
7 S
Date: 02.05.2024 Grnen VYA
UDIN: 24505732BKEGIWGS24 Mishra Panka)

(Company Secretary) (Whole Time Directar cum €F0)
PAN ECZPMAZSER DIN: 10740085
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

O G-3, 247, Vikas Hinss, Lok Purgels S Dol 1 0008
ot O LS00 TSI CI0 2505 |

WmmthMhmm anded as ot Maech 30, 2024

.. Secacns el (A in b
Particuens Amoust
As M Merch 31, 2020 454, SRTA
Changes in Equity Svare Captal dus 1o prior peried emers

Peszned bulanca 3t the begining of he commnt repeding perisd ASATAA0 An

in the 5

unmiti% ui% 45274
Balarce 1t he of the cLerest caporting peried 458 w54

e 17, 174
e s =
Bakence o the oF Tt Qurminnt repons g penios uzm, 080
Chunges in the aquity shwe agital during the yeer E}ﬁ“ - LR

As at March 31, 2024

B Othertquey -
Particutars Amaigemation Seanity Retaned Bamings  Spacel Reserve i par ABE

As ot March 31, 2021 M7 B’g
Profit fov the Yeer -

Ceher Comqrehansive ncome fee the year

Dividen s

Trarster %o Spacial Reserve

Transher w2 Cenrgency Reserve .
Transfer to Ruserve dor Bad & Doubsis’ Debms - .
Trensher from Raeaboed Eamings -

Asat nmz w7 5120
Profit foe the Year -

Frcetendd during the year aenes
Tearafor 10 Special Resurve -

w LU 7

Receved diring fe year LI

Earm %
LT AT 628141 1 287,

Ag w1 March 31, 2021

Proft dor the Yaar

Cther compretansive income for the year
Dividenas

Transfor 1 Spocial Bmerve

Transfer to Costingancy reterve

Tranifer 10 Résares for Sad & Doutehul Dutrty

31,2

Particulan Asae At Asat

Anagamation Nesars 447 @y LIS
Security Pramium 625141 JATTAS rx
Hetained Famings 105442 aLm L0
Seecl Reserve a5 par AEE Nowmy a0 20693 wm

T —— ' — oy

Notes to Accounes
e dccorrparying nones Tom an intwgral pant of ?he fnascll statements. Foxr andt on Behalf of the Boand of
Advik Capital Lissited

L Vndgy

[ATGle Time Divecier cum CED

DINO2SSA1S DIN: 05357881
GMigd— 7

Oeogila Misrra g

(Compary Seoeiasy) (Wrole Time Divector cum CFO)
PAN: ECrvasd2aan OO W1addes
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED
Regd. Office: 63, 34/1, Vikas House, East Punjabi Bagh, New Delbi-110026
CIN: LE5100DL1985PLC022505 | www.advikcapital.com
1. {A) BACKGROUND
Our Company, Advik Capital Limited (thareafter “Advik Capital/ Compary”, was odginally incorporated as Quick Credit Linmitid' in Mew Delhi
on November 14, 1985 as & public mited company under the Comnpaeyes Act 1956, and was granted the certificate af incorperation by the
Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana at New Delhl. Our Comparty was granted the Certificate foe Commencamant of Business on
Norvrriber 20, 1985 by the Ragistrar of Companies, Daihl and Haryana at New Delhi. Submeguently, the name of our Company wis changed 1o
‘DU-Lite Industries Limited' snd 3 frish Certificate of Incorporation was granted by the Registrar of Companies, Dalhi and Haryana ot New
Dulhi on Septermber 20, 2030, The name of the Company was changed again to ‘Advik [ndustries Limited” #nd our Company receivad a fresh
certificate of incorporation which was granted by the Regstrar of Companies, Delv and Haryana at New Delhi on Fetruary 24, 2011 Finaty,
the name of cur Comperry was thanged to ‘Advik Capital Limited” and a fresh centificate of Incorporation consequent upon change of name
was granted by the Reglstrar of Companies, Delt at Delhi on July 7, 2017, Qur Compary wes registered as Non-Banking Finarcil Company
wide cemtificate of regstration daed anuary 7, 2003 bearing Na. B- 1400724 under section 45 I[A) of the Resarve Bank of India At 1934
Adwk Capital is currently a company ksted on BSE Our Company is a non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Campary registened with the
R31 Our Company & engaged primarily In tha business of finandal activities nameby aranting of finandial loans and tading in Secu ntkes/snires,
(B) STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The finandal statements for the year enced March 31, 2024 hawe been prepared Ly the Company n accordance with Indlan Accourting
Standarts (nd AS”) notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 s amended from time to time, and ozher
applicable regufatory norms/guidelnesTramewark. The Standatone Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Staternesst of Changes in
Equity are prepared and presented as per the requirerments of Division Il of Schedule Tl to the Companies Act, 2013 applicatie foe Non-

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting polides applied in preparation of the § lone Frisncal § ane as giwen balow:

21 Basis of Preparation of Financial Stataments
These Standslone Francal Statements hive Deen prapamd on going cancem base following accrusl systerm of accounting. The assets and
liabikthes have boer measured at historical cost ar at ameortised cost of at L value at the end af aach reporting penod.

2.2 Basis of Measuremaent

The firsncial statements hin been prepared an a historkal cast basls, except for certan frandal mstruments that sm measred at fair vales
at the and of each reperting periad, defined benefit plan - plan assets maasured at far value, assets held for sale which s measurad it lowes of
cost of Tair valua fess cost of sake. Hstorkal cast is generally based on the fair valus of the considerasion given for goods and services

Far value messurements are catogorised Into Lisel 1, 2 or 3 as per Ind AS reguirement, which are descrined as faliows:

Levil 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjustad In active markets for identical sssets or Eabilites that the

entity con sceess ot the measurement date

Level 2 inputs are inguts, other than quoted prices induded wahin Lavel 1, that are observable for the asset o Sability, enher directly or

Lewel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liabiity.

23 Property, Plant and Equipment and investment Property

Recognition and Measurement

Property, plart snd equipment beld Sor use of for administrathe purposes, are stated in the balance shaet at cost s accumulatedt
depreciation snd accumuated (mpairment |osses. The cost inchudiss non-refundabie 1ames. dutles, freight and other incidental eiperses relsted
1o the acquisition and instlation of the respective assats. Assets having indwidual value of less than 5,000/- are charged to statesment af

immlmﬁonyconmsotbiﬂangm«nmm rantals. The Comparry fallows cost model for measurnmant of imestment property.

Depreclation
Depreciation & provided using the written down value method aver the usah life i prescrbed under Schedule 1o the Companies Act, 2013
Depreciation i calculated on pro-rata basls, Including the manth of addition and excluding the manth of sale/dispasal. Leasehokd
mpraverments are sartised over the underlying leass term on a straight §ne basis. Reskdual value in respect of Buikdings and Vehides is
corsidernd as 5% of the cast and In case of other assets "Nil,

The estimatod usaful Ives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end af oach

reparting peniod, with the effoct of any changes in estimate accounted for on o prospective basis

De-recognition

An item cf property, plant and equipment of inwestinent propey i da-recognized upan disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arese from the continued wse of the asset. Ary gain or loss iising on e disposal of mtirement of an item of property, plant and
SqUIpMInt o investment propeny is deteamingd as tha difference batween the sales proceads and the (@mying amount of the asset and ks
Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress are carried a1 cost, compeising direct cast and related incldental expensas to acquire proparty, plant and equipmant.
Assets that are not ready 50 intended use are 850 shown under G wWork- iIn-progress.

_“\“:i;;:l. sz,\%*z
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Recognition and measwrement
Intangible assats are recogrizad at cost of acquisition which inchodes ol expenditur that can be directly attributed or ablocated on &
reasonable and corsstent basis, 10 ceate, produce or making the asset ready for its intended use.

Amortisation
Amortisation is recognised on & straight-ling basis over their estimatad usafid Ives. The estimated usefud lile and amertisation meshod are

reviewid it the and of each reporting penod, with the effect of any charges in estimate being accounted for on o praspectve Diss

De-recognition
An intangible assat s de-recogrized on disposal, o whon no future ecanomic berefits sre sxpectad from use or dispesal. Gains or losses
artsing from de- recognition af an intangible asset, maksured as the d#ferance between the net disposal proceeds and the camying amount af

the assat, Is ecognised in profit or koss when the asset is de-recognizad

2.5 Revenue Recognition

Interest income on loans
mcmmﬂmmmmwmﬂammwﬁdbylmmm«mmmtmmﬂhunmlmm
subsoquently measured ot amortized cost or fise vatue through other comprahensive income (FVOCI). EIR is calodated by considerng any fees
and all incrementadl casts that are directly attributable to acquisition of a Snsncal ssset snd it rpeesents 3 rate that exactly dscounts
estimated fulure cash pay froceipts through the exy d ife of the financial asset to the gross carmying amount of 3 financal asset or to
the amortized cost of a finandal liabilty.

The Company recognizes intersst income by applying the EIR to the gross carmying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired
assets. I case of credit-impalred financial assets regarded as Stage 3'the Compiery recagnizes interast income on the et amartized cost of
financisl assets at EIR. M financial assat is no fooger cradit-impaired Company reverts tocalodating interest income on 3 gross basis.
Additional inserest/ioverchae interest/panal charges an recognized ondy when it is ressorably certain that the ultimate collection will be mace.

Commission income

Income from business pondent services s gnieed &5 ancd when the sarvices ane rendered as pes agreed terms and conditions of the
contract,

Dividene Income

Dividerx] incom is recognized at the time when the nght ta receive Is established by the reporting date,

Rental Income
WlmimtmﬂmntwmﬁyomomduundmmmwlmbnMOrlmmanmgNlmbummhe
term of the lease exoeps whare the rentals are structured to increase in line with expeacted general Lease granted o

recogrised as an wtegral part of the togal rental income, over the torm of the kease. Rental income from sub-leasing is also recogmised in &
simitar manner and indudad under ather ncome.

Sale of Securities
Rewnue from sale of seowrdties (nchudes defivery and intra day both) is recogrised to the extent that it can be reliahly maisuma and is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company.

Misceltaneous Income
AX ceher income & recognized on an acorual basis, when there & 00 uncertainty in the uitimate reslization/ collection.

2.6 Borrowing costs
Borrowing cots consists of inlerest and other cost that the Company d In Y with the b y of Runds. Barrowing costs
charged to the Staterment of Profit and Loss on the bess of effective interest rate method

2.7 Imcome Taxes

Currant tax

Curmnt 1ax is maasured at e amoun! especied 1o be paid in respect of taxable income for the year in pccordance with the Income Tax Act,
1961, Current tax comprises the tax payable on the tamble income or loss for the yair and any ady o th tax pay in respect ot
P years It s d using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

Currant tax assets and llabikties are offset when there Is a legally enfarceable gt to set off the recognised amourts and thers is an intention

to sattle the wsset and lisbiity 0o & net bisis
V/\:Mr-v\g
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Deferred tax

D tax is recognised on termporary diferances by the carrying smounts of assets and Kabilties in the financial statements and the
cornespanding tax bases used In the computition of taxsbie income. Deferred tax Is moasured at the tax rates bised on the lows that hawe
bunemo-dofmwmdymedb;nnenpuﬁ\gdm.Monmm«wmnmvdmﬂumwsﬂﬂemdhwm
amount of assetsfisbiities, Deferred tax assots and labilities aee offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set aff ument tax sssets
against linbities, and they relate 10 incoma tawes keviad by the same tax autharity.

A deferrad tax linbiity is recognised for a taxabie temporicy differences. A dederred tae asset s meognised far

all deductible termparary differences to the axdtent that it is probable that future taxabile peofits wil be avadable against which the deductible
mwwdﬂmmunuumhm.mmmnmmnmhmpmhgdmuummdu(edmhemwmitsmw
probatda that the melsied tax benefit wil be realsed

2.3 Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benafits are expensed as the relsted service Is provedad. A latility (s recogrisad for the amount expected to- be pald If
the Company has a present tegal or constructive abligation 1o pay this amount as & msult of pest service provided by the emplayae and the
abligaticn can be estimated refably.

Other long term employee benefits

Benefits under the Company's kave ancashment corstitute other long term emplayee benedits. Tre Camparny's net otbdigation in respect of
leann encashmant is the amount of future benefit that emplayses hawve prosant vadse, snd the fai value of any rfated assets = daducted. The
caloulation is pesformed using the projected unit cradit mathod. Ay gains o losses are racognized in profit ar Inss in the periad in which they

29 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. The Company cansiders cash equivalents as i shoet- tarm balances (with an coiginal
maturity of thege Months o less from the diste of acquisition], highly liquid Frestiments that are resdily convertible into knawn anmounts af
cash and which are subject 10 an insignificant risk of changes in value,

2.10 Equity Investment in Subsidiaries
Imvestments reprasenting eguity interest in subisidisries are accounted for at cast in accordance with Ind AS 27 Seg Finandial §

2,11 Provisions contingent assets and contingent labilities

Prowtsions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, 35 a result of past events, and when o relistie estimate of the amount of
abligation can be made at the roporting date, These estimates are reviewnd ot each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the cunrent best
estimates, rovisions are discounted Lo their present values, where the time value of maney is materal,

Contingent Iakility is dischosed for, Possible obligations which wil be confirmed anly by futlee events not

whaolly within the control of the Company or Fresent obligations ansing from past events where it is not probatike th e outiow of resaurces
wil be required to settie the otxigation ar a rellable estirate of the smount of the obligation cannct be made
Contingent assets arm not racognized but disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits i probable.

2.2 Leases
Leases are dissilied as france leases whenever the tenms of the lease ranster substantialy all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. M other leases are classifiod as operating leases

The Company as kessor

Armounts due from lessees undesr finance leases are rocogrised as receaitiles af the amnount of the Compary’s net irvestment in the keases.
Finance lease Income is allocatad to accounting periods <0 a5 1o reflect » constant periodic rate of retum on the Company’s net rwastment
autstanding in respect of the leases,

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised an a straight-lne basis over the 1 of the resvant lease. Where the rentals aro
structured solely to increase in lne with axpected general inflation 1o compe: for the Comparny's expected i, Y cost In creases, such
Incraases are recognised in the year in which such benefits sccrue

The Company as lessee

Rernal experse from aperating leases ks ganerally recognisad on a straight-ing basis over the tenn of the relevant lesse. Where the rentals aro
structured solely to Incraase in line with eepected general inflation 10 compensate for the lessor's expected inflatianary cost Incraases, such
Increases are recogrised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under aperating leases are recogrised as an

expense in the period h‘-mmm‘ammm
Wu%e»«;{
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2,13 Foreign currency

Functional Asd presentation currency

It inchuded In the fnancial statement of the Compary are measured using the cumency of the prmary econooic envecoment in which the
um:yopuu«mcummamnmmwsmsmmnmmummhmmnmmmum
Company's functional and presentstion cumrency.

Transaction and Balances

Fareign currency transactions are translated inta the hunctional currency, by appilying the exchange rates an the forEgn curmency: amounts at
the date of the transactian. Foreign curmency manetary ites aulstanding 3t the balance sheet date are comveried to functional custency using
the dasing rate, Non- y iterve o inated in a foreign currency which are carmad at histarical (o8t s mperted Lsing the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction.
adnngcdﬂmmsuﬁrqonmmmmmﬂwuunpou‘ngdmmmndiﬂmmﬁwlhosntwhkhm
were initialy rocorded, are rcognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise,

2.14 Segment reporting
The Comparty Kentifies segmant basis of the internal cegarization and management structure. The operating segments are the segments
for which separate feundal information is avallable and for whichoperatiog profit/lass are reguiarty reviewed by the CODM (chvaf

operating decision maker) and in assessing performance, The accounting plices adopted for segment np&nngnnlmw'nhme
pccounting paicios of the Company. Segment revenue, segment epenses, segmant assets and segment listslitios havn boen ientified to
segments on the basisol the relationship with the aperating activities of the segment,

2.15 Use of Judgements and Estimates

In preparing these financiel statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that

affact the application of accounting policies s the reported amaunts of assets and kabilities induding contingent lisbilites and assets) 25 on
the date of the financial statements and the repartad incomme and #xpanses for the reparting pencd Maragement believes that tho

usad in the preparation of the finandial statemants are prudent and reasanable. Actual resuls may differ from thess estimates,

Estimates and urderlying assumptions are reviewnd on an angoing basis. Reisions 10 ACCOUNting estimates are recogrised prospectively,

2.16 Earning Per Share

Basic eamings per equity share & colculsted by dividing the net  proft or loss attributable 1o eqpsty sharohelders af the Company
by the weighted average rumber of equity shares cutstanding during the

finandial ymar.

To calaulate diluted sarnings per shans, the net proft or ks for the period ttributabie (o ecuety sharehalders

and the weighted average number of shares cutstanding during the penad are adjusted for the eflects ot al dilutive potential equety shares.

2.17 Dividends
Final divickents are racorded as a lablity on the date of approwval by the sharehalders and Interim dividends are
recorded & & lisbiity 00 the date of dedaration ty the Baard of Directars of the Company.

2.18 Impairment of Non-Financisl Assets

At cach reporting cate, the Compary assassis wheeher ther & any Indication that an ssset may be impainec If anry such i eists, the
Company estimatas the recaverable amount of the ssset. Recoversble amonnt Is highar of an asset's net seling price nd its value in wse It
such recaversbie smount of the assat af the meoverable amount of the cash generating Lnit 10 which the asset belongs s less than its
carmying amount, the carying amount i reducesd 10 its recoverable amount The reduction is treated as an snparmant loss and is recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If at the reparting date there = an indication that if a presfously assassed impairment kass no | onger exists,
1he reconerable amaunt is reassessad ard the asset is reflocied at the recaverabile amount. Imparment ossés are recognised in peodit and loss
An impaimment 1ass is reversd only 1o

the extant that the asset’s carrying amount does ROt exceed M Carying AMount that would have bren determined, st of gapreciaton ar

amortisation, if no impairment loss had been mcognised
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2.19 Impairment of Financial Assets
IMConwmugnheWmnamﬂflemdlﬁtﬁnmuammaremlmunda FYTPL: Finandal assets that are
debt instrufmants Lease receivables, Financial guarantee contracts issued, Loan commitment issusd. No imparment |065 Is recognised on
mtylmmmmmmlwmm«ummaindu losses. They are measured as folows!

_Firancial assets that are not crodit impaired- as the present value of alt cash shortfalls that are possible within12 months after the repeeting

_Finwcial assets that are cradit impaired - as the ditferance between the gross carmying smount and the presentvalse of estimsted cash flows

With respact to trade receivables and other financial assets, the Company measures the loss allowance at anamount egual to lifetime expected

cradit Josses Loss allowances for financial assets measured st amortised cost s deducted from the gross carmyngamount af the

For financis assets at FVTOCY the loss sllowance Is recognised in OCL

Loan assets- The Company foliows o ‘thres-stage’ model for inparment based on Canges In crodit qualitysinge netial recognition as

summarzed befow.

Stage 1 includes koan assets that have not had o significant Incroase in crecht fisk since inital fecognition or that have low credit risk at the
rting dato.

SN:; 2 inclucies loan assets that have had a significant increese in cradit risk since initiaf racogrition but that o not have cljective endence

of imparment.

Stage 3 includes Josn assets that have objective evidance of mpairment 3t the feporing date

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 15030 assots and at lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 %oan assets

Write-off
Finsncial assats are written off either partialy or in thek entirety to the extent that ther s no realistic prospect of recovery, Arty Subiseguent
recoveries we (redited 1o impairmest on francial instrument on statemant of profit andd loss

2.20 Financial instruments
A Financlal instrument i any contract that geves rise 10 a finandal aszet of cew entity and a financial Hability or equity mstrument of anather

Initial recognition and measwremont

Firancial assets and financial listilities ane recognized when the Compary becomes 4 party 0 the cantractusl prodsions of the financisl
Instrument 8 are measurnd hmdlyuﬁrwmmodhfwumwsms\anuemmumd&mdulmmﬂnancu
lisklitias s descrioed below,

(A) Non-derivative financial assets

Subsequent Measurement

Financial assets carried at amortized cost - a financial asset is measured 3 the amartized costif both the Sallowing cond@tions ane met:
The asset is hakd within a business model whase abijective is to hold assats for collecting contractual Gish flows, and
Contractusl terms of the asset glve rise on spedfied dates ta cash flows that are sasly payments of prncipa and interest (SPPT cotne
principal amourk outstanding.

Aer initial messurement, such Srancial assets are subsaquently maasured at amartized Cost using the effective

interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is caloulated by taking ieto account any discount of pramium on scquisdion i foes or casts that
are an integral pert of the EIR. The EIR amortization & included in interest incoene in the Staternent of Profit and Loss.

Financlal assets (debt instruments e.q. loans) are messured at FVOC when both of the following conditions

are met:

The instrumant is held within a busiess modal, the abjective of which is achioved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and sefing finandal assets.

The contractual tenrs af the Snancial asset meet the SPPA test.

EVOCI debt instruments are subsoquently messursd ot f3ir vilue with gains and Jasses aising due ta changes in falr
mmngvbedinoammmmammoﬁminm«mmm»mmmutuﬂnandalmmﬂmrdu anartzed

Financial assets measured at FVPL - FVPL is a residual category for debl instnaments. Any debit instrument, which
doosnmmudmhmﬁmxumcwmummmnwnmmvt.nimdlcnangn recognized n the

Derecognition of Financlal Assets
ﬁmncialm(ormnappllablc,apunolmusmorpmofaynupo'simhvfmm.nnsjude-mowudaa remavad
fram the Compary’s balance sheet) when the cantractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or when the
finandial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. Further, if the Company has not retained control, it shall also
de-recognize the ﬁmnoalmmd recognize separstuhy s assets o llabiities any rights and obigations created of retained in the tracster,

e
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{B) Mon Dartestivis Financial Liabilitieg

Subiseguent Messurement
Subsequent o inital recognition, 8l fon—deivatie financil liabilities am messured 8 smartized ot using tha effective interest method.

Derscognition of Firendal Lisbilities

& financlal llabilty s de-recognized when the obligation undss e lisbility & dichamed or canceled ar expired, When an eesting financial
liakslity is repdaced by ancthar from tha same lander an substamtislly different terrs, or Bha 1ens of an exeting labslity are substantally
madified, such an sechange or madilication is treated as fhe de= recognition of the arging! lisbiity s the recognition of & new liability. The
differanca In the respective carmying amounls is recogrized in the Sisemant of Profit and Loss.

221 Fair v lish efbaUrsmaent

The Campany reasures financal instrumants at fair valoe at each balanee shee date using valuation techrigues. Fair vilus is the price that
woulkd be received 1o sell am assel or paid o transter a llabiity in an arderly transaclion belwean markat particpants ak the messurement date
Tha fair value measurement is based on the presusnglicn 1het the Transactan 1o seil the asses ar fransfer the liaklity takes place o ther.

a]  Inthe principal market for the asset or lability, or

B Inihe absance of a principal market, in the mast advantagecus ket Tor tha asset or Rablity.

The Campany uses valation technigues that are approorate in the dreunsiances and forwhich sufficiend data are availsbie to medsun fair
walue, manimizing the use of relevent clservabla inputs and miremizing the use of unckservable inputs. Al assets and lisblities for which far
yalse |5 rarasured are categonized with fair value hisranchy info Leval L Leved [ and Level [l hased an lewd of gt

232 Ofisetiing of fimandial Instnaments

Financial assets and financal labliftkes are offset and the net amourd @ reportsd in the balance sheet when the Campany has a kogally
endorceabli right bo affset the recagnised amaunts and thare s an intention 1o setile on 3 rel basls, or malioe the asset and setile the Rabiliy

U/M@*:-#
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

fegd. Office G-3, wl.mmmwmwmtnm
CIN: LESTOZ0L 1985022805 | m

Restated Notes on Standalone Finandial Sta for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note No.3: Cash and Cash Equivalents Aot In lakda)

Particulars Asmt Asal As ot
Mareh 31, 2024 ) 1

Cashiin hand 1056 1033 407

Badances with barks and finencial invtisations -

Balance with banks in current sccournts 6969 12405 n
Total 8025 13421 679
Mota Nod: Loans
Partioslars st As ot As ot

Maech31.2024  March31, 2023 March 31,2022
AL Amortised cost
Uesincurod, consdered good
Loans repayubie cn demand 675355 41505 73100
Term loans 956300 747000 -
Total 1673865 nx0% 13100
Leny: Impaeemet loss alrmance® 16531 100.00 155
Net 1657134 11,220.56 72805
) Other Detnils
Particulars As a4 As at At
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Secured by property, plact and equipment rcluding fand ang bulding - . .
Secured by hook debts. imventories, margin money and other workng . - .
Unyecured VR TIEES 1132056 73100
Less Impalrment boss allowance* win 100,00 195
Total 1657134 11.220,56 729,05
Loans in indta
Public Sector
Cthen THTI665 1132056 0
Legs: Imparment ioss aliowance* 16531 10000 195
Totsl 1657134 1122056 T 72908
b) Loans with specified parties:
Particulars A at Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Promaters ] Nil ]
[Arectors L] Nil NI
Key Management Persanne’’s il NIl nNil
Other Related Farties Ml Nit NIl
Total Nl N N
Note Mo.3 : Investments
Pacticulars Avat Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
n Equity | 23067 14979 ]
Inwestment i1 Other Irstraments -
Total 239387 1497.99 14844
“Imgainment Loss

The provision towards stardard assets basad on IRACP nonms of RRL (Refer Note 41 for detalls)
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

O G-3, M1, Vias Howes, Cant Perjati Bagh, New Delhé- 110004
. anmtmamLM|mM

Rastated Motes on Standalane Fimandal Sy for the year ended March 31, 2024
) Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
Particulars As ot As ot As at
_ March31, 2024 March3) 2923 March 31,2022
[3) Quoted . . =
1) Unquoted
(i} Sebsidrics
Advik Optestactronics imaed “aa 14844 RLUTRE

(854800 Equity Stwres of RS 10 representing 57.93% holding)*
Advikca Firmest Limited

(594000 Exuity Shares of R 10 repressnting 100% hoksngr™ 101430 1500
Gi) Assocates
Gii) Others -
1.163.24 16344 14844
d at Amertised Falr Value through Other
comprebensive Income
{2} Quoted
{b) Unguoted
(i) Assoicates
i) Others
1Brij Gopal Camstructicn Private Uimited) 25500 253300
(4,70,000 Equity Shares of Hs 10}
Add/Less Fair Value gainloss) on remeasuremnet through OO 13e3n (199845
121053 133455 :
Total 2,39387 1,497.95 140,44
10 mvestmasnts in ndia 23047 14979 48k
(8 Yewestmeres outside ndiy .
Total 2,30387 149195 14844

* Includes 400 Equity Shaves held by Nominee Share Hokders s folows:
100 Ecpaity Shares (2.Y. 102 by Vieender Kumar Agarwal

100 Epaity Shares (P.Y. 1005 by Rehab Kumar Agsrwa

100 Equity Shares (2. 102 by Shakeu! Kumar Agarwal

100 Equity Shares (P.Y. 1000 by Mntju Agarwadl

"I!lm\mmwmmlMumMwmdumhchupdno'umllw”wmlwdmofmmw bry the company.
Ttm price per share b5 bazed on the valuation mport given by Canified independent valuer tused on NAV Method.

The pumber of shares inchades 6 Fquiy Shares held by Nomines Share Holders s folows:
1 Equity Shares {P.Y. 1) Ly Mobit Bindal

1 Equity Shares {P.Y. 1) by Deepika Mahra

1 [quity Shaees (PY. 1) by Pradeep Kumar Gussain

1 Equity Shares {P.Y. 1) by Astrmini Krmir

1 Equity Shaees {P.Y. 1) by Marju Agarwal

1 Equity Shaves (P.Y. 1) by Shakul Kumar Agarwal

*+ Zaved on Fair Valuation duly certified by indepandnm valuer,

) Carrydng value and macket value of quoted and unquoted Investments sr as betow:

Paeticulars Asat As ot As
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
il in lary comp

Aggregete carying vake of quotod investments
Aggregate market value of quuted imealments - 2
Aggregate canrying valee of i 136324 16344 14804

] " Associate compan
[} Iwaestment in Others -
Aggragese camying value of unquoted 253100 253300
Add/Less Fair Vake gaieviions) on semeasaremnet theough OCI (1,302.37) (1,19845)
Aggregate market vakse of unquoted imvestments 123063 133455 -
Total s NBGo 239387 149759 14844
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Rastated Nt on Standalons Financlal Staterments for the year ended March 31, 2024

Hote Mies | Other Francisl Ausets

Pargioulers s 3t B ai Ag at
Barch 51, 2024 M 1, 2021 Blerch 91
Ursezyrad, consdered good .
Arrrued ncome rar 136 4R70
Less: nevirsal work non parformming ssset [F2T)
Sty Deposin® 17359 9358 ELTC
LessFabr ¥ alue M remEn 1458 (17,50 .
Ham [FRT] ALGE
Ineome Tax Redund L : 2
Oiher Receivabies . Rk ) .
Tatal LIEE]] 220,78 100.79
*Security deposis includes amount Rs. 53,55 b BSE lmudrﬂmdwhqhimrmpmuurlngwu-znnzi 24 arvd . 24 Lakht givins 16 Crasos
s & comits Pt L in melation o stare purchase agqreement datid D502 2004 reg arcing of | stk in [ITL Limited . The other

amaont pretaing bo security gt wrt lasn contects, for detsls refer rote mo, 29

Hobe Ho.T : rmeniorkes

Particalars Bt An i T
Miarch 31, 2024 March 31, 3023 LA il

(%3 vaboed and cartified by the manageman) = -

Seurities held for s 120 11230 #.63

Tetal 120 nm ETET

Tate: Imventones [ vaked al cost or MY whcilever & lvar

U/wbwy-—i
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Restated Notes on Standalone Financial Statemnents for the year eeded March 31, 2024

Note No.9 : Other Non Financlal Assets CAmount in lakhs)
Particolars Asat Asat Asmt
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2002
Unsecured, considened good
Balance with government suthorities
Goods and Sendoe Tae 243 1476 s
Others - - A1
Ahance to Sta¥ 336
Prepeid Expeniag 8445
Achiance 10 Sugpliars 004 1542
Total 5.82 1476 4“6
Note No.10 : Trade Payables
Particulars As at As 2t As
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2002
1a) Total cutstanding dus of MSME 1%
(b Tots! g dues other than MSME 217 080
Total 412 030 -
Ageing
e 2 oD sy e
March 31, B
Dispued O - NGME Nl Ni _&.ﬁi‘%
Disputed cue - Others il NE Ni
Undisputed due - MSVE 194 Ni Ni
Undisputed due - Others FA 2 oex Ni
Outstanding for foliowing perind from dus date of peymest
Less than 1 year an o Ni
1-2 yeirs ] Nil NI
2-3yeurs Ml N Ni
More than 3 years Nl Nil Ni
Total 412 0,69 .
Note No,11; g5
Particdars Asat Asm As
March 31,2024 March31,2023  March 31, 2002
Unsecurned Loans
) Loan form Redated Purty
Loan form Direciors . N 10870
() Others - -
Intercorporate Loans 735600 TOTS50 180.00
Others 0022
Total 7,796.22 7,259.20 238.70
(3) Repayadle on demand® 1nan 252220 28870
(4 Tarms Loars 6,481.50 A737.00
Total 7.796.22 7,259.20 208,70
() With i Indfia e 7,259.20 28870
(b} Outside Incha - . .
Total 7,796.22 7,259.20 238.70
'lmmﬁuﬂsmﬁwmwmd,, anc 1 a5 repayatie on demand
Note No.12: Other Financlal Liabibties
A at As at As st
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
asa7 7153
689 695 pEe]
25% o
- - s
056 s -
49648 (1K S
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Notes an 4 for the year endad March §1, 7024
Note Na.18 : Commnt Tae Assets/ {Uiabien) (Nt} (amount n lakda)
Particulars As e At Asat
_ Mgech 31, 2624 March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Tocsens Tor (et el ﬁ%{g—

'mmmduu&nmmnxni

ot No14 : Oefeered Tex iabdin {Net)  {Amaumt e b
Porticolars Mt As ot As
 March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 Myech 31, 2022
) Dufervod Tas Asiets
O Accourt of Far Vol ue Neassrenant i EEl]
O scctrant 0f Fake Ve Cranges thiowgh OCF 128 0148

164 Deffered Tax Latafty
O Aot of Depredation af Property Mank and Equipment o7 M 2%

of Far

23041 EJ’ 2203)
Hote No.1§ [Otbar Nen-Piamscil |istilities
Portioslars As ot Aot As

o Maech 31,2024 March 38,3023 March 35,2023

Tasaren S0 220 & Ooutithyl Debn® nesy 8115 629
Statuenty ODues Pyyabie aw
B an an
-Goods & Tae 25

13850 na 10.3%

Tatsl
“Arserss for Sad & DOLLTAS Debin ax per Income Tax Prowsont
mhuawmmmouMuwmdmhnmmnmmm wa

3 Share
L Faat A at
March 31,2004 March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
hwthortzed Share Capltad
IWMMMMNRWW.MUMMKW
Par Value of Each Eguty S2ave is Rel/ 7, 0 250000
____Tsee0 150800 230040
Issued Share Capital
424151000 Bauity Shans [fear macied 200% 220193000, Year anced 2022 45671600
Par Vit of Each Equity Share b B/ B1.54 .93 s
4281 54 220193 AsaT4
Subseribed and Fully Ped v

K2,81,53,600 Ecuity Shanes (Year ended 2020 2201994060, Yeur ended 20224 54 74,6000
Lach

Ptk of ta iy e B 1 220 asa7a
AL Tamise_jam s

Shokas Kumar Agawal - . - . 24240 e
Garg AI51523 TN 11261241 % - .
Seema Garg A0 7.54% 14594251 154%
Sulorfti Garg 27ep4004 AR 14134847 SATR
Srpan Surder Sracg - 14002000 LWR
B} Sharetoling of promoters of fhg Company:
Name of the Sharehobiers Asat (%ol A at Aaat March 31, 2022
March 31, 2024 dhange durieg March 31, 2023
No. of sheves % held  the yeer wo. of shares % hedd N ﬁ% % hekd
Virerde! Kumor Aganed . - 1 3006%
Shakut Kumar Agarwad . - - 3584000 ms
ks Garg 33563523 THTR 1R 184% 13800000 ES Y
Seerna Garg 1227005 5% 14594051 1518 1584 000 188
St Gay ZIAPAAIE  barR . AL BT BA2%
The recosciSation of s below =
As ot Asat s
b 13,200 Mach312833  Warch . 022
No. Wo, !q N, of shares
Equity Shaoes at the Begrmng of e year 209328 &0 ASLTAH0
A4 : Feth Fryaty Shares aliotied during the year 07960320 174319660 -
A0 : Ponun Shaves alotmed duing the yewr - .
3 Shares forered/ >

L . A2$1,51600 _229192290 45873600
Durieg e fmancal ye ending mmmmmm;mnwmmmnwummmvmo«m»uu 439104 M58/ con ttting
of 20,7360,320 thases of i 240 . of st ot promium of R A

During the Sssccel yuur ending 315t wzmwmunwmmmwmmwamz&mmanmnmAmd

1743, ¥1680 shases 0f As 245 FV ot Red
N - ~ \I 1 Q gl
{
—t L
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Rustated Standalone Statement of change In equity for the year ended as at March 31, 2024
2) The comparry has not ssued any Bonus shaee's during the It two fisancial yesrs.
b) The company has net buy back any share's during the list twe Tisancal years
€) The company has not forfleted shares's during the kst teo financhl yews.
d) The company his not issaed ary securities, which commertible into squity shares.
) Terms attached to Lquity Shares

The rights, powers and preference relating to esch chss of share and the qualifications limitaticns and restrictions thereo! are contained in the
Mercoandum asd Artickes of Association of the Company.
memwhumhmaudqumwhg-wwwdutpummmurolmnymmumuwmmwwm Ay

whargholder whose name is enered in the Rogister of Me of the compary shall anjoy the same sights and be subject 1o the same labiities s dl other
shareholders of the same class.
In the event of winding wpv liguidation af the comparny, Equity Sharehokders will ke emisied to receive remaining assets of the comgany, sfter di stribution of ol

prelerential amounts. For the said purpose, the Squidator may set such vakae as he deems fair upon sy property 1o be daidad sed may desenssine how such
divsion shal be carried out betmeen the members.

Mot Ho,17: Othee Eity
Particulars

As et As As at
March 31 2 1,
{A) Reserves and Surphs
{2) Amalgmation Reserve
Opening falance a1 4417 4417
Adt : Receivedd/ utiised during the year - -
Totsd () 4417 4407 4407
(b} Security Premium
Opening Balance 347745 20 BT
Add : Receivedd/ utiised cinng the year [net of isue related wzpenses| 277398 312025 -
Totad (b) 625141 3,47T745 357.20
(e} Restained Eamings.
Bulance at the beginning of the year 81.79 6810 3759
Add : Proft/(Loss) for the yeiv 4039 wa1 mn
Less : Speci Reserve 2080 1909 azs
Less ; Prior Pericd Adjuitesants 016 0
Totad (c) 1,154.82 28179 6210
(d) Special Reserve*
Cpening Balance 20593 160 nm
Acd : Received/ uthised derng the Yeor 90.80 190.92 423
Total (<) 287,73 206.93 1601
Total (aebec) 773813 4,560.33 48548
(B) Equity thromgh Other Comprahemaive I .
Opening Balance (B06AZ 2
) eeres that wil not be secissilied 10 grofit o loss (10390 (1,98845)
§i) Jacoma Tax effect on harein above 2618 101863
Tots! (8) ) 6.02) -
Ceher tems of Other Com| Incomes. . s 3
Total (A+8+0) 676357 3,663.51 48543
*Special Reserve s per X8 Norms
As per Section A5-1C (1) of Reservw Bank of India Act, 1934 every no financial company shall creats a reserve fund and transter theremn 2 sum not less

unwwmdkmMmmmWnnM“’hﬂmomMWWMum
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Mote No, 18; Utlisation of Right Issue Proceeds

A. Proceeds from 10 the Issue of shares under lsswe of 202324, made during the ended March 31, 2024
of Issue as per Letter
5.No, Amounts
To e capial base of ow 367500
Garmrdl Corporme 1.22500
Bzue reded eperses 9nLs
4591,05 |

(1) Dwring the financial year ending 315t Marcv'2024, the comgany has completed 1 ight issue (IPO) dated 111h October 2023 and ksued 207960320 Shares
O Re 240 par share The shares wive dictted on 13th Ociober' 2073 £ were listad on Bomby stock eedhange & National Stack Exrhangs of India

123 The procends from onMqumvblhmdmwmwmdeW-ﬂmewposu
were majorly utikand collecthely g of Woans in accoedance with business objects of e

2 | Meeting Working Capkal %m (reter note-1)
1 | General corporate purposes nose-1)
Total

R
Sub Notes:

(1) During the finandial yea ending 319 Manch 2003, 1he comparty has comphted 1 A,\amavomudzsmmmzmm 174319580 Dhiews 7
Rs. 205 per share. The thares were alotted on 19th Aprl 2002 & were Isted on y stock qe & | Stock Bachange of (ndix

12) The proceeds from right issues during the year for the pummdmuuwmmapnlmhmnnd general corporate purposes were usltized
colectively towards business objects of the comgomny (& grant of loans which § ch ¢ wndd Toern) lodns Both, The Lowns granted
wmeoo-p-ymurmumsdkamummﬂumwnwmnummm Loans which are repayable on Demand of &s
AJ00 lakhs achanced 10 vanious entitities

13) The amount of 10311 Lakhs indudes RE 4464 Lukchn relted 10 tight auw wepenies incurmad in poavious year 2021.22 18 peior 10 receipls of procaeds
MmdubudumwmdWamivmmewmmmmmwnmdummMm 23.
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Rentated Standakone Satement of change Ie aquity far the yeer ended ss st Merch 51, 2024

St o1 s rom Opeeers
Asat

Istesest ncome* 151048 M 400
Divcdend Iscom: om on
Rty Incorme 400 $00
Fees and Comeniuon lascomm ws
T 70—
XY
“Iriarent 00N B 01 OF Aevers Of ITinest income Wit KPA
m 3 Asat Yeur ended Yoor anded
m}l,% Marh 3N, 202 March 31, 2022
Dttwr Non-Opersding incenses (AL .
Tatal ATS 15 -
Nate No. 21 : Franie Ceats
Partiasens Asat Youwr ended Yoar enced
Much3), 204 Wﬂm
Inerest on Unecund Loaem @on ~
“Other Firancial Charges . i e
¥narest 08 Seatutory Dees WA
Rark Charges o
Tousl TaLeA s o
m At Yeawr ended Yoar snched
Masch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
AL Nt gaw on fiooncid A Wit value theough profk o lont
(10 Omend 1 be speoledt
~Secarky Depaets 4] e
%ﬂﬁm X 150 3
3
Fratud
IS0 -
L Arso .
e Vil nme e LMY 1A% THa50 21600 0N 20001 0 J0CUred It incomeapenne
None Na, 27 | Parchones of Ssack-In-Tods
Partioulws Mt Yeur ended Year snded
Manch 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Puschises of Secundes N5 110083 1
Totsl YRy 180635 frray
Nots Na. 24 : Ovange in Inventorkes of Frrished Gaods, WIF snd Stech-dn- Trsde
Partioulers As ot Ve ended Yoar sndes
Manch 31, 2024 Morch 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Opaing Stock
Securities heid for trade e net
LFES) Wi
Oogrg Stock
Secuitios haid o trad 0 mp m
X3 1230 9143
Toul Mmas (7067 e
Hote Ho. 25 - Enployes Beestt
Fartiadars Tam Vow enied Yearseded
March 31, 2024 M’M
Saares, Wages ;g Soouy o 1
Direcsor Asensewestion na i 13%
Saaff Wattare and Cther Epesss 042 040 an
B e n
Toul 7750 o "
Mote Mo, 261 and
Parvcelars o Vﬁg Yoar snded
; — M.I.Iﬂ M__..ﬁ_mng;
Dwpraciasion on Imangiie Avade Ao an .
Tord AT L [T
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Bestaned Standulsee Statemest of Change b oquity for She pear ended os ot March 31, 2024
Note Mo 27 - Other Expasses

Farveutars Arat Your endied Year ended
Morch 31,202 Miarch 31, 2033
Adverthwrent Szeram !&!L% [ -
Audt fow s 150 o
Irosrarce Expermn . ~ om
Serrent Pamctind Exserne . . o
Car Mepaw & Nurterurcs A3
Qosation & CSR bperdture 1245 .
Saciricrly Lepuintien ons
oo and Satscnptonn 150 wmn
Ofher Micelneoss Erpores osa ua 19
Prolewsonad Comstancy ard Lagel Epenus 1694 wi .
Platn and T L) n»n nz
Papar B Nartsnance in ofwey o651 o .
Rost 138 - .
Raserve for Badd i Deubtd Debey ne " 2%
Dewctor Stting Feey S6) (] -
Trbophane ant lndemet Eqpessmy a4 oM o
Trawskrg) anc Commynnce wm 178 02
Wetidte Naireonce Chargm. iy - -
Tatal 14am 17 "
Nata: Payreent 03 riatutory ssdhers
Parthoubas Asat Yeur endes Yeor ended
,
Sutuenry ascht m% (3]
Tas ekt e
Cther Nathrs 320 on
Tatal i . 0.0
Nats Na. 28: Eaming pe Shar
Particuan Ao Vaar eaded” Yeur ended
March 31, 2024 March31. 2023 Wuech 31,2092
Bashe
Wekghtud sverige o, of bausy Sharms sutsinding 1008 Lans3 4%
Wt Paclt Alter Ten Rex M nM
Rtk Eamings per Share (Fa) o [ 0m
Died Eamvings per Share
Wiskghed iverage ro, of Dbad Equiy Shares un 221 Ll
Net Peclt Al Ton e ST nM
Diurted Earmings par Share (Re) 0.0 oos s
Namisal Vatue per Shore (Re) 1480 1.0
Rote o239 A) Thadiithes and commminments (10 the extest mt grovided far)
Partcrdars As Yoar arded Yeor enged
o e Merch 31,2023 March 31,2022
March 31, 2024
Chatres agaest the Conmpunry (00 a0wwwhedged a5 dete N L] .
Garaniee 1 lvoer of Subddaies compary s s wis
Codateral Seculy aganet sbridates N ] W
Qfver money forwhich the Compony & ronsagendy bk N L] i
Capial Conmitnecs

“During tha e the compay srtenad k1o thare purthass sgreement clatad 00th Tolsrry LM siong with olbers parthi 0f partvase of aquiy shares of
Irahettriad bvwostonant Trust Liminod. In pursance of this ageesment th comgory Sdwk Capdtal Unmed b reqeived (o acqubs 1407087 s & (he
conmibdenaben oo ol . IEESASALS (a1 e rate of R, 275 per dhured, The compiny has dasosted 24.00 Lics a5 whandobile secerty deposk 10 Creatws
Paciects B Contracts Pt Lid in asccondance wify regelation 17 of Secusties and mchange toard of indle 05 of Shasi ava |,

R aer orirachust e of sanciios et compery huv 3 cormmmisTave: 1 hether dsbcrae e kan armcans f 90 latha et 6 Yok oan of A S510 Lk

SIBCHONND 10 5 Gohana highmay Private Lmiind, AS 0 5636 953 386 Manch) 2004 e compavy have dE20rond ioan 15 o vakae of Fx. 5000 bkt
A par contracsad tevs of sanciion beit the compery have & commiment: 10 harfser distune the loan amount of 17 leks cut of saial lown of s, S000 kedn
SnC30d 10 Gohara Sanizat g hwy Prvine Linid. As 00 year and 3 %1 Manch 203¢ #he compary have dishursad 5an 15 the valus of Fx. 411 bkte

) Loase Commit Lense yot

The company masaned e to LOG st M/ Inchen Raadiors Privete Limited with sespect o leaw of usder of which e
e eceived by 3151 Narch 2028 The ke rel of Rs. 10,00 Lakhs poy month S0 be commencad thvse months sher handng over of possusca, The ucarty
dagond ol S0 Lakbs grn by the compary i nedeson 12 sand barie mgreesvent hit Been Vown Tty deponie ol vabat 6 ofver Tnoncdl Jaset v
Nate o, &

Mote Ne.3 : Farvign Curvency Tramaction Detals
Particalen

L] T Year ended
March 51, 2004 Mandh 31, 7023
Expenditire by Foreign Cumercy:
Torveling Caperam. s N
ofessondt and Conuincy N N
Othar Mateny N Nl
Earnbag [n Foregn Curvency:
Professionsd and Contuduncy
Othes Wmers w ~
Agrter L NI
Uskiities L N
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Restmed Standalone Statement of change in equity for the year ended as at March 31, 2024

Nots No.31: Tax Expenses (Amomnt n takhs)
Particulars As 2t Year ended Year endad
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current Tax 183,74 798 146
Defurred Ta (Coadil/ charge o4 (3.60¢ 1.9
Tax Exp P d in the Stat of Profit and Loss Account man 354.38 1285
The major comp of bax expense and ity ikation %0 eopected tie exporme based on the d tax rate apphcabie to the Comp ary s 25 163%
(March 31, K23 25,1685 wed the 1op Lo wepy n of profit and kas are as dollows:
Particulars As at Yeur ended Year onded
March 31, 2024 Murch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Accounting (loss)/ profit before tax expenses 38670 1I08%5 5396
Income tax rate 25.168% 25,166% 25.00%
Drpected L iepenses 147,66 32945 1359
Tax Impact due Lo emporary diferences 1747 2828 -
Tax Impact due to Permanent diferences 1861 02s
Tax impact on (tems erompt under Income tax . =
Impact of change » tax rates
Incame tax for enrfar ey . - -
Othars (1.03) (360 0ra
Tax Expenses 182,71 35438 12.85
Note No, 32 :

Details of duss to Micre and Small Enterpeises as defined under the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

Particulars Aa Year ended Yeor endod
March 31, 2024 MSILQI_] March 51, 2022

Princip amount resaiving wpaid o any wpglier a5 at the end of the 1M Nl Ni

peLouUNting year.

Ineeest doe thereon remaleing wpakd to any supplier as at the end of the Nl NE NE

accounting year.

The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of s payment made to the Ni N Nit

suppher beyond the appowied day .

The amonet of interest dus and payable for the year, Ni Nil Nil

The amount of inevest accrued and rmaiing urpad at the end of the Nit NIl Nil

accounting ywar

Trw amount of Surther imerest due and payabile even in the succeeding year, until NIt Nil N

such date when the interest dues 25 above are sctually pod.
“Intieest due 0n Micro and smal Encerprises s il a5 confirmation fram MSME creditons is recenwad that no interest woukd be damed or charged on
outstanding balance with the comparry.

Note No.33: Capltal Management
The primary cbjective of the Comperny’s capitel marug pelicy is 10 ensure that the Company complies with capal adequacy ngqursments requred by the
Reserve Bank of Indin and maitain strong ot ratings and healthy capital ratios in order 10 support its busiress and 1o micemize sharoheoldarns vk

The Compary's capita g objecthves are -
~10 ersure the G y's ablbey to a5 2 going
“to comply with Iy imposed capital recss and Mmantain $10ng aredt rEegs

1o provids n adecasts retum o shanns g /—D# C‘L -
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Offica. G-3, 3471, Vikas House, Eait Punjibs Nerw Dali 110026
- m;lsslooouumoezmslma:z‘m

Restated Standalone Statemnent of change in equity for the year ended as at March

Management assesses (hw Company’s coprl reg) w1 onder 30 tas an efficknt overall feandng structure while avoiding excessmve liveragn
This takes into sccount the sub-cedination levels of the Compuany's various ¢lisses of debt. The Comparny manages the capifal structure and makes
adjustments ta it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the uaderlying assets finckuding immstmmnts in Subsiclary
campanies). [n crder to maintain or adjust the caphta structure, the Company may adjust the amcunt of dividends paid to sharahokders, relurm capital to
sharehotders, issue new shares, or sell assets 1o reduce debt.

(Amount in laks)
Particulars As at As st As at

March 31,2024 March 31,2023 Murch 31,
Pt Dbt 520045 713892 78191
Total Equity 11,085.10 506544 MAZ2
Nt debt to equity ratio a4 123 030

* et debit indudes debt securities + bormawings other than detit sacurities + sub-ordinated Habilities + Interest accrsed - cash and cash equiaients -
bank batances other than cash and cash equivalents,

Note No, 34: Maturity Analysis Of Assats And Linbiities
The table below shows an analysis of assets and lablities analyzed according to when they are expected to be d or setted. Derivitives have been
dhassified 10 mature and/or be rpald within 12 manths, regandless of the actual contractual maturities.

Particulans As at March 31, 2024 __ AsatMarch 31,2028 JAs at March 31, 2022
‘Within 12 Months After 12 Months  Within 12 Months After 12 Mosths 1 12 Moeths 12 Months
ASSETS
Financlal Assets
(a) Cash and Cash Equividants 8025 . 134 - 6
[b) Bank Bakances cther than Cash and cash - - - - .
() Trade Receivabies . . - - -
[c) Loans 663055 954079 436338 6857.18 72905 -
(e} Investments 239387 - 149799 - 14644
() Others Financlal Assats 28369 3542 13858 218 S1.11 4968
6,994.49 1237008 463617 843735 786.95 19412
Non-Financial Assets
(8] Jmvantovies 120 . Mmx - 9163 -
[b) Current Tax Assets (Net) - . v
(€) Defarrnd Tace Assats (Net) o4 30319
() Property, Plart and Equip - 21686 . 104.08 ' 108,11
(1] Capital Work-in-Progress - - = <
1) Other Nan-Fnancial Assets 582 - 14.76 - 6621
7.02 547.27 127.08 407,27 157286 109.11
TOTAL ASSETS 1&!1 !3,’17.” 4,763.22 8,844.63 451 30723
UIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial Liabities
[3) Trade Payabiles
i) Total Cutstanding of MSME 1 - .
[il) Total Qutstxtiong other than MSME 217 080
[b) Bamrawings 132 645150 252200 473100 28370
[€) Other Fimancial Lisbiites 49448 ' 0168 - 299 -
18130 6.481,50 2,604.48 4737.00 29169 .
Non Financial Lisbilities
[a) Current Tax Lablities (Net) 19044
|b) Deferred Tax Liakilities (Net) - 03
[c) Other Nan-Financial Liablities 188.50
57854 200
Total Liabllitites 239225 2.03
et Equity 460926 305.20
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED
WOR;G'}Q&"N—MM"VW Sagh Hew Dy 1002

d Notes on | for the year ended Masrch 11, 2024
Note No.35: Refated Party Discionures
W) Ut of related perties and relstionship (35 Idansified by Bhe maneq enneet).
0 Sabaidiares

Ak Opicedecsonics L.

AAwkea Flowest ind
) Key Management Personnel’s (OMP) =
W, Virencier Eurmar Agereed (Cheone Coxed wat 22 00.200%)
W, Addrais Koo MWhole Time Dimctor & CFO, waf §1.07 2022, Caed
wet 0107 2023
W, Shaesl Kumar Aggaras! Eveoutive Drecior, Coased wes 2203 2027)
s Manje Agaraal hrwcrer, Consed wa f 22 03.2007)
W, Rabath Aggacnal KChief Sranclal afficer, casied from 07 DAX22)
W Mashur Byl [irector cure CFO, wa f fom
07042022, coxsed wat 07072000
M ik Gag [Drector, wef 2202 20¢3)
Ms. Ravhics Gugria Foompany Secretary, wat from 1122021, Ceased wet
T 2%
Me Parkay (Whhe Time Divector wa | 21 D603 & CFO wes
0107290
M Karen Bigge (Diacot wet 3203 2023}
My Doopda NEMG (Company Secweary wal 120120830
M Poonas Met (Company Secwsay cassed from 28122007
) Bnterprise ower which IMP and thelr relrtlves eserclse signifcam infleence
Adk Globed Limited
Wi Ecotech Limites
Ganeds Gas Sohstions Private Usined
I Gergs tachraloges Limded

9.%".&; __fAmount b ws)
Nature Safaned Party Hame Yoor ended Year ences Your erded

Merch 31,2004 March 31, 2023 Wawoh 31, 2022

Rermenersthon M. falns 1 Kumor 450 24
M Virender K Aggarasl v "o 1200
Ms Rashiba Gupsy 461 130
Wy, Pares 835 . .
N Karan Ragge 2400
N3 Daeples Misha 4% -
W, Shatasl Kumar Agaraal 150
e Rishabih Agarwel wo
M. oo Nl 110
Ieterest on Uasecired Loas
M. Vineadhr Karmar Ao A40
M, Mangu Aggaras! ’ =
Receteing of Loen
M Virerder Kumar Aggarwel Qm 14000
Mrs Manju Aggarwal 1500 2000
Imerest Income
Advkza Fisees Limited 6525
Imerass Rapenum
Wi Vhas Garg 0L
Loan Gven
ASvIce Firwest Unvted 19040
Loen Takes
W i Gag 000
Recwipt of Losn Given
AhAech Frroest Lirnises a0
Repaygroent of Loan
Mr Vikas Garg 50020
Mr. Virerder Sumar Agaraal BE)
Nedmbursemnen of Expenues
Adwhkra Flewast Limiled osr
N, okl w2
Ns Daspicy Marnrs om
Security Deposit Repaled Advk Dptoelecponics Lad 50
Aedvinice AN Resrumecation
W Kaan Begge
Sebiscription of Shares
“hongh Lovn Comeestion Adhieca Firvest Umbes
ough MOA Adhdbca Firrsest Liminea
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Lamvel % Quirted prices uraduntech) boe ihartical issturiers in a0 aciae manet

Mgt O 63, 1A/, Vil Hown, Gt Purgeld Begh New Dedd 11000
CIN: LS I0CK FRISPLLIR S0 | v A Gt ol coen
Notes oo Fiomnclsl foe he year anded March 31, 224
Balance o at the exd i3
Nature of Rafance Aot L s
March 31,2004 March 31,2025 Narch 31, 2022
Herwnerathon Paystibe
. Katan Baggs ba ) *
W Viemder Kumi Aggacwal . AL
W, Panka) ow
M1 Deepita Misha n4
M Mishah Agarwel (L)
M. Rashia Gupra o
Advance Agrimt Rermurmrstions
Y. K Sags 1
Unsecured Loan
W Virender Kumy Agarwd N BN
e Marge Agerasl RHY) a0
Relmborsement of Laperdes
W, Pk o
Inerest om wsecured Losn
N, Virncee Kumar Agarwsd M
W Marje Agaenal ikt
Note No.3& Flsandal Istraments
(8] Hleoncis! aasens and Fabilties
The e 2 bebiows:
Note No. Asat Asat At
March $1, 2024 March 31, 2021 Manch 11, 2002
Financial sseer eaawred at falr valoe
Fraitivens L) s 133458
Securhy Depadis B4 250
sy Yot d cont
Carih ard Cash equivibants 1 mas a2 (%]
loarn ‘ 5T 11,220 56 7508
Frazitens $ N6124 16144 “EM
Cthas Rnancls Aot 13 16826 wors
Toul 1935457 nens S5.07
Particelaes Note No. Asm Aat Asat
Maech 31,2024 March 31, 2035 March 31, 2022
Flaancel Liabifry measired ot Lok valee
Reblities d o amoetized cost
Trade Pyyabiies 10 42 0% 00
Soranings n me2 a0 N
Other Fnanchy Liasd tas 12 s B8 9
Toal [F08 734148 0.0
() Fabe waloms Werarchy
Firancial ssets ard francid labEties 3 masired a1 & vehoe 11 e fisandial statements and are grouped Imo e brals of & Ler i
Tirarchy. The e levels o defned bosed on the of sgr Inputs to the i bowt
The cmgories uwed are ot lohows.

Lovel 2 Qirectly .o 26 prices) o nghacty (L4, certend fiom price) obnarvable mareel inpets, oty Ihan Lewed | nputs:

Loved 3 Inpucs wiich are 201 based 09 cbienatle mareet data Gincbuwvatie nputy.

Vialustion techelges uwd to determine fak wilue

The tair valus of 3 Srandal instrumest on btla! icagaiion it nonmuly the Santecticn price (Tnr v of the Congderyson given o recehed|
quert to intiy secconiticn, the Compeny s the falr vl 0f firanchal Nstruments tat 31e quoted bn actiwe marors suirg tha quoned
i prices (fnescal it heid) of quoted ik 2eices (iranciyl fabises hetd) and uging valuyton achakgee for citer intruments. Vahaton

e in th Company and ofher wasvion

Sechaigues inchude diacousted Cash flow method, maket comp! method, recant

end S which salficient data 5 ovalable 15 mepmioe St
e iruts,

madefs. The Comparry uses vakaation s Pat ae ! the
vabem, rasimiaing e uee of rebreant clieratie inosts and minimising the uie of unety
proces asd d 8o determinn foir wabie

Speciic urton sschoiques ued 9 valoe frundal insnuments incuse

Wigtee kara vaheed by decourding e ggregune Atene cash Aaws (Doth principsl and innerest cash Fows) wih credt 1ak-adjestind dbocuning
oirk fo the conaining pordoli 1etor. The Company has congriwad the averags valsation mpact smhed wsirg ik fiee, c251 0f funds and yels hee

secuiRITon approach.

The wst af et s vihos %ar corificang of depodts and mutied Aunds o the bass of the semeet iecawed from itwesies perty

1 Fair valee of cont

Fabr vabee OF Instruments maxsured 3t amortaed cost for wivich ol valos i dackonesd b an ik, these 4 wlues v Glcuated usng Lew 3

inputs

Umbars—~4
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e U TR

for the year enged March £1, 1024

o Noltes o8
Financial Aspats messured at smortized cont Yomonnt in ki)
Parsculan
el Fair Valve _ Camying valus Felr Vil Carrybeg valen Falr
T 63 Gash oauhvr ey B2 025 18421 1342 (5:] S B
Lowrs et of loss sicwance as par Ind AS 0% 1657134 1651 122056 11,2:056 2008 12004
Irvpstrrnts 116324 1,634 16344 = HEM HEAL
Fiuascal Assets 35 20889 18326 1 9079 9075
g jagasz L TR - YA 1 50T B
Feancisi Ustitities masired st smortised cout i
Particutan A5 3t March 31, 2024 As i Maech 31, 2023 A ot March 51 2022
Carryleg -u- umu. Camying vaiue mu—__ﬂg-u- Fakr Walie
Trach Prpaed [3
foTowirgs muz 12020 umo w80 280
Fisarchd Lissiles 8168 1 1 293
%‘ ﬁ m.n EALL] 7341 .8 e
Financul Axtets Musiured ot ot Vahie
Porticeiars o 3t Wharch 31, 2024 _
Caryng vabse Fair Valve
—_Teud TR - Level2  Leveld JTotpl
Tnwaleent 5nm 121063 123083
Saquty Cegodte _SeL0, __BAL 5
Toul 258100 (F1°Y. ] - 1,206.08
Finandsl Aests Moxned o1 Fake Valve
Farticulars 3t March 37, 2023
Camrging vabie
1 Level 2 Ageti3 TN
Trweswrerts P ] - u::: - 103433
g 35000 A 1367.05 = 167.05
i  MastWarhiignz
Carmying vatue
_Totul Level 1 — Level 3 Teasl_
Isastments - - ' N
Jowd - -

sntonied that fise vabues of Cath and sy equisaons, oihver Bank balances, trade recehalies and trade pryaliio appros mete thetr epective campng smosnts
MM”NMMMMMMM

Hota Ne3T: Flranciad Risk Maragement
The Company's sctivides sopamm i tn markes rick, liquishty itk and creci ritk. The Company’s Boad of divectors Mg ovwrdl| i the ard owersight of he
Compiry ik masagenent lanework. The Company maniges the risk Bags pokdes approved By he baad of dinctoes. The boerd of dinecton peovides mrithen prisordes for overad

Ak maragement

A) Credit sk
Credit gk Iy the risk st $he Company wif ircer 3 lons because ity or ¥ ! 1o dhacharge D The C e 15 Cedh
uumumnmnmwnmmmm-mmmmmmucswmmmma-mmm
maniions defaiits of and otrer L] e e coadit rick comtrole.
Credit Risk Management

Mated on butiaess enviranment in which the Company oparaies 3 detask on a Asancial ateet is coradead when the countir party (a5 Lo ek panTrens withn the agreed Soe
pariod as par comuect The Company misisn asd manages cecit ritk bused o0 imemal et rating system. iniemal credit ing is persared for each cass of Srencidl
irswuments with dferert 5. The Companry hos 3 Crecht qual Ry neviews process to proaide ety dentifcason of ponsible changes | n he cred beorfhiness of
cousteparteg, incucieg negude colleteeal rmddonm. The Compumy atsigns the fobirwing Credot retngi % abch chins of nanGal a5t Basod 0N 1he 2s5ermpion Mgt aed fackse
Specific 1o the chiss of fnascal e

(1) Low conct sk U(%_-i

(4] PAccrate credt rivk
(ki) High crmcit rink
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e for n tha folky
Astets covered Babs of
espacied cedit
fow,
Low Coweit ik Cash a8 Grth e tire
aqbwienns wapectod credt
foduding anh hgs of 12 month
o0 hand), ather wpected cred e
rark vedans ot bt
Modrine ces1 i Loars and athee Lo three
igh cgtok _lowrs Utime
s 5 AL AL al A ut A J . CO(GLI IS Setance St
Parthories Nate No. Aaat 31 March  Asat 31 Merch  Asat 11
24 2 Maroy
— S+ -
1a) Cas and Canh Egumaleniy 3 025 134 (54
[0 brvastreane 5 2mar WL HELe
1) Over Rrenciyl Assess 6 nan w0 »ory
Concht mak b the risk of fnandial loss % the Compery ¥ 2 or party o & fasdal duly b0 meetits o

c-dnumwumwummummnuwmmmmammwmmmmm
Qencios,
81 Liquidiy riek
Mﬂi-mmnuwﬂmawmummmummwmwmmmunmnum.umn,
amaﬂamhﬂdmmwswnmnmwnmub-mumnun--mnumnmmmum
when they ae due
The Compeny rraistaing Neality in funding by g valabiity under cowcht lines. ) bory the Company's Fauidy |aka compesing
ummwnmnmnMumudwmmmmumtmmwwummn‘nmm
entiy operates.

The tatde below wrmmaszes the matudty profie of e Comparny's fnasoal loblities taees on pry
= As 1 31 March 7024
b— Cornying omount | Rewsthant 1 Gto12months | Nto2yesss | > Totsl
e an - 434
1, 1314 6L 50 - 119622
e — = = =
I A a3
Corrying amiust | 6 ldweizmentin| TtoZyesrs |« 2yewns Jotsl
Trade 080 -
0 473180 - 125000
Liasd mes [1) n 8158
L Ad at 31 March
v toiZmorms [1to2ypeere  [>2
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<) Market Rish < Imerest rate rick
In0oress i ik i tha gk that the bt cath Nows of & Francial insument will Fuchiuons baciuns of dhisges in maree! infecest rooes, The Comguny's gasse 1o the ik of
ChanGir 01 (kL DN eIt (TS 1ekned srimanly 1o the Companys b g Wi Soating Iaterest rates.

Lxposare 1o Mterest rafe rieke
mhmmmmmma-mmmmnmmmmwnmwmwh—-mm.mmm

728 harve sy bomowdagy Besring floatiyg ane of leteresy
) Currency risk

rmignnmnqimsuﬂ!tmw-hha-wunwlmduwwmmmdmmnwmmmmm-wm
cumercy ngk on sccount of it irggs. seosvabies 300 OMer Gayables b fomign ummercy, The handtiosal cumency of the compeny o indiun Rupoe.

The foregn curmency ewchangs mansgemee  pobcy it 10 s nie W and artiiag Vo Cuency mowsments agaimt the US ok & fun e
Company manages tha itk by reeing oM rooually occuing oppostie pedsinke, 08 (hen daxing with sy matirial 1RSEUY Sreign CurTency exchange fiss ¥
q.m«nmymmmm.mmmmmw«mwmmumnzmm
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ADVIK CAPITAL LTD

Regd. Office: G-3, 3471, Vikas House, East Punjabi Bagh, New Dethi-110026
CIN: L65100DL1585PLCN22505 | www.achikcapitalcom

SEGMENT REPORT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Note No.38: Segment Reporting

The Caomparty operates in two reportable segment based on the regular review by the CODM (2, financng and Trade in securities,
for the purpose of Ind AS 108 "Oparating segments” Inframations related to such business segrments have given below, The

Company derves its major revenues fram financing activities an
anly in India which is considered as a single qeographcal segment

d its customers are widespread. Furthar, the Comparty oparates

l:hmnﬁmon%mnhgwmuhd“inﬁ-mﬁnhgmm

Operating segments:
Securities/Share Divison
Loan Division
Others
1. Revenue by Geogrophical Location
Particulars
Domestic
Total
2. Revenue E nature of products
Particulars
(2) Securibes/Share Divison
(b) Loan Division
c} Others
Ti
2. Segment Results before tax
As at March 31,
Particulars 202
{a) Securdies/Share Dvison 1945
(b) Loan Division 5377
c) Others 21,63
Sub Total 51.59
Add: Other Income N -
Lass Unallocoted Expensos 23843 .
Profit before tax 58670 1,308.99 5159
Loss: Tax expenses 18271 35438 1245
Net profit/{loss) for the Period 403.99 954,61 38.74
3. Assets and Liabilties
As at Asat| Asat March 31,
Particullars March 31 March 31, 2023 202!#
Fived Assets-Loan Division 21685 . -
Loans & Advances & Financial Assets -Loan Divisicn 16,778 8126 17775
[nventaries-Securities/Share Divison 120 Nnz230 9163
2.922/08 1341430 18266
Total Assets u!nm ﬂlﬂ)'ldi 1352.04
Loans-Securgies/Share Divison 828070 733313 28870
Unalloacted 11,633.16 5,274.72 96334
| Total Liabilities 19,918.86 13,607.85 hgm

Segrment revenue, results, assets and Fabllities include the respective amoants identifisble 10 each of the

sagments and amounts allocated on a reasonable basis,

\J/W
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ADVIK CAPITAL UMITED

| Office: G-3, 34/1, Vikas Hou! East Punjabi
R aN: LS'lmwOSFlC(’n!iSOSlww{u

mm«wwwmummmn.m

h, New Delhi-110026
alcom

WWM
i Allhcmlodndsdeuemﬁemhddhwmmdmpmy.
" !Monmhundm.w:wmlminmofm.mmmBqulpumwminunghh
il assets under developmant.
vi oumhm,tmwmmmwndmhndsmunks.
v During the year, the comparry has nat revalued its Praparty, Flant and Equipment’s and Inangibles.
w Dumgmeyur.noproaodngsmmn‘rﬂimdcvpmdlng-gimthnmmfwmwhgmb-w
mmmmmmmmmuﬁmm\m«soﬂm and rules made there under.
vimwmmmummnwwwa\hehl!olothe«pmomonhan&sordinm
owruofinleCbusinm.demmiwkm:miu&wmwny.
vﬂiDun'ngMy'-’.ﬂwnymmbeendoda‘dwluldlfaulwbymbonkorﬁ!mdtl'mtitullonovmy
ather lender.
o
Tmis:hugoonmmblomwﬂywwmom.15mmmmmmisy«mbemmmm
Deaaids of significant Fvestments in uhbsidianies, assodates and joint werures

of Direct h

Particulars Country of As at Asat As at
Incorporation ___March 31,2024 March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

‘Subsidiary companies

Advik Optoelectronics Limited Indis 57.96% 57.99% 57.99%

Adviikca Finvest Umited India 100.00% 100.00% 0.:00%

Associates companies Nl Nil N

Joint Ventures [ Nl Nil

mmmmmmawﬁmdmw: Mﬁchm;homappmduymoonmmmﬁwmtmd
x sections 230 to 23'(MMCMpaNesm,ZO11

xi megompanyhasuﬂlmdhmasnh-dﬁomtmlmnduwﬁnwwmngshomwn&mdalmmﬁmmm
i nwaonmhnnuMlemmovmwwmmmn«]«mﬁmmeWmﬂm
l.Diremyovlndimwmdumlnuh«pemamﬂmmnﬁ&dhmwwmwamwame
ii. Provdde anty guarantees, securities of the like ar on behalf of the ulimate benefidaries
¥iii The Campany has nok recenned ary funds from any person(s) or entityfies), including foreign entityles) (funding party) wath the
I.Morhdm!ylendovimhomalpcmwmhmuﬁwlnmmmmmywmmﬂdolm
i Brovide any guarantees, securities of the like or 0 nehalf of the utimate benedicaries.
mDuri\olr-yux,ﬂsecomuvyhmno(ndod.m«nMawmmmmmm-mmﬂwm‘

Tn the opinion of the management, the realizable value of current assets, loans & advances in the ordinary course of busness,
xw woukl N0t be fess than the amourd At which they are stated.

o c.mmmnmm;gm.

Particulars__ Mar-24 “Mar2d _ Mar22
0] Capital to fisk wightod assets ratio; S6.40% 433% 755T%
(b) Tier 1 CRAR S640% 4423% 75.57%
(efTior 11 CRAR g . :

{0} Liquidity Caverage Ratio nAY 2400% /Ao

m:hmmhgtmmmmmmemmimuw“am adjustments have been made by the

4 for its regulatory submission which have been refied upon by the suditors.
# Fstimated cash inflows exceeds the estimated cash outfiows for the year ended March 2024 and March 2022 over the next 30
days. Hence, ratia & not spplicable.

Methodology:

{a) <apital to risk weighted assets ratio- (Tier 1 Copital + Tier B copital)/Total Risk Weighted Assers
() Tiar | CRAR-Tier 1 Capital/Total Risk Weighted Assets

(c)Toer 1] CRAR-Tier Il capital/Total Risk Weighted Assats

(d) Uguichty Coverage Ratlo-High Qualty Uguid Assets/Net Cash flow over 30 days period
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ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED

mm:ﬁ-iwl.MsmwmuH s Dulhi 110086
TN LBSO00L VERSPLCDERS0N | weweracks al eem

Wmmmmuﬂmuhmm-ﬂ March 31, 2024
ote Na, 412

nhdwr-nfwdﬂmummunﬂﬂmhm as par Tcoms Recognition and Assat Classification Norms : For the Year 2024

st Classification ms per AR hawts  Grows Lom Mot Carrying Provisions  Difference

Narms classifictia Carrying ARowmnees  Amount rogquired as  between Ird
nasper  Amount as (Provisions) as per RACP &5 109
Ind A% porind A5 required under nenms prowEsions
10% 109 Tnd AS 109 and IRACP

. narmi

Performing Aisets

Standard Stage-1 63805 T 16,30434 L XY

Subtatsl 16,300.65 T6a 1630434 76,31

Wen-Perfarming Assets (NPA)

Substandard Sage-1 35600 =10 FET.L0 00

Doubtiul - up to 1 year Crage-3 . . ;

1 to 3 years Sfage-1 . - = a

More than 3 years Stagge-3 = . - .

Surbatal for doulbithd Sage-1

L Stage-3 - - -

Subtatal for NPA 366,00 5900 267.00 8300 -

Oiffver e sch o Guarantess, loan Stage-1
comenitmants, ete, which are in the Syage-2
seopn of Ind AS 108 bul not covered o
under curant Jniome  Recognition,

i

Subitotal . - : _
Total 16,736.65 165,31 16,571.34 16531

Mwndﬂpnﬂﬂdhtmﬂﬁﬁﬂmhqﬂdup«hmﬂﬂﬂﬂmarﬂ Assat Classification Marmes : For the Year 2023

et Classification as per RBT asats  Gross Les Tt Carrylng  Providons  Difference
Parforming Astats

Standard Stage-1 11,320.%6 10000 1122056 L0

Subtatal 11.320.56 008 122086 1000 =
Fon-Parforming Assets [NFA)

Subistandand Sage-1 n . . R

Doubthil - up o 1 year Stage-3 . -

110 3 years Stage-3

haare than 3 years Stage-3 B . :

Subitotal for dibtful Stage-3 - = -

Loss Stage-3 g :

Subtatal for MPA N . = =

Dnher items fuch as guarimaes, Iun-S-l_rgn-1 - -
parmiiments, ele. which are in the tage-2

soope of Ind A5 109 but not m‘iﬂoﬁ

under current Incaime  Recognition,

Subtatal . -
Tatal 1132056 0000 11,2056 100,00 =
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D b mpe i Fases G low __ WetCarfiny _Provilems Oiffewics
Assat s per RB1 Assets Grass Loss NetCarrying  Provisions  Difference

Performing Assets

Standard Stage-1 731.00 195 72905 195 -
Subtotal 731.00 1.95 729.05 195 .
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Substandard Stoge-3 - - -

Doubitiul ~ up to 1 year Stage-3 - -

110 3 years Stage-3 - - - -

More than 3 years Stage-3 . - - -
Subtotal for doubthd Stege-3 - -

Loss Stage-3 . . -
Subtotal for NPA - - - - =
Other items such as guarantees, loan Stage-1 - -

commimants, ete, which are in the Srage.2 . = s
wope of Ind AS 109 but not covered oo, z . .

under current [ncome  Recogrition,

Asset Cassificaticn and Prodsioing

Subtotal - - . - -
Total 731.00 1.95 72905 1.95 .

mNo.deWbNmpm'M
(#) Sector wise Non performing Assets

Particulars Mdurunuﬂmwmtm
As at As et As at March
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 31, 2022
7 Agriculture ard slied actwities v .
2 MSME -
3 Corporate borrowers* <000
4 Services .
5 Parsonal loans® 30600 -
6 Auto loans
7 Other porsonal loans
T Unsecwred and Repayabie on Demand
(b) Movement of NPAs
Particulars Asat Asat  As 8t March
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 31, 2022
1} Net NPAS ta net achance (%) 161%
ii) Movement of NPAs -
2) Opening balance -
b) Addition dusing the year 356,00
€) Reduction/ write off during the year -
d) Oesing balance 35600 -
il Mavernent of provisans for NPAS -
#) Opaning balance -
b) Addition during the year 89.00
©) Reduction/ write off during the year -
d) Closing balance §9.00

mmnldwmuunpwu

The Company has not purchesed/fsold nan-performing financial assetin the current sexd prenious year

V/»\Q,@«_i
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STATEMENT OF CAPITALISATION

Particulars Pre-issue as at 31.03.2024 Post Issue

Total Borrowings

Current Borrowing 1385.66 [e]
Non-Current Borrowing 6487.79 [e]
Total Equity™

Equity Share Capital 4281.54 6279.58
Other Equity 6981.77 9978.84
Total Capital 11263.31 16258.42

Ratio: Non-current

borrowings/Total Equity

*Details as per Restated Consolidated Financial Statements.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with
the "Restated Financial Statements" beginning on page 95 of this Letter of Offer.

Some of the information contained in the following discussion, including information with respect to our plans
and strategies, contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. You should also read
"Risk Factors" and "Forward Looking Statements" beginning on pages 22 and 14 respectively of this Letter of
Offer, which discuss a number of factors and contingencies that could affect our financial condition and results
of operations.

Our financial statements included in this Letter of Offer are prepared in accordance with Ind AS, which differs in
certain material respects from other accounting standards such as IFRS. Our financial year ends on March 31 of
each year. Accordingly, all references to a particular financial year are for the 12 months ended March 31 of that
year. Unless otherwise indicated or the context requires, the financial information for Fiscal 2024, 2023 and 2022
included herein is based on the Restated Financial Statements, included in this Letter of Offer. For further
information, see "Restated Financial Statements" beginning on page 95 of this Letter of Offer.

Neither we, any of their affiliates or advisors, nor any other person connected with the Issue has independently
verified such information. For further information, see "Presentation of Financial and other Information™
beginning on page 12 of this Letter of Offer.

SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS AFTER AUGUST, 2023 THAT MAY AFFECT OUR FUTURE
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

To the knowledge of our Company and except as disclosed herein, no other circumstances have arisen which
would materially and adversely affect or which would be likely to affect, our operations or profitability, or the
value of our assets or our ability to pay our material liabilities within the next 12 (twelve) months.

1. The company in its Board Meeting held on October 11, 2023 has approved the allotment of 20,79,60,320
Fully Paid-up Rights Equity shares of face value of Re. 1/- each at a price of Rs. 2.40/- per Rights Equity
share (including premium of Rs. 1.40/- per share) to the eligible applicants through Right Issue.

2. The Company has submitted Expression of Interest for Acquisition of ARC (Asset Reconstruction Company)
to carry on the Business of Securitisation or Assets Reconstruction under SARFAESI Act. The same was
intimated to Stock Exchange as Media Release under Regulation 30 of SEBI (LODR), 2015 on dated
November 7, 2023.

3. The Company as an RBI registered NBFC has firmed up its plan to apply for licence for Alternative
Investment Fund Category — Il (AIF) with SEBI Alternative Investment Fund Regulations. The same was
intimated to Stock Exchange as Media Release under Regulation 30 of SEBI (LODR), 2015 on dated
November 18, 2023.

4. The Company, as a part of its long-term business strategy and to expand its business interest in diverse
verticals, towards a Systematically Important NBFC, with elongated financial strength, having net-worth of
approx. Rs. 1100 million and total assets of approx. Rs. 2000 million. The same was intimated to Stock
Exchange as Media Release under Regulation 30 of SEBI (LODR), 2015 on dated December 13, 2024.

5. The Company has changed its logo of the Company with effect from February 6, 2024.

6. The Company along with Mr. Vikas Garg (Promoter of the Company) and Vikas Lifecare Limited (CIN: ---
L25111DL1995PLC073719) has entered into a Share Purchase Agreement on February 08, 2024, under
which the Company intended to acquire 14,07,067 equity shares representing 6.24% of the issued and paid-
up share capital of Industrial Investment Trust Limited.

7. The Company has made an application to the BSE Limited on March 18, 2024 towards the reclassification
of erstwhile i.e. Mr. Virender Kumar Agarwal and Mr. Shakul Kumar Agarwal from “Promoter/Promoter
Group” Category to “Public” Category Shareholders of the Company in terms of Regulation 31A (10) of
SEBI Listing Regulations.
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8. The Board of Directors of our Company has approved to raise funds through Rights Issue in the Board
meeting held on March 23, 2024 and the same was approved through Postal Ballot dated April 25, 2024.

9. The Board of Directors of our Company has increased limits to make loan and investment exceeding the
ceiling prescribed under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the same was approved through Postal

Ballot dated April 25, 2024.

FACTORS AFFECTING OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Compliance with environmental laws and regulations

We are subject to central and state environmental laws and regulations, which govern the discharge, emission,
storage, handling and disposal of a variety of substances that may be used in or result from its operations. In case
of any change in environmental or pollution laws and regulations, we may be required to incur significant amounts
on, among other things, environmental monitoring, pollution control equipment and emissions management. In
addition, failure to comply with environmental laws may result in the assessment of penalties and fines against us

by regulatory authorities.

Results of Operations

The following table sets out selected data from the Restated Standalone Financial Statements for Period ended
Financial Year 2024, Financial Year 2023 and Financial Year 2022, together with the percentage that each line

item represents of our total revenue for the periods presented.

Particulars FY ended March 31, | FY ended March 31, | FY ended March
2024 2023 31, 2022
Amount % of Amount % of Amount % of
(Rs. in Total (Rs. in Total (Rs. in Total
Lakh) Revenue Lakh) Revenue | Lakh) | Revenue
Revenue from Operations 2,745.92 | 99.83% | 34,927.11 | 99.98% | 3,949.52 | 100.00%
Other Income 4.75 0.17% 7.15 0.02% - 0.00%
Total Revenue 2,750.67 | 100.00% | 34,934.26 | 100.00% | 3,949.52 | 100.00%
Cost of Goods Sold (i.e net of Change in | 1099.88 | 39.98% | 33045.68 | 94.59% | 3852.47 | 97.54%
Inventories of Stock in Trade Plus
Purchases)
Excise Duty on Sale of Goods - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Employee Benefits Expenses 77.50 2.82% 43.85 0.13% 31.15 0.79%
Finance Cost 741.64 26.96% 277.73 0.80% 0.02 0.00%
Other expenses 205.47 7.47% 250.42 0.72% 11.40 0.29%
Depreciation and amortization expenses 39.47 1.43% 7.59 0.02% 2.89 0.07%
Total Expenditure 2,163.97 | 78.68% | 33,625.27 | 96.25% | 3,897.93 | 98.69%
Profit before Tax and before exceptional 586.70 21.33% | 1,308.99 3.75% 51.59 1.31%
items
Exceptional items:Profit (Loss) on sale of - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Fixed assets
Profit before Tax and after exceptional | 586.70 21.33% | 1,308.99 3.75% 51.59 1.31%
items
Current Tax (Including tax adjustment for 183.74 6.68% 357.98 1.02% 11.46 0.29%
earlier years)
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Deferred Tax (1.04) -0.04% (3.60) -0.01% 1.39 0.04%
Total tax expenses 182.70 6.64% 354.38 1.01% 12.85 0.33%
Profit for the period 403.99 30.69% 954.61 2.73% 38.74 0.98%
Other Comprehensive Income

(A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to | (103.92) (1198.45) - - -
profit or loss

(ii) Income Tax effect on herein above 26.18 301.63 - - -
(B) (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit - - -

or loss

(ii) Income Tax effect on herein above - - - - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income (A+B) (77.74) (896.82) - - -
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the 326.26 57.79 - 38.74 -
period (XI+XII)

Nominal Value per Equity Share 1 1 - 1 -
Equity per Equity share - Basic 0.10 0.03 - 0.08

Equity per Equity share — Diluted 0.10 0.03 - 0.08

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies have been applied consistently to the periods presented in the Restated Financial
Statements.

For details of our significant accounting policies, please refer section titled "Financial Information" on page 94

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES IN PREVIOUS 3 YEARS

Except as mentioned in chapter "Financial Information” on page 94, there has been no change in accounting
policies in last 3 years.

RESERVATIONS, QUALIFICATIONS AND ADVERSE REMARKS

For details, see section titled "Financial Information" on page 94.

PRINCIPAL COMPONENTS OF OUR STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT REVENUE
The following descriptions set forth information with respect to the key components of the Financial Statements
Comparison of Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 with Financial Year ended March 31, 2023
Revenue from Operations

Our turnover from Revenue from operation decreased to 32,745.92 Lakhs in FY 2023-24 as compared to X
334,927.11 Lakhs in FY 2022-23.

Other Income

Our other income also decreased to ¥4.75 Lakhs in FY 2023-24, other Income comprise mainly Interest and other
misc. income.

Other Expenses

Our other expenses increased by 6.09% from X143.09 Lakhs in financial year 2023-24 to X134.87 Lakhs in
financial year 2022-23. Other expense mainly includes Audit Fees and other Business-related Expense.
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OTHER MATTERS

1.

Unusual or infrequent events or transactions

Except as described in this Letter of Offer, during the periods under review there have been no
transactions or events, which in our best judgment, would be considered unusual or infrequent.

Significant economic changes that materially affected or are likely to affect income from
continuing operations

Other than as described in this Letter of Offer to our knowledge there are not any significant economic
changes that materially affected or are likely to affect income from continuing operations

Known trends or uncertainties that have had or are expected to have a material adverse impact on
sales, revenue or income from continuing operations

Other than as disclosed in the section titled "Risk Factors™ beginning on page 22 of this Letter of Offer
to our knowledge there are no known trends or uncertainties that have or had or are expected to have a
material adverse impact on revenues or income of our Company from continuing operations.

Future relationship between Costs and Income.

Our Company’s future costs and revenues will be determined by demand/supply situation, government
policies, subsidies available and prices of raw material.

The extent to which material increases in net sales or revenue are due to increased sales volume,
introduction of new products or services or increased prices.

Increase in revenue is by and large linked to increases in volume of business activity by the Company.
Total turnover of each major industry segment in which the issuer company operates.
Status of any publicly announced new products/projects or business segments

Our Company has not announced any new projects or business segments, other than disclosed in the
Letter of Offer.

The extent to which the business is seasonal

Our Company’s business is not seasonal in nature.

Any significant dependence on a single or few suppliers or customers

There is no significant dependence on a single or few suppliers or customers

Competitive Conditions

We face competition from existing and potential organised and unorganized competitors which is

common for any business. We have, over a period of time, developed certain competitive strengths which
have been discussed in section titled "Our Business" on page 75 of this Letter of Offer.
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MARKET PRICE INFORMATION

The Equity Shares are listed on the BSE. The Rights Equity Shares will be listed on the Stock Exchanges pursuant
to the Issue. For further details, please see "Terms of the Issue" on page 194 of this Letter of Offer. We have
received in-principle approvals for listing of the Rights Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges to be issued
pursuant to the Issue from the BSE by Letter dated approval letter LOD/RIGHT/AB/FIP/600/2024-25 dated July
19, 2024. Our Company will also make application to BSE to obtain the trading approval from the stock exchange
for the Rights Entitlements as required under the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars.

For the purpose of this section, unless otherwise specified:

1. Year is a Financial Year;

2. Average price is the average of the daily closing prices of our Equity Shares for the year, or the month,
as the case maybe;

3. High price is the maximum of the daily high prices and low price is the minimum of the daily low prices
of our Equity Shares, for the year, the month, or the week, as the case may be; and

4, In case of two days with the same high/low/closing price, the date with higher volume has been
considered.

Stock Market Data of the Equity Shares

The following table sets forth the high, low and average market prices of the Equity Shares recorded on the BSE
during the preceding three years and the number of the Equity Shares traded on the days of the high and low prices
were recorded.

BSE
FY High }) Date of Volume on Low }) Date of Volume on | Average )
High date of high Low date of low
(No. of (No. of
Equity Equity
Shares) Shares)
2023-24 4.35 January 10, 53605629 1.96 August 17, 1540579 3.155
2024 2023
2022-23 6.3 April 22, 4119353 2.65 December 248113 4.475
2022 26, 2022
2021-22 4.44 November 129219 1.3 April 12, 796 2.87
30, 2021 2021

(Source: www.bseindia.com)
The high and low prices and volume of Equity Shares traded on the respective date on the BSE during the last six
months preceding the date of filing of this Letter of Offer are as follows:

BSE
High ) Date of High Low (%) Date of Low Volume on
Volume on date of low
date of high (No. of
Monthly (No. of Equity

Equity Shares)
Shares)

September, September 11, September 09, 56,56,766

2024 3.10 2024 83,93,881 2.61 2024

August 01, August 14,

August, 2024 2.98 2024 31,03,616 2.60 2024 17,66,411

July, 2024 3.05 July 31, 2024 48,38,792 2.42 July 22, 2024 19,73,623

June, 2024 2.57 June 18, 2024 8,20,911 2.33 June 06, 2024 9,21,281

May, 2024 2.95 May 18, 2024 |  7,00,297 2.24 May 13, 2024 | 1544785

April, 2024 3.18 April 5, 2024 4143790 252 April 1, 2024 2260430

(Source: www.bseindia.com)
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SECTION VII - LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS AND DEFAULTS

Our Company is subject to various legal proceedings from time to time, primarily arising in the ordinary course
of business. There is no outstanding litigation which has been considered material in accordance with our
Company’s ‘Policy for Determination of Materiality’, framed in accordance with Regulation 30 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, and accordingly, there is no such outstanding litigation involving our Company that requires
disclosure in this Letter of Offer. However, solely for the purpose of the Issue, the following outstanding litigations
have been disclosed in this section of this Letter of Offer, to the extent applicable: any outstanding civil litigation,
including tax litigation, involving our Company, where the amount involved is 5% of Turnover or Net Worth of
the Company for the immediately preceding financial year ("Materiality Threshold™) or above.

Except as disclosed below, there are no outstanding litigation with respect to (i) issues of moral turpitude or
criminal liability on the part of our Company; (ii) material violations of statutory regulations by our Company;
(iii) economic offences where proceedings have been initiated against our Company;(iv) any pending matters,
which if they result in an adverse outcome, would materially and adversely affect our operations or our financial
position.

Pre-litigation notices received by our Company from third-parties (excluding notices pertaining to any offence
involving issues of moral turpitude, criminal liability, material violations of statutory regulations or proceedings
related to economic offences) shall not be evaluated for materiality until such time our Company are impleaded
as defendants in litigation proceedings before any judicial forum.

. Litigation involving our Company

A Litigation filed against our Company
1. Criminal proceedings
Nil
2. Outstanding actions by regulatory and statutory authorities
Nil
3. Civil proceedings
Nil
4, Litigation/Matters involving Tax Liabilities
NIL
B. Litigation filed by our Company
1. Criminal proceedings
Nil
2. Civil proceedings
Nil
3. Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities
NIL
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Tax proceedings

(in % Lakhs)

Particulars No. of cases Amount involved
Direct Tax Nil Nil
Indirect Tax Nil Nil
Total Nil Nil

Litigation involving our Promoters

Litigation filed against our Promoter

Criminal proceedings

Nil

Outstanding actions by regulatory and statutory authorities

Nil

Civil proceedings

Nil

Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

NIL

Litigation filed by our Promoter

Criminal proceedings

Nil

Civil proceedings

Nil

Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

NIL

Tax proceedings

(in X)

Particulars No. of cases Amount involved
Direct Tax Nil Nil
Indirect Tax Nil Nil
Total Nil Nil

Litigation involving our Directors
Litigation filed against our Director
Criminal proceedings

Nil
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VI.

Outstanding actions by regulatory and statutory authorities
Nil
Civil proceedings

Nil

Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

NIL

Litigation filed by our Director
Criminal proceedings

Nil

Civil proceedings

Nil

Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

Nil
Tax proceedings
(inX)
Particulars No. of cases Amount involved
Direct Tax Nil Nil
Indirect Tax Nil Nil
Total Nil Nil

LITIGATION INVOLVING OUR SUBSIDIARIES

Against Directors of the Subsidiary Company: NIL
By Directors of the Subsidiary Company: NIL

Litigations Involving Company’s Group Entities

Against the Group Entities: NIL
By the Group Entities: NIL

Other litigations involving any other entities which may have a material adverse effect on the

Company.

There is no outstanding litigation, suits, criminal or civil prosecutions, statutory or legal proceedings
including those for economic offences, tax liabilities, prosecution under any enactment in respect of the
Companies Act, show cause notices or legal notices pending against the company whose outcome could
affect the operation or finances of the Company or have a material adverse effect on the position of the

Company.
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VIL Details of the past penalties imposed on the Company / Directors

a) SEBI has imposed jointly and severally penalty of Rs. 6,00,000 on our Promoter and Promoter Group,
vide order dated March 21, 2024 for non-disclosure of shareholding/changes in shareholding to stock
exchanges as required under regulations 29(1) and 29(2) read with 29(3) of SAST regulations, 2011 in
matter of BEST AGROLIFE LTD. Our Promoters and Promoter Group has paid the penalty within
stipulated time period.

b) SEBI has imposed individual penalty on our Promoter, vide order dated March 21, 2024 for non-
disclosure of shareholding/changes in shareholding to stock exchanges as required under regulations
29(1) and 29(2) read with 29(3) of SAST regulations, 2011 in matter of BEST AGROLIFE LTD. Our
Promoters has paid the penalty within stipulated time period. The details of the penalty imposed are as

follows:
Name of the Persons Penalty
Mr. Vikas Garg Rs. 2,00,000
Ms. Seema Garg Rs. 2,00,000

c) An investigation was conducted by SEBI to ascertain whether there was any violation of the provisions
of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015 (hereinafter referred as “PIT Regulations™)
and SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (hereinafter referred as
“SAST Regulations”) by certain entities for the period from March 01, 2021 to October 12, 2021 in the
matter of VIKAS ECOTECH LIMITED. A Show Cause Notice has been received by Company’s
promoter Mr. Vikas Garg and his certain close relatives. Though, the non-compliances were inadvertent,
technical in nature and no unlawful gain was earned, penalties of INR 2,00,000 were imposed on Vikas
Garg, Promoter and Director of the Company under Section 15A (b) of the SEBI Act, 1992.

d) SEBI has imposed penalty on our Promoter and Promoter Group for delay in making disclosure of
shareholding/changes in shareholding g to company and/or stock exchanges as required under regulation
29(2) of SAST Regulations, 2011 in matter of SAHYOG MULTIBASE LIMITED. However, the same
has been reached at a settlement along with a Settlement Charges of Rs.3,48,075 vide settlement order
dated 16-Jul-2019. The details of the penalty imposed are as follows:

Name of the Persons Settlement charges
Mr. Vikas Garg Rs. 3,48,075
Ms. Sukriti Garg

VIII.  Outstanding dues to creditors

Details of outstanding dues (trade payables) owed to micro, small and medium enterprises (as defined under
Section 2 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006), material creditors and other
creditors, as at March 31, 2024, by our Company, are set out below:

(R in lakhs)

Type of creditors Amount involved
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 1.94
Other creditors 217
Total 4.12

Material Developments

Other than as stated in the section entitled "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations — Material Developments Subsequent to March 31, 2024" on page 175 of this Letter of
Offer, there have not arisen, since the date of the last financial information disclosed in this Letter of Offer, any
circumstances which materially and adversely affect, or are likely to affect, our operations, our profitability taken
as a whole or the value of our consolidated assets or our ability to pay our liabilities within the next 12 months.
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GOVERNMENT AND OTHER STATUTORY APPROVALS

Our Company has obtained necessary consents, licenses, permissions and approvals from governmental and
regulatory authorities that are material for carrying on our present business activities. Some of the approvals and
licenses that our Company requires for our business operations may expire in the ordinary course of business, and
our Company will apply for their renewal from time to time.

We are not required to obtain any licenses or approvals from any government or regulatory authority for the
objects of this Issue. For further details, please refer to the chapter titled "Objects of the Issue™ at page 53 of this
Letter of Offer.
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OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES
Authority for the Issue

This Issue has been authorized through a resolution passed by our Board at its meeting held on March 23, 2024
to raise funds by issuance and allotment of equity shares for aggregate amount of up to Rs. 50 Crore (Rupees Fifty
Crore), by way of QIP’s, ADR, GDR, FCCB or any other method or combination thereof including series of Right
Issue(s), on such terms to be decided by the Board or a duly constituted committee of the Board at a later date,
subject to the approval of shareholders, thereafter, the same was approved via Postal Ballot Notice dated April
25, 2024.

Our Board/Rights Issue Committee, in its meeting held on September 07, 2024 has resolved to issue the Equity
Shares on rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders, at X 2.50 per Equity Share (including a premium of
%1.50 per Equity Share) aggregating up to % 4,995.13 lakhs. The Issue Price is X 2.50 per Equity Share and has
been arrived at by our Company in consultation with the Advisor to the Issue prior to determination of the Record
Date.

Our Company has received in-principle approvals from BSE in accordance with Regulation 28(1) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations for listing of the Equity Shares to be allotted in this Issue pursuant to their respective letters
each dated July 19, 2024. Our Company will also make application to BSE to obtain their trading approval for
the Rights Entitlements as required under the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars.

Our Company has been allotted the [INE178T20032] for the Rights Entitlements to be credited to the respective
demat accounts of the Equity Shareholders of our Company. For details, see "Terms of the Issue" beginning on
page 194 of this Letter of Offer.

Prohibition by SEBI or other Governmental Authorities

Our Company, our Promoter, our Directors, the members of our Promoter Group and persons in control of our
Company have not been prohibited from accessing the capital market or debarred from buying or selling or
dealing in securities under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any securities market regulator in any
jurisdiction or any authority/court as on date of this Letter of Offer.

Further, our Promoter and our Directors are not promoter or director of any other company which is debarred
from accessing or operating in the capital markets or restrained from buying, selling or dealing in securities under
any order or direction passed by SEBI. None our Directors or Promoter is associated with the securities market
in any manner. Further, there is no outstanding action initiated against any of our Directors or Promoters by SEBI
in the five years preceding the date of filing of this Letter of Offer.

Neither our Promoter nor our Directors have been declared as fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of
Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018 (17 of 2018).

Prohibition by RBI

Neither our Company, nor our Promoter, and Directors have been categorized or identified as wilful defaulters
or fraudulent borrowers by any bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with the
guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India. There are no violations of securities laws
committed by them in the past or are currently pending against any of them.

Compliance with Companies (Significant Beneficial Ownership) Rules, 2018

Our Company, our Promoter and the members of our Promoter Group are in compliance with the Companies
(Significant Beneficial Ownership) Rules, 2018 to the extent it may be applicable to them as on date of this Letter
of Offer.

Eligibility for the Issue

Our Company is a listed company, incorporated under Companies Act, 1956. The Equity Shares of our Company
are presently listed on BSE. We are eligible to undertake the Issue in terms of Chapter Il of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations. Pursuant to Clauses (1) and (2) of Part B of Schedule VI to the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, our
Company is required to make disclosures in accordance with Part B-1 of Schedule VI to the SEBI (ICDR)
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Regulations.
Compliance with Regulations 61 and 62 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations

Our Company is in compliance with the conditions specified in Regulations 61 and 62 of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, to the extent applicable. Further, in relation to compliance with Regulation 62(1)(a) of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations, our Company undertakes to make an application to the Stock Exchanges for listing of the
Rights Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to the Issue. BSE Limited is the Designated Stock Exchange for the
Issue.

Compliance with Part B-1 of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Our Company is in compliance with the provisions specified in Clause (1) of Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations as explained below:

1. Our Company has been filing periodic reports, statements and information in compliance with the SEBI Listing
Regulations, as applicable for the last one year immediately preceding the date of filing of the Letter of Offer
with the Designated Stock Exchange;

2. The reports, statements and information referred to above are available on the websites of BSE; and

3. Our Company has an investor grievance-handling mechanism which includes meeting of the Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee at frequent intervals, appropriate delegation of power by our Board as regards share
transfer and clearly laid down systems and procedures for timely and satisfactory redressal of investor grievances.

However, in terms of Clause (3) of Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, following issuers shall
mandatorily make disclosures in the Letter of offer/letter of offer as specified in Part B-1 of this Schedule:

(a) an issuer whose management has undergone any change pursuant to acquisition of control in accordance with
the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 1997 or the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as applicable and is making a rights issue of specified securities for the first time
subsequent to such change and a period of three full years has not elapsed since such a change;

(b) an issuer whose specified securities have been listed consequent to the relaxation granted by the Board under
sub-rule (7) of rule 19 of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957 for listing of its specified securities
pursuant to a scheme sanctioned by a High Court under sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 or
approved by a tribunal under sections 230-234 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable, and is making a rights
issue of specified securities for the first time subsequent to such listing and a period of three full years has not
elapsed since such listing.

Since the management of our Company has undergone change pursuant to acquisition of control in accordance
with the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011, during the financial year 2022-23, the disclosures contained in the Letter of Offer/Letter of
Offer have been mandatorily made in terms of Part B-1 of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF SEBI

THE PRESENT ISSUE, BEING LESS THAN 5,000 LAKHS, OUR COMPANY IS IN COMPLIANCE
WITH FIRST PROVISIO TO REGULATION 3 OF THE SEBI ICDR REGULATIONS AND OUR
COMPANY SHALL FILE A COPY OF THE Letter OF OFFER PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE SEBI (ICDR) REGULATIONS WITH SEBI FOR INFORMATION AND DISSEMINATION ON
THE WEBSITE OF SEBI FOR INFORMATIVE PURPOSES.

Disclaimer from our Company and our Directors
Our Company accept no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in this Letter of Offer or in any

advertisement or other material issued by our Company or by any other persons at the instance of our Company
anyone placing reliance on any other source of information would be doing so at his own risk.
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Investors who invest in this Issue will be deemed to have represented by our Company and their respective
directors, officers, agents, affiliates and representatives that they are eligible under all applicable laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines and approvals to acquire Equity Shares of our Company and are relying on independent
advice / evaluation as to their ability and quantum of investment in this Issue.

Disclaimer in respect of Jurisdiction

This Letter of Offer has been prepared under the provisions of Indian law and the applicable rules and regulations
thereunder. Any disputes arising out of the Issue will be subject to the jurisdiction of the appropriate court(s) in
New Delhi only.

Disclaimer Clause of BSE

BSE Limited ("the Exchange™) has given vide its letter dated LOD/RIGHT/AB/FIP/600/2024-25 dated July 19,
2024, permission to this Company to use the Exchange’s name in this Letter of Offer as the stock exchange on
which this Company’s securities are proposed to be listed. The Exchange has scrutinized this Letter of Offer for
its limited internal purpose of deciding on the matter of granting the aforesaid permission to this Company. The
Exchange does not in any manner:

i Warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this Letter of
Offer; or

ii. Warrant that this Company’s securities will be listed or will continue to be listed on the Exchange; or

iii. Take any responsibility for the financial or other soundness of this Company, its promoters, its
management or any scheme or project of this Company;

and it should not for any reason be deemed or construed that this Letter of Offer has been cleared or approved by
the Exchange. Every person who desires to apply for or otherwise acquires any securities of this Company may
do so pursuant to independent inquiry, investigation and analysis and shall not have any claim against the
Exchange whatsoever by reason of any loss which may be suffered by such person consequent to or in connection
with such subscription/acquisition whether by reason of anything stated or omitted to be stated herein or for any
other reason whatsoever.

Designated Stock Exchange
The Designated Stock Exchange for the purposes of the Issue is BSE Limited.
Listing

Our Company will apply to BSE for final approval for the listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares
subsequent to their Allotment. No assurance can be given regarding the active or sustained trading in the Rights
Equity Shares or the price at which the Rights Equity Shares offered under the Issue will trade after the listing
thereof.

Selling Restrictions

This Letter of Offer is solely for the use of the person who has received it from our Company or from the Registrar.
This Letter of Offer is not to be reproduced or distributed to any other person.

The distribution of this Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form, the Rights
Entitlement Letter and the issue of Rights Entitlements and Equity Shares on a rights basis to persons in certain
jurisdictions outside India is restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. Persons into whose
possession this Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer Application Form and the Rights
Entitlement Letter may come are required to inform themselves about and observe such restrictions. Our Company
is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company and will dispatch the
Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter only
to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company.

No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction, or the possession, circulation, or
distribution of this Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer or any other material relating to our
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Company, the Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in any jurisdiction, where action would be required for that
purpose, except that this Letter of Offer has been filed with SEBI and the Stock Exchanges.

Accordingly, the Rights Entitlement or Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and this
Letter of Offer or any offering materials or advertisements in connection with the Issue or Rights Entitlement
may not be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with legal requirements applicable
in such jurisdiction. Receipt of this Letter of Offer will not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in which it
would be illegal to make such an offer.

This Letter of Offer and its accompanying documents are being supplied to you solely for your information and
may not be reproduced, redistributed or passed on, directly or indirectly, to any other person or published, in
whole or in part, for any purpose. If this Letter of Offer is received by any person in any jurisdiction where to do
so would or might contravene local securities laws or regulation, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek
to subscribe to the Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlement referred to in this Letter of Offer. Investors are advised
to consult their legal counsel prior to applying for the Rights Entitlement and Equity Shares or accepting any
provisional allotment of Equity Shares, or making any offer, sale, resale, pledge or other transfer of the Equity
Shares or Rights Entitlement.

Neither the delivery of this Letter of Offer nor any sale hereunder, shall under any circumstances create any
implication that there has been no change in our Company’s affairs from the date hereof or the date of such
information or that the information contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to this date or the date
of such information. Each person who exercises Rights Entitlements and subscribes for Equity Shares, or who
purchases Rights Entitlements or Equity Shares shall do so in accordance with the restrictions set out below.

NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES

THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND THE EQUITY SHARES HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT
BE REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE
"SECURITIES ACT"), OR ANY U.S. STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED,
SOLD, RESOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED WITHIN THE UNITED STATES, EXCEPT IN A
TRANSACTION EXEMPT FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES
ACT. THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND EQUITY SHARES REFERRED TO IN THE Letter OF
OFFER ARE BEING OFFERED IN INDIA, BUT NOT IN THE UNITED STATES. THE OFFERING
TO WHICH THE Letter OF OFFER RELATES IS NOT, AND UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES IS TO
BE CONSTRUED AS, AN OFFERING OF ANY EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS
FOR SALE IN THE UNITED STATES OR AS A SOLICITATION THEREIN OF AN OFFER TO BUY
ANY OF THE SAID SECURITIES. ACCORDINGLY, LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE
FORWARDED TO OR TRANSMITTED IN OR INTO THE UNITED STATES AT ANY TIME.

Neither our Company, nor any person acting on behalf of our Company, will accept a subscription or renunciation
from any person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company, or any person acting on
behalf of our Company, has reason to believe is, in the United States when the buy order is made. Envelopes
containing an Application Form should not be postmarked in the United States or otherwise dispatched from the
United States or any other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer under this Letter of Offer. Our
Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and this Letter of Offer, Letter
of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter will be dispatched to the
Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company. Any person who acquires
the Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and
agreed, by accepting the delivery of the Letter of Offer, (i) that it is not and that, at the time of subscribing for
the Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, it will not be, in the United States when the buy order is made; and
(ii) is authorised to acquire the Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws,
rules and regulations.

Our Company reserves the right to treat as invalid any Application Form which: (i) appears to our Company or
its agents to have been executed in or dispatched from the United States of America; (ii) does not include the
relevant certification set out in the Application Form headed "Overseas Shareholders" to the effect that the person
accepting and/or renouncing the Application Form does not have a registered address (and is not otherwise
located) in the United States, and such person is complying with laws of the jurisdictions applicable to such
person in connection with the Issue, among others; (iii) where our Company believes acceptance of such
Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; or (iv) where a registered Indian
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address is not provided, and our Company shall not be bound to allot or issue any Equity Shares or Rights
Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form.

None of the Rights Entitlements or the Equity Shares have been, or will be, registered under the United States
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act”), or any state securities laws in the United States.
Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements and Equity Shares are being offered and sold only outside the United States
in compliance with Regulation S under the Securities Act and the applicable laws of the jurisdictions where those
offers and sales are made.

NO OFFER IN ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE INDIA

NO OFFER OR INVITATION TO PURCHASE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS EQUITY
SHARES IS BEING MADE IN ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE OF INDIA, INCLUDING, BUT NOT
LIMITED TO AUSTRALIA, BAHRAIN, CANADA, THE EUROPEAN ECONOMIC AREA, GHANA,
HONG KONG, INDONESIA, JAPAN, KENYA, KUWAIT, MALAYSIA, NEW ZEALAND,
SULTANATE OF OMAN, PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA, QATAR, SINGAPORE, SOUTH
AFRICA, SWITZERLAND, THAILAND, THE UNITED ARAB EMIRATES, THE UNITED KINGDOM
AND THE UNITED STATES. THE OFFERING TO WHICH THIS LETTER OF OFFER RELATES IS
NOT, AND UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES IS TO BE CONSTRUED AS, AN OFFERING OF ANY
RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENT FOR SALE IN ANY JURISDICTION
OUTSIDE INDIA OR AS A SOLICIATION THEREIN OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY OF THE SAID
SECURITIES. ACCORDINGLY, THIS Letter OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE FORWARDED TO OR
TRANSMITTED IN OR INTO ANY OTHER JURISDICTION AT ANY TIME.

Consents

Consents in writing of: our Directors, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the
Lead Manager, legal advisor, Bankers to the Company, the Registrar to the Issue and the Bankers to the Issue to
act in their respective capacities, have been obtained and such consents have not been withdrawn up to the date
of this Letter of Offer.

Our Company has received written consent dated May 2, 2024 from our Statutory Auditor to include their name
in this Letter of Offer and as an ‘expert’ as defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation
to the Statement of Tax Benefits dated May 2, 2024 in the form and context in which it appears in this Letter of
Offer. Such consent has not been withdrawn up to the date of this Letter of Offer.

Expert Opinion

Our Company has received written consent dated May 2, 2024 from our Statutory Auditor to include their name
as required in this Letter of Offer and as an ‘expert” as defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies Act, 2013
in relation the Statement of Tax Benefits dated May 2, 2024 and such consent has not been withdrawn as of the
date of this Letter of Offer. The term ‘expert’ and consent thereof, does not represent an expert or consent within

the meaning under the U.S. Securities Act.

Except for the abovementioned documents, provided by our Auditors, our Company has not obtained any expert
opinions.

Performance vis-a-vis objects — Public/Rights Issue of our Company

The Company has successfully completed the objects of the previous rights issue made in the financial year 2021-
22. There have been no instances in the past, wherein our Company has failed to achieve the objects in its previous
issues.

Performance vis-a-vis objects — Last issue of listed Subsidiaries or Associates

Our Company does not have any listed subsidiaries or associate companies as on the date of this Letter of Offer.
Our Company has 2 public subsidiaries. Further, there have been no instances in the past.
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Stock Market Data of the Equity Shares

Our Equity Shares are listed on BSE. Our Equity Shares are traded on BSE. For details in connection with the
stock market data of the Stock Exchanges, please refer to the chapter titled "Market Price Information”
beginning on page 179 of this Letter of Offer.

NOTICE TO INVESTORS

NO ACTION HAS BEEN TAKEN OR WILL BE TAKEN THAT WOULD PERMIT A PUBLIC
OFFERING OF THERIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES TO OCCUR IN ANY
JURISDICTION OTHER THAN INDIA, OR THE POSSESSION, CIRCULATION OR DISTRIBUTION
OF THIS Letter OF OFFER OR ANY OTHER MATERIAL RELATING TO OUR COMPANY, THE
RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES IN ANY JURISDICTION WHERE
ACTION FOR SUCH PURPOSE IS REQUIRED. ACCORDINGLY, THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS
OR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY,
AND NEITHER THIS Letter OF OFFER NOR ANY OFFERING MATERIALS OR
ADVERTISEMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS
EQUITY SHARES MAY BE DISTRIBUTED OR PUBLISHED IN OR FROM ANY COUNTRY OR
JURISDICTION EXCEPT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LEGAL REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE
IN SUCH COUNTRY OR JURISDICTION. THIS ISSUE WILL BE MADE IN COMPLIANCE WITH
THE APPLICABLE SEBI REGULATIONS. EACH PURCHASER OF THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS
OR THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES IN THIS IS SUE WILL BE DEEMED TO HAVE MADE
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS AND AGREEMENTS.

Filing

SEBI vide the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth
Amendment) Regulations, 2020 has amended Regulation 3(b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as per which the
threshold of filing of Letter of Offer with SEBI for rights issues has been increased. The threshold of the rights
issue size under Regulation 3 (b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations has been increased from Rupees ten crores to
Rupees fifty crores. Since the size of this Issue falls below this threshold, the Letter of Offer has been filed with
the Stock Exchanges and not with SEBI. However, the Letter of Offer will be submitted with SEBI for
information and dissemination and will be filed with the Stock Exchanges.

Mechanism for Redressal of Investor Grievances

Our Company has adequate arrangements for redressal of investor grievances in compliance with the SEBI
Listing Regulations. We have been registered with the SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) as required
by the SEBI Circular no. CIR/ OIAE/ 2/ 2011 dated June 3, 2011 and shall comply with the SEBI circular no.
CIR/OIAE/1/2014 dated December 18, 2014 and the SEBI Master Circular on the redressal of investor grievances
through the SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) platform dated November 7, 2022 (SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/OIAE/IGRD/P/CIR/2022/0150), in relation to redressal of investor grievances through SCORES.
Consequently, investor grievances are tracked online by our Company.

Our Company has a Stakeholders Relationship Committee which meets at least once a year and as and when
required. Its terms of reference include considering and resolving grievances of Shareholders in relation to
transfer of shares and effective exercise of voting rights. Skyline Financial Services Private Limited is our
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. All investor grievances received by us have been handled by the Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent in consultation with the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer.

Investor complaints received by our Company are typically disposed of within 15 days from the receipt of the
complaint.

Investors may contact the Registrar or our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre-Issue
or post-Issue related matter. All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the
Registrar, with a copy to the SCSBs (in case of ASBA process), giving full details such as name, address of
the Applicant, contact number(s), e mail address of the sole/ first holder, folio number or demat account
number, number of Equity Shares applied for, amount blocked (in case of ASBA process), ASBA Account
number and the Designated Branch of the SCSBs where the Application Form or the plain paper
application, as the case may be, was submitted by the Investors along with a photocopy of the
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acknowledgement slip (in case of ASBA process). For details on the ASBA process, see "Terms of the Issue™
beginning on page 194 of this Letter of Offer. The contact details of Registrar to the Issue and our Company
Secretary and Compliance Officer are as follows:

Registrar to the Company:

Name: Skyline Financial Services Private Limited
Address: D-153A, 1% Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase-1, New Delhi-110020

Telephone Number: 011-40450193/97

Contact person: Mr. Anuj Rana

Website: www.skylinerta.com

E-mail: Info@skylinerta.com

Investors may contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer at the below mentioned address for any
pre-1ssue/ post-Issue related matters such as non-receipt of Letters of Allotment / share certificates/ demat credit/
Refund Orders etc.

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company.
Ms. Deepika Mishra,

Telephone: +91 9289119980
E- mail: advikcapital@gmail.com
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SECTION VIII - ISSUE INFORMATION
TERMS OF THE ISSUE

This section is for the information of the Eligible Equity Shareholders proposing to apply in this Issue. The Eligible
Equity Shareholders should carefully read the provisions contained in this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of
Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form, before submitting the Application Form. Our
Company and the Lead Manager are not liable for any amendments or modifications or changes in applicable
laws or regulations, which may occur after the date of the Letter of Offer. The Eligible Equity Shareholders are
advised to make their independent investigation and ensure that the Application Form is accurately filled up in
accordance with instructions provided therein and the Letter of Offer. Unless otherwise permitted under the SEBI
ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Relaxation Circulars, the Eligible Equity Shareholders proposing to apply
in this Issue can apply only through ASBA or by mechanism as disclosed in the Letter of Offer.

The Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to note that application in this issue can only be made through
ASBA.

OVERVIEW

This Issue is proposed to be undertaken on a rights basis and is subject to the terms and conditions contained in
this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, the Application Form, and the
Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association of our Company, the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, the FEMA, the FEMA Rules, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI (LODR) Regulations and the
guidelines, notifications, circulars and regulations issued by SEBI, the Government of India and other statutory
and regulatory authorities from time to time, approvals, if any, from RBI or other regulatory authorities, the terms
of the Listing Agreements entered into by our Company with Stock Exchanges and the terms and conditions as
stipulated in the Allotment Advice.

IMPORTANT

. DISPATCH AND AVAILABILITY OF ISSUE MATERIALS

In accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the SEBI Relaxation Circulars, the Abridged Letter
of Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be sent/
dispatched only to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided Indian address. In case such
Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the
Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be sent only to their valid
e-mail address and in case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then
the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material
will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.

Further, the Letter of Offer will be sent/ dispatched to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have
provided Indian address and who have made a request in this regard. In case such Eligible Equity
Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Letter of Offer will be sent only to their valid
e-mail address and in case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then
the Letter of Offer will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by
them.
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Shareholders can access the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form
(provided that the Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Equity Shares under
applicable laws) on the websites of:

Q) our Company at www.advikcapital.com;

(i) the Registrar at www.skylinerta.com;

(iii) the Lead Manager, i.e. http://ftfinsec.com;

(iv) the Stock Exchanges at www.bseindia.com; and

Eligible Equity Shareholders can also obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the
website of the Registrar (i.e., www.skylinerta.com ) by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio
Number (for Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date)
and PAN. The link for the same shall also be available on the website of our Company (i.e.,
www.advikcapital.com).

Please note that neither our Company nor the Registrar nor the Lead Manager shall be responsible
for non-dispatch of physical copies of Issue materials, including the Letter of Offer, the Abridged
Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form or delay in the receipt of
the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application
Form attributable to non-availability of the e-mail addresses of Eligible Equity Shareholders or
electronic transmission delays or failures, or if the Application Forms or the Rights Entitlement
Letters are delayed or misplaced in the transit.

The distribution of the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the
issue of Equity Shares on a rights basis to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India is restricted by
legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. No action has been, or will be, taken to permit this
Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required for that purpose, except that the Letter of Offer
is being filed with the Stock Exchanges. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements and Equity Shares may
not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the
Rights Entitlement Letter, the Application Form or any Issue related materials or advertisements in
connection with this Issue may not be distributed, in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with and as
permitted under the legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of the Letter of Offer, the
Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form (including by way of
electronic means) will not constitute an offer, invitation to or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction
or in any circumstances in which such an offer, invitation or solicitation is unlawful or not authorised or
to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer, invitation or solicitation. In those
circumstances, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the
Application Form must be treated as sent for information only and should not be acted upon for making
an Application and should not be copied or re-distributed.

Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights
Entitlement Letter or the Application Form should not, in connection with the issue of the Equity Shares
or the Rights Entitlements, distribute or send the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights
Entitlement Letter or the Application Form in or into any jurisdiction where to do so, would, or might,
contravene local securities laws or regulations or would subject our Company or its affiliates or the Lead
Manager or their respective affiliates to any filing or registration requirement (other than in India). If the
Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form is
received by any person in any such jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek to make
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an application or acquire the Rights Entitlements referred to in the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter
of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form. Any person who makes an application
to acquire Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares offered in the Issue, will be deemed to have
declared, represented and warranted that such person is authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlements
and the Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations prevailing in such person’s
jurisdiction and India, without requirement for our Company or our affiliates or the Lead Manager or
their respective affiliates to make any filing or registration (other than in India).

PROCESS OF MAKING AN APPLICATION IN THE ISSUE

In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and
the ASBA Circulars, all Shareholders desiring to make an application in this Issue are mandatorily
required to use the ASBA process. Shareholders should carefully read the provisions applicable to such
application before making their application through ASBA.

The Application Form can be used by the Eligible Equity Shareholders as well as the Renouncees, to
make Applications in this Issue basis the Rights Entitlement credited in their respective demat accounts
or demat suspense escrow account, as applicable. For further details on the Rights Entitlements and demat
suspense escrow account, see “Credit of Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity
Shareholders” below.

Please note that one single Application Form shall be used by Shareholders to make Applications for all
Rights Entitlements available in a particular demat account or entire respective portion of the Rights
Entitlements in the demat suspense escrow account in case of resident Eligible Equity Shareholders
holding shares in physical form as on Record Date and applying in this Issue, as applicable. In case of
Shareholders who have provided details of demat account in accordance with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, such Shareholders will have to apply for the Equity Shares from the same demat account in
which they are holding the Rights Entitlements and in case of multiple demat accounts, the Shareholders
are required to submit a separate Application Form for each demat account.

Shareholders may apply for the Equity Shares by submitting the Application Form to the Designated
Branch of the SCSB or online/electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available
by such SCSB) for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application in
their respective ASBA Accounts.

Shareholders are also advised to ensure that the Application Form is correctly filled up stating therein
the ASBA Account (in case of Application through ASBA process) in which an amount equivalent to
the amount payable on Application as stated in the Application Form will be blocked by the SCSB.

Applicants should note that they should very carefully fill-in their depository account details and PAN
in the Application Form or while submitting application through online/electronic Application through
the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB). Please note that incorrect depository account
details or PAN or Application Forms without depository account details shall be treated as incomplete
and shall be rejected. For details see “Grounds for Technical Rejection” below. Our Company, the
Lead Manager, the Registrar and the SCSBs shall not be liable for any incomplete or incorrect demat
details provided by the Applicants.
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Additionally, in terms of Regulation 78 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Eligible Equity Shareholders
may choose to accept the offer to participate in this Issue by making plain paper Applications. Please
note that SCSBs shall accept such applications only if all details required for making the application as
per the SEBI ICDR Regulations are specified in the plain paper application and that Eligible Equity
Shareholders making an application in this Issue by way of plain paper applications shall not be permitted
to renounce any portion of their Rights Entitlements. For details, see “Making of an Application by
Eligible Equity Shareholders on Plain Paper under ASBA process” below.

Options available to the Eligible Equity Shareholders

The Rights Entitlement Letter will clearly indicate the number of Equity Shares that the Eligible Equity
Shareholder is entitled to.

If the Eligible Equity Shareholder applies in this Issue, then such Eligible Equity Shareholder can:

(i) apply for its Equity Shares to the full extent of its Rights Entitlements; or

(i) apply for its Equity Shares to the extent of part of its Rights Entitlements (without renouncing
the other part); or

(iii) apply for Equity Shares to the extent of part of its Rights Entitlements and renounce the other
part of its Rights Entitlements; or

(iv) apply for its Equity Shares to the full extent of its Rights Entitlements and apply for additional
Equity Shares; or

(v) renounce its Rights Entitlements in full.

Making of an Application through the ASBA process

Shareholders, wishing to participate in this Issue through the ASBA facility, is required to have an ASBA
enabled bank account with an SCSB, prior to making the Application. Shareholders desiring to make an
Application in this Issue through ASBA process, may submit the Application Form in physical mode to
the Designated Branches of the SCSB or online/ electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs
(if made available by such SCSB) for authorizing such SCSB to block Application Money payable on
the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts.

Shareholders should ensure that they have correctly submitted the Application Form and have provided
an authorisation to the SCSB, via the electronic mode, for blocking funds in the ASBA Account
equivalent to the Application Money mentioned in the Application Form, as the case may be, at the time
of submission of the Application.

For the list of banks which have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA process, please
refer to https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=34

Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of the SEBI circular bearing reference
number CIR/CFD/DIL/13/2012 dated September 25, 2012, within the periods stipulated therein,
Applications may be submitted at the Designated Branches of the SCSBs. Further, in terms of the SEBI
circular bearing reference number CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2013 dated January 2, 2013, it is clarified that for
making Applications by SCSBs on their own account using ASBA facility, each such SCSB should have
a separate account in its own name with any other SEBI registered SCSB(s). Such account shall be used
solely for the purpose of making an Application in this Issue and clear demarcated funds should be
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available in such account for such an Application.

The Lead Manager, our Company, its directors, its employees, affiliates, associates and their respective
directors and officers and the Registrar shall not take any responsibility for acts, mistakes, errors,
omissions and commissions etc., in relation to Applications accepted by SCSBs, Applications uploaded
by SCSBs, Applications accepted but not uploaded by SCSBs or Applications accepted and uploaded
without blocking funds in the ASBA Accounts.

Do’s for Shareholders applying through ASBA:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

()

()

()]

Ensure that the details about your Depository Participant, PAN and beneficiary account are
correct and the beneficiary account is activated as the Equity Shares will be allotted in the
dematerialized form only.

Ensure that the Applications are submitted with the Designated Branch of the SCSBs and details
of the correct bank account have been provided in the Application.

Ensure that there are sufficient funds (equal to {number of Equity Shares (including additional
Equity Shares) applied for} X {Application Money of Equity Shares}) available in ASBA
Account mentioned in the Application Form before submitting the Application to the respective
Designated Branch of the SCSB.

Ensure that you have authorised the SCSB for blocking funds equivalent to the total amount
payable on application mentioned in the Application Form, in the ASBA Account, of which
details are provided in the Application Form and have signed the same.

Ensure that you have a bank account with an SCSB providing ASBA facility in your location
and the Application is made through that SCSB providing ASBA facility in such location.
Ensure that you receive an acknowledgement from the Designated Branch of the SCSB for your
submission of the Application Form in physical form or plain paper Application.

Ensure that the name(s) given in the Application Form is exactly the same as the name(s) in
which the beneficiary account is held with the Depository Participant. In case the Application
Form is submitted in joint names, ensure that the beneficiary account is also held in same joint
names and such names are in the same sequence in which they appear in the Application Form
and the Rights Entitlement Letter.

Don’ts for Shareholders applying through ASBA:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Do not submit the Application Form after you have submitted a plain paper Application to a
Designated Branch of the SCSB or vice versa.

Do not send your physical Application to the Lead Manager, the Registrar, the Escrow
Collection Bank(s) (assuming that such Escrow Collection Bank is not an SCSB), a branch of
the SCSB which is not a Designated Branch of the SCSB or our Company; instead submit the
same to a Designated Branch of the SCSB only.

Do not instruct the SCSBs to unblock the funds blocked under the ASBA process upon making
the Application.

Do not submit Application Form using third party ASBA account.

Making of an Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders on for Paper under ASBA process

An Eligible Equity Shareholder in India who is eligible to apply under the ASBA process may make an
application to subscribe to this Issue on plain paper in case of non-receipt of Application Form as detailed
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above. In such cases of non-receipt of the Application Form through e-mail or physical delivery (where
applicable) and the Eligible Equity Shareholder not being in a position to obtain it from any other source
may make an application to subscribe to this Issue on plain paper with the same details as per the
Application Form that is available on the website of the Registrar, Stock Exchanges or the Lead Manager.
An Eligible Equity Shareholder shall submit the plain paper Application to the Designated Branch of the
SCSB for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money in the said bank account maintained with
the same SCSB. Applications on plain paper will not be accepted from any Eligible Equity Shareholder
who has not provided an Indian address or is a U.S. Person or in the United States.

Please note that the Eligible Equity Shareholders who are making the Application on plain paper shall
not be entitled to renounce their Rights Entitlements and should not utilize the Application Form for any
purpose including renunciation even if it is received subsequently.

The Application on plain paper, duly signed by the Eligible Equity Shareholder including joint holders,
in the same order and as per specimen recorded with his/her bank, must reach the office of the Designated
Branch of the SCSB before the Issue Closing Date and should contain the following particulars:

€)] Name of our Company, being Advik Capital Limited;

(i) Name and address of the Eligible Equity Shareholder including joint holders (in the same order
and as per specimen recorded with our Company or the Depository);

(i) Folio Number (in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form
as on Record Date)/DP and Client ID;

(iii) Except for Applications on behalf of the Central or State Government, the residents of Sikkim
and the officials appointed by the courts, PAN of the Eligible Equity Shareholder and for each
Eligible Equity Shareholder in case of joint names, irrespective of the total value of the Equity
Shares applied for pursuant to this Issue

(iv) Number of Equity Shares held as on Record Date;

(v) Allotment option — only dematerialised form;

(vi) Number of Equity Shares entitled to;

(vii) Number of Equity Shares applied for within the Rights Entitlements;

(viii)  Number of additional Equity Shares applied for, if any (applicable only if entire Rights
Entitlements have been applied for);

(ix) Total number of Equity Shares applied for;

x) Total amount paid at the rate of Rs. 1 per Equity Share;

(xi) Details of the ASBA Account such as the SCSB account number, name, address and branch of
the relevant SCSB;

(xii) In case of non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders making an application with an Indian
address, details of the NRE/FCNR/NRO account such as the account humber, name, address
and branch of the SCSB with which the account is maintained;

(xiii)  Authorisation to the Designated Branch of the SCSB to block an amount equivalent to the
Application Money in the ASBA Account;

(xiv)  Signature of the Eligible Equity Shareholder (in case of joint holders, to appear in the same
sequence and order as they appear in the records of the SCSB); and

(xv) All such Eligible Equity Shareholders are deemed to have accepted the following:

“I/ We will not offer, sell or otherwise transfer any of the Rights Equity Shares which may be

acquired by us in any jurisdiction or under any circumstances in which such offer or sale is not
authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer, sale or invitation except
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under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable laws or regulations. We
satisfy, and each account for which we are acting satisfies, all suitability standards for
Shareholders in investments of the type subscribed for herein imposed by the jurisdiction of our
residence.

I/ We understand and agree that the Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares may not be
reoffered, resold, pledged or otherwise transferred except in an offshore transaction in
compliance with Regulation S, or otherwise pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction
not subject to, the registration requirements of the US Securities Act.

I/ We (i) am/ are, and the person, if any, for whose account I/ we am/ are acquiring such Rights
Entitlement and/ or the Rights Equity Shares is/ are, outside the U.S., (ii) am/ are not a “U.S.
Person” as defined in (“Regulation S”), and (iii) is/ are acquiring the Rights Entitlement and/
or the Rights Equity Shares in an offshore transaction meeting the requirements of Regulation
S.

I/ We acknowledge that the Company, the Lead Manager, its affiliates and others will rely upon

the truth and accuracy of the foregoing representations and agreements.”

In cases where Multiple Application Forms are submitted for Applications pertaining to Rights
Entitlements credited to the same demat account or in demat suspense escrow account, as applicable,
including cases where a Shareholders submits Application Forms along with a plain paper Application,
such Applications shall be liable to be rejected.

Shareholders are requested to strictly adhere to these instructions. Failure to do so could result in an
application being rejected, with our Company, the Lead Manager and the Registrar not having any
liability to the Shareholders. The plain paper Application format will be available on the website of the
Registrar at www.skylinerta.com.

Our Company, the Lead Manager and the Registrar shall not be responsible if the Applications are not
uploaded by the SCSB or funds are not blocked in the Shareholders” ASBA Accounts on or before the
Issue Closing Date.

Making of an Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form

Please note that in accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI
Rights Issue Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made
in dematerialised form only. Accordingly, Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in
physical form as on Record Date and desirous of subscribing to Equity Shares in this Issue are advised
to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days
prior to the Issue Closing Date, to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their respective demat
accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing Date.

Prior to the Issue Opening Date, the Rights Entitlements of those Eligible Equity Shareholders, among
others, who hold Equity Shares in physical form, and whose demat account details are not available with
our Company or the Registrar, shall be credited in a demat suspense escrow account opened by our
Company.
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Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and who have
opened their demat accounts after the Record Date, shall adhere to following procedure for participating
in this Issue:

@ The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall send a letter to the Registrar containing the name(s),
address, e-mail address, contact details and the details of their demat account along with copy
of self-attested PAN and self-attested client master sheet of their demat account either through
email to the RTA at ipo@skylinerta.com or by post, speed post, courier or hand delivery, so as
to reach to the Registrar no later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date;

(b) The Registrar shall, after verifying the details of such demat account, transfer the Rights
Entitlements of such Eligible Equity Shareholders to their demat accounts at least one day
before the Issue Closing Date;

(© The remaining procedure for Application shall be same as set out in “- Making of an Application
by Eligible Equity Shareholders on Plain Paper under ASBA process” mentioned above.

Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on the Record Date
will not be allowed renounce their Rights Entitlements in the Issue. However, such Eligible Equity
Shareholders, where the dematerialized Rights Entitlements are transferred from the suspense escrow
demat account to the respective demat accounts within prescribed timelines, can apply for additional
Equity Shares while submitting the Application through ASBA process.

Application for Additional Equity Shares

Shareholders are eligible to apply for additional Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlements,
provided that they are eligible to apply for Equity Shares under applicable law and they have applied for
all the Equity Shares forming part of their Rights Entitlements without renouncing them in whole or in
part. Where the number of additional Equity Shares applied for exceeds the number available for
Allotment, the Allotment would be made as per the Basis of Allotment finalised in consultation with the
Designated Stock Exchange. Applications for additional Equity Shares shall be considered and Allotment
shall be made in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and in the manner as set out in “Basis of
Allotment” mentioned below.

Eligible Equity Shareholders who renounce their Rights Entitlements cannot apply for additional Equity
Shares. Non-resident Renouncees who are not Eligible Equity Shareholders cannot apply for additional

Equity Shares.

Additional general instructions for Shareholders in relation to making of an application

€)] Please read the Letter of Offer carefully to understand the Application process and applicable
settlement process.
(b) Please read the instructions on the Application Form sent to you. Application should be

complete in all respects. The Application Form found incomplete with regard to any of the
particulars required to be given therein, and/or which are not completed in conformity with the
terms of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the
Application Form are liable to be rejected. The Application Form must be filled in English.

(© In case of non-receipt of Application Form, Application can be made on plain paper mentioning
all necessary details as mentioned under the section “Making of an Application by Eligible
Equity Shareholders on Plain Paper under ASBA process” mentioned above.
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(d)

(€)

(f)

()]

(h)

(i)

Applications should be submitted to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or made
online/electronic through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for
authorising such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application in their
respective ASBA Accounts. Please note that on the Issue Closing Date, (i) Applications through
ASBA process will be uploaded until 5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time
as permitted by the Stock Exchanges.

Applications should not be submitted to the Banker(s) to the Issue or Escrow Collection Bank(s)
(assuming that such Escrow Collection Bank is not an SCSB), our Company or the Registrar or
the Lead Manager.

All Applicants, and in the case of Application in joint names, each of the joint Applicants,
should mention their PAN allotted under the Income-tax Act, irrespective of the amount of the
Application. Except for Applications on behalf of the Central or the State Government, the
residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts, Applications without PAN will be
considered incomplete and are liable to be rejected. With effect from August 16, 2010, the demat
accounts for Shareholders for which PAN details have not been verified shall be “suspended for
credit” and no Allotment and credit of Equity Shares pursuant to this Issue shall be made into
the accounts of such Shareholders.

Ensure that the demographic details such as address, PAN, DP ID, Client ID, bank account
details and occupation (“Demographic Details”) are updated, true and correct, in all respects.
Shareholders applying under this Issue should note that on the basis of name of the
Shareholders, DP ID and Client ID provided by them in the Application Form or the plain paper
Applications, as the case may be, the Registrar will obtain Demographic Details from the
Depository. Therefore, Shareholders applying under this Issue should carefully fill in their
Depository Account details in the Application. These Demographic Details would be used for
all correspondence with such Shareholders including mailing of the letters intimating
unblocking of bank account of the respective Shareholders and/or refund. The Demographic
Details given by the Shareholders in the Application Form would not be used for any other
purposes by the Registrar. Hence, Shareholders are advised to update their Demographic Details
as provided to their Depository Participants. The Allotment Advice and the e-mail intimating
unblocking of ASBA Account or refund (if any) would be e-mailed to the address of the
Shareholders as per the e-mail address provided to our Company or the Registrar or
Demographic Details received from the Depositories. The Registrar will give instructions
to the SCSBs for unblocking funds in the ASBA Account to the extent Equity Shares are
not allotted to such Shareholders. Please note that any such delay shall be at the sole risk
of the Shareholders and none of our Company, the SCSBs, Registrar or the Lead Manager
shall be liable to compensate the Shareholders for any losses caused due to any such delay
or be liable to pay any interest for such delay. In case no corresponding record is available
with the Depositories that match three parameters, (@) names of the Shareholders
(including the order of names of joint holders), (b) DP ID, and (c) Client ID, then such
Application Forms are liable to be rejected.

By signing the Application Forms, Shareholders would be deemed to have authorised the
Depositories to provide, upon request, to the Registrar, the required Demographic Details as
available on its records.

For physical Applications through ASBA at Designated Branches of SCSB, signatures should
be either in English or Hindi or in any other language specified in the Eighth Schedule to the
Constitution of India. Signatures other than in any such language or thumb impression must be
attested by a Notary Public or a Special Executive Magistrate under his/her official seal. The
Shareholders must sign the Application as per the specimen signature recorded with the SCSB.
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@)

(k)

U]

(m)
(n)
(0)
(P)
(@)

(r)
(s)

(t)

Shareholders should provide correct DP ID and Client ID/ Folio number (for Eligible Equity
Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date) while submitting the
Application. Such DP ID and Client ID/ Folio number should match the demat account details
in the records available with Company and/or Registrar, failing which such Application is liable
to be rejected. Shareholders will be solely responsible for any error or inaccurate detail provided
in the Application. Our Company, the Lead Manager, SCSBs or the Registrar will not be liable
for any such rejections.

In case of joint holders and physical Applications through ASBA process, all joint holders must
sign the relevant part of the Application Form in the same order and as per the specimen
signature(s) recorded with the SCSB. In case of joint Applicants, reference, if any, will be made
in the first Applicant’s name and all communication will be addressed to the first Applicant.
All communication in connection with Application for the Equity Shares, including any change
in contact details of the Eligible Equity Shareholders should be addressed to the Registrar prior
to the date of Allotment in this Issue quoting the name of the first/sole Applicant, Folio number
(for Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record
Date)/DP 1D and Client ID and Application Form number, as applicable. In case of any change
in contact details of the Eligible Equity Shareholders, the Eligible Equity Shareholders should
also send the intimation for such change to the respective depository participant, or to our
Company or the Registrar in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in
physical form.

Shareholders are required to ensure that the number of Equity Shares applied for by them do
not exceed the prescribed limits under the applicable law.

Do not apply if you are ineligible to participate in this Issue under the securities laws applicable
to your jurisdiction.

Do not submit the GIR number instead of the PAN as the application is liable to be rejected on
this ground.

Avoid applying on the Issue Closing Date due to risk of delay/ restrictions in making any
physical Application.

Do not pay the Application Money in cash, by money order, pay order or postal order.

Do not submit multiple Applications.

No investment under the FDI route (i.e. any investment which would result in the Shareholders
holding 10% or more of the fully diluted paid-up equity share capital of the Company or any
FDI investment for which an approval from the government was taken in the past) will be
allowed in the Issue unless such application is accompanied with necessary approval or covered
under a pre-existing approval from the government. It will be the sole responsibility of the
Shareholders to ensure that the necessary approval or the pre-existing approval from the
government is valid in order to make any investment in the Issue. The Lead Manager and our
Company will not be responsible for any allotments made by relying on such approvals.

An Applicant being an OCB is required not to be under the adverse notice of RBI and in order
to apply for this issue as an incorporated non-resident must do so in accordance with the FDI
Circular 2020 and Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt Instrument) Rules, 2019.

Grounds for Technical Rejection

Applications made in this Issue are liable to be rejected on the following grounds:

(@)

DP ID and Client ID mentioned in Application does not match with the DP ID and Client ID
records available with the Registrar.
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(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

(f
@

(h)
(i)

@)

(k)
(0

(m)
(n)

(0)

(p)

(@)

(r)

Details of PAN mentioned in the Application does not match with the PAN records available
with the Registrar.

Sending an Application to our Company, the Lead Manager, Registrar, Escrow Collection
Bank(s) (assuming that such Escrow Collection Bank is not a SCSB), to a branch of a SCSB
which is not a Designated Branch of the SCSB.

Insufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account with the SCSB for blocking the
Application Money.

Funds in the ASBA Account whose details are mentioned in the Application Form having been
frozen pursuant to regulatory orders.

Account holder not signing the Application or declaration mentioned therein.

Submission of more than one Application Form for Rights Entitlements available in a particular
demat account.

Multiple Application Forms, including cases where a Shareholders submits Application Forms
along with a plain paper Application.

Submitting the GIR number instead of the PAN (except for Applications on behalf of the Central
or State Government, the residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts).
Applications by persons not competent to contract under the Indian Contract Act, 1872, except
Applications by minors having valid demat accounts as per the Demographic Details provided
by the Depositories.

Applications by SCSB on own account, other than through an ASBA Account in its own name
with any other SCSB.

Application Forms which are not submitted by the Shareholders within the time periods
prescribed in the Application Form and the Letter of Offer.

Physical Application Forms not duly signed by the sole or joint Shareholders, as applicable.
Application Forms accompanied by stock invest, outstation cheques, post-dated cheques,
money order, postal order or outstation demand.

If a Shareholders is (a) debarred by SEBI; or (b) if SEBI has revoked the order or has provided
any interim relief then failure to attach a copy of such SEBI order allowing the Shareholders to
subscribe to their Rights Entitlements.

Applications which: (i) appears to our Company or its agents to have been executed in,
electronically transmitted from or dispatched from the United States (other than from persons
in the United States who are U.S. QIBs and QPs) or other jurisdictions where the offer and sale
of the Equity Shares is not permitted under laws of such jurisdictions; (ii) does not include the
relevant certifications set out in the Application Form, including to the effect that the person
submitting and/or renouncing the Application Form is (a) both a U.S. QIB and a QP, if in the
United States or a U.S. Person or (b) outside the United States and is a non-U.S. Person, and in
each case such person is eligible to subscribe for the Equity Shares under applicable securities
laws and is complying with laws of jurisdictions applicable to such person in connection with
this Issue; and our Company shall not be bound to issue or allot any Equity Shares in respect of
any such Application Form.

Applications which have evidence of being executed or made in contravention of applicable
securities laws.

Application from Shareholders that are residing in U.S. address as per the depository records
(other than from persons in the United States who are U.S. QIBs and QPs).

Applications by non-resident Shareholders.

(@)

Payment from third party bank accounts.
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. Multiple Applications

In case where multiple Applications are made using same demat account, such Applications shall be
liable to be rejected. A separate Application can be made in respect of Rights Entitlements in each demat
account of the Shareholders and such Applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. Similarly,
a separate Application can be made against Equity Shares held in dematerialized form and Equity Shares
held in physical form, and such Applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. Further
supplementary Applications in relation to further Equity Shares with/without using additional Rights
Entitlement will not be treated as multiple application. A separate Application can be made in respect of
each scheme of a mutual fund registered with SEBI and such Applications shall not be treated as multiple
applications. For details, see “Procedure for Applications by Mutual Funds” mentioned below.

In cases where Multiple Application Forms are submitted, including cases where (2) an Shareholders
submits Application Forms along with a plain paper Application or (b) multiple plain paper Applications
(c) or multiple applications through ASBA, such Applications shall be treated as multiple applications
and are liable to be rejected, other than multiple applications submitted by any of our Promoter or
members of the Promoter Group to meet the minimum subscription requirements applicable to this Issue
as described in “Capital Structure - Intention and extent of participation by our Promoter” mentioned
above.

Procedure for Applications by certain categories of Shareholders

Procedure for Applications by FPIs

In terms of applicable FEMA Rules and the SEBI FPI Regulations, investments by FPIs in the Equity
Shares is subject to certain limits, i.e., the individual holding of an FPI (including its Shareholders group
(which means multiple entities registered as foreign portfolio Shareholders and directly and indirectly
having common ownership of more than 50% of common control)) shall be below 10% of our post-Issue
Equity Share capital. In case the total holding of an FPI or Shareholders group increases beyond 10% of
the total paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company, on a fully diluted basis or 10% or more of the
paid-up value of any series of debentures or preference shares or share warrants that may be issued by
our Company, the total investment made by the FPI or Shareholders group will be re-classified as FDI
subject to the conditions as specified by SEBI and RBI in this regard and our Company and the
Shareholders will also be required to comply with applicable reporting requirements.

FPIs are permitted to participate in this Issue subject to compliance with conditions and restrictions which
may be specified by the Government from time to time. FPIs who wish to participate in the Issue are
advised to use the Application Form for non-residents. Subject to compliance with all applicable Indian
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and approvals in terms of Regulation 21 of the SEBI FP1 Regulations,
an FP1 may issue, subscribe to or otherwise deal in offshore derivative instruments (as defined under the
SEBI FPI Regulations as any instrument, by whatever name called, which is issued overseas by an FPI
against securities held by it that are listed or proposed to be listed on any recognised stock exchange in
India, as its underlying) directly or indirectly, only in the event (i) such offshore derivative instruments
are issued only to persons registered as Category | FPI under the SEBI FPI Regulations; (ii) such offshore
derivative instruments are issued only to persons who are eligible for registration as Category | FPIs
(where an entity has an investment manager who is from the Financial Action Task Force member
country, the investment manager shall not be required to be registered as a Category | FPI); (iii) such
offshore derivative instruments are issued after compliance with ‘know your client’ norms; and (iii)
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compliance with other conditions as may be prescribed by SEBI.

An FPI issuing offshore derivative instruments is also required to ensure that any transfer of offshore
derivative instruments issued by or on its behalf, is carried out subject to inter alia the following
conditions:

1. such offshore derivative instruments are transferred only to persons in accordance with the SEBI
FPI Regulations; and
2. prior consent of the FPI is obtained for such transfer, except when the persons to whom the

offshore derivative instruments are to be transferred to are pre-approved by the FPI.

No investment under the FDI route will be allowed in the Issue unless such application is accompanied
with necessary approval or covered under a pre-existing approval.

Procedure for Applications by AlFs, FVCls, VCFs and FDI route

The SEBI VCF Regulations and the SEBI FVCI Regulations prescribe, among other things, the
investment restrictions on VCFs and FVCls registered with SEBI. Further, the SEBI AIF Regulations
prescribe, among other things, the investment restrictions on AlFs.

As per the SEBI VCF Regulations and SEBI FVCI Regulations, VCFs and FVCls are not permitted to
invest in listed companies pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly, applications by VCFs or FVCls will
not be accepted in this Issue. Further, venture capital funds registered as Category | AlFs, as defined in
the SEBI AIF Regulations, are not permitted to invest in listed companies pursuant to rights issues.
Accordingly, applications by venture capital funds registered as category | AlFs, as defined in the SEBI
AIF Regulations, will not be accepted in this Issue. Other categories of AlFs are permitted to apply in
this Issue subject to compliance with the SEBI AIF Regulations. Such AlFs having bank accounts with
SCSBs that are providing ASBA in cities / centres where such AlFs are located are mandatorily required
to make use of the ASBA facility. Otherwise, applications of such AlFs are liable for rejection.

No investment under the FDI route (i.e any investment which would result in the Shareholders holding
10% or more of the fully diluted paid-up equity share capital of the Company or any FDI investment for
which an approval from the government was taken in the past) will be allowed in the Issue unless such
application is accompanied with necessary approval or covered under a pre-existing approval from the
government. It will be the sole responsibility of the Shareholders to ensure that the necessary approval
or the pre-existing approval from the government is valid in order to make any investment in the Issue.
The Lead Manager and our Company will not be responsible for any allotments made by relying on such
approvals.

Procedure for Applications by NRIs

Investments by NRIs are governed by the FEMA Rules. Applications will not be accepted from NRIs
that are ineligible to participate in this Issue under applicable securities laws.

As per the FEMA Rules, an NRI or Overseas Citizen of India (“OCI”’) may purchase or sell capital
instruments of a listed Indian company on repatriation basis, on a recognised stock exchange in India,
subject to the conditions, inter alia, that the total holding by any individual NRI or OCI will not exceed
5% of the total paid- up equity capital on a fully diluted basis or should not exceed 5% of the paid-up
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value of each series of debentures or preference shares or share warrants issued by an Indian company
and the total holdings of all NRIs and OCls put together will not exceed 10% of the total paid-up equity
capital on a fully diluted basis or shall not exceed 10% of the paid-up value of each series of debentures
or preference shares or share warrants. The aggregate ceiling of 10% may be raised to 24%, if a special
resolution to that effect is passed by the general body of the Indian company.

Further, in accordance with press note 3 of 2020, the FDI Policy has been recently amended to state that
all investments by entities incorporate in a country which shares land border with India or where
beneficial owner of an investment into India is situated in or is a citizen of any such country (“Restricted
Shareholders”), will require prior approval of the Government of India. It is not clear from the press note
whether or not an issue of the Rights Equity Shares to Restricted Shareholders will also require prior
approval of the Government of India and each Shareholders should seek independent legal advice about
its ability to participate in the Issue. In the event such prior approval has been obtained, the Shareholders
shall intimate our Company and the Registrar about such approval within the Issue Period.

Procedure for Applications by Mutual Funds

A separate application can be made in respect of each scheme of an Indian mutual fund registered with
SEBI and such applications shall not be treated as multiple applications. The applications made by asset
management companies or custodians of a mutual fund should clearly indicate the name of the concerned
scheme for which the application is being made.

Procedure for Applications by Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Companies
(“NBFC-SI”)

In case of an application made by NBFC-SI registered with RBI, () the certificate of registration issued
by RBI under Section 451A of RBI Act, 1934 and (b) net worth certificates from its statutory auditors or
any independent chartered accountant based on the last audited financial statements is required to be
attached to the application.

Last date for Application

The last date for submission of the duly filled in the Application Form or a plain paper Application is,
October 4, 2024 i.e., Issue Closing Date. Our Board or any committee thereof may extend the said date
for such period as it may determine from time to time, subject to the Issue Period not exceeding 30 days
from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date).

If the Application Form is not submitted with an SCSB, uploaded with the Stock Exchanges and the
Application Money is not blocked with the SCSB, on or before the Issue Closing Date or such date as
may be extended by our Board or any committee thereof, the invitation to offer contained in the Letter
of Offer shall be deemed to have been declined and our Board or any committee thereof shall be at liberty
to dispose of the Equity Shares hereby offered, as set out in “Basis of Allotment” mentioned below.

Please note that on the Issue Closing Date, applications through ASBA process will be uploaded until
5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted by the Stock Exchanges.

Please ensure that the Application Form and necessary details are filled in. In place of Application
number, Shareholders can mention the reference number of the e-mail received from Registrar informing
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about their Rights Entitlement or last eight digits of the demat account. Alternatively, SCSBs may
mention their internal reference number in place of application number.

Withdrawal of Application

Shareholders who have applied in this Issue may withdraw their application at any time during Issue
Period by approaching the SCSB where application is submitted. However, no Shareholders applying
through ASBA facility, may withdraw their application post the Issue Closing Date.

Disposal of Application and Application Money

No acknowledgment will be issued for the Application Money received by our Company. However, the
Designated Branches of the SCSBs receiving the Application Form will acknowledge its receipt by
stamping and returning the acknowledgment slip at the bottom of each Application Form.

Our Board reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any Application, in whole
or in part, and in either case without assigning any reason thereto.

In case an application is rejected in full, the whole of the Application Money will be unblocked in the
respective ASBA Accounts, in case of Applications through ASBA. Wherever an application is rejected
in part, the balance of Application Money, if any, after adjusting any money due on Equity Shares
Allotted, will be refunded / unblocked in the respective bank accounts from which Application Money
was received/ASBA Accounts of the Shareholders within a period of 4 days from the Issue Closing Date.
In case of failure to do so, our Company shall pay interest at such rate and within such time as specified
under applicable law.

For further instructions, please read the Application Form carefully.

CREDIT OF RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS IN DEMAT ACCOUNTS OF ELIGIBLE EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS

> Rights Entitlements

As your name appears as a beneficial owner in respect of the issued and paid-up Equity Shares held in
dematerialised form or appears in the register of members of our Company as an Eligible Equity
Shareholder in respect of our Equity Shares held in physical form, as on the Record Date, you may be
entitled to subscribe to the number of Equity Shares as set out in the Rights Entitlement Letter.

Eligible Equity Shareholders can also obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the
website of the Registrar (i.e., www.skylinerta.com) by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio
Number (for Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date)
and PAN. The link for the same shall also be available on the website of our Company (i.e.,
www.advikcapital.com).

In this regard, our Company has made necessary arrangements with NSDL and CDSL for crediting of
the Rights Entitlements to the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in a dematerialized
form. A separate ISIN for the Rights Entitlements has also been generated which is [INE178T20032].
The said ISIN shall remain frozen (for debit) until the Issue Opening Date. The said ISIN shall be
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suspended for transfer by the Depositories post the Issue Closing Date.

Additionally, our Company will submit the details of the total Rights Entitlements credited to the demat
accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders and the demat suspense escrow account to the Stock
Exchanges after completing the corporate action. The details of the Rights Entitlements with respect to
each Eligible Equity Shareholders can be accessed by such respective Eligible Equity Shareholders on
the website of the Registrar after keying in their respective details along with other security control
measures implemented thereat.

Rights Entitlements shall be credited to the respective demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders
before the Issue Opening Date only in dematerialised form. Further, if no Application is made by the
Eligible Equity Shareholders of Rights Entitlements on or before Issue Closing Date, such Rights
Entitlements shall get lapsed and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date. No Equity Shares
for such lapsed Rights Entitlements will be credited, even if such Rights Entitlements were purchased
from market and purchaser will lose the premium paid to acquire the Rights Entitlements. Persons who
are credited the Rights Entitlements are required to make an application to apply for Equity Shares
offered under Rights Issue for subscribing to the Equity Shares offered under Issue.

If Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date, have not
provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are required to
provide their demat account details to our Company or the Registrar not later than two Working Days
prior to the Issue Closing Date, to enable the credit of the Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from
the demat suspense escrow account to their respective demat accounts, at least one day before the Issue
Closing Date. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical form can update the details
of their respective demat accounts on the website of the Registrar (i.e. https://www.skylinerta.com). Such
Eligible Equity Shareholders can make an application only after the Rights Entitlements is credited to
their respective demat accounts.

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue
Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made in
dematerialized form only. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights
Entitlements to (i) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in
dematerialised form; and (ii) a demat suspense escrow account opened by our Company, for the Eligible
Equity Shareholders which would comprise Rights Entitlements relating to (a) Equity Shares held in the
account of the IEPF authority; or (b) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholder which are
frozen or the Equity Shares which are lying in the unclaimed suspense account (including those pursuant
to Regulation 39 of the SEBI LODR Regulations) or details of which are unavailable with our Company
or with the Registrar on the Record Date; or (¢) Equity Shares held by Eligible Equity Shareholders
holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date where details of demat accounts are not
provided by Eligible Equity Shareholders to our Company or Registrar; or (d) credit of the Rights
Entitlements returned/reversed/failed; or (e) the ownership of the Equity Shares currently under dispute,
including any court proceedings, if any; or (f) non-institutional equity shareholders in the United States.

Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to provide relevant details (such as copies of self- attested
PAN and client master sheet of demat account etc., details/ records confirming the legal and beneficial
ownership of their respective Equity Shares) to our Company or the Registrar not later than two Working
Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.e., by October 1, 2024 to enable the credit of their Rights
Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat suspense escrow account to their demat account at least
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one day before the Issue Closing Date, to enable such Eligible Equity Shareholders to make an
application in this Issue, and this communication shall serve as an intimation to such Eligible Equity
Shareholders in this regard. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders are also requested to ensure that their
demat account, details of which have been provided to our Company or the Registrar account is active
to facilitate the aforementioned transfer.

RENUNCIATION AND TRADING OF RIGHTS ENTITLEMENT

> Renouncees

All rights and obligations of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in relation to Applications and refunds
pertaining to this Issue shall apply to the Renouncee(s) as well.

> Renunciation of Rights Entitlements

This Issue includes a right exercisable by Eligible Equity Shareholders to renounce the Rights
Entitlements credited to their respective demat account either in full or in part.

The renunciation from non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) to resident Indian(s) and vice versa
shall be subject to provisions of FEMA Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelines issued by RBI
or the Ministry of Finance from time to time. However, the facility of renunciation shall not be available
to or operate in favor of an Eligible Equity Shareholders being an erstwhile OCB unless the same is in
compliance with the FEMA Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelines issued by RBI or the
Ministry of Finance from time to time.

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements credited in your demat account can be made either by sale of
such Rights Entitlements, using the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchanges or through an
off-market transfer.

> Procedure for Renunciation of Rights Entitlements

The Eligible Equity Shareholders may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective
demat accounts, either in full or in part (a) by using the secondary market platform of the Stock
Exchanges (the “On Market Renunciation™); or (b) through an off-market transfer (the “Off Market
Renunciation”), during the Renunciation Period. The Shareholders should have the demat Rights
Entitlements credited/lying in his/her own demat account prior to the renunciation. The trades through
On Market Renunciation and Off Market Renunciation will be settled by transferring the Rights
Entitlements through the depository mechanism.

Shareholders may be subject to adverse foreign, state or local tax or legal consequences as a result of
trading in the Rights Entitlements. Shareholders who intend to trade in the Rights Entitlements should
consult their tax advisor or stock-broker regarding any cost, applicable taxes, charges and expenses
(including brokerage) that may be levied for trading in Rights Entitlements.

Please note that the Rights Entitlements which are neither renounced nor subscribed by the Shareholders
on or before the Issue Closing Date shall lapse and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date.
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The Lead Manager and our Company accept no responsibility to bear or pay any cost, applicable taxes,
charges and expenses (including brokerage), and such costs will be incurred solely by the Shareholders.

() On Market Renunciation

The Eligible Equity Shareholders may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective
demat accounts by trading/selling them on the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchanges
through a registered stock-broker in the same manner as the existing Equity Shares of our Company.

In this regard, in terms of provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars,
the Rights Entitlements credited to the respective demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders
shall be admitted for trading on the Stock Exchanges under ISIN [INE178T20032] subject to requisite
approvals. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company will obtain the approval from the Stock
Exchanges for trading of Rights Entitlements. No assurance can be given regarding the active or
sustained On Market Renunciation or the price at which the Rights Entitlements will trade. The details
for trading in Rights Entitlements will be as specified by the Stock Exchanges from time to time.

The Rights Entitlements are tradable in dematerialized form only. The market lot for trading of Rights
Entitlements is one Rights Entitlements.

The On Market Renunciation shall take place only during the Renunciation Period for On Market
Renunciation, i.e., from Tuesday, September 24, 2024 to Tuesday, October 01, 2024 (both days
inclusive).

The Shareholders holding the Rights Entitlements who desire to sell their Rights Entitlements will have
to do so through their registered stock-brokers by quoting the ISIN [INE178T20032] and indicating the
details of the Rights Entitlements they intend to trade.

The Shareholders can place order for sale of Rights Entitlements only to the extent of Rights Entitlements
available in their demat account.

The On Market Renunciation shall take place electronically on secondary market platform of BSE and
NSE under automatic order matching mechanism and on ‘T+2 rolling settlement basis’, where ‘T’ refers
to the date of trading. The transactions will be settled on trade-for-trade basis. Upon execution of the
order, the stock-broker will issue a contract note in accordance with the requirements of the Stock
Exchanges and the SEBI.

(b) Off Market Renunciation

The Eligible Equity Shareholders may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective
demat accounts by way of an off-market transfer through a depository participant. The Rights
Entitlements can be transferred in dematerialised form only.

Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is
completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the
Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date to enable Renouncees to subscribe to the Equity Shares
in the Issue.
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The Shareholders holding the Rights Entitlements who desire to transfer their Rights Entitlements will
have to do so through their depository participant by issuing a delivery instruction slip quoting the ISIN
[INE178T20032], the details of the buyer and the details of the Rights Entitlements they intend to
transfer. The buyer of the Rights Entitlements (unless already having given a standing receipt instruction)
has to issue a receipt instruction slip to their depository participant. The Shareholders can transfer Rights
Entitlements only to the extent of Rights Entitlements available in their demat account.

The instructions for transfer of Rights Entitlements can be issued during the working hours of the
depository participants.

The detailed rules for transfer of Rights Entitlements through off-market transfer shall be as specified by
the NSDL and CDSL from time to time.

MODE OF PAYMENT

All payments against the Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility. The Registrar
will not accept any payments against the Application Forms, if such payments are not made through
ASBA facility.

In case of Application through the ASBA facility, the Shareholders agrees to block the entire amount
payable on Application with the submission of the Application Form, by authorizing the SCSB to block
an amount, equivalent to the amount payable on Application, in the Shareholders’ ASBA Account. The
SCSB may reject the application at the time of acceptance of Application Form if the ASBA Account,
details of which have been provided by the Shareholders in the Application Form does not have sufficient
funds equivalent to the amount payable on Application mentioned in the Application Form. Subsequent
to the acceptance of the Application by the SCSB, our Company would have a right to reject the
Application on technical grounds as set forth in the Letter of Offer.

After verifying that sufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account details of which are provided in
the Application Form, the SCSB shall block an amount equivalent to the Application Money mentioned
in the Application Form until the Transfer Date. On the Transfer Date, upon receipt of intimation from
the Registrar, of the receipt of minimum subscription and pursuant to the finalization of the Basis of
Allotment as approved by the Designated Stock Exchange, the SCSBs shall transfer such amount as per
the Registrar’s instruction from the ASBA Account into the Allotment Account(s) which shall be a
separate bank account maintained by our Company, other than the bank account referred to in sub-section
(3) of Section 40 of the Companies Act, 2013. The balance amount remaining after the finalisation of the
Basis of Allotment on the Transfer Date shall be unblocked by the SCSBs on the basis of the instructions
issued in this regard by the Registrar to the respective SCSB.

In terms of RBI Circular DBOD No. FSC BC 42/24.47.00/2003- 04 dated November 5, 2003, the stock
invest scheme has been withdrawn. Hence, payment through stock invest would not be accepted in this
Issue.

Mode of payment for Resident Shareholders

All payments on the Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility. Applicants are
requested to strictly adhere to these instructions.
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VI.

Mode of payment for Non-Resident Shareholders

As regards the Application by non-resident Shareholders, payment must be made only through ASBA
facility and using permissible accounts in accordance with FEMA, FEMA Rules and requirements
prescribed by RBI and subject to the following:

1. In case where repatriation benefit is available, interest, dividend, sales proceeds derived from
the investment in Equity Shares can be remitted outside India, subject to tax, as applicable
according to the Income-tax Act. However, please note that conditions applicable at the time of
original investment in our Company by the Eligible Equity Shareholder including repatriation
shall not change and remain the same for subscription in the Issue or subscription pursuant to
renunciation in the Issue.

2. Subject to the above, in case Equity Shares are Allotted on a non-repatriation basis, the dividend
and sale proceeds of the Equity Shares cannot be remitted outside India.
3. In case of an Application Form received from non-residents, Allotment, refunds and other

distribution, if any, will be made in accordance with the guidelines and rules prescribed by RBI
as applicable at the time of making such Allotment, remittance and subject to necessary
approvals.

4. Application Forms received from non-residents/ NRIs, or persons of Indian origin residing
abroad for Allotment of Equity Shares shall, amongst other things, be subject to conditions, as
may be imposed from time to time by RBI under FEMA, in respect of matters including Refund
of Application Money and Allotment.

5. In the case of NRIs who remit their Application Money from funds held in FCNR/NRE
Accounts, refunds and other disbursements, if any shall be credited to such account.
6. Non-resident Renouncees who are not Eligible Equity Shareholders must submit regulatory

approval for applying for additional Equity Shares.

BASIS FOR THIS ISSUE AND TERMS OF THIS ISSUE

The Equity Shares are being offered for subscription to the Eligible Equity Shareholders whose names
appear as beneficial owners as per the list to be furnished by the Depositories in respect of our Equity
Shares held in dematerialised form and on the register of members of our Company in respect of our
Equity Shares held in physical form at the close of business hours on the Record Date.

For principal terms of Issue such as face value, Issue Price, Rights Entitlement ratio, see “The Issue”
beginning on mentioned above.

> Fractional Entitlements

Since the Equity Shares are being offered on a rights basis to existing Eligible Equity Shareholders in
the ratio of 1:1 (1Equity Share for every 1 Equity Shares) held as on the Record Date. Accordingly, no
circumstance would arise which would result in fractional entitlement.

> Ranking

The Equity Shares to be issued and Allotted pursuant to this Issue shall be subject to the provisions of
the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, the Application Form,
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and the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association, the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, FEMA, the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, and the guidelines,
notifications and regulations issued by SEBI, the Government of India and other statutory and regulatory
authorities from time to time, the terms of the Listing Agreements entered into by our Company with the
Stock Exchanges and the terms and conditions as stipulated in the Allotment advice. The Equity Shares
to be issued and Allotted under this Issue shall rank pari-passu with the existing Equity Shares, in all
respects including dividends.

> Listing and trading of the Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to this Issue

Subject to receipt of the listing and trading approvals, the Equity Shares proposed to be issued on a rights
basis shall be listed and admitted for trading on BSE. Unless otherwise permitted by the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, the Equity Shares Allotted pursuant to this Issue will be listed as soon as practicable and all
steps for completion of necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading in the Equity
Shares will be taken within such period prescribed under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. Our Company
has received in-principle approval from the BSE Limited through letter bearing reference number
approval letter LOD/RIGHT/AB/FIP/600/2024-25 dated July 19, 2024. Our Company will apply to BSE
for final approvals for the listing and trading of the Equity Shares subsequent to their Allotment. No
assurance can be given regarding the active or sustained trading in the Equity Shares or the price at which
the Equity Shares offered under this Issue will trade after the listing thereof.

The existing Equity Shares are listed and traded on BSE (Scrip Code: 539773) under the ISIN:
INE178T01024. The Equity Shares shall be credited to a temporary ISIN which will be frozen until the
receipt of the final listing/ trading approvals from the Stock Exchanges. Upon receipt of such listing and
trading approvals, the Equity Shares shall be debited from such temporary ISIN and credited to the
regular ISIN for the Equity Shares and thereafter be available for trading and the temporary ISIN shall
be permanently deactivated in the depository system of CDSL and NSDL.

The listing and trading of the Equity Shares issued pursuant to this Issue shall be based on the current
regulatory framework then applicable. Accordingly, any change in the regulatory regime would affect
the listing and trading schedule.

In case our Company fails to obtain listing or trading permission from the Stock Exchanges, our
Company shall refund through verifiable means/unblock the respective ASBA Accounts, the entire
monies received/blocked within fifteen days of receipt of intimation from the Stock Exchanges, rejecting
the application for listing of the Equity Shares, and if any such money is not refunded/ unblocked within
fifteen days after our Company becomes liable to repay it, our Company and every director of our
Company who is an officer-in-default shall, on and from the expiry of the fifteenth day, be jointly and
severally liable to repay that money with interest at rates prescribed under applicable law.

> Subscription to this Issue by our Promoter and members of the Promoter Group

For details of the intent and extent of subscription by our Promoter and members of the Promoter Group,
see “Capital Structure - Intention and extent of participation by our Promoter” mentioned above.
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VIL.

> Rights of Holders of Equity Shares of our Company

Subject to applicable laws, Shareholders who have been Allotted Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue
shall have the following rights:

The right to receive dividend, if declared,;

The right to receive surplus on liquidation;

The right to receive offers for rights shares and be allotted bonus shares, if announced;

The right to free transferability of Equity Shares;

The right to attend general meetings of our Company and exercise voting powers in accordance
with law, unless prohibited / restricted by law and as disclosed in the Letter of Offer; and

f. Such other rights as may be available to a shareholder of a listed public company under the
Companies Act,2013, the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association.

® a0 o

GENERAL TERMS OF THE ISSUE

> Market Lot

The Equity Shares of our Company shall be tradable only in dematerialized form. The market lot for
Equity Shares in dematerialised mode is One Equity Share.

> Joint Holders

Where two or more persons are registered as the holders of any Equity Shares, they shall be deemed to
hold the same as the joint holders with the benefit of survivorship subject to the provisions contained in
our Articles of Association. In case of Equity Shares held by joint holders, the Application submitted in
physical mode to the Designated Branch of the SCSBs would be required to be signed by all the joint
holders (in the same order as appearing in the records of the Depository) to be considered as valid for
allotment of Equity Shares offered in this Issue.

> Nomination

Nomination facility is available in respect of the Equity Shares in accordance with the provisions of the
Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 19 of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debenture) Rules, 2014,

Since the Allotment is in dematerialised form, there is no need to make a separate nomination for the
Equity Shares to be allotted in this Issue. Nominations registered with the respective DPs of the
Shareholders would prevail. Any Shareholders holding Equity Shares in dematerialised form and
desirous of changing the existing nomination is requested to inform its Depository Participant.

> Arrangements for Disposal of Odd Lots

The Equity Shares shall be traded in dematerialised form only and, therefore, the marketable lot shall be
One Equity Share and hence, no arrangements for disposal of odd lots are required.
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> Notices

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI Relaxation Circulars, the Abridged Letter
of Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be sent/
dispatched only to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided Indian address. In case such
Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the
Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be sent only to their valid
e-mail address and in case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then
the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material
will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.

Further, the Letter of Offer will be sent/ dispatched to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have
provided Indian address and who have made a request in this regard. In case such Eligible Equity
Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Letter of Offer will be sent only to their valid
e-mail address and in case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then
the Letter of Offer will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by
them.

All notices to the Eligible Equity Shareholders required to be given by our Company shall be published
in one English language national daily newspaper with wide circulation and one Hindi language national
daily newspaper with wide circulation being the regional language of New Delhi, where our Registered
Office is situated.

The Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form shall also be submitted with
the Stock Exchanges for making the same available on their websites.

> Offer to Non-Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders/Shareholders

As per Rule 7 of the FEMA Rules, RBI has given general permission to Indian companies to issue Equity
Shares to non-resident Equity Shareholders including additional Equity Shares. Further, as per the Master
Direction on Foreign Investment in India dated January 4, 2018 issued by RBI, non-residents may,
amongst other things, (i) subscribe for additional shares over and above their Rights Entitlements; (ii)
renounce the shares offered to them either in full or part thereof in favour of a person named by them; or
(iii) apply for the shares renounced in their favour. Applications received from NRIs and non-residents
for allotment of Equity Shares shall be, amongst other things, subject to the conditions imposed from
time to time by RBI under FEMA in the matter of Application, refund of Application Money, Allotment
of Equity Shares and issue of Rights Entitlement Letters/ letters of Allotment/Allotment advice. If a non-
resident or NRI Shareholders has specific approval from RBI or any other governmental authority, in
connection with his shareholding in our Company, such person should enclose a copy of such approval
with the Application details and send it to the Registrar at www.skylinerta.com. It will be the sole
responsibility of the Shareholders to ensure that the necessary approval from the RBI or the governmental
authority is valid in order to make any investment in the Issue and the Lead Manager and our Company
will not be responsible for any such allotments made by relying on such approvals.

The Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and Application Form shall be sent only to
the Indian addresses of the non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders on a reasonable efforts basis, who
have provided an Indian address to our Company and located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of
the Equity Shares may be permitted under laws of such jurisdictions, Eligible Equity Shareholders can
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VIII.

access the Letter Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form (provided that the Eligible
Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Equity Shares under applicable securities laws) from
the websites of the Registrar, our Company, the Lead Manager and the Stock Exchanges. Further,
Application Forms will be made available at Registered and Corporate Office of our Company for the
non-resident Indian Applicants. Our Board may at its absolute discretion, agree to such terms and
conditions as may be stipulated by RBI while approving the Allotment. The Equity Shares purchased by
non- residents shall be subject to the same conditions including restrictions in regard to the repatriation
as are applicable to the original Equity Shares against which Equity Shares are issued on rights basis.

In case of change of status of holders, i.e., from resident to non-resident, a new demat account must be
opened. Any Application from a demat account which does not reflect the accurate status of the Applicant
is liable to be rejected at the sole discretion of our Company and the Lead Manager.

Please also note that pursuant to Circular No. 14 dated September 16, 2003 issued by RBI, Overseas
Corporate Bodies (“OCBs”) have been derecognized as an eligible class of Shareholders and RBI has
subsequently issued the Foreign Exchange Management (Withdrawal of General Permission to Overseas
Corporate Bodies (OCBs)) Regulations, 2003. Any Shareholders being an OCB is required not to be
under the adverse notice of RBI and in order to apply for this issue as an incorporated non-resident must
do so in accordance with the FDI Circular 2020 and Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt
Instrument) Rules, 2019.

The non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders can update their Indian address in the records maintained
by the Registrar and our Company by submitting their respective copies of self- attested proof of address,
passport, etc. at email id:

ALLOTMENT OF THE EQUITY SHARES IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE EQUITY SHARES APPLIED FOR IN THIS ISSUE CAN BE
ALLOTTED ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO THE SAME DEPOSITORY
ACCOUNT IN WHICH OUR EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY SUCH SHAREHOLDERS ON
THE RECORD DATE. FOR DETAILS, SEE “ALLOTMENT ADVICE OR REFUND/
UNBLOCKING OF ASBA ACCOUNTS” AS MENTIONED ABOVE.

ISSUE SCHEDULE

LAST DATE FOR CREDIT OF RIGHTS

WEDNESDAY. SEPTEMBER 18, 2024
ENTITLEMENT

ISSUE OPENING DATE TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 24, 2024
LAST DATE FOR ON MARKET

RENUNCIATION OF RIGHTS TUESDAY, OCTOBER 01, 2024
ENTITLEMENTS?

ISSUE CLOSING DATE* FRIDAY, OCTOBER 04, 2024

FINALISATION OF BASIS OF

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 9, 2024
ALLOTMENT (ON OR ABOUT)

DATE OF ALLOTMENT (ON OR ABOUT) WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 9, 2024
DATE OF CREDIT (ON OR ABOUT) FRIDAY, OCTOBER 11, 2024
DATE OF LISTING (ON OR ABOUT) TUESDAY, OCTOBER 15, 2024

215



# Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is
completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the
Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

* QOur Board or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue Period as it
may determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of
the Issue Opening Date). Further, no withdrawal of Application shall be permitted by any Applicant after
the Issue Closing Date.

Please note that if Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record
Date, have not provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are
required to provide their demat account details to our Company or the Registrar not later than two
Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.e., October 01, 2024 to enable the credit of the Rights ,
Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat suspense escrow account to their respective demat
accounts, at least one day before the Issue Closing Date, i.e., October 3, 2024.

BASIS OF ALLOTMENT

Subject to the provisions contained in the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights
Entitlement Letter, the Application Form, the Articles of Association and the approval of the Designated
Stock Exchange, our Board will proceed to allot the Equity Shares in the following order of priority:

a) Full Allotment to those Eligible Equity Shareholders who have applied for their Rights
Entitlements of Equity Shares either in full or in part and also to the Renouncee(s) who has or
have applied for Equity Shares renounced in their favour, in full or in part.

b) Allotment to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who having applied for all the Equity Shares
offered to them as part of this Issue, have also applied for additional Equity Shares. The
Allotment of such additional Equity Shares will be made as far as possible on an equitable basis
having due regard to the number of Equity Shares held by them on the Record Date, provided
there are any unsubscribed Equity Shares after making full Allotment in (a) and (b) above. The
Allotment of such Equity Shares will be at the sole discretion of our Board in consultation with
the Designated Stock Exchange, as a part of this Issue and will not be a preferential allotment.

c) Allotment to Renouncees who having applied for all the Equity Shares renounced in their
favour, have applied for additional Equity Shares provided there is surplus available after
making full Allotment under (a), (b) and (c) above. The Allotment of such Equity Shares will
be made on a proportionate basis in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, as a part
of this Issue and will not be a preferential allotment.

d) Allotment to any other person, subject to applicable laws, that our Board may deem fit, provided
there is surplus available after making Allotment under (a), (b), (c) and (d) above, and the

decision of our Board in this regard shall be final and binding.

After taking into account Allotment to be made under (a) to (d) above, if there is any unsubscribed
portion, the same shall be deemed to be ‘unsubscribed’.
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Upon approval of the Basis of Allotment by the Designated Stock Exchange, the Registrar shall send to
the Controlling Branches, a list of the Shareholders who have been allocated Equity Shares in this Issue,
along with:

1. The amount to be transferred from the ASBA Account to the separate bank account opened by
our Company for this Issue, for each successful Application;

2. The date by which the funds referred to above, shall be transferred to the aforesaid bank account;
and

3. The details of rejected ASBA applications, if any, to enable the SCSBs to unblock the respective
ASBA Accounts.

ALLOTMENT ADVICE OR REFUND/ UNBLOCKING OF ASBA ACCOUNTS

Our Company will send/ dispatch Allotment advice, refund intimations or demat credit of securities
and/or letters of regret, only to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided Indian address. In
case such Eligible Equity.

Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, Allotment advice, refund intimations or demat
credit of securities and/or letters of regret will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case such
Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Allotment advice, refund
intimations or demat credit of securities and/or letters of regret will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort
basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them; along with crediting the Allotted Equity Shares to the
respective beneficiary accounts (only in dematerialised mode) or in a demat suspense account (in respect
of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form on the Allotment Date) or issue
instructions for unblocking the funds in the respective ASBA Accounts, if any, within a period of 15
days from the Issue Closing Date. In case of failure to do so, our Company and our Directors who are
“officers in default” shall pay interest at 15% p.a. and such other rate as specified under applicable law
from the expiry of such 15 days’ period.

The Rights Entitlements will be credited in the dematerialized form using electronic credit under the
depository system and the Allotment advice shall be sent, through an e-mail, to the e-mail address
provided to our Company or at the address recorded with the Depository.

In the case of non-resident Shareholders who remit their Application Money from funds held in the NRE
or the FCNR Accounts, unblocking and/or payment of interest or dividend and other disbursements, if
any, shall be credited to such accounts.

Where an Applicant has applied for additional Equity Shares in the Issue and is allotted a lesser number
of Equity Shares than applied for, the excess Application Money paid/blocked shall be
refunded/unblocked. The unblocking of ASBA funds / refund of monies shall be completed be within
such period as prescribed under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. In the event that there is a delay in making
refunds beyond such period as prescribed under applicable law, our Company shall pay the requisite
interest at such rate as prescribed under applicable law.
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XI.

XIl.

PAYMENT OF REFUND
> Mode of making refunds

The payment of refund, if any, including in the event of oversubscription or failure to list or otherwise
would be done through Unblocking amounts blocked using ASBA facility.

> Refund payment to non-residents

The Application Money will be unblocked in the ASBA Account of the non-resident Applicants, details
of which were provided in the Application Form.

ALLOTMENT ADVICE OR DEMAT CREDIT OF SECURITIES
> Receipt of the Equity Shares in Dematerialized Form

The demat credit of securities to the respective beneficiary accounts will be credited within 15 days from
the Issue Closing Date or such other timeline in accordance with applicable laws.

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE EQUITY SHARES APPLIED FOR UNDER THIS ISSUE CAN BE
ALLOTTED ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO (A) THE SAME DEPOSITORY
ACCOUNT/ CORRESPONDING PAN IN WHICH THE EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY
SUCH SHAREHOLDERS ON THE RECORD DATE, OR (B) THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT,
DETAILS OF WHICH HAVE BEEN PROVIDED TO OUR COMPANY OR THE REGISTRAR
AT LEAST TWO WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE BY THE
ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDER HOLDING EQUITY SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM
AS ON THE RECORD DATE.

Shareholders shall be allotted the Equity Shares in dematerialized (electronic) form. Our Company has
signed an agreement dated August 10, 2015 with NSDL and an agreement dated August 03, 2023 with
CDSL which enables the Shareholders to hold and trade in the securities issued by our Company in a
dematerialized form, instead of holding the Equity Shares in the form of physical certificates.

SHAREHOLDERS MAY PLEASE NOTE THAT THE EQUITY SHARES CAN BE TRADED
ON THE STOCK EXCHANGES ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM.

The procedure for availing the facility for Allotment of Equity Shares in this Issue in the dematerialized
form is as under:

1. Open a beneficiary account with any depository participant (care should be taken that the
beneficiary account should carry the name of the holder in the same manner as is registered in
the records of our Company. In the case of joint holding, the beneficiary account should be
opened carrying the names of the holders in the same order as registered in the records of our
Company). In case of Shareholders having various folios in our Company with different joint
holders, the Shareholders will have to open separate accounts for such holdings. Those
Shareholders who have already opened such beneficiary account(s) need not adhere to this step.

2. It should be ensured that the depository account is in the name(s) of the Shareholders and the
names are in the same order as in the records of our Company or the Depositories.
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3. The responsibility for correctness of information filled in the Application Form vis-a- vis such
information with the Shareholders depository participant, would rest with the Shareholders.
Shareholders should ensure that the names of the Shareholders and the order in which they
appear in Application Form should be the same as registered with the Shareholders’ depository

participant.

4, If incomplete or incorrect beneficiary account details are given in the Application Form, the
Shareholders will not get any Equity Shares and the Application Form will be rejected.

5. The Equity Shares will be allotted to Applicants only in dematerialized form and would be

directly credited to the beneficiary account as given in the Application Form after verification
or demat suspense account (pending receipt of demat account details for resident Eligible Equity
Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form/ with IEPF authority/ in suspense, etc.).
Allotment advice, refund order (if any) would be sent directly to the Applicant by e-mail and,
if the printing is feasible, through physical dispatch, by the Registrar but the Applicant’s
depository participant will provide to him the confirmation of the credit of such Equity Shares
to the Applicant’s depository account.

6. Non-transferable Allotment advice/ refund intimation will be directly sent to the Shareholders
by the Registrar, by e-mail and, if the printing is feasible, through physical dispatch.
7. Renouncees will also have to provide the necessary details about their beneficiary account for

Allotment of Equity Shares in this Issue. In case these details are incomplete or incorrect, the
Application is liable to be rejected.

IMPERSONATION

As a matter of abundant caution, attention of the Shareholders is specifically drawn to the provisions of
Section 38 of the Companies Act, 2013 which is reproduced below:

“Any person who makes or abets making of an application in a fictitious name to a company for
acquiring, or subscribing for, its securities; or makes or abets making of multiple applications to a
company in different names or in different combinations of his name or surname for acquiring or
subscribing for its securities; or otherwise induces directly or indirectly a company to allot, or register
any transfer of, securities to him, or to any other person in a fictitious name, shall be liable for action
under Section 447.”

The liability prescribed under Section 447 of the Companies Act, 2013 for fraud involving an amount of
at least Rs. 0.1 crore or 1% of the turnover of the company, whichever is lower, includes imprisonment
for a term of not less than six months extending up to 10 years (provided that where the fraud involves
public interest, such term shall not be less than three years) and fine of an amount not less than the amount
involved in the fraud, extending up to three times of such amount. In case the fraud involves (i) an amount
which is less than Rs. 0.1 crore or 1% of the turnover of the company, whichever is lower; and (ii) does
not involve public interest, then such fraud is punishable with an imprisonment for a term extending up
to five years or a fine of an amount extending up to Rs. 0.5 crore or with both.
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>

XV.

XVI.

1)

2)

UTILISATION OF ISSUE PROCEEDS

Our Board declares that:

All monies received out of this Issue shall be transferred to a separate bank account;

Details of all monies utilized out of this Issue referred to under (A) above shall be disclosed, and continue
to be disclosed till the time any part of the Issue Proceeds remains unutilized, under an appropriate
separate head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the purpose for which such monies have
been utilized; and

Details of all unutilized monies out of this Issue referred to under (A) above, if any, shall be disclosed
under an appropriate separate head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the form in which
such unutilized monies have been invested.

UNDERTAKINGS BY OUR COMPANY

Our Company undertakes the following:

The complaints received in respect of this Issue shall be attended to by our Company expeditiously and
satisfactorily.

All steps for completion of the necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading at all Stock
Exchanges where the Equity Shares are to be listed will be taken by our Board within seven Working
Days of finalization of Basis of Allotment.

The funds required for making refunds / unblocking to unsuccessful Applicants as per the mode(s)
disclosed shall be made available to the Registrar by our Company.

Where refunds are made through electronic transfer of funds, a suitable communication shall be sent to
the Shareholders within 4 days of the Issue Closing Date, giving details of the banks where refunds shall
be credited along with amount and expected date of electronic credit of refund.

In case of refund / unblocking of the Application Money for unsuccessful Applicants or part of the
Application Money in case of proportionate Allotment, a suitable communication shall be sent to the
Applicants.

Adequate arrangements shall be made to collect all ASBA Applications.

Our Company shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms specified by SEBI from time to
time.

SHAREHOLDERS GRIEVANCES, COMMUNICATION AND IMPORTANT LINKS

Please read the Letter of Offer carefully before taking any action. The instructions contained in the
Application Form, Abridged Letter of Offer and the Rights Entitlement Letter are an integral part of the
conditions of the Letter of Offer and must be carefully followed; otherwise the Application is liable to
be rejected.

All enquiries in connection with the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement
Letter or Application Form must be addressed (quoting the Registered Folio Number in case of Eligible
Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date or the DP ID and Client
ID number, the Application Form number and the name of the first Eligible Equity Shareholder as
mentioned on the Application Form and super scribed “ADVIK CAPITAL LIMITED - Rights Issue” on
the envelope and postmarked in India or in the e- mail) to the Registrar at the following address:
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3)

4)

a)

b)

c)

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited

D-153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-1, New Delhi-110020
Telephone: 011-40450193/97

Email: ipo@skylinerta.com

Website: www.skylinerta.com

Investor grievance e-mail: grievances@skylinerta.com

SEBI Registration No.: INR000003241;

Validity of Registration: Permanent

Contact Person: Mr. Anuj Rana

In accordance with SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, frequently asked questions and online/ electronic
dedicated Shareholders helpdesk for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties
faced by the Shareholders will be available on the website of the Registrar www.skylinerta.com . Further,
helpline number provided by the Registrar for guidance on the Application process and resolution of
difficulties is 011- 42541952,

The Shareholders can visit following links for the below-mentioned purposes:

Frequently asked questions and online/ electronic dedicated Shareholder helpdesk for guidance on the
Application process and resolution of difficulties faced by the Shareholders: www.skylinerta.com
Updation of Indian address/ e-mail address/ phone or mobile number in the records maintained by the
Registrar or our Company: www.skylinerta.com

Updation of demat account details by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical form:
www.skylinerta.com

Submission of self-attested PAN, client master sheet and demat account details by non- resident Eligible
Equity Shareholders at email id at ipo@skylinerta.com

This Issue will remain open for a minimum 15 days. However, our Board will have the right to extend
the Issue Period as it may determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening
Date (inclusive of the Issue Closing Date).
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RESTRICTIONS ON FOREIGN OWNERSHIP OF INDIAN SECURITIES

Foreign investment in Indian securities is regulated through the Consolidated FDI Policy and FEMA. The FDI
Policy prescribes the limits and conditions subject to which foreign investment can be made in different sectors
of the Indian economy and FEMA regulates the precise manner in which such investment may be made.

The government bodies responsible for granting foreign investment approvals are the concerned
ministries/departments of the Government of India and the RBI. Pursuant to the press release dated May 24, 2017,
the Union Cabinet phased out the FIPB and it was replaced by the Foreign Investment Facilitation Portal (FIFP)
to speed up the FDI inflow and to increase the transparency in the FDI approvals in the country. The DIPP issued
the Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) for Processing FDI Proposals on June 29, 2017 (the "SOP"). The SOP
provides a list of the competent authorities to grant approvals for foreign investment for sectors/activities
requiring Government approval. For sectors or activities that are currently under the automatic route but which
required Government approval earlier as per the extant policy during the relevant period, the concerned
Administrative Ministry/Department shall act as the competent authority (the "Competent Authority") for the
grant of post facto approval for foreign investment. In circumstances where there is a doubt as to which
department shall act as the Competent Authority, the DIPP will identify the Competent Authority.

The Government of India, from time to time, has made policy pronouncements on Foreign Direct Investment
("FDI") through press notes and press releases. The DIPP, has issued a consolidated FDI Policy DPIIT File
Number 5(2)/2020-FDI Policy Dated the October 15, 2020 ("FDI Policy 2020"), which consolidates and
supersedes all previous press notes, press releases and clarifications on FDI policy issued by the DIPP that were
in force till that date. The Government of India proposes to update the consolidated circular on FDI policy once
every year and therefore, the FDI Policy 2020 will be valid until the DIPP issues an updated circular.

Under the FDI Policy, unless specifically restricted, foreign investment is freely permitted in all sectors of the
Indian economy up to 100% without any prior approvals, however the foreign investor must follow certain
prescribed procedures for making such investment. Accordingly, the process for foreign direct investment
("FDI") and approval from the Government of India will now be handled by the FIFP.

The transfer of shares between an Indian resident and a non-resident does not need prior approval of the RBI,
provided that (i) the activities of the investee company falls under the automatic route as provided in the FDI
Policy and FEMA, and the transfer does not attract the provisions of the SEBI Takeover Regulations; (ii) the non-
resident shareholding is within the sectoral limits under the FDI Policy; and (iii) the pricing is in accordance with
the guidelines prescribed by SEBI and RBI.

As per the extant policy of the Government of India, erstwhile OCBs cannot participate in this Issue. OCBs or
Overseas Corporate Bodies have been de-recognised as a class of investor entity in India with effect from
September 16, 2003.

Overseas Corporate Body means a company, partnership firm, society and other corporate body owned directly
or indirectly to the extent of at least sixty per cent by Non- Resident Indians and includes overseas trust in which
not less than sixty percent beneficial interest is held by Non-resident Indians directly or indirectly but irrevocably,
which was in existence as on September 16, 2003 and was eligible to undertake transactions pursuant to the
general permission granted under FEMA. Any investment made in India by such entities will be treated as
investments by incorporated non-resident entities, i.e. a foreign company.

The Issue, if renounced by our shareholders, may include offers within India, to Indian institutional, non-
institutional and retail investors in offshore transactions as defined in, and made in reliance upon exemptions from
the registration requirements under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "U.S. Securities
Act™), including the exemption under Regulation S ("Regulation S") of the U.S. Securities Act.

The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants / Investors. Our Company and the Lead Manager
is not liable for any amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur
after the date of this Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their independent investigations and ensure
that the number of Equity Shares applied for do not exceed the applicable limits under laws or regulations.
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SECTION IX - STATUTORY AND OTHER INFORMATION

Please note that the Rights Equity Shares applied for under this Issue can be allotted only in dematerialized form
and to (a) the same depository account/ corresponding pan in which the Equity Shares are held by such Investor
on the Record Date, or (b) the depository account, details of which have been provided to our Company or the
Registrar at least two working days prior to the Issue Closing Date by the Eligible Equity Shareholder holding
Equity Shares in physical form as on the Record Date.
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION

The copies of the following contracts which have been entered or are to be entered into by our Company (not
being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business carried on by our Company or contracts entered
into more than two years before the date of this Letter of Offer) which are or may be deemed material have been
entered or are to be entered into by our Company. Copies of the documents for inspection referred to hereunder,
would be available on the website of the Company at www.advikcapital.com in from the date of this Letter of Offer
until the Issue Closing Date.

1.

(i)
(i)

(iii)

(iv)
(v)

9.
10.

Material Contracts for the Issue

Registrar Agreement dated September 07, 2024 between our Company and the Registrar to the Issue.

Memorandum of Understanding dated May 1, 2024 between our Company and Fast Track Finsec Private
Limited, Lead Manager to the Issue;

Escrow Agreement dated September 07, 2024 amongst our Company, the Registrar to the Issue and the
Bankers to the Issue/ Refund Bank.
Tripartite Agreement between our Company, NSDL and the Registrar to the Company.

Tripartite Agreement between our Company, CDSL and the Registrar to the Company
Material Documents

Certified true copy of Certificate of Incorporation, the Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association of our Company, as amended.

Resolutions of the Board of Directors dated March 23, 2024 in relation to the Issue and other related
matters.

Copies of Annual Reports of our Company for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2023, March 31,
2022, March 31, 2021.

Resolution of Shareholder dated April 25, 2024 approving the issue.

Copy of the Resolution of Board Meeting dated September 07, 2024 finalizing the terms of the Issue
including Issue Price, Record Date and the Rights Entitlement Ratio.

Resolution of our Fund-Raising Committee dated September 07, 2024 approving the Letter of Offer.
Consents of our Promoters, Directors, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, Statutory
Auditors, Bankers to our Company, Bankers to the Issue, Legal Advisor to the Issue, and the Registrar
to the Issue for inclusion of their names in the Letter of Offer to act in their respective capacities.
Statement of Tax Benefits dated May 2, 2024 for our Company from the Statutory Auditors of our
Company.

Audit Report for financial year ending on March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.
In-principle approval issued by BSE vide approval letter LOD/RIGHT/AB/FIP/600/2024-25 dated July
19, 2024,

Any of the contracts or documents mentioned in this Letter of Offer may be amended or modified at any time if
so required in the interest of our Company or if required by the other parties, without reference to the shareholders
subject to compliance of the provisions contained in the Companies Act and other relevant statutes.
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DECLARATION

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules, regulations and guidelines
issued by the Government of India, or the rules, regulations or guidelines issued by the SEBI, established under
Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may be, have been complied with
and no statement made in this Letter of Offer is contrary to the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, the
Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, the Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957 and the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, each as amended, or the rules, regulations or guidelines issued thereunder,
as the case may be. We further certify that all the statements and disclosures made in this Letter of Offer are true

and correct.

SIGNED BY THE DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNELS OF OUR COMPANY

Sd/-

Vikas Garg
(Promoter Director, Executive Category)

Sd/-

Devender Kumar Garg
(Non-Executive Independent Director)

Sd/-

Karan Bagga
(Chief Executive Officer, Whole Time Director)

Sd/-

Sd/-

Pankaj
(Chief Financial Officer, Whole Time Director)

Swati Gupta
(Non-Executive Independent Director)

Sd/-

Sd/-

Deepika Mishra
(Company Secretary and Compliance Officer)

Sony Kumari
(Non-Executive Independent Director)

Date: September 07, 2024
Place: New Delhi

225




